
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 2 December 2022 

 Page 1 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services 
Telephone: 07895 213735 
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 24 November 2022  
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Cabinet 

will be held on Friday 2 December 2022 at 2.00 pm  
Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Cabinet Members: 
Councillors  
Emily Smith (Chair)  Debby Hallett 
Bethia Thomas (Vice-Chair)  Helen Pighills 
Andy Crawford Sally Povolotsky 
Neil Fawcett Judy Roberts 
 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 

1. Apologies for absence  
 
To record apologies for absence.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 4 - 8)  
  
To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 11 
November 2022.   

mailto:carole.nicholl@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings


Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 2 December 2022 

 Page 2 

 

3. Declarations of interests  
  
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, other registrable interests and 
non-registrable interests or any conflicts of interest in respect of items on the agenda for 
this meeting. 
 

4. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and 
to receive any announcements from the chair. 
 

5. Public participation  
  
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered 
to speak.   
 

6. Recommendations and updates from other committees  
  
To consider any recommendations to Cabinet from other committees.   
 

7. Diversity and inclusion strategy  
(Pages 9 - 103)  
  
To consider the head of corporate services’ report.   
 

8. Council tax base 2023/24  
(Pages 104 - 108)  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report.   
 

9. Oxfordshire Plan 2050 ceasing production and implications for the 
Joint Local Plan and Local Development Scheme  

(Pages 109 - 132)  
  
To consider the head of policy and programmes’ report.   
 

10. Corporate Plan and Climate Action Plan performance reports - 
quarter 2, 2022/23  

(Pages 133 - 241)  
  
To consider the head of policy and programmes’ reports.   
 

11. Food Strategy  
(Pages 242 - 308)  
  
To consider the head of policy and programmes’ report.   
 



Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 2 December 2022 

 Page 3 

12. Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone - Memorandum of 
Understanding  

(Wards Affected: Blewbury and Harwell; Sutton Courtenay)  
(Pages 309 - 347)  
  
To consider the report of the deputy chief executive – partnerships.   
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 11 November 2022 1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Cabinet 

 

 
held on Friday 11 November 2022 at 10.30 am 
in Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE  
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Emily Smith (Chair), Bethia Thomas (Vice-Chair), 
Andy Crawford, Helen Pighills and Judy Roberts 
Officers: Steve Culliford (Democratic Services Team Leader) and Mark Stone (Chief 
Executive) 
 
Remote attendance:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Neil Fawcett and Debby Hallett  
Officers: Harry Barrington-Mountford (Head of Policy and Programmes), Jayne Bolton 
(Community Wellbeing Manager), Andrew Down (Deputy Chief Executive – Partnerships), 
Paul Fielding (Head of Housing and Environment), Simon Hewings (Head of Finance), 
Jeremy Lloyd (Broadcasting Officer) and Mark Minion (Head of Corporate Services)  

 
 

33. Apologies for absence  
 
Councillor Sally Povolotsky had sent her apologies for absence.   
 

34. Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 30 September 2022 
as a correct record and agree that the chair signs them as such.   
 

35. Declarations of interests  
 
None 
 

36. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
The chair advised of emergency evacuation arrangements.  The chair also announced that 
at 11.00am the alarm would sound to allow the Cabinet meeting to pause to observe two 
minutes’ silence for Remembrance Day.   
 

37. Public participation  
 
Two members of the public had registered to speak at the meeting.   
 

(1) Graham Beith, the chairman of the Wantage Independent Advice Centre, trading as 
Vale Community Impact, made a statement thanking the council for the financial 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 11 November 2022  

support it had given over many years and highlighting the work of the organisation in 
helping those in need in Wantage, Grove and surrounding areas.  He asked that if 
the council pursued a commissioning model for future funding and service provision, 
he wished to be involved in the model’s design to allow both the council and his 
organisation to achieve their aims.   

 

(2) Debbie Watts, Chief Officer, Citizens Advice Oxfordshire South and Vale, based in 
Abingdon, made a statement echoing the points made by Mr Beith and also asked for 
involvement in the design of a new commissioned advice service.   

 
The chair thanked both speakers for their contribution.   
 

38. Recommendations and updates from other committees  
 
Cabinet received and noted the recommendations and updates from the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee following its meetings held in October and November.   

 
39. Housing Delivery Strategy and Action Plan  
 
Cabinet considered the report of the head of housing and environment and the deputy 
chief executive – place.  This presented a housing delivery strategy and action plan, which 
had been prepared jointly with South Oxfordshire District Council.  This set out how the 
council aimed to deliver housing over the period 2022 to 2024 and ensure that homes 
were genuinely affordable by local people.  The strategy brought together guidance and 
advice on policy and set out an action plan covering the short, medium and longer term.   
 
The strategy included four strategic housing priorities:  

 To provide homes to meet current and future local need  

 To delivering housing that is truly affordable  

 To value and support council and community-led housing initiatives  

 To plan for well-designed net zero carbon housing   
 
Cabinet supported the adoption of the housing delivery strategy and action plan as it would 
allow the council to pursue a range of options to provide housing, including bringing empty 
properties back into use.  Members noted that the action plan would evolve to adapt to 
changing demands.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a)  adopt the joint Housing Delivery Strategy 2022-2024; and  
 
(b)  adopt the associated Action Plan.   

 
40. Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2023/24  
 
Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report on a review of the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme.   
 
The report proposed to reverse three amendments made to the scheme in 2014.  This 
would provide greater support for low income working individuals and families that had 
previously been penalised financially and would provide a fairer council tax reduction for all 
residents on a low income.  The calculation of working age council tax reduction was 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 11 November 2022  

based on 91.5 per cent of their council tax liability, rather than 100 per cent.  Council tax 
collection data indicated that the current minimum charge of 8.5 per cent and the Band E 
restriction had both caused hardship for working individuals and families.   
 
The Cabinet member for finance reported that, considering the current cost-of-living crisis 
and the cost to collect the potential shortfall, this change should help reduce potential 
hardship.  The proposals would enhance the current scheme to ensure it helped residents 
during the cost-of-living crisis and continued to be fair on all residents and protect the most 
vulnerable.   
 
Cabinet supported the proposal, believing that the council must do all it could to help local 
residents during the current cost-of-living crisis and beyond.  The proposal was a 
compassionate response and would help those most in need.   
 
RECOMMENDED to Council on 7 December 2022:  
 
that for the 2023/24 financial year onwards, the council continues to adopt the previous 
2022/23 Council Tax Reduction Scheme but with the following amendments: 

 to remove the 91.5 per cent limit (cap) when calculating the council tax bill,  

 to remove the band E restriction for all residents, so that qualifying residents will have 
their Council Tax Reduction calculated at 100 per cent of their council tax bill, after 
any deductions and based on their property’s actual council tax band, and 

 to reintroduce the second adult rebate scheme to working age residents, in order to 
give a maximum 25 per cent reduction where they live with another adult on a low 
income.   

 

41. Vale Partnership Grants  
 
Cabinet considered the head of policy and programmes’ report on partnership grants.   
 
In October 2021, Cabinet had agreed to commission an organisation to provide 
information and advice services from 2023 onwards.  However, this had proved to be 
complex to align with the partnership approach being delivered through the Covid-19 
pandemic and more recently during the response to support refugees and asylum seekers 
being welcomed across the district, and providing support residents affected by the cost-
of-living crisis.   
 
The partnership organisations currently being funded and working in partnership with the 
council, had embraced a highly flexible approach to supporting our local residents and 
targeting their services to meet resident need and our agreed priorities.   
 
The Cabinet member for community engagement believed that having flexibility within 
community partnership arrangements was essential in the current climate.  The Cabinet 
member recommended that Cabinet reconsidered its previous decision to commission an 
organisation to provide information and advice services from 2023 onwards.  The current 
flexible operating model was providing an efficient and effective route to allocate 
government funding and provide support to our most vulnerable residents at a time of 
challenge and uncertainty.  The Cabinet member recommended continuing the existing 
funding arrangements for until March 2024, subject to approval of the budget by Council in 
February 2023.  This would allow a new partnership grant fund policy to be prepared and 
considered during 2023/24, with applications to be made and determined by Cabinet in 
readiness for approval of the budget by the Council for 2024/25.   
 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 11 November 2022  

Cabinet supported the proposal.  It was important to support the partnership organisations 
at this time while the council considered new models for the future.  Cabinet was content 
for the partnership organisations to be consulted on the draft proposals for 2024/25.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) cease the process to explore the commissioning of information and advice services 

from 2023 onwards (as previously agreed in October 2021);  
 
(b) extend the current Partnership Grants to Oxfordshire South and Vale Citizen’s Advice 

Bureau and Wantage Independent Advice Centre (now known as Vale Community 
Impact) and Community First Oxfordshire towards the provision of services across 
the district to 31 March 2024, subject to approval of the 2023/24 budget by full 
Council; and  

 
(c)  consider potential partnership models for the Partnership Grant fund with the 

intention to commence a new funding scheme from April 2024 onwards, subject to 
approval of the 2024/25 budget by full Council.    

 

42. Five Councils Partnership Governance  
 
Cabinet considered the report of the deputy chief executive – partnerships.  This set out 
the financial and governance position of the Five Councils Partnership.   
 
Since the inception of the partnership contract, the licensing, HR and payroll, finance 
services and procurement functions had been removed.  The report set out how the 
contractual changes reflected the council’s liabilities and its impact on the inter authority 
agreement.  The baseline percentage that the council should now pay was 16.21 per cent, 
down from the original baseline of 17.12 per cent.  As this baseline related to the changes 
which occurred in 2020/21, there was a need for a re-balancing payment to the Vale from 
Mendip, Hart, and Havant councils.   
 
The report also highlighted a decreased need for member involvement in the governance 
of the partnership and the management of its contract.  As such it was recommended that 
the partnership’s joint committee should streamline the number of its meetings to a 
minimum of one per year.   
 
Cabinet supported the proposals.  The re-balancing of the amount paid by this council and 
the streamlining of the governance arrangements were both welcomed.  Cabinet noted 
that there would not be any reduction in control as the contract was monitored closely by 
officers.   
 
Cabinet noted that officers were working on the future provision of the services beyond the 
contract date.  Members also asked officers to consider undertaking a cost-benefit 
analysis of the value of the contract as a whole to the council.   
 
RESOLVED to:  

 
(a) note and endorse the minor alteration to the proportion of the size of Vale’s 

contribution to the Five Councils’ Partnership contract and agree the approach to the 
truing up mechanisms;  

 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 11 November 2022  

(b) approve the streamlined governance approach, reflective of the current reduced size 
of the contract, to enable effective oversight and management of the contract, which 
includes all the changes set out in paragraph 22 of the deputy chief executive – 
partnership’s report to Cabinet on 11 November 2022, including the annual meeting 
of the Five Councils’ Partnership Joint Committee, providing budgetary and 
contractual oversight, and continuing the spirit of partnership working, whilst keeping 
members informed of contract performance; and  

 
(c) authorise the chief executive, in consultation with the Cabinet member for strategic 

partnerships and place, to finalise the terms on behalf of Vale of White Horse District 
Council and to enter into and complete the updated inter-authority agreement based 
on the principles set out in the report.   

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.35 am 
 
 
 
Chair:        Date:  

Page 8



 

 

Cabinet Report 

 

 

 

Report of Head of Corporate Services  

Author: David Fairall (People and Culture Manager) 

Telephone number: 07917 088340 

Email: David.Fairall@southandvale.gov.uk  

South Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Maggie Filipova-Rivers 

Tel: 07850 141623 

Email: Maggie.Filipova-Rivers@southoxon.gov.uk  

Vale Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Bethia Thomas  

Tel: 07906 821680 

E-mail: Bethia.Thomas@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

To: CABINET 

Dates: South – 1 December 2022; Vale – 2 December 2022 

 

 

Joint Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 

Recommendations 

That Cabinet: 
 
(a) Notes the consultation responses received including comments from Joint Scrutiny 

Committee and, 

(b) Adopts the Joint Diversity and Inclusion Strategy for South Oxfordshire and Vale of 
White Horse district councils (see Appendix 1) 

 

Purpose of report 

1. To share with members the consultation responses received to the councils’ draft joint 
diversity and inclusion strategy.  Members are asked to consider the responses 
received and, if content, adopt the Strategy.  

Corporate objectives  

2. Both councils’ have key objectives which are relevant to the Strategy. Within the 
South’s Corporate Plan, it aims to “embed an organisational culture that celebrates 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

mailto:David.Fairall@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Maggie.Filipova-Rivers@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:Bethia.Thomas@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 

diversity, inclusion and respect” and Vale aspires to “working in an open and inclusive 
way”. 

Background 

3. In addition to the public sector equality duty set out in Section 149 Equality Act 2010 
(see legal and equality implications below), there is commitment from both councils to 
focus on strengthening and improving diversity and inclusion across our communities 
and council services.  

4. Both councils have passed motions relating to diversity and inclusion, as well as 
publishing diversity and social campaign calendars on each respective council website.  

Development of draft diversity and inclusion strategy 

5. A working group was formed consisting of officers and two Cabinet lead members from 
both councils. This group produced a draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, which 
included the following statement of intent: 

We strive to create an environment where everybody feels that they belong 
and have a voice which will be heard.  We will embrace our differences, the 
unique talents, beliefs, backgrounds, and abilities of all our staff and 
residents. Together we will make a positive difference. 

 
6. The strategy was named the Diversity and Inclusion Strategy to distinguish it from the 

public sector equality duty.  This is on the basis that the draft strategy outlines the 
councils joint collective aim to add to our statutory duties by engaging with residents, 
communities and staff on diversity and inclusion. The aim is to help people in 
interacting with the councils and accessing our services.    

7. It should be made clear that this is a strategy which guides our approach and does not 
have binding effect, any decisions relating to service delivery must take account of and 
comply with the councils’ statutory duty which takes precedence balancing the interests 
of those with protected characteristics. This strategy and the supporting actions will in 
time, grow the information we collect, and this data set will further inform our responses 
to the public sector equality duty e.g. in helping to complete equality impact 
assessments and the annual employee equalities report. 

8. The draft strategy outlines what the councils’ approach to equality, diversity and 
inclusion is, what we will do to achieve our vision and how we will achieve our aims.  It 
also includes an action plan, which will evolve over time and be reviewed on a regular 
basis. The strategy will set out the councils’ commitment and actions to creating and 
ensuring diverse and inclusive services to our communities, businesses and other 
stakeholders. Proposed actions have been included with the draft strategy to indicate 
how the plan will look when live. 

Engagement approach 

9. Following Cabinet briefings in March 2022, it was agreed the next step for the 
development of the strategy would be to undertake an engagement exercise to gather 
feedback from residents and groups in our communities and from employees of the 
councils. 

Page 10



 

 

 

Engagement Plan – Learning and Feedback 
 

10. The Communications and Engagement team worked closely with the People and 
Culture team to develop a survey for residents, Members, community groups and other 
stakeholders to access, to offer feedback and comment on the councils’ draft strategy. 

11. In parallel, the draft strategy was communicated to the councils’ staff, with the 
opportunity to feedback. A drop-in session was also organised by the People and 
Culture team. This session included a presentation outlining the rationale and key 
features of the strategy, at this session staff were encouraged to offer feedback 
directly. All staff were encouraged to respond to the consultation as residents of the 
councils’ districts and as employees. 

12. The consultation ran between Monday 22 August and Monday 3 October 2022. 
Consultees were able to provide feedback through an online survey or by completing a 
paper comment form available in all libraries across both districts. A total of 234 
responses were received to the consultation. Please refer to Appendix 2 for the 
Consultation Report and Appendix 3 for the full survey results. 

13. Much of the feedback received through the external survey did not relate to the 
strategy and is therefore outside of the scope of this report. However, it will be shared 
with relevant services. Where applicable, this feedback will inform the action plan and 
the future development of services. 

14. Feedback relating to the strategy itself was largely positive (i.e. a good idea, good 
document etc.), with around two-thirds of responses supporting the proposed 
approaches within the action plan, other than the leadership, partnership and 
organisational commitment section, where just over half agreed. There were also 
comments provided, including: 

 this is not the best use of time / money 

 identify the elderly as a target group, as they are not always considered within 
diversity and inclusion conversations  

 reword where examples are given as to non-statutory characteristics to consider, as 
it inadvertently creates the impression the councils have incorrectly listed the 
protected characteristics 

 
15. The councils’ Joint Scrutiny Committee considered the Strategy and the consultation 

responses received at its meeting on 7 November 2022. In summary the Committee 
was supportive of the aims of the Strategy and the accompanying action plan. 

16. The strategy has been updated accordingly to reflect the feedback. The main changes 
to the Strategy are as follows: 

 We have reworded the ‘What do we mean by equality, diversity, and inclusion?’ 
section to make it clearer that the Strategy goes beyond our statutory equality 
duties 

 We have added in the ‘What will we do?’ section reference to local access groups 

 Within the Action Plan we have added owners across all actions, this will evolve as 
the Plan is implemented 

Page 11



 

 

 Within ‘Knowing our communities’, we have added an additional action concerning 
understanding how our communities prefer to interact with us and working with our 
key stakeholders to improve our communication methods 

 Within ‘Knowing our communities’, we have been more explicit about our officers 
being involved in the various relevant groups and networks across the districts and 
wider county area 

 Within ‘Knowing our communities’, we have added an additional action around 
ensuring better outcomes when feedback is received by the councils’ Customer 
Services team 

 Within ‘Responsive services and customer care’, we have included Easy Read as 
an option for providing information to our customers 

 Within ‘Responsive services and customer care’, we have noted that a measure of 
success will be through residents’ satisfaction surveys and complaint numbers 

 Within ‘A skilled and committed workforce’, we have added that we will enhance 
existing recruitment practices and staff skills and knowledge 

 
17. A suggested additional action for the focus group to consider is creating a more public-

facing name for the strategy once approved (i.e. a brand name or tag line) to ensure 
clarity and distinction between statutory requirements and the aims and desires of this 
strategy, as summarised by the statement of intent. 

18. If agreed by each Cabinet, it is anticipated the strategy and associated action plan will 
go live from early 2023. 

Options 

19. The councils are not legally required to adopt a Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. 
However, both councils are committed to focus on strengthening and improving 
diversity and inclusion across our communities and council services. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

20. As the activities contained with the Strategy and accompanying Action Plan are 
implemented, they will be assessed for their climate and ecological impact. At this 
stage there are not considered to be any adverse impacts. 

Financial implications 

21. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the councils’ overarching financial position. For South, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2022 showed that it is due to receive £2.1 million less in revenue funding than it plans 
to spend in 2022/23.  For Vale, a balanced budget was set in 2022/23 but there is 
expected to be a budget gap in future years.  

22. The funding gap at both councils is predicted to increase to over £3 million by 2026/27. 
As there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could 
increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisant of the need to 
address the funding gap in future years. 

 

Page 12



 

 

23. Any activities delivered as part of the strategy are expected to be undertaken within 
existing budgets, so no additional funding required or requested. 

 

Legal implications 

24. There are no specific legal implications arising from the recommendation in this report, 
however, as set out below, the councils have a public sector equality duty arising from 
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

In summary, those subject to the equality duty must, in the exercise of their functions, 
have due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

These are sometimes referred to as the three aims or arms of the general equality 
duty. The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves: 

 Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected 
characteristics. 

 Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people. 

 Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other 
activities where their participation is disproportionately low.1  

When making decisions, the councils must have due regard to these requirements and 
this will be demonstrated by carrying out an equality screening and, if any impact is 
identified, by preparing an Equality Impact Assessment.   

Whilst it is in order to reasonably go over and above the statutory requirements – which 
is the legitimate aim of the strategy - decision makers will need to ensure that there are 
no unintended consequences for those with protected characteristics when making 
decisions about service provision / delivery for residents.  As stated, this will be 
achieved by carrying out an equality impact screening at the time the decision is being 
made. 

Equality Implications 

25. In preparing this report, due consideration has been given to the councils’ statutory 
Equality Duty to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and 
foster good relations, as set out in Section 149(1) of the Equality Act 2010. An equality 
impact assessment has been undertaken on the Strategy. This assessment determined 
that, if implemented, the Strategy’s approach to increasing the councils’ knowledge and 
understanding of our communities and ensuring that our services are inclusive, will 

                                            
1 https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty 
 

Page 13



 

 

have a positive impact on people who have protected characteristics as defined by the 
Equality Act. 

Risks 
 

26. The main risk in not adopting the Strategy is that the councils are not receptive to the 
needs of its residents, staff, businesses and other stakeholders. The consultation 
carried out so far has identified valuable feedback which can inform the councils’ 
service delivery. A key action from the Strategy is to ‘expand our knowledge and 
understanding of our communities to establish who the residents and businesses that 
we service are’. By utilising the Equalities Framework for Local Government, we will 
meet this ambition. 

Conclusion 

 
27. A Joint Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, that is embedded successfully across the 

councils, will improve the services provided, in turn increasing customer satisfaction, 
and the councils’ reputations.  

 

Background papers 

None.   

 

Page 14



 

Page 1 of 10 
 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
 

South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse District Councils 
 
 

“We aspire to create an environment where everybody belongs and 
has a voice that will be heard.  We will embrace our differences, the 

unique talents, beliefs, backgrounds, and abilities of all our staff 
and residents. Together we will make a positive difference.” 

 
 
Introduction 
 
The councils are committed to working with our staff and communities to create an 
inclusive, fair, safe, and accessible environment, where everyone has the 
opportunity to succeed and thrive.  
 
This strategy sets out the councils’ approach and vision to equality, diversity, and 
inclusion by proactively engaging with our internal teams, community groups and 
residents to understand current challenges to inform decisions and work towards 
ensuring our services are truly inclusive and meet the needs of everyone.  
 
What do we mean by equality, diversity, and inclusion? 
 
The councils have a public sector equality duty arising from the Equality Act which 
means we have a legal duty to have due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not. 

Protected characteristics according to the Act are as follows: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

In addition to the public sector equality duty there is commitment from both councils 
to ensure our communities and services are inclusive to all. This Strategy supports 
that ambition.   
 
Equality, diversity, and inclusion can mean different things to different people based 
on their lived experience. We recognise that physical ability, gender identity, mental 
capacity, literacy level, education, economic status, personality, communication 
style, financial situation, approaches to life and work and other factors can make it 
harder for people to access the support they need, to feel included and shape 
service provision appropriately.   
 

Page 15



 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 
By understanding, supporting, and embracing these differences, we aspire to create 
an environment which promotes respect for and understanding of everyone.   
 
What will we do? 
 
In order to achieve our vision for equality, diversity and inclusion, we will: 
 

- Expand our knowledge and understanding of our communities to establish 
who the residents and businesses that we service are, understand details of 
their concerns and identify where there are any service delivery gaps 
 

- Carry out Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) across our services and policies 
to ensure that these are inclusive as possible and in accordance with the law 

 
- Work both internally and with outside partners to be leaders in our 

communities for promoting equality, diversity, and inclusion, through 
understanding the underlying causes and symptoms of inequality and working 
in collaboration with internal teams, voluntary groups, local access groups and 
the wider community to address identified issues 
 

- Create Diversity and Social Campaign Calendars for both councils to help us 
to celebrate the diverse nature of our districts. The calendars display dates for 
a wide range of religious festivals, commemoration, and awareness days that 
we’ll publicly observe and promote that reflect our diverse communities and 
the priorities set out in our Corporate Plans. 
   

How will we achieve our aims? 
 
In order to obtain relevant information and sustain our approach to equality, diversity 
and inclusion, the councils will: 
 

 Review policies to ensure they are robust, up to date and relevant 
 

 Identify and support a team of Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion champions 
within the councils to establish a partnership network 

 

 Develop a suite of training modules for staff and members, enabling them to 
recognise how they can make a difference and understand who to go to for 
additional support 
 

 Engage with teams across the councils and outside agencies to collate 
equalities data, which will be used to inform future equality, diversity, and 
inclusion initiatives across all areas of the councils 
 

 Create an environment and culture where people can engage and ask 
questions without fear of retribution 

 

Page 16



 

Page 3 of 10 
 

We are committed to using the Equalities Framework for Local Government (EFLG) 
and will use this as a foundation to work towards meeting our aspirations for equality, 
diversity and inclusion.  
 
The EFLG framework consists of four categories: 
 

1. Understanding and Working with your Communities 
2. Leadership and Organisational Commitment 
3. Responsive Services and Customer Care 
4. Diverse and Engaged Workforce 

 
The EFLG rates each category as Developing, Achieving or Excellent. The overall 
aim of our strategy is to first reach and then sustain excellent status in all areas. 
 
The councils will be expected to use this understanding to demonstrate ‘due regard' 
for the public sector equality duty. 
 
 

Page 17

https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/equality-frameworks/equality-framework-local-government


 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Action Plan 
 
The councils have developed an action plan which sets out the councils’ commitment and actions to creating diverse and inclusive 
services to our communities.  
 
This plan captures all actions relating to equality, diversity, and inclusion across both councils in support of this strategy. Lead 
Owners are shown below but the nature of the activities will require the support of a variety of service areas across the councils. 
 

EFLG 
category  

What we need to do  How we will achieve this Measures of success Owner(s) Status 

Knowing our 
Communities 

- Build and 
strengthen 
relationships 
with the 
communities we 
serve to 
understand their 
needs and 
improve the 
services we 
provide 

- Obtain and 
analyse 
community 
equality data to 
ensure all 
services across 
the councils are 
inclusive and 
accessible to all 

- Ensure that 
community 

- Mapping of minority, 

vulnerable and hard to 

reach groups and 

organisations that work 

with and represent them. 

- Obtain data from outside 
sources (e.g., Office for 
National Statistics) to 
enable the councils to 
understand which areas 
of the districts may 
benefit from additional 
support.  

- Obtain 2021 census 
information to ensure the 
councils’ reports are up to 
date and current 

- Equalities Officer (EO) to 
identify and become a  
member of various 
groups, including, but not 
limited to, access groups, 

- Have up to date 
and clear data in 
relation to residents 
needs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Recommendations 
in place resulting in 
improved services 
to residents and 
community groups 

 
 
 
 

People & 
Culture 
 
 
 
Policy & 
Programmes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
People & 
Culture 
 
 

-  

P
age 18



 

Page 5 of 10 
 

members are 
liaised / 
consulted with in 
the event of 
changes to 
services 
provided by the 
councils 

- Understand how 
our communities 
prefer to interact 
with us and 
work with key 
stakeholders 
across the 
councils to 
improve 
communication 
methods to our 
residents. 

community groups, age 
awareness groups, 
LGBTQ+ groups, 
religious groups and 
schools and colleges, to 
promote equality and 
diversity within our 
communities and gauge a 
better understanding of 
issues and practices 
within Oxfordshire. 
 

- Work with relevant teams 
(e.g., Assisted Waste 
Collections, Technical 
Services, Environmental 
Health, Customer 
Services etc.) to obtain 
resident feedback using 
surveys in relation to 
council services, helping 
us gain an understanding 
of community needs. 
Agree a process with 
Customer Services to 
ensure any equality 
concerns are addressed 
with the EO to ensure 
satisfactory outcome 

- Once data been complied 
work with internal and 
external partner 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Positive feedback 
from surveys 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer 
Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
People & 
Culture 
 

P
age 19



 

Page 6 of 10 
 

organisations (such as 
voluntary groups) to 
understand specific 
needs and any barriers 
faced.  

Involving our 
communities  

- Our 
communities are 
informed and 
know how to 
contribute to 
council 
decision-making 
processes, 
where 
applicable 

- Equality Officer to work 
with teams across the 
councils (e.g., Active 
Communities, Community 
Safety, Planning), to 
understand what services 
/ activities and events are 
being offered to residents 
ensuring accessibility and 
inclusion to all. 
Consultations / 
Engagement practices 
are reviewed. Advertising 
important information on 
community notice boards 
and in libraires, which 
should give residents 
options and formats to 
see these documents.  

- Participation 
improves and is 
inclusive and 
preferably 
representative of 
the local 
communities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Consultations and 
engagement more 
representative  

 

People & 
Culture 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Comms & 
Engm’t 

-  

Leadership, 
partnership 
and 
organisational 
commitment 

- Ensure that the 
councils’ 
commitments to 
equality, 
diversity and 
inclusion are 
clear and 
expectations are 

- Review / develop a 
comprehensive equality, 
diversity and inclusion 
strategy that spans 
across all areas of the 
councils 

- Review and communicate 
the importance of Equality 

- Number of EIAs 
completed increase 

- All staff have 
completed equality 
courses.  

- Maintain Disability 
Confident employer 
status 

People & 
Culture 

-  

P
age 20



 

Page 7 of 10 
 

clearly 
understood 
across the 
councils 

- Develop and 
review a suite of 
policies to 
promote 
equalities, 
diversity and 
inclusion 

- Develop 
recruitment and 
HR practices 
(including 
training) that are 
fair and 
accessible to all 

- Embrace the 
diversity of the 
councils’ staff 
and 
communities 
which 
encourages 
open 
conversation to 
understand 
differences and 
a safe space for 
collaborative 
working so that 

Impact Assessments to al 
staff. 

- Review HR policies / 
processes to ensure that 
all opportunities and 
processes are inclusive 
and accessible to all 

- Equality Officer  
to set up a pool of 
diversity and inclusion 
champions to promote 
and support equalities 
vision across the councils 
(including members and 
the wider community) 

- Celebrate Diversity 
through Art offer   
 

 

- Diversity & 
inclusion 
champions 
recruited, trained, 
and attend regular 
updates to be led 
by the Equality 
Officer and Human 
Resources. 

- Increased number 
of diverse staff 
appointed 

- Annual Diversity 

Day P
age 21



 

Page 8 of 10 
 

services and 
processes are 
inclusive and 
representative 

Responsive 
services and 
customer care 

- Ensure that all 
members of the 
community can 
access the 
councils’ 
services, 
facilities and 
resources 

- Ensure that equality, 
diversity, and inclusion is 
embedded within the 
councils’ policies and 
procedures (using the 
champions) 

- Work with internal 
communications and 
Strategic HR to develop a 
training module for staff 
who are responsible for 
the creation of public 
documents to go on our 
websites, so these are 
accessible to all, including 
Easy Read 

- Documents / 
publications and 
services are in line 
with government 
guidelines 

- Staff to complete 
Internal training 
modules 

- Improved residents’ 
satisfaction 
surveys, resulting 
in improved 
customer 
experience and 
reduction in 
complaints  

- All staff aware of 
procedures to 
access Translation 
service where 
applicable. 
 

People & 
Culture 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Comms & 
Engm’t 
 
Customer 
Services 

-  

A skilled and 
committed 
workforce  

Ensure that all 
councillors and 
members of staff are 
aware of their 
responsibilities and are 
properly informed and 

- Ensure equalities, 
diversity and inclusion 
training is available as 
part of the new starter 
induction process. 

- All staff and 
councillors have 
completed internal 
training on 
equalities, diversity, 
and inclusion.  

People & 
Culture 

-  

P
age 22



 

Page 9 of 10 
 

trained, enabling them 
to provide the best 
support and guidance 
possible 

- Enhance existing 
recruitment practices to 
maximise inclusion 

- Ensure staff have the 
skills and knowledge to 
respond efficiently to 
residents’ enquiries 

- Develop further / 
advanced training  

- Enable staff and 
councillors to have the 
skills and knowledge to 
ensure that the needs of 
diverse and vulnerable 
groups are considered in 
both the development and 
delivery of services, by 
working with Strategic HR 
to develop a range of 
training covering equality 
/ diversity / inclusion (e.g., 
unconscious bias / 
neurodiversity) 

 

 
Relevant policies and documents to support the above: 
 

- Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
- Equalities in Employment Policy 
- Gender Pay Gap report 
- Pay Policy 
- HR Employee Equalities report 
- Corporate Equality Action Plan reporting – every 4 years 

P
age 23



 

Page 10 of 10 
 

- Surveys / analysis and recommendations on equalities, diversity, and inclusion reporting as detailed in action plan 
 
Alternative formats 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact Lynne Mitchell (Equalities Officer) via email lynne.mitchell@southandvale.gov.uk if you would like 
this document in an alternative format. 

 

P
age 24

mailto:lynne.mitchell@southandvale.gov.uk


 
1 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

   
 

 

 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy  
 
CONSULTATION REPORT 
 
A summary of the feedback received on the Diversity and Inclusion 
Strategy. 

   
OCTOBER 2022  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
The full list of comment received are available to view in a separate document on our website 
pages: South or Vale. 

Note: When stating percentages in the analysis, we are referring to the percentage of 

respondents that answered the specific question, rather than the total number of responses to 

the overall survey. Percentages may not add up to 100 per cent due to rounding up over .5 and 

rounding down under .5. Words that appear in italics are quotes taken from comments 

received. 

 

Page 25

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/get-in-touch/consultations/previous-consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/previous-consultations/


 
2 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

CONTENTS 

 

SUMMARY 3 

ENGAGEMENT METHODOLOGY 4 

COMMUNICATION 5 

SURVEY AND SUMMARY OF THE RESULTS 7 

FURTHER INFORMATION 23 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 26



 
3 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

SUMMARY 

This report provides information on the consultation undertaken by South Oxfordshire and Vale 
of White Horse District Councils on the Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, including a summary 
of its results. The consultation ran between Monday 22 August and Monday 3 October 2022, 
with a two-weeks extension being granted on Monday 19 September due to the period of 
national mourning. 
  
We asked residents, businesses/organisations, district, town and parish councillors and council 
officers to help shape our new Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. The strategy explains how we 
will do more than just our legal requirements to help people access our services in the best 
way possible. 
 
Consultees could provide their feedback through an online survey or by completing a paper 
comment form available in all libraries across both districts. A total of 234 responses were 
received to the consultation. Most respondents provided their feedback as 
individuals/members of the public (87 per cent) and were aged between 55 and 74 (54 per 
cent).   

Page 27



 
4 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

ENGAGEMENT METHODOLOGY 

How we undertook the consultation.  
 

The consultation ran from Monday 22 August to 11:59pm on Monday 3 October 
2022. This consultation period was extended and includes two additional weeks 
for the national mourning period.  
 
The consultation was sent to the following stakeholders by email:   
 

• Councils’ consultation database 

• Town and parish councils 

• Consultees that fall under the protected characteristics 

 
Letters were issued to 294 consultees registered on the councils’ consultation 
database. 
 

A press release and social media messages (Facebook, Twitter and Instagram) 
were posted throughout the consultation period.  

 

An online survey was created to gather views on the Diversity and Inclusion 
Strategy. A copy of the survey and a summary of the comments received are 
available to view in this report. 

A copy of the Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, Easy Read Leaflet and 

Comment Form were available in all libraires across South Oxfordshire and Vale 

of White Horse. 

 

The below video was created and posted on social media to help reach a wider 

audience. The video was also translated from English into Mandarin and Polish. 

These are the most spoken foreign languages in South Oxfordshire and Vale of 

White Horse. To watch the video right-click on it and select “open in browser”.  

 

 

Page 28

https://www.youtube.com/embed/evVF3Ar-YU8?feature=oembed


 
5 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

COMMUNICATION 

A copy of the email notification issued to consultees on the council’s consultation database is 

provided below. 

Subject: Your views on the Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 

Dear Sir/Madam 

People come in all shapes and sizes, we look and sound different and we all see things 

differently. South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse District Councils value and embrace 

these differences - as these are the things that make each of us unique. 

We are creating a new Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and would like your views on how we 

can make it easier for everyone to access the councils' services, support and information. 

If you live or work in the area, we know that at some point you may need to make contact with 

us or find out some information from us. It could be to find out when your bins are being 

emptied, to let us know you’re changing address, a council tax query, business rates query, 

housing support or some guidance on a planning application. 

If you have any specific needs, what would make it easier for you when you interact with us? 

You can help shape our new Diversity and Inclusion strategy. Its purpose is to lay out how the 

councils will go further than just our legal requirements, which we already achieve, to help 

people access our services in the best way possible for their needs. 

A short survey is open until 11:59pm on Monday 19 September. 

Note that this is a unique link just for you and is tied to your email address. If you would like to 

forward this message to anybody else, please refer them to the public link to the survey. 

If you have any questions about the strategy, please email 

Lynne.Mitchell@southandvale.gov.uk or call 07598 545906. 

What happens next? 

Once the consultation has closed we will review the responses and write a report, which we 

will publish and use to help us improve and add to our strategy and action plan.  

We look forward to hearing your views. 

Kind regards 

Lynne Mitchell 

Equality & Inclusivity Officer 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 

If you require the survey in an alternative format (for example: large print, Braille, audio, email, 

Easy Read or alternative languages) please email haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk or call 

01235 422425. 

Hard copies of the documents will be available from Monday 15 August in the following 

locations: 

Page 29



 
6 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

South Oxfordshire: Benson Library, Berinsfield Library, Chinnor Library, Didcot Library, 

Goring Library, Henley Library, Sonning Common, Thame Library, Wallingford Library, 

Watlington Library, Wheatley Library and Woodcote Library. 

Vale of White Horse: Abingdon Library, Botley Library, Faringdon Library, Grove Library, 

Kennington Library and Wantage Library 

Other: The Beacon, Cornerstone Arts Centre, District Neighbourhood Community Centre and 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 

Data protection: Please refer to our privacy policy regarding how your personal data is used 

for this consultation, available on the consultation page of our websites: South or Vale. If you 

would like to know more about the council’s data protection registration or to find out about 

your personal data, please visit our websites: South or Vale. 

Opt-out: If you do not wish to receive further emails from us like this, please email click here 

and you will be removed from our mailing list. Please note, we may still need to contact you for 

certain consultations if we have a legal obligation to do so. 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 30



 
7 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

SURVEY AND SUMMARY OF THE RESULTS  

A copy of the online survey including a summary of the results in provided below. 

 
Your views on the Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
 
If you need any of this information in large print, Braille, audio, email, Easy Read or in a 
different language please email haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422425. 
 
Jeśli potrzebujesz niniejszej ankiety lub strategii oraz towarzyszących jej dokumentów w 
alternatywnym formacie (na przykład dużym drukiem, alfabetem Braille'a, w wersji dźwiękowej, 
e-mailem, w ułatwionej wersji do czytania lub w innych  językach), wyślij e-mail na adres 
haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk lub zadzwoń pod numer 01235 422425. 
 

如果您需要以其他格式（例如大字体、盲文点字、音讯、电邮、易读和其他语言）取得此意见调

查或策略和说明文件，请电邮至：haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk 或拨打：01235 422425 

  
Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
We would like you to help shape our new Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. The strategy 
explains how we will do more than just our legal requirements to help people access our 
services in the best way possible. 
 
We would like to know what would help you most when you contact us about our services. We 
would also like to hear about your experiences of contacting us, your views on the draft 
strategy and what you think about living in your neighbourhoods. 
 
Please note the deadline for completing this survey is Monday 3 October, 11:59pm. 
 
What happens next? 
Once the consultation has closed we will review the responses and write a report, which we 
will publish and use to help us improve and add to our strategy and action plan. 
 
Personal details 
You are not required to provide your name or contact details. Any personal information you 
provide to the council within your comments that could identify you will not be published in the 
summary report. If you are responding on behalf of an organisation, we may include the 
organisation's details in our report. 
 
All personal information supplied to the council will be handled in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018. Further information on data protection is available in our privacy 
statement. 
 
Save your progress and return to form later 
A 'save and continue later' option is available using a link at the bottom of each page, so that 
you can save your progress so far, and then return later to your survey. Simply provide your 
name and email address and you will automatically receive a link via email.  
 
 
 

Page 31

https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OXQJ66EQ/Diversity_and_Inclusion_Strategy_FINAL.pdf
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/A5UC5WWI/27_01_2021_privacy_policy__general_consultations.pdf
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/A5UC5WWI/27_01_2021_privacy_policy__general_consultations.pdf


 
8 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Q1. Are you responding as: 
 

 

The majority of responses (87 per cent) were received from individuals/members of the public. 

Other:  
 
Clerk and RFO for Parish Council 
Parish Clerk X2 
Former SODC Chairman and Parish Councillor 
Former town and county councillor and current concerned citizen  
School Governor  
Educator 
Voluntary customer representative group 
Individual X3 
 

Q1.1 If you're representing an organisation, you can name it here: 

Whitchurch-on-Thames Parish Council 
Stoke Row Parish Council 
Lewknor Parish Council 
Chalgrove Parish Council 
No 
Binfield Heath 
Barley Hill Primary School  
NEPALESE COMMUNITY OXFORDSHIRE (NCO) 
Oxfordshire Association of Local Councils 
Wantage & District Mobility Group 
Wheatley Parish Council 
Beechcroft Developments Ltd 
Oxfordshire Transport & Access Group 
Rotherfield Peppard Parish Council 
Pyrton Parish Council 
 
 
 

87%

2%
1%

3%
2%

4%
An individual/member of the
public

A business/organisation

A district councillor

A district council officer

A county or town/parish
councillor

A county or town/parish council
officer

Other (please specify):

Page 32



 
9 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Q2. How long ago did you make contact with the council? 
 

 
 

30 per cent of respondents said they had contacted the council in the last month. 15 per cent 

made contact within the last two-three months and 12 per cent within the last six months. 6 per 

cent of respondents had never contacted the council. 

Q3. Thinking about your last contact, what method of communication did 

you use? 

 

The most popular ways to communicate with the council were via email (42 per cent), by 

phone (26 per cent) and by website forms (20 per cent).  

30%

15%

12%

18%

18%

6%

In the last month

Within the last 2-3 months

Within the last 6 months

Within the last year

I don't know

I have never contacted the
council

26%

42%
1%

5%

20%

1%

5%

Phone

Email

Letter

In person

Through website forms

Through social media e.g.
facebook, twitter, Instagram

Other (please specify):

Page 33



 
10 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Other:  

Web search for information on policies and planning applications 

Teams meeting. I'm not sure why you are asking me this?  

I contacted a local councillor  

Don't know 

Website and email 

Too long ago to remember 

And email 

Zoom or Meet meetings 

via teams meeting online face to face meeting 

Either website or app (not 100% sure) 

 

Q4. How easy or difficult did you find that interaction?  

 

More than half of respondents (55 per cent) found contact either very easy (24 per cent) or 
easy (31 per cent), whilst 11 per cent found interaction difficult and 4 per cent found it very 
difficult.  

If you answered quite difficult or very difficult, please explain why below: 

This question received 35 comments. 

The most common reason provided by respondents to explain why their interaction with the 
councils was difficult, or very difficult, was that it took too long to obtain an official response, if a 
response was obtained at all. This was mentioned in 28 per cent of comments.  

The second most common answer was that it was difficult to find the right contacts or 
information online (26 per cent).  

Additionally,15 per cent of respondents said that it took too long for staff to answer the phone 
or get back to customers, and another 15 per cent said that the lack of in-person contact with 

24%

31%

30%

11%

4%

Very easy

Easy

Neither easy nor difficult

Difficult

Very difficult

Page 34



 
11 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

staff and heavy reliance on the website / electronic communications meant that interaction was 
not user-friendly.  

Finally, 10 per cent of respondents said that council’s staff was not helpful. 

Q5. Please explain anything we could have done differently to improve that 
interaction: 
 
This question received 71 comments. 

21 per cent of respondents indicated that the councils should respond to emails from 

customers and speed up the overall response process.  

Another 16 per cent of respondents said that they would have liked better information on 

services and more clarity on contact details. 

The third most mentioned area of improvement was communication from staff and councillors, 

and their knowledge of councils’ services (15 per cent). 

13 per cent of comments referred to the need to improve the councils’ services, including 

taking responsibility for contractors’ negligence.  

Q6. Which of these is the easiest way for you to receive information? 

 

The majority of respondents (89 per cent) said email is the easiest way for them to receive 

information from the council. The second most popular way of receiving information is letter (16 

per cent) and thirdly by a phone call (7 per cent). 

Other (please specify): 

This option was selected by seven respondents.  

89%

6%

16%

7%
5% Email

Text message

Letter

Phone call

Social media e.g. Facebook,
Twitter, Instagram

Page 35



 
12 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

4 comments said that the best way to receive information depends on the type of information 

being communicated. 

Q7. Would 'Easy Read' (This is a way of showing information in an 

accessible and easy to understand format, particularly for people with 

learning disabilities) be a better way for you or somebody you know to find 

out information from the council? 

 

The majority of respondents (56 per cent) said that Easy Read is not a better way for them or 

somebody they know to find out information from the council and 21 per cent said yes.   

Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 

This section of the survey asked respondents questions about the draft Diversity and Inclusion 

Strategy and action plan. A link to the strategy and action plan was provided. 

Click or tap here to download and read the Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and action plan. 

Q8. How far do you agree or disagree with our proposed approach in the 

action plan towards addressing the following areas: 

Knowing our communities 

Strongly Agree Agree 
Neither Agree nor 

Disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 

Disagree 
I don't know 

   20% 

(44) 

  44% 

(94) 

  19% 

(40) 

  8% 

(17) 

  7% 

(14) 

  3% 

(7) 

 

21%

56%

23%

Yes

No

I don't know

Page 36

https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OXQJ66EQ/Diversity_and_Inclusion_Strategy_FINAL.pdf


 
13 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Almost two-thirds of respondents (64 per cent) support the approach to “knowing our 

communities” which is set in the action plan, including 44 per cent who agree and 20 percent 

who strongly agree with it. 8 per cent disagree with the approach and 7 per cent strongly 

disagree. 

Involving our communities 

Strongly Agree Agree 
Neither Agree nor 

Disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 

Disagree 
I don't know 

20% 

              (43) 

44% 

           (95) 

  21% 

(44) 

5% 

       (11) 

7% 

       (14) 

        4% 

        (8) 

Almost two-thirds of respondents (64 per cent) support the approach to involve our 

communities which is explained in the action plan, including 44 per cent who agree and 20 per 

cent who strongly agree with it. 5 per cent disagree with the approach and 7 per cent strongly 

disagree.  

Leadership, partnership and organisational commitment 

Strongly Agree Agree 
Neither Agree nor 

Disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 

Disagree 
I don't know 

  17% 

              (37) 

37% 

           (78) 

 26% 

             (55)   

  8% 

         (18) 

8% 

      (18) 

        4% 

        (8) 

Over half the respondents (54 per cent) said that they support our leadership, partnership and 

organisational commitment, including 37 per cent who agree and 17 per cent who strongly 

agree with the action plan. 8 per cent disagree with our leadership, partnership and 

organisational commitment and another 8 per cent strongly disagree. 

Responsive services and customer care 

Strongly Agree Agree 
Neither Agree 

nor Disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 

Disagree 
I don't know 

27% 

             (57) 

39% 

           (84) 

15% 

           (33) 

 7% 

          (14) 

       8% 

      (18) 

4% 

        (9) 

Two-thirds of respondents (66 per cent) support our approach towards responsive services 

and customer care, including 39 per cent who agree and 27 per cent who strongly agree, whist 

7 per cent disagree and 8 per cent strongly disagree. 

 

 

 

Page 37



 
14 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

A skilled and committed workforce 

Strongly Agree Agree 
Neither Agree 

nor Disagree 
Disagree 

Strongly 

Disagree 
I don't know 

30% 

             (65) 

38% 

           (81) 

16% 

           (35) 

4% 

           (8) 

  9% 

      (19)  

4% 

        (8) 

Over two-thirds of respondents (68 per cent) support our approach towards a skilled and 

committed workforce, including 38 per cent who agree and 30 per cent who strongly agree. 

This was the area of the Diversity and inclusion Strategy which received the highest level of 

endorsement. 4 per cent disagree with our approach and 9 per cent strongly disagree.  

Q9. Are there any actions you would like to see added to the action plan in 

the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy? (see pages 4 to 8) 

 

45 per cent of respondents said they don’t want any actions added to the action plan in the 

draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. This was followed by 28 per cent who said yes and 27 

per cent who said they don’t know.  

Q10. If yes, what actions would you like to see added? 

This question received 66 comments. 

Among the areas mentioned by respondents, the most common were that the councils should 

engage with and listen to communities more (21 per cent of respondents), and that this 

strategy is unnecessary and taxpayer money is better spent on other priorities (21 per cent).  

The type of community engagement that most respondents said they would like to see is 

direct/in-person, for example through local meetings, as this would reach residents who are not 

internet users due to disability or age.  

The third most common comment in response to this question was that more should be done 

to improve accessibility and inclusion (13 per cent), for example among young, school-age 

children. 12 per cent of respondents commented that the policy is vague and difficult to assess. 

28%

45%

27% Yes

No

I don't know

Page 38

https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OXQJ66EQ/Diversity_and_Inclusion_Strategy_FINAL.pdf


 
15 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Q11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion 

Strategy? 

This question received 154 comments. 

44 per cent of respondents considered the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy to be sensible, 

thorough, and useful. 29 per cent of comments voiced disappointment with the strategy, which 

was considered unnecessary and a waste of public money. 

13 per cent of respondents judged the strategy to be a little vague, difficult to put into practice 

and assess its impact on communities. 

Q12. Do you think anything is missing from the draft Diversity and 

Inclusion Strategy? 

 
42 per cent of respondents said they don’t think anything is missing from the draft Diversity and 

Inclusion Strategy. This was followed by 32 per cent who said they don’t know and 26 per cent 

who said yes.  

Q13. If yes, what is missing from the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy? 

This question received 59 comments. 

The area that was mentioned the most was that the Diversity and Inclusion Strategy lacks 

practical actions that can promote inclusion (34 per cent of comments). Among the actions that 

were suggested, respondents mentioned: more community engagement, English classes for 

non-English speakers, religious facilities for all faiths, training for councils’ staff and improved 

communication. 

19 per cent of respondents said that the strategy lacks concision and clarity around the 

measures of success, and that it was quite complicated. An additional 19 per cent of 

comments were unrelated to the question. 

7 per cent of respondents said that the strategy should clearly indicate the protected 

characteristics. More specifically, most comments in this category indicated the need to include 

sex and not gender. 

26%

42%

32%
Yes

No

I don't know

Page 39

https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OXQJ66EQ/Diversity_and_Inclusion_Strategy_FINAL.pdf
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OXQJ66EQ/Diversity_and_Inclusion_Strategy_FINAL.pdf
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OXQJ66EQ/Diversity_and_Inclusion_Strategy_FINAL.pdf
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OXQJ66EQ/Diversity_and_Inclusion_Strategy_FINAL.pdf
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/OXQJ66EQ/Diversity_and_Inclusion_Strategy_FINAL.pdf


 
16 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Q14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation 

makes in its approach to diversity and inclusion? 

This question received 158 comments.  

The most common response was that organisations risk not basing their diversity and inclusion 

policies on evidence and fail to directly engage with the community. This was mentioned by 25 

per cent of respondents. 

The second most common response, which was mentioned by another 24 per cent of 

respondents, was that organisations risk developing such policies just for appearance but fail 

to put them into practice. 

The third biggest group of respondents (18 per cent) said that spending public money to 

develop diversity and inclusion policies is not appropriate and such principles should just be 

embedded in the culture of the organisation. 

Community Cohesion 

This section of the survey was included to help the councils gain a better understanding of 

community relations. 

Q15. How strongly do you feel you belong to your local area?  

(When answering the questions in this section, please consider your local area to be within 15-

20 minutes walking distance from your home) 

 

33 per cent of respondents stated that they feel they very strongly belong to their local area, 

while a further 33 per cent stated that they strongly belong. Overall, two-thirds of respondents 

feel strongly or very strongly connected to their local area. A total of 13 per cent feel they do 

not very strongly belong to their local area and the figure for not strongly at all is 4 per cent. 

 

 

33%

33%

16%

13%

4% 1%
Very strongly

Strongly

Neither strongly nor not
strongly

Not very strongly

Not strongly at all

I don’t know

Page 40



 
17 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Q16. To what extent do you agree or disagree that your local area is a place 

where people from different backgrounds get on well together? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49 per cent of respondents agree that their local area is a place where people from different 

backgrounds get on well together and 13 per cent strongly agree with this.  A total of 5 per cent 

disagree and 3 per cent strongly disagree that their local area is a place where people from 

different backgrounds get on well together. Over a quarter of respondents (27 per cent) 

indicated they neither agree nor disagree. 

Q17. To what extent do you agree or disagree that people pull together to 

improve the local area? 

 

45 per cent of respondents agree that people pull together to improve their local area, and 16 

per cent strongly agree with this. 10 per cent of respondents disagree and 4 per cent strongly 

disagree that people pull together to improve their local area.  Almost a quarter of respondents 

(24 per cent) neither agree nor disagree. 

16%

45%

24%

10%

4% 1%
Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

I don't know

13%

49%

27%

5%
3% 4% Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

I don't know

Page 41



 
18 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Q18. Do you have any other comments about diversity and inclusion that 

you would like to add? If yes, please use the box below. 

This question received 76 comments. 

The most recurring comment was disagreement over the use of public money to develop a 

diversity and inclusion strategy. This was mentioned by 20 per cent of respondents.  

Similar views were voiced by the second biggest group of respondents (18 per cent), who don’t 

see diversity and inclusion as being an issue in the districts. 

The third biggest group of respondents (16 per cent) feel that their community is not always 

inclusive, or they don’t feel connected to it. 

Our commitment to equal access for all 

The councils are committed to making sure that residents have equal access to all services. 

The questions included in this section of the survey help us monitor how successfully we are 

achieving this.  

Whenever possible, we have compared the demographic characteristics of respondents to 

those displayed by the districts’ population. This helps us understand to what degree results 

are representative of our community. The districts’ demographic data has been drawn from 

both the 2021 and 2011 Census, which is available on Local Insight and Nomisweb.  

All questions were optional. All information is confidential and will only be used to help us 

understand whether views differ across the community.  

Q19. Which of the following describes how you identify yourself? 
 

 

46 per cent of respondents said they identify as a male followed by 44 per cent of females. 

Since male and female respondents are almost equally split in two groups, this is a good 

representation of the districts’ population, where males and females residents each constitute 

46%

44%

6%

3%
Male

Female

Neither of the above (specify
below if you would like to)

Prefer not to say

I identify as:

Page 42

https://local.communityinsight.org/
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/localarea?compare=E07000180


 
19 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

50 per cent of the total. However, with 6 per cent of respondents preferring not to disclose their 

gender, the actual distribution of respondents by gender is less clear. 

I identify as:  

Vulcan  

Please don't conflate sex (Male/Female) with gender identity - you can capture both if you want 

without rolling them into one Q. It renders the info you are capturing useless for some 

purposes - how will you know if women are underrepresented in answering this survey? 

I don't identify as anything. I'm a female. I have a nationality.  

I do not identify as anything - I am an adult human female.  Your question is badly phrased and 

a cause for concern 

Human 

How can you not be male or female woke woke woke 

We are two people responding together. One male, one female. 

Q20. How old are you? 

 

The largest age group was 65–74-year-olds, which included 30 per cent of respondents. This 

was followed by 55-64-year-olds with 24 per cent and 75+ with 19 per cent. We received 5 per 

cent of responses from those in the 35-44 age group and 1 per cent in the 25-34 age group. 

The age distribution of respondents does not well represent the districts’ population. More 

specifically, older age groups seem to be overrepresented in this survey while younger groups 

are underrepresented. For example, while those over 55 make up 73 per cent of survey 

respondents, they make up 33 per cent of the districts’ population. 

1%

5%

13%

24%

30%

19%

8%

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75+ Prefer not
to say

Page 43



 
20 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Q21. Is English your first language?  

 

The majority of respondents (94 per cent) said that English is their first language. This seems 

to represent well the wider population of the districts, where 96 per cent of residents consider 

English as their main language, whilst 3 per cent don’t consider English as their main 

language. 

If you have said 'no' please let us know what your first language is here: 

Fante 

Nepali 

 

Q22. What is your ethnic group? 

 

The majority of respondents (80 per cent) said their ethnic group was English, Welsh, Scottish, 

Northern Irish, British. 7 per cent said they would prefer not to say. Of the 4 per cent that 

selected ‘Other (please specify)’, groups mentioned included Nepali, Maori and Norwegian. For 

94%

2%

4%

Yes

No

Prefer not to
say

80%

7%

5%
4%

2%

1%
English, Welsh, Scottish,
Northern Irish, British

Prefer not to say

Any other white
background

Other (please specify):

Irish

Indian

Page 44



 
21 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

ease of representation, ethnic groups which recorded zero per cent of responses have been 

omitted in the above chart. 

These results are representative of the wider population of the districts, where 90 per cent of 

residents identify as White English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish and British, 4 per cent are 

from any other White background, 1 per cent are Indians and 1 per cent are Irish. 

Q23. Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or 

disability which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more? 

 

The majority of respondents (73 per cent) said that their day-to-day activities are not limited 

because of a health problem or disability which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or 

more. Another 18 per cent of respondents said that their activities are limited due to a health 

problem or disability. 

If yes, please specify: 

The largest group of respondents said that they struggle with mobility issues. The second and 

third most common health issue was arthritis and neurological disease. 

Anything else?  

Q24. If you have any additional comments you would like to make, please 

provide them in the comment box below. 

51 comments were received in response to this question. 

27 per cent of respondents said that they feel that the Diversity and Inclusion Strategy is not a 

priority and represents a wasteful use of public resources.  

The second and third largest group of respondents said they had no further comments to 

make, or made other comments, including some unrelated to the question. Both groups made 

up 17 per cent of respondents. 

Finally, 11 per cent of respondents said that more should be done to tackle social exclusion 

due to technology, age and disability. 

18%

73%

9%

Yes

No

Prefer not to say

Page 45



 
22 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

Q25. How did you hear about the Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy? 

 

Most respondents (77 per cent) said they heard about the Draft Diversity and Inclusion strategy 

via email.  

Other (please specify): 

Twitter 

Email X2 

Cornerstone  

3% 5%
0% 0% 3%

77%

4% 1% 0% 1% 0% 1%
5% 6%

2%

Page 46



 
23 

Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, October 2022 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

For information about the consultation or the results presented in this report, please contact: 
 
Consultation and Community Engagement Team 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
01235 422125 
haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
To enquire about the council’s work on the Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, please contact: 
 
Lynne Mitchell 
Equality & Inclusivity Officer 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
lynne.mitchell@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
 
END. 

Page 47

mailto:haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:lynne.mitchell@southandvale.gov.uk


Your views on the Draft Diversity and Inclusion 
Strategy 

2. Page 2  
  
 

1. Are you responding as:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 an individual/member of the public   
 

87.44% 195 

2 a business/organisation   
 

1.79% 4 

3 a district councillor   
 

1.35% 3 

4 a district council officer  0.00% 0 

5 a county or town/parish councillor   
 

2.69% 6 

6 
a county or town/parish council 
officer 

  
 

2.24% 5 

7 Other (please specify):   
 

4.48% 10 

 
answered 223 

skipped 11 

Other (please specify): (10) 

1 09/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197234297  

Clerk and RFO for Parish Council 

2 09/08/2022 09:40 AM 
ID: 197235158  

parish clerk 

3 09/08/2022 09:50 AM 
ID: 197236101  

Parish council clerk 

4 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

Former SODC Chairman and Parish Councillor 

5 15/08/2022 01:59 AM 
ID: 197445832  

Interested previous member / part time Casual Resident of Long Wittenham, 
Oxfordshire. Married local Girl in 1955 at the Long Wittenham Church. Contribute 
toward Earth Trust, Little Wittenham and eternally thankful to the People of Long 
Wittenham who opened their Heart’s and Homes to 

6 15/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 197562942  

Former town and county councillor and current concerned citizen  

7 15/08/2022 13:42 PM 
ID: 197581868  

School Governor  

8 15/08/2022 14:28 PM 
ID: 197588125  

Educator 

9 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Voluntary customer representative group 

10 15/09/2022 19:09 PM 
ID: 199522064  

two individuals 

 

If you're representing an organisation, you can name it here: (15) 

Page 48



1. Are you responding as:  

1 09/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197234297  

Whitchurch-on-Thames Parish Council 

2 09/08/2022 09:40 AM 
ID: 197235158  

Stoke Row Parish Council 

3 09/08/2022 09:50 AM 
ID: 197236101  

Lewknor Parish Council 

4 09/08/2022 15:20 PM 
ID: 197262062  

Chalgrove Parish Council 

5 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

No 

6 14/08/2022 14:38 PM 
ID: 197540488  

Binfield Heath 

7 15/08/2022 13:42 PM 
ID: 197581868  

Barley Hill Primary School  

8 16/08/2022 09:52 AM 
ID: 197623372  

NEPALESE COMMUNITY OXFORDSHIRE (NCO) 

9 22/08/2022 12:38 PM 
ID: 198062147  

Oxfordshire Association of Local Councils 

10 27/08/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 198373658  

Wantage & District Mobility Group 

11 06/09/2022 09:36 AM 
ID: 198859442  

Wheatley Parish Council 

12 09/09/2022 12:21 PM 
ID: 199118779  

Beechcroft Developments Ltd 

13 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Oxfordshire Transport & Access Group 

14 13/09/2022 22:02 PM 
ID: 199350649  

Rotherfield Peppard Parish Council 

15 23/09/2022 10:11 AM 
ID: 199680976  

Pyrton Parish Council 

 

 
3. Page 3  
  
 

2. How long ago did you make contact with the council?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 In the last month   
 

30.00% 66 

2 
Within the last 2-3 
months 

  
 

15.45% 34 

3 Within the last 6 months   
 

11.82% 26 

4 Within the last year   
 

18.18% 40 

5 I don't know   
 

18.18% 40 

Page 49



2. How long ago did you make contact with the council?  

6 
I have never contacted 
the council 

  
 

6.36% 14 

 
answered 220 

skipped 14 

 
4. Page 4  
  
 

3. Thinking about your last contact, what method of communication did you use?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Phone   
 

25.98% 53 

2 Email   
 

41.67% 85 

3 Letter   
 

1.47% 3 

4 In person   
 

4.90% 10 

5 Through website forms   
 

19.61% 40 

6 
Through social media 
e.g. facebook, twitter, 
Instagram 

  
 

1.47% 3 

7 Other (please specify):   
 

4.90% 10 

 
answered 204 

skipped 30 

Other (please specify): (10) 

1 09/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197240107  

Web search for information on policies and planning applications 

2 10/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197313434  

Teams meeting. I'm not sure why you are asking me this?  

3 15/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 197562942  

I contacted a local councillor  

4 15/08/2022 12:19 PM 
ID: 197578852  

Don't know 

5 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

Website and email 

6 15/08/2022 12:40 PM 
ID: 197580699  

Too long ago to remember 

7 16/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197626044  

And email 

8 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Zoom or Meet meetings 

9 09/09/2022 19:51 PM 
ID: 199143763  

via teams meeting online face to face meeting 

Page 50



3. Thinking about your last contact, what method of communication did you use?  

10 13/09/2022 11:15 AM 
ID: 199288392  

Either website or app (not 100% sure) 

 

 

4. How easy or difficult did you find that interaction?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Very easy   
 

24.14% 49 

2 Easy   
 

30.54% 62 

3 Neither easy nor difficult   
 

29.56% 60 

4 Difficult   
 

11.33% 23 

5 Very difficult   
 

4.43% 9 

 
answered 203 

skipped 31 

If you answered quite difficult or very difficult, please explain why below: (35) 

1 08/08/2022 20:10 PM 
ID: 197215937  

I was trying to contact the leader of the council and my district councillor - trying to 
find out who they were and their email addresses required some googling. It's 
also not easy to understand the different roles/scope of OCC and South Oxon.  

2 08/08/2022 20:57 PM 
ID: 197218796  

General phone number then had to ask for a department 

3 09/08/2022 10:40 AM 
ID: 197238367  

It was impossible to contact the council Waste team to get Biffa to collect my food 
waste that had not been collected for three weeks. Biffa were claiming they could 
not find my address again. The are only six properties in the Lane. I contacted my 
district counsellor. Only then was it collected. 

4 09/08/2022 11:26 AM 
ID: 197242453  

If you know what you are looking for and understand all the council speak access 
for some people is easier hence my response, down the middle, but for those, 
especially a growing elderly population, its a real challenge. Too much is couched 
in terms of government / council jargon and not around the user! 

5 09/08/2022 15:04 PM 
ID: 197259882  

The understanding of my question was not grasped by person I spoke with. 
Evidently, no one would be available for several days as they were on annual 
leave! 

6 09/08/2022 15:17 PM 
ID: 197261239  

Try to have more people answering the phones - we're told that our call is 
important to you 

7 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

The Council has taken a sharp dive in its ability to relate to all parts of local 
systems (g parish councils) as well as individuals. Commonly since Covid, contact 
is 'lost' fiollowing onward reference for telephonic communication (where - 
rasonably enough - the first means of contact by th 'outsider ' is using email 
address or numbers on-line through the SODC website. 

8 12/08/2022 17:04 PM 
ID: 197487570  

No one gets back to you at all  

9 12/08/2022 20:25 PM 
ID: 197494570  

I am a disabled person and without any warning whatsoever, on Saturday 
morning, I received yet another envelope with bold green coloured zig-zag writing 
on it which totally ruined the peace of my weekend and together with the contents 
of the envelope, totally aggravated my condition as a stroke survivor with serious 
aphasias and other associated mental and physical disabilities as well as my 
diabetes and prostate complications too. The letter boldly accused me of my son 

Page 51



4. How easy or difficult did you find that interaction?  

Matthew living with me presently and of him earning income which he donated to 
me. I have lived alone here at my current house for 13 years. Matthew is 20 years 
old right now and he has never lived with since he was 3 years old,  

10 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

Too many queries from your staff.  

11 15/08/2022 12:47 PM 
ID: 197580688  

Notable lack of cknowledgement of formal response. Only reason I knew the 
result was my local councillor told someone else wjo copied me in. 

12 15/08/2022 13:16 PM 
ID: 197581804  

No one answering phone, just ringing out.  

13 15/08/2022 14:21 PM 
ID: 197588403  

Could not get an answer regarding £150 payment on council tax kept being told 
that a different department was handling this 

14 15/08/2022 15:07 PM 
ID: 197591350  

You get an answer to say some one will do something but you never get an 
answer to what caused the problem and what would be done about it to prevent it 
from occurring (Biffa). 

15 15/08/2022 15:52 PM 
ID: 197592845  

I found it difficult to find a contract and the person responsible for the issue  

16 15/08/2022 17:08 PM 
ID: 197601404  

Trouble with computers  

17 15/08/2022 17:37 PM 
ID: 197603854  

No response 

18 15/08/2022 21:21 PM 
ID: 197613121  

It was easy but the follow up needs to be there.  

19 15/08/2022 23:38 PM 
ID: 197616471  

Basically the person that replied to my email didn't care or empathise  

20 16/08/2022 07:31 AM 
ID: 197620624  

Because your response system is designed to reduce telephone contact with 
residents and after various A/B responses kept on forcing me back to the website 
that did not answer my question. 

21 16/08/2022 08:24 AM 
ID: 197622665  

Difficult to find the number and times possible to call 

22 16/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197626044  

Getting to the correct person to discuss an issue was difficult as everything went 
to an outsourced party whom were not customer centric and kept responding from 
a prepared script on the subject matter 

23 16/08/2022 09:31 AM 
ID: 197625671  

The member of staff was pleasant and helpful but couldn't answer my query which 
was about getting advice on poor service from a local contractor who had serviced 
our boiler. I phoned the CAB who were able to give me advice on the best way to 
proceed. 

24 16/08/2022 11:12 AM 
ID: 197634486  

No one in the office to answer my calls. Took 3 weeks to answer an urgent email, 
then I was passed to a Council Tax dept in the north east.  

25 16/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197635405  

i found it difficult because I felt I didn't ever get a meaningful response.  

26 19/08/2022 18:33 PM 
ID: 197940528  

Pass the buck ! 

27 23/08/2022 10:32 AM 
ID: 198117121  

It was easy once I found the form, but I started by contacting Fix my Street about 
an overflowing rubbish bin and was referred to the Vale site. It took a long time to 
find the relevant place in the website. After that it was easy to report. 

28 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

I find that councillors struggle to answer their emails, and by the time they have 
answered - you have found the information by other means. Some councillors do 
not answer ANY emails.  

Page 52



4. How easy or difficult did you find that interaction?  

29 06/09/2022 18:35 PM 
ID: 198907612  

Either due to staff shortage or due to the inefficiency of the people employed at 
the council. I have been phoning and emailing admissions to find my child a 
school place for 3 months and still no update from the council admissions team.  

30 09/09/2022 11:31 AM 
ID: 199115099  

Couldn't speak to anyone locally (Covid may have played a part in this). Sourced 
out to Scotland??? 

31 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Easy generally, however some staff did not respond or use their internal 
knowledge to reply or relay requests to colleagues 

32 09/09/2022 13:47 PM 
ID: 199123846  

I had some irregularities on my library account which affected my ability to loan 
books and stated that I owed money when I didn't. It required a couple of attempts 
to resolve it as the staff weren't sure what had happened. Both people were nice 
but didn't really know how to help. Although the problem was eventually resolved 
it did take some time and was a bit frustrating. 

33 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

I HAVE PERIFERAL NUROSCOPY SO MY HAND SHAKES UNDER ANY 
PRESSURE ,THE AWFUL WAY THE GOVERNMENT DECIDED TO GO VIA 
THE VALE WAS A DISASTER . THE FORM WAS COMLICATED BECAUSE WE 
ARE ON BENIFITS AND HAVE BEEN FOR MANY YEARS AND YOU EXPECT 
US TO REMEMBER WHAT OUR ACCOUNT NUMBER WAS 15 YEARS AGO 
.THIS WAS DISCRIMINATRY AND AFTER TRYING BOTH OUR CURRENT 
ACCOUNTS WE WERE FORCED TO ACCEPT WE WERE NOT GOING TO 
GET THE £150 TOWARDS THE ELECTRICITY BILL. THIS WAS JUST A 
DEMONSTRATION OF THE COUNCILS INTRANSIGENCE. NOT VERY 
CLEVER WAY TO DENONSTRATE INCLUSION WHEN THIS ATTACK WAS 
ONLY AIMED AT THOSE ON BENIFITS. 

34 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

The lines were not being answered and I had to leave a message but no one 
came back to me. The phone was permanently unanswered indicating that it 
never was. 

35 15/09/2022 19:09 PM 
ID: 199522064  

Hard to identify who to contact 

 

 

5. Please explain anything we could have done differently to improve that interaction:  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 71 

1 08/08/2022 20:10 PM 
ID: 197215937  

Have a web page explaining which council does what? It would be nice if our local 
councillors held surgeries or told us how to contact them. 

2 08/08/2022 20:57 PM 
ID: 197218796  

Direct phone number 

3 08/08/2022 22:38 PM 
ID: 197222163  

It was too slow. 

4 09/08/2022 09:40 AM 
ID: 197235158  

Nothing, any councillor or member of South and Vale team has been very helpful, 
but this is helped because I have been involved in PC work for a number of years 
and you learn email addresses. Contact via telephone is a lot more difficult. 

5 09/08/2022 09:50 AM 
ID: 197236101  

It's not always easy to get to speak to the person I need to speak too; and emails 
don't always get replied to very quickly 

6 09/08/2022 10:40 AM 
ID: 197238367  

Assisted collection residents need to be able to contact the council when Biffa 
despite many phone calls fail to collect waste. Biffa are policing themselves. This 
is the job of the council.  

7 09/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197240107  

A general comment: I have very poor hearing, so find video information and 
telephone discussion difficult. I have only rarely watched transcripts of SODC 

Page 53



5. Please explain anything we could have done differently to improve that interaction:  

meeting, but appreciated the high quality text captions - they really made my 
understanding much easier 

8 09/08/2022 11:26 AM 
ID: 197242453  

as above 

9 09/08/2022 15:17 PM 
ID: 197261239  

have enough people answering the phones rather than being placed in an 
endless queue 

10 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

Train/Advise receivers of calls - to give greater accuracy on 'who is dealing with...' 
different kinds of matters.  
 
Have person to person forums in larger communitis to catch up with concerns on 
such issues as wqste collection, bin collection. housing. planning. 
 
There is mor than a strong feeling that a portion of officers are 'rather happy to be 
beyond real contact - under the working at home circumstance. This may well be 
unfair - but is difficult to comment upon, even if sympathy is with officers generally  

11 12/08/2022 17:04 PM 
ID: 197487570  

Actually care and respond  

12 12/08/2022 20:25 PM 
ID: 197494570  

You could be human for a start ... and try treating disabled people with some 
respect. If SODC needs to continue to employ Capita contractors that you call 
your staff, SODC needs to insist on proper training and proper accurate wording 
of communications in a humane manner and a way that does not scare the living 
daylights out of people like myself  

13 14/08/2022 22:48 PM 
ID: 197553387  

Nothing 

14 15/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 197562942  

Councillor contact details are not easy to find even if you do have internet access 
- unless you know where to look. The website is not easy to navigate unless you 
know what you are doing 

15 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

Been more clear and asked for all details in first contact 

16 15/08/2022 12:31 PM 
ID: 197579809  

I got no reply from one of the 2 councillors I emailed and a 3-week delay from the 
other. Very poor 

17 15/08/2022 12:40 PM 
ID: 197580128  

Make information on your website easier to find. 

18 15/08/2022 12:43 PM 
ID: 197578986  

In the past, paying Council Tax by standing order was not an option explained on 
the website. Accessing my own Council Tax information has proved less than 
straightforward. 

19 15/08/2022 12:47 PM 
ID: 197580688  

Send some form of response. 

20 15/08/2022 12:53 PM 
ID: 197580877  

email addresses: are usually hidden for the obvious reason & should be more 
prominent, or better still an email contact form with real email addresses & non of 
this 'do not reply to this email' @ the address shown. Remove the now normal 
WFH message 

21 15/08/2022 13:16 PM 
ID: 197581804  

If there is a number that is a available to the public, it needs to be manned or an 
answering message facility so you can leave a message and someone call back.  

22 15/08/2022 13:24 PM 
ID: 197583413  

Website not navigate, so phone easier  

23 15/08/2022 13:44 PM 
ID: 197584067  

Nothing needed. 

24 15/08/2022 13:58 PM 
ID: 197584777  

Very minor point: Could have said more explicitly that, if I didn't opt for a Council 
Tax rebate cheque immediately (as I had asked for single person discount when 
my ex-wife finally moved out), then the credit would be carried forward and 

Page 54



5. Please explain anything we could have done differently to improve that interaction:  

applied to this years payments, which they be reduced, as they were. Hopefully, 
this was the most convenient way of doing it!!! 

25 15/08/2022 14:06 PM 
ID: 197585765  

It took nearly four minutes of listening to options and pressing keys to get through 
to the person I needed to speak to.  

26 15/08/2022 14:21 PM 
ID: 197588403  

Answered my questions  

27 15/08/2022 14:41 PM 
ID: 197590402  

Respond to my email. 

28 15/08/2022 14:46 PM 
ID: 197590158  

Nothing 

29 15/08/2022 15:07 PM 
ID: 197591350  

Communication: what caused the problem and why, what they intend to do about 
it to prevent it from occurring again. 
Tell the truth, it doesn’t hurt and will provide more respect and understanding of 
the problems you are having. 

30 15/08/2022 15:52 PM 
ID: 197592845  

Have a central point of contact and you forward the question to the appropriate 
person  

31 15/08/2022 17:37 PM 
ID: 197603854  

Responded 

32 15/08/2022 17:54 PM 
ID: 197604595  

try stop people chatting shouting about 1am in morning with young kids under 10 
years old my mum old she in 87 lives alone few elderly lives in road where my 
mum lives 

33 15/08/2022 21:21 PM 
ID: 197613121  

Make sure that the council services are as good as the website  

34 15/08/2022 22:19 PM 
ID: 197614507  

I had to phone regarding a query on behalf of my elderly mother. This was 
because the emails originally sent were not acknowledged. Phone to the council 
is great. Email is poor. 

35 15/08/2022 23:38 PM 
ID: 197616471  

Acknowledge that there was a problem and that the council service was bad. 

36 16/08/2022 07:31 AM 
ID: 197620624  

It is self-evident in the answer above. If you engineer your resident services to 
reduce costs, you will always upset people. The problem with algorithms is they 
often assume greater knowledge from the occasional visitor than they actually 
have. 

37 16/08/2022 08:24 AM 
ID: 197622665  

Make a single phone number for all services which has a person that answers 
quickly and directs the call.  

38 16/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197626044  

Understand what customer service means 

39 16/08/2022 09:31 AM 
ID: 197625671  

I realise that you have a large number of queries and staff cant be expected to 
know everything but good signposting would make a difference. We are happy to 
use the internet and fairly well informed but it must be difficult for people who do 
not have internet access or good English, I mention this because I think it is 
particularly relevant at a time when there is so much fraud and targeting of 
vulnerable people. 

40 16/08/2022 10:09 AM 
ID: 197629023  

website from (for reporting a missed bin collection) is very long winded. 

41 16/08/2022 11:12 AM 
ID: 197634486  

Answered the phone, replied with 48 hours to an email.  

42 16/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197635405  

Responded to keep me up to date with the ongoing problem. 

43 16/08/2022 16:35 PM 
ID: 197661379  

Better explanation on website on who to contact for fly tipping or emptying village 
bins etc. 

Page 55



5. Please explain anything we could have done differently to improve that interaction:  

44 16/08/2022 21:24 PM 
ID: 197681086  

Speed up the response 

45 17/08/2022 12:08 PM 
ID: 197709597  

Answer the phone waited 56 mins to be told can not help  

46 17/08/2022 16:34 PM 
ID: 197730554  

You could have taken note of it (it was a planning matter) 

47 19/08/2022 18:33 PM 
ID: 197940528  

Know their job ! 

48 23/08/2022 10:32 AM 
ID: 198117121  

Think more about the reasons people will come to the site and how to make it 
easier to find what they need, rather than just categorising your services. 

49 25/08/2022 11:40 AM 
ID: 198262512  

Nothing really. Got to speak to a real person reasonably quickly. She was very 
helpful too. (Ms Wilmshurst). 

50 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

Better time management 

51 30/08/2022 22:14 PM 
ID: 198515432  

No problem in contacting 

52 31/08/2022 12:52 PM 
ID: 198547952  

I have to email because you can't get through to speak to anyone by phone - no-
one answers their phones at the council anymore so if you don't have email I don't 
know how you can get a response. 

53 31/08/2022 14:49 PM 
ID: 198557891  

You take our money directly but don't like to communicate directly with your 
community. We care asked to use your general emails and then wait (sometimes 
for days) for a response. Email is a blunt tool which can easily be misinterpreted. 
It would be better if those amongst us unable to use electronic means or who 
have a complex matter to discuss can do so via a phone or at a periodically held 
local clinic. 

54 03/09/2022 10:23 AM 
ID: 198730467  

It is a recurring problem, with each instance an apology - though nothing seems to 
be done to resolve the issue 

55 06/09/2022 09:36 AM 
ID: 198859442  

Reply more promptly 

56 06/09/2022 18:35 PM 
ID: 198907612  

STOP prioritising diversity over efficiency! Staff must receive actual JOB training 
instead of fringe politics training. STOP building houses if we don’t have the 
council services to support it. Give back my council tax and income tax for 
services I don’t receive.  

57 09/09/2022 11:31 AM 
ID: 199115099  

Locally dealt with would have been appropriate.  

58 09/09/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 199119789  

It was OK 

59 09/09/2022 12:51 PM 
ID: 199120363  

The main problem is not knowing which council is responsible for what eg. 
Footpaths, overgrown vegetation, litter, swimming pools, etc etc. it is very hard to 
find information out as to whether it is OCC, the Vale or Town Council who does 
what 

60 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

As suggested above. Take ownership of a request and divert it internally 

61 09/09/2022 13:47 PM 
ID: 199123846  

Staff training on library systems 

62 09/09/2022 15:08 PM 
ID: 199128664  

Deal with my concern and not pass me on to the sub contractot. 
I pay my council tax the Vale not Bifa.  

63 09/09/2022 17:29 PM 
ID: 199139040  

Nothingit was great! 

Page 56



5. Please explain anything we could have done differently to improve that interaction:  

64 09/09/2022 19:51 PM 
ID: 199143763  

no it went well 

65 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

NOT EXPECT PEOPLE TO REMEMBER 15 YEAR OLD ACCOUNT NUMBERS 
THAT WAS THE PROBLEM SO NOW WE ARE IN DEBT TO THE ELECTRIC 
COMPANY. NOT EVERYBODY IS MONEY LAUNDERING . 

66 10/09/2022 22:11 PM 
ID: 199173256  

Try working from the office! 
! 
Try answering the telephone 
 
Try using your own website to understand how frustrating it can be ! 

67 11/09/2022 09:11 AM 
ID: 199178403  

Answer the email 

68 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

The phone should always be answered by a real person and put through to the 
person dealing with it notfobbed off 

69 12/09/2022 19:53 PM 
ID: 199249892  

I had difficulty finding the correct email address. A directory on the website would 
help. 

70 13/09/2022 11:15 AM 
ID: 199288392  

no additional comments 

71 15/09/2022 19:09 PM 
ID: 199522064  

Clearer information on website (enquiry was about waste bins) 

 

 
answered 71 

skipped 163 

 
5. When we communicate with you  
  
 

6. Which of these is the easiest way for you to receive information?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Email   
 

89.45% 195 

2 Text message   
 

5.50% 12 

3 Letter   
 

15.60% 34 

4 Phone call   
 

7.34% 16 

5 
Social media e.g. Facebook, 
Twitter, Instagram 

  
 

5.05% 11 

 
answered 218 

skipped 16 

Other (please specify): (7) 

1 08/08/2022 20:10 PM 
ID: 197215937  

Really depends on what the information is. If it's urgent then text messages are 
fast but difficult to know if they're genuine. Letters on the other hand are trusted 
and authoritative but slow. So its not a one size fits all. Only thing I would say is 
that it's essential to cater for those people who are not online and don't have smart 
phones. 

Page 57



6. Which of these is the easiest way for you to receive information?  

2 10/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197313434  

It depends on the type of information. Meeting agendas and minutes, by email. 
sometimes phone calls are best (for yes or no things). Sometimes social media is 
best, with links to what I need.  

3 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

Depnds on issue...am I acting fully or partially to advise PC 

4 15/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 197562942  

But I don’t want my inbox swamped by irrelevant detail - always a difficult balance  

5 16/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197626044  

or Phone call 

6 31/08/2022 14:49 PM 
ID: 198557891  

It depends on the information being received. some matters that are simple such 
as why didn't our bins get collected can be dealt with by email. Other questions 
may require a document to be sent via email from the Council. whilst discussing a 
more complex issue would be best served by a conversation either on the phone 
or in person. 

7 09/09/2022 19:51 PM 
ID: 199143763  

i answer this as email as i regulalry work with the council but i am also a local 
resident 

 

 

7. Would 'Easy Read' (This is a way of showing information in an accessible and easy 
to understand format, particularly for people with learning disabilities) be a better way 
for you or somebody you know to find out information from the council?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Yes   
 

21.00% 46 

2 No   
 

56.16% 123 

3 I don't know   
 

22.83% 50 

 
answered 219 

skipped 15 

 
6. Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy  
  
 

8. How far do you agree or disagree with our proposed approach in the action plan 
towards addressing the following areas:  

Answer Choices 
Strongly 

Agree 
Agree 

Neither 
Agree 

nor 
Disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

I don't 
know 

Response 
Total 

Knowing our Communities 
20.37% 

44 
43.52% 

94 
18.52% 

40 
7.87% 

17 
6.48% 

14 
3.24% 

7 
216 

Involving our Communities 
20.00% 

43 
44.19% 

95 
20.47% 

44 
5.12% 

11 
6.51% 

14 
3.72% 

8 
215 

Leadership, partnership and 
organisational commitment 

17.29% 
37 

36.45% 
78 

25.70% 
55 

8.41% 
18 

8.41% 
18 

3.74% 
8 

214 

Page 58



8. How far do you agree or disagree with our proposed approach in the action plan 
towards addressing the following areas:  

Responsive services and 
customer care 

26.51% 
57 

39.07% 
84 

15.35% 
33 

6.51% 
14 

8.37% 
18 

4.19% 
9 

215 

A skilled and committed 
workforce 

30.09% 
65 

37.50% 
81 

16.20% 
35 

3.70% 
8 

8.80% 
19 

3.70% 
8 

216 

 
answered 216 

skipped 18 

 

9. Are there any actions you would like to see added to the action plan in the 
draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy? (please see pages 4 to 8)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Yes   
 

27.96% 59 

2 No   
 

45.02% 95 

3 I don't know   
 

27.01% 57 

 
answered 211 

skipped 23 

 

10. If yes, what actions would you like to see added?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 66 

1 08/08/2022 17:40 PM 
ID: 197210106  

Dealing with other priorities in these troubled times.  

2 08/08/2022 19:59 PM 
ID: 197216222  

Use some common sense.  

3 08/08/2022 20:10 PM 
ID: 197215937  

Please use the characteristic of sex rather than gender in your inclusion and 
diversity materials. Or have both, but they are different things and it is essential to 
understand this if you are to tackle sex discrimination and protect same sex 
relationships.  
As regards the rest of the document it is difficult to have a view without 
understanding what the training etc will look like - it sounds good on paper but will 
it be like OCC and follow Stonewall's Diversity Champion's scheme which 
misrepresents the Equality Act? 
Happy to see recognition of the need for accessible formats for information, and 
telling people how to find these - I think it needs to be more proactive than just 
using libraries and community noticeboards though - could you link up with other 
organisations that already reach these people? 
Also great to see the commitment to Disability Confident employer status. 
Strongly disagree with the calendar of awareness/celebration days - some of 
these eg Trans Day of Remembrance are political and divisive. Residents would 
prefer to see meaningful action than flags and social media posts.  

4 09/08/2022 09:08 AM 
ID: 197233169  

Just treat everyone fairly and waste no more taxpayers money on this virtue 
signalling  

Page 59



10. If yes, what actions would you like to see added?  

5 09/08/2022 09:40 AM 
ID: 197235158  

The approach appears to be very data driven, which is useful but knowing your 
communities is also about talking to people, data can only tell you so much, one 
family on a limited income might be really struggling because they have built up 
debt, cannot cook etc, another might be managing to get by, but the data would 
show the same statistic. 
Engage in face to face meetings with people as this builds real knowledge. 

6 09/08/2022 09:50 AM 
ID: 197236101  

I feel while money is so very tight, all these reviews and assessments are wasting 
time and money - surely council personnel need to just get out and about and put 
current policies into practice 

7 09/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197240107  

Involving our communities: what is proposed is fine, but the real challenge is to 
make people want to be aware/involved with what SODC is doing 
Leadership: I gave this a low rating because the proposals risk becoming 
overburdened by procedures, whereas what we really need to for people to be 
informed and caring in their dealings with others. 
Workforce: it is important to remember that we need capable and effective 
employees and teams for SODC to thrive. This should be achieved in an inclusive 
way - but inclusivity is not the primary aim. 

8 09/08/2022 15:04 PM 
ID: 197259882  

Advanced knowledge of possible works that may inconvenience, so that 
alternatives can be planned  

9 09/08/2022 17:08 PM 
ID: 197269601  

please bear in mind people who are not obviously excluded from services e.g. 
illiterate and disadvantage people who do not feel like members of society and opt 
out. 

10 10/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197313434  

The EFLG mentions protected characteristics. I'd like this strategy to be sure to 
include training on this subject so that officers and members know what's legally 
required. 

11 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

PLaces in 4 Towns and (say) 6 large 'villages' for meet the community sessions 
on weekends (probably Saturdays) Many who hard of hearing, partially sighted 
etc could benefit. Also young people who want enhanced facilities would be 
encouraged to feel part of a political communities. 
 
Many Councillors (specially those who lost power in 2019 are virtual outsiders to 
SODC and know less than others. 

12 12/08/2022 14:18 PM 
ID: 197475500  

You have not used the protected characteristic of 'sex'. Gender as you use it in 
the plan has no legal definition.  

13 12/08/2022 20:25 PM 
ID: 197494570  

SODC needs to get real over having its own well educated, properly trained and 
accountable staff - it is quite disgraceful and unreal to have to deal with Capita 
outsiders who just do not have a clue about what they are doing and are totally 
bureaucratic and wrongly informed over what it is to deal with the people in the 
SODC area in a fair way. 

14 12/08/2022 22:07 PM 
ID: 197498294  

You have not included sex - it is not the same thing as gender and the omission 
faults foul of the Equalities Act as well as your general obligations to ensure that 
women and girls are supported by the council and so that you can ensure their 
inclusion and any discrimination that occurs 

15 14/08/2022 14:38 PM 
ID: 197540488  

There should be an action to ensure that funding is focussed on the majority and 
that any time and funding for minority groups is proportionate and not excessive. 

16 15/08/2022 10:24 AM 
ID: 197569460  

It is not necessary to start your survey with a 3 language introduction. English will 
suffice. 

17 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

You need to involve Individuals not just groups. Some people don't feel 
comfortable in group situations 

18 15/08/2022 12:29 PM 
ID: 197579609  

Make sure you have plenty of staff, waiting times for help are too long.  

19 15/08/2022 12:31 PM 
ID: 197579809  

Instead of spending thousands of pounds on public consultations and policies I 
would like to see that money spent on things that need doing. eg. clearing paths 

Page 60



10. If yes, what actions would you like to see added?  

of vegetation. Improving cycle paths whre there are none. Improving basic 
services so much more important 

20 15/08/2022 12:47 PM 
ID: 197580688  

Holding some sort of meeting with local communities. 
Communicating what decisions you make to all 
Improve notification of service changes 
Contact local residents and listen to them regardless of class, race or colour.  
In brief talk to your 'customers'  

21 15/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197581563  

Is there nothing more pressing to do with your resources! 
How much is this nonsense costing. (Rhetorical) 

22 15/08/2022 13:09 PM 
ID: 197580509  

I suggest addressing unity as well as diversity. The general tone of the strategy 
seems more to emphasise differences between people rather than the importance 
of supporting a community that looks beyond differences and embraces 
togetherness and mutual respect. 

23 15/08/2022 13:16 PM 
ID: 197581804  

1. Focus groups with public so you can hear what people need/issues/frustrations 
as well as what works well. 
 
2. An integrated map for the public which shows who does what services between 
public sector organisations e.g. nhs primary care (GPs, Primary Care Network, 
Dentist, pharmacy), local government, District Council Council, town council. 
There are so many organisations and partnerships, no one knows who to speak 
to without getting past from pillar to post. 
 
3. Staff development- you cant always train your way out of policies so saying you 
will ensure always makes me uncomfortable. Tackling individuals attitudes and 
behaviours will be a challenge. You reference Unconscious Bias which is helpful, 
so I would like to see more about how this will actually be tackled.  
 
4. I would prefer to see less written about new policies and more about 
empowerment for staff. Sometimes, using their innovative thinking and problem 
solving in teams when issues/challenges arise rather that stifled in policy.  

24 15/08/2022 13:24 PM 
ID: 197583413  

I would like the council to ensure they don't spend all their time on diversity 
training, but spend their time and effort on the practical day to day work of the 
council  

25 15/08/2022 13:41 PM 
ID: 197585444  

Don't want to download! 

26 15/08/2022 13:44 PM 
ID: 197584067  

A method to involve members of society that do not use the internet. This survey 
excludes them. 

27 15/08/2022 13:58 PM 
ID: 197584777  

Set up a complaints and comments Diversity web based system, similar to the 
H&S web system that most organisations already have. So that diversity issues 
and comments are dealt with the same way as H&S incidents, and near misses, 
and all logged and dealt with. The webpage will need to be published and 
advertised; complaints coming in by letter, email and telephone complaints and 
comments will need to be manually input by the recipients. Then, the council can 
regularly publish stats of numbers of diversity incidents received, number of 
incidents accepted, and number of resulting changes to procedures, systems and 
documentation resulting. 

28 15/08/2022 14:12 PM 
ID: 197587409  

Improved communications for linking villages and city, eg safe off road walking 
and cycle routes and more reliable, punctual public transport options  

29 15/08/2022 14:17 PM 
ID: 197587172  

Just treat everyone equally, no special training required, no special awareness 
just treat all your customers as you would wish to be treated yourself. You don’t 
need to know all about me, just respond politely, do what you say you will do and 
don’t waste the tax payers hard earned money on things which should be 
common sense to those of at least average intelligence. How a council looks after 
the vulnerable (disabled and aged) Sets the bar for how they treat everyone.  

30 15/08/2022 14:28 PM 
ID: 197588125  

The reason I said I don't know because it is difficult to unpick a document that 
seems quite vague  

Page 61



10. If yes, what actions would you like to see added?  

31 15/08/2022 15:52 PM 
ID: 197592845  

Tear it up. It's a ridiculous waste of tax payers money especially as you claim to 
have no choice but to increase council tax  

32 15/08/2022 16:59 PM 
ID: 197600388  

Ensure that first and foremost, the leadership of the council is representative of 
the people in the community. Recruit and train more people from the community. 
This gives first hand experience, and helps to come up with future policies that 
are likely to be accepted and welcomed by all. 

33 15/08/2022 18:01 PM 
ID: 197604319  

Do not waste the public money on projects like this, I think you will find that the 
majority of constituents would rather money spent on fixing the appalling roads 
and lack of policing. 
By highlighting diversity I think you are causing more segregation. 

34 15/08/2022 21:42 PM 
ID: 197613265  

Not added - removed. Training for councillors is patronising, irritating and 
achieves nothing apart from making a few people think they have 'done 
something'! This should be removed and instead, where there is evidence of 
discrimination or limiting access, this should be taken up with the relevant 
councillors. 
Also, workplace champions is only one way to achieve things for selected groups. 
They only work for specific groups where it would not be straightforward to 
understand what the issue are for that group. This mainly includes those with 
specific needs / disabilities. It is patronising to assume that someone else in the 
organisation can be a 'champion' for most groups. 
Also, you do not need a new suite of policies to promote diversity and inclusion - 
you want to avoid discrimination (which is already embedded in law) but to take 
the best person for a role irrespective of their background etc - tokenism or 
'positive' discrimination are damaging in the medium and long term 

35 16/08/2022 09:31 AM 
ID: 197625671  

If I have not fully understood then I apologise but whilst diversity is clearly 
important I feel the focus is mainly on diversity and other marginalised groups eg 
the elderly, those with disabilities, physical/learning are forgotten. 

36 16/08/2022 09:52 AM 
ID: 197623372  

It is very pleasing to see that you are planning to Create Diversity and Social 
Campaign Calendars (DSCC) to display dates for a wide range of religious 
festivals, commemoration, and awareness days that we’ll publicly observe and 
promote that reflect our diverse communities and the priorities set out in our 
Corporate Plans. This is an excellent idea and as a Nepalese Community we 
celebrate various festivals from Nepalese Calendar, out of various, two of them 
are very important to us (Dashain and Tihar). We would love to see these dates in 
DSCC and would be even better if schools recognise these dates and allow 
affected children to take day off on these two dates. These dates are not always 
on the same date but we are more than happy to provide dates well in advance 
(one year in advance) to include in DSCC. We are contactable on; 
oxford.nepalese@gmail.com. 

37 16/08/2022 20:42 PM 
ID: 197679154  

A much higher level of community participation through virtual access to council 
meetings 

38 17/08/2022 16:34 PM 
ID: 197730554  

I would like to se the planning committee taking notice of the inhabitantsb of the 
area rather than housing developers 

39 19/08/2022 08:01 AM 
ID: 197891694  

Adding sixth form students to the paperwork by name - school already know their 
students especially those who face educational challenges. They would benefit 
from specific inclusion and education into local politics. Plus how to contact 
representatives, etc. These students will usually be 18 in their final school year, 
and are legal adults and voters. 

40 22/08/2022 12:38 PM 
ID: 198062147  

Town and parish councils are 'consulted' but that doesn't mean their responses 
are necessarily acknowledged, responded to or taken on board. The 'consultation' 
loop needs to be closed so that everyone knows what happened to their 
response, why was it ignored/not acted upon or did result in altered 
wording/policies or whatever 

41 22/08/2022 16:53 PM 
ID: 198086203  

LGBT+ actions 

Page 62



10. If yes, what actions would you like to see added?  

42 23/08/2022 10:32 AM 
ID: 198117121  

I can't identify specific actions but this document is written in organisational 
language and could be much simplified to help people read and understand your 
proposals.  

43 27/08/2022 10:41 AM 
ID: 198370630  

I want to know exact planned actions which are going to be taken along with 
timelines and then a report on if the objectives have been made. The current 
strategy doesn't specify any firm action points and quite frankly it is non-
committal. 
Furthermore, on the front page of this survey, why is the information only specified 
in English, one european and chinese language? Does Hindi, Urdu or Gujarati 
languages not matter? 
None of the council literature include any other languages apart from English. 
This is not satisfactory. 

44 27/08/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 198373658  

Training for managers in dealing with people from other cultures and in being 
proactive in engaging their skills and enabling individuals to fit into the workplace 
and local communities. 

45 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

No specific actions, but an acknowledgement that the more you label people, the 
more divisive we are as a society/community. Some people abhor labels and the 
thinking that because a person is autistic they need xxx causes more difficulties 
and works against what you are trying to achieve. My nephew is autistic - he 
hates being labelled because he is high functioning in some areas - being 
categorised has held him back. 

46 30/08/2022 22:14 PM 
ID: 198515432  

More specific plans i.e. More appropriate housing for the disabled. There are few 
houses/flats with easy access and space to turn a wheelchair within rooms, or 
from room to room. 
Restoration of clubs for the disabled and their carers such as Open Access which 
used to cater for these groups in Wantage. It was closed through lack of funds 
from the County Council although the members raised funds themselves.  

47 31/08/2022 12:52 PM 
ID: 198547952  

No mention of any methods of communication - there are still a significant portion 
of the population who don't have access to the internet and need information to be 
provided through the mail or telephone. What materials are available to blind or 
partially sighted people? 
Even this survey is available electronically so is excluding this portion of the 
residents of the area. 

48 31/08/2022 14:49 PM 
ID: 198557891  

Come and talk to us or reopen your service point in Wantage (yes it does exist). 

49 03/09/2022 10:23 AM 
ID: 198730467  

Under knowledge, some striving toward genuine empathy would be, in my view, 
better than simply an intellectual understanding. The challenges that minority 
communities often face are layered and emotional as well as practical/rational. 
There are also layers of historical habits and patterns that seem embedded into 
what may seem at the surface easy to resolve. 

50 06/09/2022 09:36 AM 
ID: 198859442  

A commitment to train and develop line managers and dept heads to believe in 
and deliver on your strategy. A strategy on its own is a tick box exercise, the devil 
is in the detail in how you are going to make the strategy live and breath among 
your workforce. Just saying you are going to do it is not enough - there has to be 
streams of work to inspire and engage with the deliverers of your services. 

51 06/09/2022 18:35 PM 
ID: 198907612  

Prioritise everyone - children’s needs were ignored during the pandemic, woman 
are losing their safe spaces, Christian’s and muslims are being forced to give up 
their beliefs.  

52 09/09/2022 11:52 AM 
ID: 199115251  

Yes, I basically agree with your aims, but to me, for whole exercise seems to work 
on the idea that everyone are victims of some sort or other. I am in my seventies 
and have treated everyone in my life as equales. My approach is logical as far as 
I am concerned. If you treat people as if they have issues, or are victims in some 
way, then you are generating that attitude, which will finally be self defeating. 

53 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Also use community group engagements to expand knowledge. Collaborate with 
groups other than volunteers. Use more than just surveys to engage peoples 
opinions. 

Page 63



10. If yes, what actions would you like to see added?  

54 09/09/2022 13:47 PM 
ID: 199123846  

Knowing/involving our communities - engagement with parish councils; local 
church and faith groups; local groups and organisations that consist of, support 
and work with people from underrepresented communities. 

55 09/09/2022 15:08 PM 
ID: 199128664  

You could cut the cost of this rediculus diversity empire by simply say treat 
everyone the same and with respect. 
 
Listen to your customers the tax payer and deal with their concerns. 
 
Why do we need to print these things in do many differen languages. Spend the 
money on mandatory English classes for all immigrants. That is the best way to 
include them. My daughter in law and her family arrived in America as refugees. 
They were not granted American citizenship untill their English was a certain level. 
Children were not in the main stream school untill their English was acceptable. 
This is the way to inclusion. No one should be treated differently. With the 
exception of people with disabilities who should receive appropriate help. No 
special day for certain sections of the community. 
 
These promote division not understanding.  

56 09/09/2022 17:29 PM 
ID: 199139040  

An opinion poll on communities to evaluate impact and feelings of inclusion. 

57 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

SOMEBODY NAMED TO ACCEPT THAT OUR DATA IS OURS AND NOT 
BELONGING TO THE COUNCIL .ALMOST EVERY PAGE IS A LIST OF MORE 
AND MORE OFFICERS AND OFFICES THAT WOULD HAVE ACCESS TO OUR 
PERSONAL DATA AND IF LIKE ME YOU DO NOT TRUST THE COUNCIL THIS 
IS A HUGE PROBLEM . THEN IT LOOKS LIKE AN AWFUL LOT OF GROUPS 
AND QUANGOS .THERE IS NO MENTION HOW THESE WILL OPERATE IN 
THE REAL WORLD. IS THERE PROVISION FOR OPT OUTS AS FAR AS 
ACCESSING PERSONAL DATA OR ARE WE STUCK WITH THE USERAL 
GOOGLE TRACKING AND LOCATION COOKIES ECT. 

58 11/09/2022 09:11 AM 
ID: 199178403  

getting a response when you need a serious matter dealt with 

59 12/09/2022 10:51 AM 
ID: 199214088  

I would like to see a fair reflection of our community which you will address in the 
first action. The hiring and training policy must be reflected in this and the best 
people for the job hired and promoted - not a quota system or another method of 
recruiting as many diverse people as possible - SODC must reflect our society not 
other societies. 

60 12/09/2022 15:05 PM 
ID: 199237223  

what is the policy I am being asked to comment on? 

61 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

Stop messing about with things like this that don't concern the Council 

62 13/09/2022 00:27 AM 
ID: 199267287  

Regular events to introduce and promote cultural diversities- e.g. talks, 
workshops, community groups etc. 

63 13/09/2022 11:15 AM 
ID: 199288392  

An action to ensure that any changes that are made (for example to websites or 
apps) do not introduce *new* equality/inclusivity issues. (For example: if done 
poorly, introducing additional non-English languages on a website (which is in and 
of itself laudable) can introduce new usability problems for English-speaking 
users. Doing so may also introduce long-term maintenance and support costs 
which need to be taken into consideration; and might also suggest that other 
services (for example, phone contact) might be available in other languages, 
when in fact they are not). 

64 13/09/2022 22:02 PM 
ID: 199350649  

You should not be wasting time and resources on Diversity and Inclusion. All 
British subjects should be held equal under the law and the concept of protected 
characteristics is flawed. It is unfair on those who do not qualify for such 
protection.  
 
Resources at local Government level should be directed to the delivery of services 
that people require - highway maintenance / rubbish collection / proper planning 

Page 64



10. If yes, what actions would you like to see added?  

regulation and enforcement. The resources you are wasting on such surveys must 
be stopped. 

65 15/09/2022 12:44 PM 
ID: 199491109  

Listen 
You can have all the right intentions and committees in the world, but if you don't 
LISTEN, it's all a waste of time 

66 30/09/2022 17:32 PM 
ID: 200493710  

More detail needs to be added everywhere - currently it is very generic - specific 
groups need to be mentioned eg the disabled  

 

 
answered 66 

skipped 168 

 

11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 154 

1 08/08/2022 17:39 PM 
ID: 197210073  

Waste of time and money 

2 08/08/2022 17:40 PM 
ID: 197210106  

Unnecessary 

3 08/08/2022 19:59 PM 
ID: 197216222  

Ridiculous  

4 08/08/2022 20:10 PM 
ID: 197215937  

I think it's really vague so very difficult to comment on. Please make sure that all 
the myriad ways we are different are considered and that you are clear on the 
importance of monitoring/capturing info on sex as part of your diversity 
commitment, otherwise there is no hope of addressing sexism or sex 
discrimination. Sex has an impact on all sorts of areas of council responsibility - 
eg there's an interesting project going on at the moment about designing 
playgrounds that include girls as well as boys. https://makespaceforgirls.co.uk/  
In addition please don't leave behind those older people who are not digital 
natives.  

5 08/08/2022 20:57 PM 
ID: 197218796  

Another waste of time and money 

6 09/08/2022 08:36 AM 
ID: 197231465  

It seems ok. 

7 09/08/2022 09:08 AM 
ID: 197233169  

A total waste of taxpayers money, particularly in difficult economic times 

8 09/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197234297  

It is a good plan to try to be inclusive for all in order to access these vital services 
and link to community. 

9 09/08/2022 09:40 AM 
ID: 197235158  

Objectives or targets would be useful as progress could then be measured. 
Community engagement could be responses from 70% of those consulted, if it is 
not met then there is an objective to look at. 

10 09/08/2022 10:40 AM 
ID: 197238367  

You must make sure it is put into practice.  

11 09/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197240107  

I think it a worthy initiative, but risks taking up a lot of time and becoming 
burdensome.  

12 09/08/2022 11:26 AM 
ID: 197242453  

A good starting point! 

Page 65



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

13 09/08/2022 13:26 PM 
ID: 197253412  

Fix potholes and other things before you worry about diversity and inclusion. 

14 09/08/2022 15:15 PM 
ID: 197261316  

It's going to be very important as the cost of living crisis evolves that local 
residents feel comfortable contacting the Council for help or advice. 
Understanding diversity and inclusion is essential to giving everyone an 
equitable experience. 

15 09/08/2022 15:17 PM 
ID: 197261239  

It is a complete vanity project. The Local Authorities exist to empty bins, mend 
roads, organise planning and run schools. This social justice warrior window 
dressing is a colossal waste of time and valuable resources. The District 
Councils should not be involving themselves in woke window dressing. No one, 
apart from a vanishingly small, but vociferous minority, cares. They do care 
about value for money. 

16 09/08/2022 16:38 PM 
ID: 197267711  

 
Very dangerous 

17 09/08/2022 17:08 PM 
ID: 197269601  

seems like a standard Diverstiy and Incllusion strategy 

18 10/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197313434  

I do wonder at why this is necessary? Why did we decide to put the resources 
into this strategy? Does it go beyond what's legally required? In what way?  

19 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

Worthwhile 

20 10/08/2022 13:50 PM 
ID: 197271754  

Better use of complaints/customer feedback data to inform how communities are 
using the councils' services 

21 12/08/2022 14:03 PM 
ID: 197310257  

Well intentioned - but action must follow words. 

22 12/08/2022 14:18 PM 
ID: 197475500  

I think you should get out of Stonewall before you get sued.  

23 12/08/2022 20:25 PM 
ID: 197494570  

It misses the message re disabled people and remains ignoring us 

24 12/08/2022 22:07 PM 
ID: 197498294  

It is a reasonable attempt. 
 
The calendar of inclusion could be cringy and hopefully will not highlight any 
particular minorities over others - should be proportionate and appropriate and 
doesn’t need to affirm any particular groups beliefs. 

25 13/08/2022 14:30 PM 
ID: 197515837  

It is comprehensive, ambitious and relevant to the times we are living in.  

26 14/08/2022 14:38 PM 
ID: 197540488  

It has huge potential to divert the council from its core business. 

27 14/08/2022 22:48 PM 
ID: 197553387  

Rather wordy and overcomplicated. Not sure it is a good use of resources to 
make it so. 

28 15/08/2022 01:59 AM 
ID: 197445832  

Provided the Committee Members / Responsible Persons apply the Diversity & 
Inclution Strategy as written, I see no reason to change any of it. 

29 15/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 197562942  

There could be more emphasis on older people who don’t do the internet or 
have smart phones. Information about changes to waste collections, for 
example, is only disseminated electronically so no use at all to my older 
neighbours unless I realised and go round and tell them.  

30 15/08/2022 10:24 AM 
ID: 197569460  

It is not. Excess art to shove it down our throats. We are adult enough to be 
aware of our multicultural society. And those who do not or chose not will never 
be converted. A waste of tax payer money 

31 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

Pretty rubbish 

Page 66



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

32 15/08/2022 12:29 PM 
ID: 197579609  

Hopefully helpful but probably costs a huge amount of money. Also will need to 
be continually updated to include all the extra inclusion groups that feel they 
have special needs. 

33 15/08/2022 12:30 PM 
ID: 197579927  

good start 

34 15/08/2022 12:36 PM 
ID: 197579664  

The Council is constantly complaining about under funding and imposing 
maximum tax increases on residents. When basic services are not being 
provided at all or to a minimal standard this additional expenditure cannot be 
justified. Post relating to E&D should be removed along with training and time 
taken from other roles to follow the policy. I strongly object to council tax being 
spent on E&D. 

35 15/08/2022 12:40 PM 
ID: 197580128  

It is good that you have one! it is the implementation that will be important. 

36 15/08/2022 12:43 PM 
ID: 197578986  

First of all, the overall aims are good. However, I'm dismayed that so much time 
and money must be spent on stating such obvious ways that elected councillors 
and public servants should represent and serve their communities. I'm highly 
sceptical of some of the methods selected to deliver on these aims. For 
example, does the diversity of a community have to be matched by those that 
work for it in order for the community to be served well? Is there such a thing as 
'unconscious bias' in the first place (rather than, for instance, conscious bias that 
someone doesn't want to admit to)? Couldn't all of this be captured by the overall 
aim of providing polite, helpful, and efficient customer service? – Put the 
customer first in all decisions that are made by the council, and be aware of who 
those customers are, and bear in mind both the needs of majority groups as well 
as minorities. If the policies can help with this, all well and good.  

37 15/08/2022 12:47 PM 
ID: 197580688  

To quote an old proverb "Fine words butter no parsnips." 
 
 
 

38 15/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197581563  

Highly likely to have no consequence at all on communities.  
Just deal with the practicalities, rates bills, bin emptying, service provision.  

39 15/08/2022 13:09 PM 
ID: 197580509  

Generally we'll thought out, as long as free speech and people with differing 
social ideas are not seen as threats and 'cancelled' or accused of 'hate crimes'. 

40 15/08/2022 13:16 PM 
ID: 197581804  

It's good to see this is being addressed. Very helpful to review and hope 
suggestions I made are ideas for improving further?  

41 15/08/2022 13:17 PM 
ID: 197583364  

Yes I agree it makes sense as long as it is practical and does not fall into the 
trap of excessive political correctness which can be an obstacle to the decision-
making process 

42 15/08/2022 13:20 PM 
ID: 197583139  

Looks good, the difficult part will be doing it  

43 15/08/2022 13:24 PM 
ID: 197583413  

Not enough time being spent on the day job 

44 15/08/2022 13:29 PM 
ID: 197583393  

Overall, measures of success are internally focussed and 'box ticking'.  
 
There is a huge emphasis on training, but nothing on how training will be 
audited, or how the impact of training will be measured. The outcomes in 
'responsive customer care' are simply that the staff will have attended training, 
not that this training will have a measurable impact on the quality of 
communication with different groups in our society, and as a result, the quality of 
their experience as a member of our community. Implemented training on 
equality and diversity should lead to reduced time to resolve difficulties, an 
increase in communication from certain groups, or a reduction in complaints. I 
can't suggest what metric might reflect this, but the current self serving metric is 
not going to increase standards.  
 

Page 67



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

Similarly, maintaining disability confident status is not an outcome in itself. 
Increasing access to the workplace for disabled people, and an increase in the # 
or % of people applying for, being interviewed for, and receiving offers is the 
measure that matters.  
 
This is a theme throughout the document.  

45 15/08/2022 13:38 PM 
ID: 197585050  

Anything that can mike life easier for people (example for people with disabilities) 
is a good thing, the easier it is for people to get the information they need and to 
communicate to the council when required saves not only time & frustration for 
the person but also saves time for the council. 

46 15/08/2022 13:42 PM 
ID: 197581868  

This is an excellent document, offering all parties a great deal of hope for more 
equality,inclusion, diversity and hope for their futures in Oxfordshire. 
This will require all members to embrace these strategies.  
My one concern would be how will these be monitored and indeed enforced? 

47 15/08/2022 13:43 PM 
ID: 197584769  

I see a massive effort from a dedicated team of people. Is this the best use of 
Councils resources? 

48 15/08/2022 13:44 PM 
ID: 197584067  

If you treat all people exactly the same, as your customers, there would be no 
need for it together with a huge savings in council tax. 

49 15/08/2022 13:56 PM 
ID: 197584956  

A box ticking exercise in political correctness and a waste of council money 

50 15/08/2022 13:58 PM 
ID: 197584777  

Very good (as far as it goes) 

51 15/08/2022 14:06 PM 
ID: 197585765  

It is very good but depends on the commitment of all staff and officers and time 
must be allowed for complying and monitoring.  

52 15/08/2022 14:12 PM 
ID: 197587409  

It is important as big changes are needed 

53 15/08/2022 14:17 PM 
ID: 197587172  

Waste of money, box ticking exercise when there are much more important 
issues to focus on such as housing and social care. 

54 15/08/2022 14:21 PM 
ID: 197588403  

Ok  

55 15/08/2022 14:28 PM 
ID: 197588125  

Woolly and vague, lacking in specific detail 

56 15/08/2022 14:46 PM 
ID: 197590158  

None 

57 15/08/2022 15:21 PM 
ID: 197591854  

I have never found much difficulty in accessing the Council. However, that is 
because I monitor planning applications for a local Civic Society and therefore 
am experienced and comfortable with using the VWHDC website, finding the 
information I want, submitting comments and, when necessary, dealing with 
officers and councillors. Therefore it is not straightforward for me to assess how 
difficult someone who was unfamiliar with dealing with the Council would find the 
procedures. Your proposals look like a good start to making access easier for all. 
However, it must not degenerate into a box-ticking exercise. Also, many people 
are not comfortable with 'dealing with a machine' and feel much happier 
speaking to a human who can react to their specific enquiry or problem.  

58 15/08/2022 15:27 PM 
ID: 197594017  

As far as I know it’s ok 

59 15/08/2022 15:52 PM 
ID: 197592845  

Stupid and a waste of time and money  

60 15/08/2022 16:44 PM 
ID: 197600233  

its ok  

61 15/08/2022 16:50 PM 
ID: 197598960  

A good start. 

Page 68



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

62 15/08/2022 16:59 PM 
ID: 197600388  

It looks great for starters. Looking forward to seeing more diverse leadership. 

63 15/08/2022 16:59 PM 
ID: 197601264  

It's OK 

64 15/08/2022 17:13 PM 
ID: 197601342  

I am supportive everything in the strategy, but am concerned about the timing. 
Some of these actions do have an associated cost. We have managed without a 
Diversity and Inclusion strategy for a long time. Given the current financial 
position I don't think it is appropriate for the council to be starting new initiatives 
that the council taxpayer is going to have to fund. I think there are more 
important priorities. 

65 15/08/2022 17:37 PM 
ID: 197603854  

Unnecessary  

66 15/08/2022 17:54 PM 
ID: 197604595  

not enough is done  

67 15/08/2022 18:01 PM 
ID: 197604319  

Waste of money, causes more problems than you solve, you are listening to the 
loud minority who wish to change everything, and not for the best. 

68 15/08/2022 20:21 PM 
ID: 197610894  

I think it could just be a job creation strtegy with little effect. 

69 15/08/2022 21:42 PM 
ID: 197613265  

The name is just silly. It is not about diversity (which is an overly-woke construct 
from certain lobby groups); it is about ensuring all groups can access services 
with support where needed, and to avoid inadvertent discrimination. For 
example, your sexuality won't interfere with your ability to contact the council... It 
is much more about disabilities / those with different needs. I would suggest 
calling it something along the lines of an 'Equal access strategy' or 'Inclusive 
access strategy / policy'  
And avoid re-inventing the wheel - discrimination and access are what this is 
about, so most staff do not need 'diversity' training which is annoying and 
patronising usually 

70 15/08/2022 22:19 PM 
ID: 197614507  

It's good.  

71 15/08/2022 23:38 PM 
ID: 197616471  

This should already be in place. If more time was spent actually providing a good 
service than writing about it that would help. 

72 16/08/2022 07:31 AM 
ID: 197620624  

It is a well-crafted statement. "We aspire to" is an inauspicious start. Why not say 
"In our"? "Together" is ambiguous because "all our residents" is something 
outside your control. "Positive difference" is ambiguous, because the policy is an 
umbrella.  

73 16/08/2022 08:13 AM 
ID: 197622006  

I am glad you recognise the need for such a strategy 

74 16/08/2022 08:24 AM 
ID: 197622665  

The council should provide the most efficient service for the majority of its 
customers. This does not necessarily need to reflect the needs of every single 
minority group.  

75 16/08/2022 08:38 AM 
ID: 197623653  

seems ok 

76 16/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197626044  

It appears to address the key elements of D & I 

77 16/08/2022 09:31 AM 
ID: 197625671  

As above 

78 16/08/2022 09:52 AM 
ID: 197623372  

Very nicely done, but it needs to be implemented with very close connection to 
various groups, ideally bringing community leaders on board. 

79 16/08/2022 10:09 AM 
ID: 197629023  

Somewhat surprised this has only just come about. Is is a 'woke' reaction? How 
will it all be funded - money should go on services first... 

Page 69



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

80 16/08/2022 10:52 AM 
ID: 197611995  

Very good  

81 16/08/2022 11:12 AM 
ID: 197634486  

With Council funding supposedly so tight, why is everything translated into 
several languages and translators provided? Surely it’s the responsibility of non-
speakers to provide their own. Sometimes inclusion means exclusion for others 
eg lack of social care provision due to allocation of funds for minorities.  

82 16/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197635405  

It looks well thought through and seesm to cover all areas. 

83 16/08/2022 12:02 PM 
ID: 197633575  

At base level it covers most elements. 
It would be good to offer some training / learning to local communities to help 
groups identified as needing additional support. 

84 16/08/2022 16:35 PM 
ID: 197661379  

By ‘gender’ do you mean ‘sex’ which is a protected characteristic? Gender 
identity is not although obviously gender reassignment is.  
 
I hope that any consultations as mentioned in section 1 will be carried out with a 
broad and representative section of the population.  
 
I have my doubts about the effectiveness of unconscious bias training.  
 
Diversity calendars sound ok but if every day is a special day it soon becomes 
meaningless and people don’t take much notice. 

85 16/08/2022 20:42 PM 
ID: 197679154  

Big on generalisations but low on specifics, big on targets but low on actions 

86 16/08/2022 21:24 PM 
ID: 197681086  

Fine but not sure what it will mean in practice 

87 16/08/2022 23:49 PM 
ID: 197684829  

It seems pretty thorough, but is couched in officialese and not plain English. it 
will depend upon recruiting and training the right people - and will need funding 
at a time when there are so many other priorities. I hope it is positively realised. 

88 17/08/2022 08:30 AM 
ID: 197693696  

A balanced programme. 

89 17/08/2022 10:30 AM 
ID: 197700342  

It should provide an excellent opportunity to increase the number of local 
authority civil service posts and reduce unemployment in these areas. What 
actual, practical difference it will make to anything or anyone at all is impossible 
to predict. It is not clear where the additional funding necessary to operate this 
strategy will come from. 

90 17/08/2022 16:34 PM 
ID: 197730554  

It is a little like 'motherhood and apple pie' Everybody is in favour, but what 
action/changes will take place?  

91 19/08/2022 08:01 AM 
ID: 197891694  

Generally clear, but vocabulary content is not Easy Read - which i totally agree 
with being used. The length of the document, 8 pages, is longer than many 
people are prepared to read, so the later parts are less likely to be scrutinised. 
My example of vocabulary needing to be made clear, (Easy Read) and lack of 
clarity by the end of the document, is made clear by this quote - ‘Strategic HR to 
develop a range of training covering equality / diversity / inclusion (e.g. 
unconscious Bias / neuro diversity)’ 

92 19/08/2022 17:47 PM 
ID: 197938517  

To left wing and woke 

93 19/08/2022 18:33 PM 
ID: 197940528  

Why are you doing this??? 

94 20/08/2022 16:37 PM 
ID: 197731246  

So broad and nice as to be meaningless! Do we really need this strategy and the 
cost involved? 

95 21/08/2022 07:43 AM 
ID: 198009550  

It seems a very sensible approach to go in aiming to achieve a good level & build 
on this. Hopefully over time improvements will mean success in aiming towards 
the highest level as the strategy & workforce evolve. 

Page 70



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

96 21/08/2022 10:09 AM 
ID: 198014644  

I think that the council has other urgent and more pressing basic priorities.  

97 22/08/2022 12:38 PM 
ID: 198062147  

Lack of continuity of officers, constant reorganisation mean it is difficult to find 
the correct person to speak to. Sometimes there are urgent situations where an 
email contact form on a website is just not good enough. 

98 22/08/2022 16:53 PM 
ID: 198086203  

A positive move 

99 22/08/2022 16:58 PM 
ID: 198084521  

It is a lot of unnecessary virtue-signalling claptrap. 

100 23/08/2022 10:32 AM 
ID: 198117121  

It has its heart in the right place. It needs to be translated into actions from which 
the council and its staff learn, so that they can be innovative in their actions. 
Increasing the understanding of all staff of what diversity and inclusion means to 
the people who feel excluded is vital. They need to be able to put themselves in 
those people's shoes in everything they do. That includes writing policy 
documents. 

101 23/08/2022 16:09 PM 
ID: 198154812  

Most of it should have been happening anyway. It is important not to overdo this 
sort of initiative. to the detriment of normal services. 

102 25/08/2022 11:40 AM 
ID: 198262512  

A little bit 'airy-fairy' and there for the council to be seen to be politically correct 
but well meaning I support. (Is it needed)?! 

103 27/08/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 198373658  

I would like to think it already applies.  

104 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

Its a good start, but respect to all is more powerful. Many people don't know the 
difference between positive discrimination and positive action and much offence 
and unfairness has been caused by attempting to do the right thing. Just having 
a strategy does not solve the problem. Good leadership is where it starts. 

105 30/08/2022 13:43 PM 
ID: 198479475  

A commitment to using external trainers from the minority groups to deliver 
training to staff e.g. anti racism training from a member of the BAME community. 
Training must encourage staff to examine their own internal preconceived ideas 
and unconscious biases which may affect their decision making and interactions 
with customers. 

106 30/08/2022 22:14 PM 
ID: 198515432  

The theory looks good i e training and awareness. 

107 31/08/2022 12:52 PM 
ID: 198547952  

Not comprehensive but ticks the boxes.. Lip service 

108 31/08/2022 14:49 PM 
ID: 198557891  

You are doing your best but lack the skills and ability to be truly inclusive. 

109 01/09/2022 20:53 PM 
ID: 198652739  

I only skim read it but it looks solid. 

110 03/09/2022 10:23 AM 
ID: 198730467  

It’s good. 

111 06/09/2022 09:36 AM 
ID: 198859442  

Pretty standard to what other large organisations have.  

112 06/09/2022 10:49 AM 
ID: 198867351  

It mirrors what every organisation and institution professes in our present culture. 
I suppose it is deemed necessary but I do wonder what practical difference it 
makes. Treating people with respect and consideration seems t me to be the 
heart of the matter.. 

113 06/09/2022 18:35 PM 
ID: 198907612  

It sounds like a lot of my wasted money. When the Uk are facing an energy crisis 
and cost of living I crisis why are you not focusing on policies and resources on 
recycling strategies, and free community events. Get the developers to actually 
provide facilities (NOT COSTA COFFEES) to the community. How can you 
allocate time and resources when you cannot deliver BASIC services such as 
schools and doctors!  

Page 71



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

114 09/09/2022 11:16 AM 
ID: 199113836  

A good framework 

115 09/09/2022 11:52 AM 
ID: 199115251  

Fine, but the same as above.  

116 09/09/2022 12:14 PM 
ID: 199118147  

Sounds like a great idea 

117 09/09/2022 12:15 PM 
ID: 199117915  

It’s nonspecific and full of ‘motherhood and apple pie’. In reality local councils 
have little authority. The most important aspect of local government -planning 
and it’s implementation has become entirely random and ‘anything goes’ to the 
detriment of all of us who have been longterm members of the community. I feel 
let down, disenfranchised and somewhat apathetic after thirty unsuccesful years 
of attempted engagement  

118 09/09/2022 12:18 PM 
ID: 199117863  

I hope it isn't just wasting money.  

119 09/09/2022 12:28 PM 
ID: 199119160  

Very good. 

120 09/09/2022 12:34 PM 
ID: 199119552  

A good document 

121 09/09/2022 12:35 PM 
ID: 199118894  

Its a waste of time and tax payers money. 

122 09/09/2022 12:51 PM 
ID: 199120363  

I think there is a huge amount of money being wasted. So many consultations, 
surveys, strategy documents, appointment of officers all talking and discussing 
things but very little action. 
I would much prefer to see footpaths and cycle paths and roads looked after and 
safer for people to use than all this. People will then feel valued and see what 
the DC is doing to help the community  

123 09/09/2022 12:56 PM 
ID: 199120340  

Comprehensive and unambiguous 

124 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Useful but is it measurable? 

125 09/09/2022 13:45 PM 
ID: 199123549  

A lot of words, and an awful lot of reliance on the 'Equality Officer' - surely you 
will need more than one!! 
There is also a reliance on voluntary groups to participate - but they are not 
funded by the council so what is the incentive for them to do so? 
The absence of any reference to disability awareness seems to me to be a 
glaring omission. 
My feeling is that this document is a lot of words that, without realistic time 
scales added, is just that. Good intentions that maybe tick a few boxes is not 
going to achieve any real progress. 

126 09/09/2022 13:47 PM 
ID: 199123846  

It's positive action that will be a stepping stone for ongoing improvements 

127 09/09/2022 14:24 PM 
ID: 199125176  

It does sound similar to a ‘tick box’ programme for office staff , to satisfy some 
Government department blurb/directive which is to satisfy modern ‘inclusion’ 
programmes ….which in turn are to reduce opportunities for those minority 
groups who feel under-represented to hold protests and encourage press and 
TV coverage to an overwhelming degree ! 

128 09/09/2022 14:42 PM 
ID: 199127684  

Overall I think it is just common sense in making sure all aspects of society 
understand the elements of Council. 

129 09/09/2022 15:08 PM 
ID: 199128664  

Needless waffle.  

130 09/09/2022 15:38 PM 
ID: 199132343  

It's ok 

Page 72



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

131 09/09/2022 16:57 PM 
ID: 199137535  

I approve, 

132 09/09/2022 17:29 PM 
ID: 199139040  

It's good and well intentioned 

133 09/09/2022 17:53 PM 
ID: 199139729  

I worry about the cost to all local council tax payers in these difficult times  

134 09/09/2022 19:51 PM 
ID: 199143763  

i have no idea how this woudl be measurable to work out whether it works or not 
 
without a means of judging that, it is simply a bald statement 

135 10/09/2022 09:09 AM 
ID: 199153171  

Very good 

136 10/09/2022 12:00 PM 
ID: 199157980  

It is important and worthwhile. 

137 10/09/2022 15:10 PM 
ID: 199163557  

Nonsense 

138 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

ITS A VERY GOOD IDEA BUT THIS COUNCIL SHOULD NOT BE RUNNING IT 
,IT NEEDS MORE ACCOUNTABILITY AND NON COUNCIL WORKERS 
INCLUDED JUST TO MAKE IT SECURE OR NOBODY WILL WANT TO BE 
INCLUDED. HAVE YOU GIVEN THOUGHT ABOUT ANY STIGMA THAT 
WOULD ATTATCH ITSELF TO THOSE THAT ARE INCLUDED. WILL IT BE 
LIKE MY GRANDSON .HE WAS ON FREE SCHOOL MEALS BUT THE LOCAL 
SCHOOL (KING ALFREDS) MADE ALL THOSE STAND OUTSIDE THAT 
RECEIVED FREE MEALS SO HE HAD THAT STIGMA TO LIVE WITH ALL 
THROUGH SCHOOL, IN SUMMARY I THINK IT NEEDS A LOT OF WORK OR 
THE WAY IT IS SET UP WILL CAUSE UPSETS AND REVERSE ANY GOOD 
WORK DONE. 

139 10/09/2022 22:11 PM 
ID: 199173256  

Waste of money. 
If you adopt this strategy you can't complain of being starved of funds  

140 11/09/2022 09:11 AM 
ID: 199178403  

sounds good 

141 12/09/2022 09:26 AM 
ID: 199207710  

Good to have  

142 12/09/2022 09:46 AM 
ID: 199208991  

Comprehensive 

143 12/09/2022 10:51 AM 
ID: 199214088  

It seems sensible, but could easily be subverted. 

144 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

Waffle 

145 12/09/2022 19:53 PM 
ID: 199249892  

Although the aims are laudable, I think that there is a danger that too strong a 
focus on protected characteristics may distract from other causes of poor 
participation by particular groups, e.g. socioeconomic status. For instance, low 
engagement by a particular ethnic group may have little to do with ethnicity, but 
be primarily a result of deprivation. 

146 13/09/2022 00:27 AM 
ID: 199267287  

I think the strategy takes a logical approach to promote diversity and inclusion. 

147 13/09/2022 11:15 AM 
ID: 199288392  

With the proviso in (10) above, it’s fine. 

148 13/09/2022 20:57 PM 
ID: 199347170  

Please be sure to level up rather than down - the law of unintended 
consequences is waiting to trip you up! 

149 13/09/2022 22:02 PM 
ID: 199350649  

Waste of time and resources. 

Page 73



11. Overall, what do you think about the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

150 15/09/2022 12:44 PM 
ID: 199491109  

Principals are a good foundation, results will prove those principals worth.  

151 15/09/2022 18:28 PM 
ID: 199520001  

Excellent! Obviously well researched and mapped out.  

152 23/09/2022 10:11 AM 
ID: 199680976  

A sensible approach 

153 30/09/2022 17:32 PM 
ID: 200493710  

At the moment it is not fit for purpose - this is a huge piece of work to do properly 
and 8 pages is totally inadequate. 

154 04/10/2022 12:59 PM 
ID: 200684545  

Needed as the population in this area rises and includes many people from a 
wide range of ethicalities and religions.  

 

 
answered 154 

skipped 80 

 

12. Do you think anything is missing from the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Yes   
 

25.71% 54 

2 No   
 

42.38% 89 

3 I don't know   
 

31.90% 67 

 
answered 210 

skipped 24 

 

13. If yes, what is missing from the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 59 

1 08/08/2022 19:59 PM 
ID: 197216222  

Common sense 

2 08/08/2022 20:10 PM 
ID: 197215937  

As above - clear language around sex as a characteristic. Plus in general clearer 
measures/outcomes. 

3 09/08/2022 09:08 AM 
ID: 197233169  

Too complicated  

4 09/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197240107  

I suggest that a simple code of conduct could encapsulate many of the objectives 
and once the necessary culture change is in place, could remove the need for 
more cumbersome procedure. 
There is a warning though, from the 2022 SODC Code of Conduct - 14 pages is 
too long and is not going to be read and digested by many people. Most of it is 
encompassed in the Nolan principles which will fit on one page. 

5 09/08/2022 15:17 PM 
ID: 197261239  

Its complete deletion 

Page 74



13. If yes, what is missing from the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

6 10/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197313434  

In the intro, there's no mention of sex, but there is mention of gender. Sex is a 
protected characteristic, and gender is not. I think it's important to understand the 
difference between these. Gender reassignment IS a protected characteristic. 
This strategy MUST get these things right. Also in the intro, 'protected 
characteristics' are referred to, but I don't see anywhere in the doc where these 
are listed.  

7 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

See comments before 

8 10/08/2022 13:50 PM 
ID: 197271754  

Better use of complaints/customer feedback data to inform how communities are 
using the councils' services 

9 12/08/2022 14:18 PM 
ID: 197475500  

The protected characteristic of SEX 

10 12/08/2022 20:25 PM 
ID: 197494570  

I have stated what I think about the poor education, training and accountability 
etc. of your Capita contractors who for sure seem to squabble in the main over 
ensuring that each one is given adequate working hours in a week. 
Communication with we disabled people is a disgrace as I say and I have 
personally been treated very badly for over 2 years of being badly disabled by the 
Housing Team - who have done zero for me as of this date, despite me being a 
priority person to be re-housed as my private landlord has died and I am forced to 
continue facing Court actions and living here despite my home being dilapidated 
and judged as a danger to my health and safety by Lowri Miller of SODC's 
environmental health team. 

11 12/08/2022 22:07 PM 
ID: 197498294  

Including sex as a category as above. It is shocking that this has been minted - 
does the council not have access to legal advice on getting ur obligations as a 
council (and as employers)? 

12 15/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 197562942  

Emphasis on older, non-computer-user residents  

13 15/08/2022 10:24 AM 
ID: 197569460  

. 

14 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

More individual responses 

15 15/08/2022 12:36 PM 
ID: 197579664  

Scrap this strategy. 

16 15/08/2022 12:47 PM 
ID: 197580688  

Some form of commitment to actually acheiving your aims. I saw someone from 
planning posting a sign and pointed out the flaws in your logic. They could not 
escape fast enough. After all why should planning concern itself with putting 
infrastructure in at the same time as development? It might avoid current issues 
like lack of medical facilities, lack of roads, lack of schools etc etc. 

17 15/08/2022 13:09 PM 
ID: 197580509  

See my response to question 10. 

18 15/08/2022 13:16 PM 
ID: 197581804  

As per my other additional comments.  

19 15/08/2022 13:29 PM 
ID: 197583393  

Measures of success are inadequate.  

20 15/08/2022 13:43 PM 
ID: 197584769  

The needs of the majority being ignored because of the noise generated by the 
minority 

21 15/08/2022 13:44 PM 
ID: 197584067  

The overall cost with staffing and operational costs. 

22 15/08/2022 13:56 PM 
ID: 197584956  

Proportionality & common sense 

23 15/08/2022 13:58 PM 
ID: 197584777  

Just the above 

Page 75



13. If yes, what is missing from the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

24 15/08/2022 14:12 PM 
ID: 197587409  

Not sure 

25 15/08/2022 14:28 PM 
ID: 197588125  

Direct indicative actions 

26 15/08/2022 15:52 PM 
ID: 197592845  

Common sense  

27 15/08/2022 16:59 PM 
ID: 197600388  

More diversity at the leadership level  

28 15/08/2022 21:42 PM 
ID: 197613265  

A practical approach to these important issues, avoiding tokenism 

29 16/08/2022 07:31 AM 
ID: 197620624  

Specific accountability to a person. Deadlines. 

30 16/08/2022 08:24 AM 
ID: 197622665  

A clear differentiation between what is provided for council staff, and the services 
provided to the public.  

31 16/08/2022 09:31 AM 
ID: 197625671  

As above 

32 16/08/2022 10:09 AM 
ID: 197629023  

Action to encourage minorities to better integrtate - e.g. provide english language 
training to those that need it. 

33 16/08/2022 20:42 PM 
ID: 197679154  

A much higher level of community participation through virtual access to council 
meetings 

34 16/08/2022 21:24 PM 
ID: 197681086  

Mention of the large group of people who do not fall into a special category 

35 17/08/2022 10:30 AM 
ID: 197700342  

Indication of how this strategy will be funded. 

36 19/08/2022 08:01 AM 
ID: 197891694  

See my previous comments on schools and language content 

37 19/08/2022 18:33 PM 
ID: 197940528  

Get the best person for the job !!!! 

38 22/08/2022 12:38 PM 
ID: 198062147  

More and better contact with town and parish councils. Return the twice yearly 
district/parish liaison session, either in person or online, have all the main officers 
and party leaders there to answer questions; be open, transparent and responsive 

39 27/08/2022 10:41 AM 
ID: 198370630  

What facilities are being offered for other religion worshipers? Are there any 
buildings which they can use or convert to observe their faith? 
Are the businesses made aware of other religions and how they celebrate their 
special events? If so, what are the businesses doing to ensure that they too 
benefit from other cultural events and festivities, such as offering certain gift items. 
As an example, Tesco and Sainsbury's offer certain groceries during Ramadan 
(Muslims) and Diwali (Hindus). 

40 27/08/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 198373658  

We are experiencing higher numbers of immigrants and perhaps English 
Language and customs should be taught.  
 
Offices should be accessible, with accessible toilets, lifts, etc.  

41 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

Develop your leaders as a priority.  

42 30/08/2022 22:14 PM 
ID: 198515432  

As I have described above. 

43 31/08/2022 12:52 PM 
ID: 198547952  

No mention of any methods of communication - there are still a significant portion 
of the population who don't have access to the internet and need information to be 
provided through the mail or telephone. Even this survey is available electronically 
so is excluding this portion of the residents of the area. 

Page 76



13. If yes, what is missing from the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

44 31/08/2022 14:49 PM 
ID: 198557891  

1. Many people do not have e-communications and you fail to provide alternative 
means of joining in this type of consultation. Hold local meetings.  
2. There are many ethnic and religious minorities in the vale with their own 
cultures and traditions. You tend to cater for the the white middle class 
Christian/atheist (reflecting the Councillor make-up I think). How about some 
diversity training for Councillors and staff so they can become more aware and 
inclusive. 

45 03/09/2022 10:23 AM 
ID: 198730467  

It seems rather bland and predictable, but I suppose a good start-point 

46 06/09/2022 09:36 AM 
ID: 198859442  

Detail on how you will deliver the strategy delivering organisational fairness and 
cohesion in our communities. How will you accommodate fairness through 
diversity and inclusion within the change from physical to digital delivery on many 
services. 

47 06/09/2022 18:35 PM 
ID: 198907612  

Acknowledgment that your staff need efficiency and job training before diversity 
training. You have enough diversity champions in the community, the schools, the 
fire station! I could not believe my eyes when I saw the stonewall logo at the fire 
station. That means woman are not welcome!  

48 09/09/2022 12:15 PM 
ID: 199117915  

As above -we need engagement and to be listened to. The strategy is just words 

49 09/09/2022 12:51 PM 
ID: 199120363  

If it has to be done just draw up a very simple strategy that can actually be 
achieved. Such a lot of talk…… 

50 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Measurability 

51 09/09/2022 13:45 PM 
ID: 199123549  

See above, the need to include disability awareness 

52 09/09/2022 15:08 PM 
ID: 199128664  

Brevity.  

53 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

YOU CAN NOT FORCE THIS UPON THE POPULATION AND ASSUME THAT 
YOU CAN DO WHAT YOU WANT WITH OUR DATA I DO NOT TRUST THIS 
COUNCIL AND THERE IS CASES OF MISPHESANCE BEING LOOKED INTO 
AT THE MOMENT INVOLVING EXECUTIVE COUNCIL OFFICERS .THIS MUST 
HAVE FULLY INDEPENDANT OVERSEEING FROM A BODY FAR REMOVED 
FROM THIS COUNCIL. 

54 12/09/2022 10:51 AM 
ID: 199214088  

I would like to see some ground rules that prevent a WOKE agenda. 

55 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

Common sense 

56 13/09/2022 11:15 AM 
ID: 199288392  

See response to (10) above. 

57 13/09/2022 22:02 PM 
ID: 199350649  

It should be stopped now and resources reallocated to front line services. 

58 15/09/2022 12:44 PM 
ID: 199491109  

Advice for participants to listen 

59 30/09/2022 17:32 PM 
ID: 200493710  

Detail and who will be doing these 

 

 
answered 59 

skipped 175 

 

Page 77



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 158 

1 08/08/2022 17:39 PM 
ID: 197210073  

They spend way to much money and time on it. 

2 08/08/2022 17:40 PM 
ID: 197210106  

Worrying about it when it has better things to do 

3 08/08/2022 19:59 PM 
ID: 197216222  

It becomes an overly onerous box ticking exercise (eg the ridiculous mandatory 
safeguarding training for ALL staff - including those without any interaction with 
the public).  
Public perception that finite resources are disproportionately utilised. Public 
perceives that certain minorities receive preferential attention.  

4 08/08/2022 20:10 PM 
ID: 197215937  

To prioritise one protected characteristic over another - they need to be 
balanced. To place importance on flying flags and delivering unconscious bias 
training when there is no evidence that these things promote community 
cohesion (in fact they can be divisive). 
https://www.bbc.com/worklife/article/20210326-the-complicated-battle-over-
unconscious-bias-training  

5 08/08/2022 20:57 PM 
ID: 197218796  

All talk and no action 

6 09/08/2022 08:36 AM 
ID: 197231465  

Assumes certain groups want to be included when they might not. 

7 09/08/2022 09:08 AM 
ID: 197233169  

Spending time and money on it rather than just running the organisation 
efficiently and fairly  

8 09/08/2022 09:40 AM 
ID: 197235158  

A succession of policies but sometimes a lack of work in effectively changing 
entrenched views that directly affect the effectiveness of the policy  

9 09/08/2022 10:40 AM 
ID: 197238367  

Not effectively communicating with people. Inadequate emergency plans e.g. 
Covid  

10 09/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197240107  

Celebrating the minority and forgetting the majority. 

11 09/08/2022 11:26 AM 
ID: 197242453  

The tendency is for government / councils etc to decide and tell people what they 
need and what is good for them, which encourages an institutional style culture, 
with users becoming more and more dependent on the provider and less and 
less satisficed with that provision, due to cut backs on funding and services. 
Councils need to give residents more ownership of their communities and as in 
this survey, get them to engage in more proactive activity and not leave it all to 
those in power! 

12 09/08/2022 13:26 PM 
ID: 197253412  

Overhyping it. 

13 09/08/2022 15:04 PM 
ID: 197259882  

appreciate the diversity of people being communicated with 

14 09/08/2022 15:15 PM 
ID: 197261316  

Having a strategy and then doing nothing to implement it or to change 
behaviours. 

15 09/08/2022 15:17 PM 
ID: 197261239  

Caring about it - it doesn't matter and no one cares 

16 09/08/2022 16:38 PM 
ID: 197267711  

Following the guidelines which a becoming an absolute nonsense 

17 09/08/2022 17:08 PM 
ID: 197269601  

Having preconceived ideas of who is suffering exclusion  

Page 78



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

18 10/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197313434  

Confusion about the difference between sex and gender. It's big deal these 
days.  

19 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

No 

20 10/08/2022 13:50 PM 
ID: 197271754  

Taking a blanket one size fits all approach and often paying lip service to this key 
issue. A failure to truly listen to residents is often a common mistake. 

21 11/08/2022 10:48 AM 
ID: 197387694  

Learning about people without asking those people for their input. 'Nothing about 
us without us." 

22 12/08/2022 14:03 PM 
ID: 197310257  

a one-size-fits-all approach, i.e. not nuanced enough 

23 12/08/2022 14:18 PM 
ID: 197475500  

Deferring to outside organisations like Stonewall who routinely misrepresent 
Equality Legislation  

24 12/08/2022 17:04 PM 
ID: 197487570  

Only giving diversity and inclusion to certain groups. That you think you need to 

25 12/08/2022 20:25 PM 
ID: 197494570  

You are far too detached from reality and you have no feeling of care or service 
for to clear needs of underprivileged disabled people like myself. There is a 
severe lack of accountability at SODC - Capita people are just ignorant with a 
serious lack of care or understanding of the same. They cannot even 
communicate in a fair and understanding way !!! 

26 12/08/2022 22:07 PM 
ID: 197498294  

Promoting the interests of one group over others - racism, sexism and the elderly 
affect the majority of residents but their needs seem to get sidelined by other 
tiny, vociferous minorities 

27 13/08/2022 14:30 PM 
ID: 197515837  

Paying lip service or ticking boxes while tolerating or turning a blind eye to poor 
practice. 

28 14/08/2022 14:38 PM 
ID: 197540488  

Spending too much effort and resources on it. 

29 14/08/2022 22:48 PM 
ID: 197553387  

Not keeping it simple  

30 15/08/2022 01:59 AM 
ID: 197445832  

Individual opinion can sometimes overshadow the actual result of a decision. 
There should be a check of actual, verbal, and written results communicated to 
the General Public from the original Council decision. 
Individual interpretation can sometimes lead to the wrong message being 
passed on to the public. 

31 15/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 197562942  

Focus on LGBTQ+ and BAME issues (which have been completely neglected in 
the past) can, in practice, exclude other groups who are non-mainstream 

32 15/08/2022 10:24 AM 
ID: 197569460  

. 

33 15/08/2022 12:19 PM 
ID: 197578852  

Going overboard on diversity and inclusivity. 

34 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

You think you know what people want before you ask them. Then you don't 
adapt to what they want afterwards  

35 15/08/2022 12:29 PM 
ID: 197579609  

Trying to include every group that thinks they are special, so not to hurt their 
feelings. You won’t be able to please everyone. Danger of getting bogged down 
and tied up with red tape the more complicated it gets & more costly. 

36 15/08/2022 12:30 PM 
ID: 197579927  

only reaching out to known groups rather than individuals. 

37 15/08/2022 12:36 PM 
ID: 197579664  

E&D cannot be justified when basic services are not provided at all or to the 
minimum standard. 

38 15/08/2022 12:40 PM 
ID: 197580128  

talking the talk without successful implementation 

Page 79



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

39 15/08/2022 12:43 PM 
ID: 197578986  

Implement an imposed way of thinking (which may have its own flaws and 
prejudices) rather than getting members of the organization to think more about 
some of these issues on their own, as applied to their everyday work and 
interactions with customers/those they serve. 

40 15/08/2022 12:47 PM 
ID: 197580688  

Relying on words not deeds. 

41 15/08/2022 12:53 PM 
ID: 197580877  

Too many outside organisation's involvement & therefore loosing site of the main 
objective 

42 15/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197581563  

It tacitly promotes the concept of a lack of diversity and inclusivity.  
Haven’t you got real issues to deal with? Utility costs, failing contractors and 
sensible community investment strategies?  

43 15/08/2022 13:09 PM 
ID: 197580509  

Climbing on the bandwagon of virtue signalling. This does nothing to actually 
help people. However, any organisation that dares to say it doesn't have any 
issues is likely to be castigated so, business-wise, it pays to toe the line. 

44 15/08/2022 13:16 PM 
ID: 197581804  

Managing effective change. Forgetting the human side (long held values/beliefs) 
and focusing just on training modules/adding policy thinking this will cure all.  

45 15/08/2022 13:17 PM 
ID: 197583364  

Trying to please everyone and then pleasing no one. There must be a majority 
consensus, but don't let one minority vocal point of view derail the whole process 
if it does not add value to the strategy 

46 15/08/2022 13:20 PM 
ID: 197583139  

Talking for us not with us  

47 15/08/2022 13:24 PM 
ID: 197583413  

Spending too much time on it 

48 15/08/2022 13:29 PM 
ID: 197583393  

Turning to training instead of addressing structural problems. Training can be a 
part of a solution, but is not an end in and of itself.  

49 15/08/2022 13:38 PM 
ID: 197585050  

Virtue signalling. It's all very well saying "we're inclusive" but organisations have 
to actually do it - and test it, and review it, and engage with end users to make 
sure it's working. Boxes ticked do not equal inclusive access. 

50 15/08/2022 13:42 PM 
ID: 197584985  

A lack of willness to change. 
A fear of the unknown...wokeness! 
Tunnel vision. 
Knowing the current market. 

51 15/08/2022 13:42 PM 
ID: 197581868  

To be able to ensure the policy is being actioned and to monitor all parties are 
compliant!  
Where would any ‘whistle blowers’ go with their concerns? 

52 15/08/2022 13:43 PM 
ID: 197584769  

See comments in 13) above. That they pander to the minority 

53 15/08/2022 13:44 PM 
ID: 197584067  

By placing people in tick boxes which causes a non-inclusion of togetherness 
and equality. 

54 15/08/2022 13:56 PM 
ID: 197584956  

Being afraid of not conforming to the lastest fad 

55 15/08/2022 13:58 PM 
ID: 197584777  

Not collecting complaints (and comments) consistently, and being able to prove 
that they are driving change. 

56 15/08/2022 14:06 PM 
ID: 197585765  

Pressure of day to day work overrides diversity and inclusion considerations. 

57 15/08/2022 14:12 PM 
ID: 197587409  

Not asking those most affected what they think is needed and where applying 
this will be most effective  

58 15/08/2022 14:17 PM 
ID: 197587172  

Box ticking exercise so they can add a ‘diversity aware’ slogan on their branding. 
Focus on providing the same high quality service to everyone. You don’t need 
my backstory just treat me with respect and common courtesy.  

Page 80



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

59 15/08/2022 14:28 PM 
ID: 197588125  

They want to tick boxes and do so without really understanding the impact it has 
on the end user. eg Network Rail/GWR have an inclusivity policy which requires 
disabled people to travel to either Oxford or Didcot Parkway if they want to cross 
platforms at Radley. This can add hours to a journey that should take a few 
minutes. What the policy should have been based around was not doing the 
minimum that the Equality Act states but real hard opportunity thta allows a level 
playing field not excluding anyone. 

60 15/08/2022 14:46 PM 
ID: 197590158  

People getting upset on behalf of groups - rather than seeing if something is 
discriminatory.  

61 15/08/2022 15:07 PM 
ID: 197591350  

Fobbing people off and not being totally open. 
Should always get back and do it by phone not text or email that sort of 
communication is very impersonal and you can read it in the wrong tone. That 
would make matters much worse. 

62 15/08/2022 15:21 PM 
ID: 197591854  

Making it too complicated. 

63 15/08/2022 15:27 PM 
ID: 197594017  

Being too specific 

64 15/08/2022 15:52 PM 
ID: 197592845  

The biggest mistake is employing some idiot for this job creation scheme  

65 15/08/2022 16:44 PM 
ID: 197600233  

under estimating how many people it impacts on and underestimating the 
number of people who do not think it applies to them  

66 15/08/2022 16:50 PM 
ID: 197598960  

Assuming "they" know best, and failing to consider the views of others 
sufficiently. 

67 15/08/2022 16:59 PM 
ID: 197600388  

Often, organisations focus on being seen as diverse so will put out lots of 
information about the tiniest thing they do which makes them seem diverse.  
 
In actual fact, diversity shows from within. It's in seeing how people of different 
backgrounds thrive within the organisation itself. The organisation's policy should 
mirror their practice. We shouldn't be producing documents to show that we are 
diverse. A visitor should be able to tell that a company is diverse after spending 
some time with employees. Diversity should be worn into the culture of the 
organisation. 

68 15/08/2022 16:59 PM 
ID: 197601264  

Over thinking 

69 15/08/2022 17:13 PM 
ID: 197601342  

Treating diversity and inclusion as something special. Diversity and inclusion are 
no different to health and safety. The organizations that manage these things 
well manage them in exactly the same way that they manage every other aspect 
of their business. Diversity and inclusion are nothing other than good 
employment practice.  

70 15/08/2022 17:37 PM 
ID: 197603854  

Not using common sense 

71 15/08/2022 17:54 PM 
ID: 197604595  

not sure  

72 15/08/2022 18:01 PM 
ID: 197604319  

Highlighting diversity and inclusion, most people accept diversity and inclusion 
without having it rammed down their throats. 

73 15/08/2022 20:21 PM 
ID: 197610894  

Trying to do too much without working on the basics of producing services for all 
to use. 

74 15/08/2022 21:42 PM 
ID: 197613265  

Adopting the same approach for every document or service - not everything 
needs an equality impact assessment, and if you make it tedious for staff by 
asking them to do it for everything (e.g. SOPs...) they will just get irritated and it 
becomes a box-ticking exercise. Take time to have a 'sense-check' at the outset 
to determine if there is a likely/possible impact on certain groups before 
undertaking the assessment. 

Page 81



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

75 15/08/2022 22:15 PM 
ID: 197614807  

Making assumptions about people based on their diversity characteristics  

76 15/08/2022 22:19 PM 
ID: 197614507  

Over focus on a tiny minority group at the expense of another, larger group. 
Everyone matters and everyone counts. 

77 16/08/2022 07:31 AM 
ID: 197620624  

Being vague. 

78 16/08/2022 08:13 AM 
ID: 197622006  

Both overestimating and underestimating the “market” 

79 16/08/2022 08:24 AM 
ID: 197622665  

Focus on minorities at the expense of the overall community.  
 
Missing out on age challenges in the workforce.  
 
Caught up with peoples wims  

80 16/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197626044  

Ignoring the basics of providing a comprehensive service 

81 16/08/2022 09:31 AM 
ID: 197625671  

Forgetting the majority of the population which is simply struggling to negotiate 
day to day life 

82 16/08/2022 09:52 AM 
ID: 197623372  

Lack of interest or not playing an active role. 

83 16/08/2022 10:09 AM 
ID: 197629023  

Gong 'over the top' and making everything unwieldy and expensive 

84 16/08/2022 10:52 AM 
ID: 197611995  

Words not action. 

85 16/08/2022 11:12 AM 
ID: 197634486  

Far too much emphasis on minority groups while majorities get ignored.  

86 16/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197635405  

Trying to cover all areas with the same approach, rather than dealing on an 
individual basis. 

87 16/08/2022 11:56 AM 
ID: 197636745  

Too generalised. 

88 16/08/2022 12:02 PM 
ID: 197633575  

Think it's all just a case of training. 
EDI is a topic which will forever grow and change. To attempt to get it remotely 
right an organisation needs to be agile in it's response to change. It's in the 
culture and will take years of imbedded behaviour. 

89 16/08/2022 16:35 PM 
ID: 197661379  

Tick box training instead of actually grappling with the real life issues in diversity 
faced in the organisation. Training needs a safe place where people can discuss 
genuine questions and concerns and work through real issues, without fear for 
their jobs or being branded racist, homophobic, ableist, transphobic, 
islamaphobic etc. 

90 16/08/2022 20:42 PM 
ID: 197679154  

Too much reliance on surveys and not enough direct participation using virtual 
access that was so successful during the pandemic  

91 16/08/2022 21:24 PM 
ID: 197681086  

Loses focus on the majority 

92 16/08/2022 23:49 PM 
ID: 197684829  

Sometimes people lack training, sometimes forethought, often basic compassion 
and common sense. High-flown phrases are meaningless unless people make 
them work. 

93 17/08/2022 10:30 AM 
ID: 197700342  

Failing to make any great practical difference to anything or anyone. 

94 17/08/2022 12:08 PM 
ID: 197709597  

Not having enough staff  

Page 82



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

95 17/08/2022 16:34 PM 
ID: 197730554  

Writing about it rather than implementing it 

96 19/08/2022 08:01 AM 
ID: 197891694  

Vocabulary usually used to write inclusion documents - and this document is an 
example - instantly discriminates against those who have not had extensive 
education, plus those who are fluent in everyday English but who do not know 
the finer vocabulary needed to understand this type of document. For example, a 
first generation immigrant. Their children might understand, but would not 
necessarily know much of the vocabulary. 

97 19/08/2022 17:47 PM 
ID: 197938517  

Going over the top too woke,PC etc 

98 19/08/2022 18:33 PM 
ID: 197940528  

Getting in invovled in this rubbish in the first place ! 

99 20/08/2022 16:37 PM 
ID: 197731246  

Getting involved in the first place! 

100 21/08/2022 07:43 AM 
ID: 198009550  

Too many people can often be pideon-holded by religion &/or colour of their skin. 
Very few have such set views as to be hestitant or resistant to interacting with 
the community at large - maybe ways are feasible to improve things for the few 
who don't mix freely.  
There appear to be more mixed marriages or households than a couple of 
generations ago which is. hopefully, making society as a whole more inclusive & 
diverse. Making sterotyping of families etc less easy would generally be a benefit 
if the use of some terms not so 'favourably viewed' slipped out of use. 

101 22/08/2022 12:38 PM 
ID: 198062147  

Hiding behind technology. Real people answering the phone, particularly for the 
older and hard of hearing would make life so much better, less frustrating and 
more human. 

102 22/08/2022 16:53 PM 
ID: 198086203  

Assume everyone thinks it's a good idea 

103 22/08/2022 16:58 PM 
ID: 198084521  

Taking the matter too seriously. 

104 23/08/2022 10:32 AM 
ID: 198117121  

Doing the thinking in order to compile a strategy but not doing the ground work 
with the people they need to in order to make it happen.  

105 25/08/2022 11:40 AM 
ID: 198262512  

Possibly looking for problems that don't exist in the first place. A recent council 
job advertised in the Abingdon Herald implied that they only wanted applicants 
from black & ethnic minorities / LGBTQ+. This creates a problem - doesn't 
eliminate it, and can cause resentment. Its what the far right just love! 

106 27/08/2022 10:41 AM 
ID: 198370630  

No firm action plan with timelines and how this is going to be assessed. Doesn't 
bother to look at councils from other parts of the UK where the council have 
taken huge steps to accomodate diversity, perhaps due to high diverse 
population. The councils being referred to are Brent, Haringey, Bradford and 
others. 

107 27/08/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 198373658  

Being too fixed in job specifications. 

108 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

Adhering to policy without thinking about the unintended consequences for 
others. i.e. hitting the target but missing the point. Policy is a group of peoples 
guidance to do a specific thing, which is a fantastic audit trail but not an 
indication of the culture of an organisation.  

109 30/08/2022 13:43 PM 
ID: 198479475  

Tokenism, where policies appear great on the surface but fail to make a true 
impact or small changes happen which look good on the outside but are of 
limited help. A serious commitment to equality and diversity means engaging 
with the affected communities in a meaningful way, and a commitment from all 
staff to unlearning unconscious biases and preconceptions. It means taking 
lessons from members of oppressed groups and listening to them above all 
others.  

Page 83



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

110 30/08/2022 22:14 PM 
ID: 198515432  

Excluding those disabled folk who can speak for themselves. 

111 31/08/2022 12:52 PM 
ID: 198547952  

Thinking that diversity and inclusion is foreign languages, disabled (including 
blind or deaf) people - many of the population may not fall into these categories 
but need to have action taken to ensure inclusion. 

112 31/08/2022 14:49 PM 
ID: 198557891  

Organisations sometimes talk the talk, ticks the boxes, but then fail to grasp 
diversity and inclusion. You are no different to the County Council in that regard. 
I have worked for Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire and Royal County of Berkshire 
Counties (the latter before abolition) Bucks and Berks both had diversity 
awareness training which covered sexual orientations, gender discrimination 
(including language used) religious traditions, food, cultural traditions, how the 
minorities saw officials and how to interact inoffensively. Oxfordshire did not and 
I guess you probably don't either from some of the language and activity VOWH 
DC undertakes. 

113 01/09/2022 20:53 PM 
ID: 198652739  

Not resourcing it properly  

114 03/09/2022 10:23 AM 
ID: 198730467  

Have a separate group that cares about diversity and inclusion, but it doesn’t 
permeate other areas. 

115 06/09/2022 09:36 AM 
ID: 198859442  

Write an all singing all dancing strategy and then forget it, having ticked it off as 
'done'.  

116 06/09/2022 10:49 AM 
ID: 198867351  

See above: npt treating people with respect and consideration. And that within a 
culture which aims at effectiveness rasther than efficiency. 

117 06/09/2022 18:35 PM 
ID: 198907612  

Tend to follow the advice of political lobbyists like stonewall. Who are anti-
lesbian, anti-mother, anti-woman and anti-faith based culture. A diversity officer 
and champions and training is a distraction to people actually learning how to do 
their employed jobs properly.  

118 09/09/2022 11:16 AM 
ID: 199113836  

Not consulting everybody for suggestions 

119 09/09/2022 11:31 AM 
ID: 199115099  

Allowing approaches from any source. 

120 09/09/2022 11:47 AM 
ID: 199116388  

Spending too much money on it 

121 09/09/2022 11:52 AM 
ID: 199115251  

Taking what you are doing too seriously. Just treat everyone the same.  
If you treat people are individuals that you appreciate, then they will respond 
positively. If you categories them, they will respond to that category, and that 
may be self defeating and be used to undermine what you are trying to achieve. 

122 09/09/2022 12:06 PM 
ID: 199117614  

Perpetuating differences rather than encouraging convergence. 

123 09/09/2022 12:14 PM 
ID: 199118147  

Over thinking it 

124 09/09/2022 12:18 PM 
ID: 199117863  

They pay too much attention to special interest groups who do not speak for the 
"silent majority". That is how so many of our institutions become "woke".  

125 09/09/2022 12:28 PM 
ID: 199119160  

Ensuring that diversity and inclusion reach all levels of the organisation. 

126 09/09/2022 12:34 PM 
ID: 199119552  

Misunderstanding all people. 

127 09/09/2022 12:35 PM 
ID: 199118894  

Insufficient research into all interested parties based on taking the majority 
views. 

128 09/09/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 199119789  

To go over the top and in doing so to actually be offensive and exclude citizens!!! 

Page 84



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

129 09/09/2022 12:51 PM 
ID: 199120363  

Talking about it too much and not doing anything. Too complicated, too many hot 
water 

130 09/09/2022 12:56 PM 
ID: 199120340  

Failure to identify unrepresented minorities 

131 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Probably having staff working from home as informal opportunities for cross 
discipline conversations are missed 

132 09/09/2022 13:45 PM 
ID: 199123549  

Although there is a need to acknowledge and understand people that fall within 
the LGBTQ category, this is a small minority group whereas there is a much 
larger group that fall within the 'disabled' category. Do not let the need to be 
seen to be fair to all then lead to a diminution of the need to be seen to be fair to 
this larger group. 

133 09/09/2022 13:47 PM 
ID: 199123846  

Just starting the process and doing all the actions but not focusing on the 
enduring legacy of it. It has to become embedded in everyday practice so that it 
isn't something staff have to consider. 

134 09/09/2022 14:24 PM 
ID: 199125176  

Lots of ‘waffle’ , far too much unnecessary wording without clarification ( no point 
in constantly using jargon which is only mainly understood by local government 
office-based staff ?!) and have I missed a section on accountability and a tight 
goal check for evaluating the efficacy of this project ? It seems almost as waffly 
as the ‘summaries’ of the individual Council members on the website ! Sorry 
…have I missed something ? 

135 09/09/2022 14:42 PM 
ID: 199127684  

Not being open enough and sometimes treating people with the wrong label. 

136 09/09/2022 15:08 PM 
ID: 199128664  

No need for it just tell your staff to treat everyone with respect and understand 
peoples needs. 
Diversity is not an industry. Its respect and common sense.  

137 09/09/2022 16:57 PM 
ID: 199137535  

The challenge is to emphasise inclusivity as opposed to diversity. To include 
those who don't agree with inclusivity of diversity. 

138 09/09/2022 17:29 PM 
ID: 199139040  

Doesn't speak to the people it affects enough.  

139 09/09/2022 17:53 PM 
ID: 199139729  

To many organisations giving the same information  

140 09/09/2022 19:51 PM 
ID: 199143763  

thinking some hard to reach groups care that much for what the authority is 
doing 

141 10/09/2022 12:00 PM 
ID: 199157980  

Making assumptions about the people's sensitivities. 

142 10/09/2022 15:10 PM 
ID: 199163557  

Spending time and money on material like this. 

143 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

IT SEEMS TO BE A PROBLEM WITH ALL COUNCILS THEY ASSUME THAT 
BY GIVING POSITIONS TO A FEW TOKEN MINORITY MEMBERS THAT 
THEY HAVE DONE THE RIGHT THING BUT THIS IS NOT THE CASE .SOME 
OF US FACE A MINORITY RELATED PROBLEM EVERY DAY OF OUR LIVES 
AND THE COUNCIL IS NOT GOOD AT SEEING THIS AS WITH MY 
APPLICATION WITH THE ONLINE FORM IT JUST IS NOT SEEN BY 
COUNCILS . 
 
EVERY COUNCIL NEEDS A PERSON THAT HAS A HANDLE ON EVERY 
MINORITY SO 8-10 PERSONS TO EACH AREA BECAUSE A WHEELCHAIR 
USER HAS VASTLY DIFERENT PROBLEMS TO ME WITH MY PANIC 
ATTACKS . NOT ONE PERSON CAN DO ALL OF IT AS THEY PROBABLY 
WILL NOT NOTICE THE PROBLEM AS IT DOS,NT AFFECT THEM. SO NO 
SINGLE DIVERSITY OFFICER CAN SEE THE FULL RANGE OF PROBLEMS. 
ONE DIVERSITY OFFICER WOULD MOST LIKELY CAUSE MORE 
PROBLEMS LIKE COUNCIL INVOLVEMENT USALLY DOES .THIS IS NOT 
WELL THOUGHT THROUGH. 

Page 85



14. What do you think is the most common mistake an organisation makes in its 
approach to diversity and inclusion?  

144 10/09/2022 19:25 PM 
ID: 199170378  

Overlooking the "ordinary person" ie the white british and too much emphasis on 
the ethnic minorities 

145 10/09/2022 22:11 PM 
ID: 199173256  

Thinking that diversity and inclusion contribute to providing a better public 
service 

146 11/09/2022 09:11 AM 
ID: 199178403  

keeping in touch 

147 12/09/2022 09:46 AM 
ID: 199208991  

Not appreciating all the problems - no over view? 

148 12/09/2022 10:51 AM 
ID: 199214088  

Not reflecting the society which they serve, i.e. recruiting and promoting based 
on ethnicity or beliefs rather than meritocracy. 

149 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

Messing around with it in the first place 

150 12/09/2022 19:53 PM 
ID: 199249892  

An inability to appreciate the situation of people whose lifestyle does not conform 
to a limited range of assumed behaviours. 

151 13/09/2022 00:27 AM 
ID: 199267287  

Organizations might tend to give relatively vague information/ knowledge lack of 
depth about diversity and inclusion. For example, when talking about a culture of 
a specific region, information is likely to be around religious, food, some 'fun 
facts' etc. Serious information/ in-depth knowledge about the society, its origin, 
the behavior code, research/observation results and how to measure/ 
understand what diversity and inclusion is are rarely discussed. This might lead 
to 'diversity and inclusion' remains a term that one is familiar with but not truly 
understands, therefore not easy for people to implement in daily life. 

152 13/09/2022 11:15 AM 
ID: 199288392  

See response to (10) above. 

153 13/09/2022 22:02 PM 
ID: 199350649  

To engage with it 

154 15/09/2022 12:44 PM 
ID: 199491109  

Possibly not being able to be flexible enough within the constraints of its 
operation. 

155 15/09/2022 18:28 PM 
ID: 199520001  

Not asking the people needing responses/help/services before rolling out an 
organisation wide campaign or change. You are asking the right people the right 
questions beforehand! 

156 15/09/2022 19:09 PM 
ID: 199522064  

Talks too much, does too little 

157 30/09/2022 17:32 PM 
ID: 200493710  

Thinking that someone with one vulnerability can speak for other vulnerabilities. 
We all have our own agendas whether consciously or unconsciously. 

158 04/10/2022 12:59 PM 
ID: 200684545  

Needs to have councillors and employees walking around at different times of 
the day and night in order to understand the 'scene'. 

 

 
answered 158 

skipped 76 

 
7. Community Cohesion  
  
 

15. How strongly do you feel you belong to your local area? (When answering the 
questions in this section, please consider your local area to be within 15-20 minutes 
walking distance from your home)  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

Page 86



15. How strongly do you feel you belong to your local area? (When answering the 
questions in this section, please consider your local area to be within 15-20 minutes 
walking distance from your home)  

1 Very strongly   
 

33.33% 72 

2 Strongly   
 

32.87% 71 

3 
Neither strongly nor not 
strongly 

  
 

16.20% 35 

4 Not very strongly   
 

12.50% 27 

5 Not strongly at all   
 

3.70% 8 

6 I don’t know   
 

1.39% 3 

 
answered 216 

skipped 18 

 

16. To what extent do you agree or disagree that your local area is a place where 
people from different backgrounds get on well together?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Strongly agree   
 

13.21% 28 

2 Agree   
 

48.58% 103 

3 Neither agree nor disagree   
 

26.89% 57 

4 Disagree   
 

4.72% 10 

5 Strongly disagree   
 

2.83% 6 

6 I don't know   
 

3.77% 8 

 
answered 212 

skipped 22 

 

17. To what extent do you agree or disagree that people pull together to improve the 
local area?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Strongly agree   
 

15.81% 34 

2 Agree   
 

44.65% 96 

3 
Neither agree nor 
disagree 

  
 

24.19% 52 

4 Disagree   
 

9.77% 21 

5 Strongly disagree   
 

4.19% 9 

6 I don't know   
 

1.40% 3 

 
answered 215 

skipped 19 

Page 87



 

18. Do you have any other comments about diversity and inclusion that you would 
like to add? If yes, please use the box below.  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 76 

1 08/08/2022 17:39 PM 
ID: 197210073  

People pull together as a community, we don’t need councils wasting our taxes on 
these surveys and policies. 

2 09/08/2022 09:01 AM 
ID: 197232713  

People from different age groups and those who are neuro-diverse are not always 
included  

3 09/08/2022 09:08 AM 
ID: 197233169  

Please - and this is meant very seriously - stop wasting precious resources on this 
non topic  

4 09/08/2022 09:24 AM 
ID: 197234297  

The difficulty we have in our community happens when there are land owners 
who do not live in the area but are entitled to have a say in our community 
decisions. This happens in local amenities as well as land owners that neighbour 
community spaces but do not live in the village. 

5 09/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197240107  

Not everyone in our parish wants to be involved in our community - all we can do 
is keep the door open and welcoming. 

6 09/08/2022 11:26 AM 
ID: 197242453  

We have developed a strong local community because we feel we are forgotten 
about in South Oxfordshire, next to the Reading border. As a Bicester boy, I value 
my Oxfordshire roots and feel the SODC and South and Vale need to do more to 
be more inclusive throughout all of the county. 

7 09/08/2022 15:04 PM 
ID: 197259882  

Funding for community activities 

8 09/08/2022 16:38 PM 
ID: 197267711  

Yes I feel that the Council should concentrate it's limited resources on more 
important projects. This survey is pointless. 

9 10/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197313434  

Question 15 is poorly formed. How strongly do I feel that I do or don't belong? The 
answers aren't relevant to the question.  

10 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

The major issues locally are that major Councils (SODC and OOC) have either 
chosen to opt out of service provision or central government has chosen to 
downgrade the status of such Councils. Therefore SODC has no role in say 
housing - even as a developer of plans it is ignored and everyone with any 
knowledge knows that (and regrets it). 
 
A major issue is one of age. Older people are not so well 'integrated' with younger 
ones outside of the traditional family ties. 
 
Parish Councils have commonly been in a position of being the focal point for 
connection rather than SODC and OCC - as these bodies actually work on 
matters beyond waste collection (the only service that 60-70% of the community 
need from SODC (or associate from it. 
 
Parish Councils are ignored in every policy matter on CIL. A great let down this 
and possibly illegal. 

11 11/08/2022 10:48 AM 
ID: 197387694  

I feel strongly that I belong as I am part of a church, I work in a local school and 
my children attend local schools. Without these involvements I would not feel 
strongly that I belong 

12 12/08/2022 14:03 PM 
ID: 197310257  

A rural environment presents particular challenges to realising the the aspiration 
of diversity and inclusion. Not enough consideration is given to that. 

13 12/08/2022 14:18 PM 
ID: 197475500  

Please shift the focus to people who are marginalised because of an immutible 
characteristic such as SEX, race, religion and disability.  

14 12/08/2022 20:25 PM 
ID: 197494570  

There is a pomposity in Henley - where I have lived for 30 years or so - from 
people who seem to think that the less fortunate, such as disabled people are 
scum. Coupled with a very ineffective SODC in its lack of leadership in showing 

Page 88



18. Do you have any other comments about diversity and inclusion that you would 
like to add? If yes, please use the box below.  

fair play and direction in these areas we continue to have very unfair treatment in 
our lives 

15 13/08/2022 14:30 PM 
ID: 197515837  

Although there are relatively small numbers of people from BAME backgrounds 
and other minority backgrounds it is important that diversity and inclusion works 
positively for them. 

16 14/08/2022 14:38 PM 
ID: 197540488  

There is a real risk that these marginal activities will detract from the council core 
business. 

17 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

No 

18 15/08/2022 12:36 PM 
ID: 197579664  

The Council is constantly complaining about under funding and imposing 
maximum tax increases on residents. When basic services are not being provided 
at all or to a minimal standard this additional expenditure cannot be justified. Post 
relating to E&D should be removed along with training and time taken from other 
roles to follow the policy. I strongly object to council tax being spent on E&D. 

19 15/08/2022 12:36 PM 
ID: 197580021  

More parks that cater for children with disabilities, accessible play equipment 

20 15/08/2022 12:40 PM 
ID: 197580128  

I live in an area that is not particularly diverse. With regard to community building: 
Some people who live here are amazing and put in lots of time to make it seem 
like a community - notably the committee of the local community centre, and the 
local church. But most people just live here!  

21 15/08/2022 12:43 PM 
ID: 197578986  

No – thank you for the opportunity to comment. 

22 15/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197581563  

STOP INTERFERING! REMEMBER: YOURE IRRELEVANT TO MOST PEOPLE. 

23 15/08/2022 13:09 PM 
ID: 197580509  

My community has no problems associated with diversity and/or inclusion. It 
includes people from various countries, some with learning difficulties. Some 
people have taken in Ukranian refugees. I have never (in over 30 years) heard a 
racist, homophones, ageist or any other comment. We all just accept each other 
in a friendly way. 

24 15/08/2022 13:16 PM 
ID: 197581804  

I generally don't see many opportunities to network or pull together with different 
people. Where are these and what do they focus on?  

25 15/08/2022 13:17 PM 
ID: 197583364  

It was disturbing to read over the weekend of a report that a young lady from an 
ethnic minority was verbally abused by another member of the community. When 
this was reported there was outrage from the majority of residents, but it shows 
that there are still some areas of the community which may benefit from further 
education on the building and maintaining of an inclusive and civilised society 

26 15/08/2022 13:29 PM 
ID: 197583393  

The majority of exclusion observable to me is socioeconomic.  

27 15/08/2022 13:42 PM 
ID: 197584985  

Insufficient Doctors surgery's 
School dental hygiene checks 

28 15/08/2022 13:43 PM 
ID: 197584769  

Who are these "diverse" people? Are they helping the local community? Are they 
pulling together with the rest of the Community? 

29 15/08/2022 13:58 PM 
ID: 197584777  

No 

30 15/08/2022 14:06 PM 
ID: 197585765  

I would like to say Strongly Agree to the above three questions but there are, 
perhaps inevitably, some people who don't agree with inclusivity.  

31 15/08/2022 14:17 PM 
ID: 197587172  

There is no such thing as community now but this is not because of a diversity 
problem and more to do with changing values people have. People only care 
about themselves these days and have little time for local issues unless they are 
directly impacted (building developments etc). Councils do not help as they allow 
areas to become dirty and unkempt and full of litter which adds to the cycle of 
uncaring. A good start would be to ensure people keep there front gardens off the 

Page 89



18. Do you have any other comments about diversity and inclusion that you would 
like to add? If yes, please use the box below.  

public footpath without having to raise the issue every couple of months - this is 
all types of housing and not restricted to social housing. If an Estes looks clean 
and tidy people willlook after it more and expenditure is low as just needs some 
enforcement.  
Stop trying to solve problems which don’t really exist to the detriment of the real 
every day issues people are struggling with. 

32 15/08/2022 14:46 PM 
ID: 197590158  

Part of the issue is that people in this part of the world don’t really do small talk. 
You are looked on as odd if you strike up conversation with someone to whom 
you have not been introduced. So this has influenced my not feeling a strong 
connection.  

33 15/08/2022 15:52 PM 
ID: 197592845  

I really wish there was some way to get rid of all the levels of local government. 
This exercise is typical of the pointless schemes you create and congratulate 
yourselves on the fine job you're doing. 

34 15/08/2022 16:44 PM 
ID: 197600233  

People from the town not understanding life in rural areas and wanting 
sububination like stree lighting etc  

35 15/08/2022 17:13 PM 
ID: 197601342  

I live in a small cul-de-sac that includes mixed race couples, ethnic minorities, 
single parents, families with young children and elderly people living alone. 
Everyone rubs along together just as one would expect. I've had similar 
experiences working for a number of organisations in the public and private sector 
for the last 40 years. I've never come across significant problems caused by lack 
of diversity or inclusivity. I really don't think this should be a priority at the moment 
- its a "nice to have" not an "essential". We need to focus on making sure people 
have homes to live in, affordable energy to keep warm, water to drink / wash, food 
to eat, good healthcare and education.  

36 15/08/2022 17:54 PM 
ID: 197604595  

no  

37 15/08/2022 22:19 PM 
ID: 197614507  

Some people work hard to improve the area. Most just do their own thing. A few 
are just plain selfish. We don't seem have much community spirit. That said when 
there is an event it can feel better. 

38 15/08/2022 23:38 PM 
ID: 197616471  

No one talks to anyone where i live. I don't know any neighbours names. 

39 16/08/2022 07:31 AM 
ID: 197620624  

While I think this policy is a good idea, at a time when people are concerned 
about rising energy costs and environmental impacts, I believe this is a policy that 
will help the Tory opposition to rally the anti-woke brigades and derail the Liberal 
Democrat leadership of our local area. 

40 16/08/2022 09:52 AM 
ID: 197623372  

As stated earlier, it would be nice to see various important religious festivals date 
included and school recognises these dates and give option for children to take 
day off to celebrate their important occasion.  

41 16/08/2022 11:12 AM 
ID: 197634486  

Where does the funding for this come from? You’re supposedly short of funds yet 
spend money on this and other areas such as electric charging points when other 
services are falling apart!! How many people have/can afford electric cars vs how 
much funding has been spent on charging points? What’s the % of minorities 
living in VOWH vs %of budget allocated to providing minority services?  

42 16/08/2022 20:42 PM 
ID: 197679154  

People feel that they belong when they have a chance to participate therefore a 
much higher level of community participation through virtual access to 
district/town/parish council meetings would be a simple and relatively cheap way 
to provide access to a more diverse level of opinion 

43 19/08/2022 08:01 AM 
ID: 197891694  

Inclusion might mention all the fantastic groups in Thame that pull together for the 
community. It is a very positive situation, and worth using (citing!!) as an example. 

44 19/08/2022 18:33 PM 
ID: 197940528  

As above -- perhaps pay attention to people who pay their way in life, work hard 
and pay their taxes ! 

45 21/08/2022 07:43 AM 
ID: 198009550  

I do feel that some disabilities are still not obvious enough for many to appreciate 
that a particular person has issues that they may need help with. As a 
society/community we can be very welcoming/engaging, but at times very much 

Page 90



18. Do you have any other comments about diversity and inclusion that you would 
like to add? If yes, please use the box below.  

the opposite.  
Things like changing the labelling to accessible for facilites from disabled is a big 
step in the right direction as far as I am concerned. Not everyone is in a 
wheelchair or has a carer with them at that particular moment. 

46 22/08/2022 12:38 PM 
ID: 198062147  

We would like to see much greater diversity on town and parish councils. Diversity 
of age, ethnicity, gender and outlook. Any assistance from SODC and Vale would 
be appreciated. Inclusion in your communications would help. 

47 22/08/2022 16:58 PM 
ID: 198084521  

The Vale of the White Horse district is not an ethnically or socially diverse area, so 
your emphasis on 'Diversity and Inclusion' is an unnecessary use of resources.  

48 23/08/2022 10:32 AM 
ID: 198117121  

I have lived in Abingdon for over 30 years and it is only during the pandemic, 
thanks to a local What's App group, that I have got to know more people in our 
very local area. When there is a local project, I see people working together, but I 
feel there must be ways to harness the interest people have in getting to know 
people who are not exactly like themselves. 

49 25/08/2022 11:40 AM 
ID: 198262512  

When I was growing up in Abingdon (1960/70s) racism was a problem in school 
and there were about 2 BAME children at school! 
 
This area now has a reasonably large ethnic population including polish & c. 
Which is great and everyone seems to get along fine so lets not look for problem if 
if doesn't exist.  
 
The Chinese communities have integrated well too.  

50 27/08/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 198373658  

Embarrassment and fear sometimes prevent individuals communicating with 
people who are disabled or from different cultures and genders. Accents and 
speed of talking can be a problem, especially for those who are older or with a 
hearing impairment. 

51 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

none - all mentioned earlier 

52 30/08/2022 13:43 PM 
ID: 198479475  

People in Wallingford tend to have a good sense of community and there are 
some great voluntary groups making a difference. However, I notice that the 
membership of these groups is white and middle class. These are also the type of 
people who dominate our public spaces. I am concerned that non white people 
are not enabled to feel comfortable here, and that people on lower incomes are 
left out of community initiatives. 

53 30/08/2022 22:14 PM 
ID: 198515432  

Question 17 - We often do not know what is happening "behind the scenes" 

54 31/08/2022 12:52 PM 
ID: 198547952  

15-20 minutes walking distance from my home only gets me to a neighbourhood 
shopping centre (one shop/post office), a church or a pub. I don't go to church or 
pubs so have no possibility of socialising with a wider population than my 
neighbours without going further.  

55 31/08/2022 14:49 PM 
ID: 198557891  

This is probably another of your tick box exercises so I will refrain from further 
comment. 

56 01/09/2022 20:53 PM 
ID: 198652739  

It should be vital part of all policy making 

57 03/09/2022 10:23 AM 
ID: 198730467  

Our area can be rather clique-ish and it is the usual ‘loud voices’ that dominate 
the conversation. It is difficult to put one’s head up above the parapet as it too 
often gets shot down by the few. 

58 06/09/2022 09:36 AM 
ID: 198859442  

Be mindful of the fact that a diversity strategy requires people to be identified in a 
particular group and as such separated. A diversity and inclusion strategy to some 
extent fails from the start - much better to put all energies into Respect and 
Leadership at all levels, that way you get true inclusivity without labelling people. 

59 09/09/2022 11:47 AM 
ID: 199116388  

I see no problems. 

Page 91



18. Do you have any other comments about diversity and inclusion that you would 
like to add? If yes, please use the box below.  

60 09/09/2022 11:52 AM 
ID: 199115251  

We all seam to treat each other the same. It works.  

61 09/09/2022 12:18 PM 
ID: 199117863  

I do not believe this focus on "diversity and inclusion" is something most people 
think important. Local authorities and similar must not let themselves be 
intimidated or unduly swayed by fashionable enthusiasms. 

62 09/09/2022 12:35 PM 
ID: 199118894  

Certain parts of the country feature more diversity than others by force of 
numbers. Action based on those areas should not be applied to other areas 
where the numbers do not justify it. 

63 09/09/2022 12:57 PM 
ID: 199120283  

Much focus on older peoples needs and those of people with disability has been 
lost or watered down by other equality strands over the last decade. Allowing for 
the fact that OCC forecast an increase of over 300% in the number of people over 
80 years of age in Oxfordshire by 2030 this appears remiss not to plan better/ 
focus more on this. 

64 09/09/2022 13:45 PM 
ID: 199123549  

Only what I have said before! 

65 09/09/2022 14:24 PM 
ID: 199125176  

Successful diversity and inclusion may depend on the opportunities for living 
somewhere with a good mix of housing, with regular public transport available and 
having enough about to attract small groups of like minded residents who can 
support each other and feel confident to both do that as well as reaching out to 
the wider community to encourage friendship and understanding. Not an easy 
task in a small village/hamlet . 

66 09/09/2022 15:08 PM 
ID: 199128664  

Ensure everyone can speak English and no special days for special groups.  

67 09/09/2022 19:51 PM 
ID: 199143763  

there are a certain number of people that actively try to make my area a worse 
area. criminals, fly-tippers, noise makers, graffiti painters, fly posters. 
 
i don't notice that these are a group. if they are i don't want the council to allow 
them to thrive. 
 
the diversity that these sorts of people offer is far from welcome even where it is 
not criminal. not all diversity is good. the council should hold high standards and 
pull people up. 

68 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

AS SOON AS YOU SAY LOCAL PEOPLE GETTING INVOLVED ITS THE SAME 
PEOPLE THAT ARE ALWAYS INCLUDED ,MOSTLY WHITE MIDDLE CLASS 
HOME OWNERS ,NEVER PEOPLE LIKE ME ,PEOPLE THAT SEE THE 
INEQUALITIES WITHIN THE SYSTEM .PEOPLE THAT HAVE BEEN AT THE 
RECEIVING END OF POOR COUNCIL DECISONS , PEOPLE THAT ARE IN 
CONTACT WITH THOSE THAT GET THE WORST TREATMENT,PEOPLE WHO 
HAVE SEEN THE RIGHT TO A PRIVATE LIFE WIPED AWAY AND REPLACED 
WITH JUST LIMITATIONS ON WHAT YOU CAN DO OR SAY. 
 
A BIT LIKE CITIZENS ADVICE BEING PAID BT THE MONEY GRABBING 
ENERGY COMPANIES TO OFFER A PARTICULAR LEANING TO ADVICE 
GIVEN , NOT HOW TO GET ENERGY CHEEPER BUT HOW TO TURN YOUR 
LIGHTS OFF . 
 
WE DONT NEED MORE COUNCIL INTERFEERENCE ALL WE NEED IS A 
COUNCIL THAT LISTENS TO US AND NOT COUNCIL BOSSES ,THOSE 
GRADUATES THAT HAVE NEVER HAD ANY BAD EXPERIENCES IN LIFE, 
FROM A WEALTHY BACKGROUND ,PAID SCHOOLING NEVER BEEN IN 
TROUBLE WITH THE POLICE AND HAVNT A CLUE HOW TO LIVE LIFE WITH 
THIS HANGING OVER THEM ,IF THIS IS WHAT YOU MEAN ,NO THANK YOU. 

69 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

It is a currant fad which has no relevance to ordinary people who ignore it and get 
on with normal life 

70 13/09/2022 00:27 AM 
ID: 199267287  

I think it is very important to promote diversity and inclusion in the community. 
Well done for putting out a strategy! 
 

Page 92



18. Do you have any other comments about diversity and inclusion that you would 
like to add? If yes, please use the box below.  

I think it is also very important that people can have a non-judgemental space to 
talk openly about their culture and ask questions they have towards the other 
cultures (in a polite and respectful way). 
 
As a ethic minority, I find there are people (including myself) who would like to 
contribute more to the community but do not know how- or need help to integrate.  

71 13/09/2022 11:15 AM 
ID: 199288392  

No further comments 

72 13/09/2022 20:57 PM 
ID: 199347170  

Issues vary greatly across the vale area. In towns such as Abingdon and Didcot, 
things are very different from rural regions such as here. 

73 13/09/2022 22:02 PM 
ID: 199350649  

Stop the process - it is a waste of time and energy. 

74 30/09/2022 17:32 PM 
ID: 200493710  

Please do not forget the immunocompromised - they are not only susceptible to 
COVID but all diseases. Just because government advised shielding has stopped 
their susceptibility continues. 

75 04/10/2022 12:46 PM 
ID: 200683684  

Response below received via email.  
 
Have we only just woken up to the fact that we are all so very different??? 
 
It has always been thus! 
 
We all need to respect one another and to value one another recognising and 
honouring our differences and diversities. 
 
I was given that understanding at primary school . 
 
I’m in my eighties. 
 
Respect and valuing one another surely must start in school if the parents haven’t 
highlighted it first.?? 
 
Perhaps education in schools should go back to teaching essential life skills , how 
to survive on a difficult pathway and how to care for ourselves as well as caring 
for one another too , how to get along with one another when we are so very 
different, BEFORE entering Academic studies as being the only essential route to 
survival and getting on in the world . 
 
We are still , I think , a Christian country , welcoming all religions . 
That simple Christian message, “To love (honour respect) one another “ stands us 
in good stead but we need to keep saying it to ourselves day in and day out! 
 
I wish you all good luck in your endeavours , as you bravely move forward 
hopefully ever finding new ways improve our society . 
Thank you. 

76 04/10/2022 12:50 PM 
ID: 200683896  

Response below received via email.  
 
The D&I strategy has replaced the protected characteristic of 'sex' 
with the legally meaningless term of 'gender'. 
 
This glaring error does not give me, personally, confidence in the reliability of the 
drafters or their knowledge of Equality Law. 
 
I am on annual leave at the moment and I hesitate to link the consultation on the 
Parish website as it is. 
 
Thank you for your time. 

 

 
answered 76 

skipped 158 

Page 93



 
8. Our commitment to equal access for all  
  
 

19. Which of the following describes how you identify yourself?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Male   
 

46.30% 100 

2 Female   
 

43.98% 95 

3 
Neither of the above (specify 
below if you would like to) 

 0.00% 0 

4 Prefer not to say   
 

6.48% 14 

5 I identify as:   
 

3.24% 7 

 
answered 216 

skipped 18 

I identify as: (7) 

1 08/08/2022 19:59 PM 
ID: 197216222  

Vulcan  

2 08/08/2022 20:10 PM 
ID: 197215937  

Please don't conflate sex (Male/Female) with gender identity - you can capture 
both if you want without rolling them into one Q. It renders the info you are 
capturing useless for some purposes - how will you know if women are under 
represented in answering this survey? 

3 12/08/2022 14:18 PM 
ID: 197475500  

I don't identify as anything. I'm a female. I have a nationality.  

4 12/08/2022 22:07 PM 
ID: 197498294  

I do not identify as anything - I am an adult human female. Your question is badly 
phrased and a cause for concern 

5 15/08/2022 13:56 PM 
ID: 197584956  

human 

6 19/08/2022 17:47 PM 
ID: 197938517  

How can you not be male or female woke woke woke 

7 15/09/2022 19:09 PM 
ID: 199522064  

We are two people responding together. One male, one female. 

 

 

20. How old are you?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 16-24  0.00% 0 

2 25-34   
 

0.93% 2 

3 35-44   
 

5.09% 11 

4 45-54   
 

13.43% 29 

5 55-64   
 

24.07% 52 

Page 94



20. How old are you?  

6 65-74   
 

29.63% 64 

7 75+   
 

18.98% 41 

8 Prefer not to say   
 

7.87% 17 

 
answered 216 

skipped 18 

 

21. Is English your first language?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Yes   
 

93.98% 203 

2 No   
 

1.85% 4 

3 Prefer not to say   
 

4.17% 9 

 
answered 216 

skipped 18 

If you have said 'no' please let us know what your first language is here: (2) 

1 15/08/2022 16:59 PM 
ID: 197600388  

Fante 

2 16/08/2022 09:52 AM 
ID: 197623372  

Nepali 

 

 

22. What is your ethnic group?   

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Prefer not to say   
 

7.44% 16 

White 

2 
English, Welsh, Scottish, 
Northern Irish, British 

  
 

79.53% 171 

3 Irish   
 

1.86% 4 

4 Gypsy or Irish Traveller  0.00% 0 

5 
Any other white 
background 

  
 

4.65% 10 

Asian or Asian British 

6 Indian   
 

0.93% 2 

7 Pakistani  0.00% 0 

8 Bangladeshi  0.00% 0 

Page 95



22. What is your ethnic group?   

9 Chinese   
 

0.47% 1 

10 
Any other Asian 
background 

  
 

0.47% 1 

Black or Black British 

11 Caribbean   
 

0.47% 1 

12 African  0.00% 0 

13 
Any other black 
background 

 0.00% 0 

Mixed or Multiple Ethnic Groups 

14 White and Black Caribbean  0.00% 0 

15 White and Black African  0.00% 0 

16 White and Asian  0.00% 0 

17 
Any other mixed 
background 

 0.00% 0 

Other Ethnic Group 

18 Arab  0.00% 0 

19 Other (please specify):   
 

4.19% 9 

 
answered 215 

skipped 19 

Other (please specify): (9) 

1 08/08/2022 19:59 PM 
ID: 197216222  

Vulcan 

2 15/08/2022 10:24 AM 
ID: 197569460  

Prefer not to say. My ethnicity should not determine your judgement of my reply 

3 15/08/2022 12:24 PM 
ID: 197579134  

Prefer not to say. That should have been included as an option rather than forcing 
people to conform to your ideals 

4 15/08/2022 12:36 PM 
ID: 197579664  

Object to information harvesting 

5 15/08/2022 12:43 PM 
ID: 197578986  

Prefer not to say. 

6 15/08/2022 14:46 PM 
ID: 197590158  

White & Polynesian (Maori) 

7 16/08/2022 09:52 AM 
ID: 197623372  

Nepali 

8 19/08/2022 17:47 PM 
ID: 197938517  

English white  

9 13/09/2022 22:02 PM 
ID: 199350649  

English / Indian / Norwegian / Scottish / Irish 

 

 

Page 96



23. Are your day to day activities limited because of a health problem or disability 
which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Yes   
 

18.06% 39 

2 No   
 

73.15% 158 

3 Prefer not to say   
 

8.80% 19 

 
answered 216 

skipped 18 

If yes, please specify: (35) 

1 09/08/2022 10:40 AM 
ID: 197238367  

Mobility. I am isolated. 

2 09/08/2022 11:14 AM 
ID: 197240107  

My hearing is very poor, which makes it difficult for me to participate in large 
meetings or to enjoy some social/entertainment events. 

3 09/08/2022 15:04 PM 
ID: 197259882  

Spinal and leg issues. 

4 09/08/2022 16:38 PM 
ID: 197267711  

Yes I am getting older and frailer. And there is a huge problem with older people 
being excluded. Internet management and having to do everything on line. One's 
faculties are much reduced as we age and the technology doesn't account for this 
- in fact the technology is becoming ever more complex. 

5 10/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197313434  

Mobility disability 

6 11/08/2022 10:48 AM 
ID: 197387694  

Autism 

7 12/08/2022 20:25 PM 
ID: 197494570  

As stated earlier - I had an acute stroke in July 2020 which I survived from after 
being unconscious on the floor of my bathroom for 2 days. I am mentally and 
physically afflicted with disabilities and am treated for diabetes and prostate 
complications too. I have worked as a professional all my working life but have 
been unable to work since early 2020 

8 15/08/2022 12:40 PM 
ID: 197580128  

Impaired hearing 

9 15/08/2022 12:47 PM 
ID: 197580688  

Deafness 
Lack of ability to balance leading to falls 

10 15/08/2022 13:56 PM 
ID: 197584956  

none of your business 

11 15/08/2022 13:58 PM 
ID: 197584777  

Very slight fatigue, either due to IBS or side effects of hypertension drugs. 

12 15/08/2022 14:28 PM 
ID: 197588125  

Physical disability 

13 15/08/2022 14:46 PM 
ID: 197590158  

Heart condition. 

14 15/08/2022 16:50 PM 
ID: 197598960  

I am 86, with cancer (undergoing treatment), losing mobility, sight, hearing, 
understanding. No complaints - I feel I have been lucky and have enjoyed a good 
life. I just wish we had options for assisted dying, so we could exit when we've 
had enough - no wish to be a burden to myself, or the community. 

15 15/08/2022 17:08 PM 
ID: 197601404  

Age  

16 15/08/2022 17:54 PM 
ID: 197604595  

arthritis painful joints in hands knees  

Page 97



23. Are your day to day activities limited because of a health problem or disability 
which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more?  

17 16/08/2022 11:12 AM 
ID: 197634486  

Severe RA- struggle to complete daily tasks sometimes.  

18 16/08/2022 11:56 AM 
ID: 197636745  

Parkinson's 

19 16/08/2022 16:41 PM 
ID: 197664373  

Caring for my wife. 

20 19/08/2022 08:01 AM 
ID: 197891694  

I have learnt over the years to live with my disability, so that it rarely impacts on 
my life. However, both it and my post as Head of Inclusion at a large school in 
Reading, make me very aware of the issues being highlighted in this document. 

21 19/08/2022 18:33 PM 
ID: 197940528  

Arthritis.  

22 25/08/2022 11:40 AM 
ID: 198262512  

but occasional anxiety!  

23 27/08/2022 12:39 PM 
ID: 198373658  

Rheumatoid Arthritis, with mobility problems. 

24 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

why do you want to know? 

25 30/08/2022 13:43 PM 
ID: 198479475  

Chronic illness (ME/CFS) Wheelchair user when out and about  

26 30/08/2022 22:14 PM 
ID: 198515432  

I have at least two friends who are "wheelchair bound." 

27 03/09/2022 10:23 AM 
ID: 198730467  

Slight mobility issues 

28 06/09/2022 10:49 AM 
ID: 198867351  

Age mainly. 

29 09/09/2022 12:56 PM 
ID: 199120340  

Restricted eyesight (Glaucoma) 

30 09/09/2022 13:45 PM 
ID: 199123549  

Mobility impaired. 

31 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

I SUFFER FEQUENT PANIC ATTACKS ,TYPE TWO DIABETESE, AND 
DIABETIC NERVE DAMAGE PERIFERAL NEUROPHATHY. DIABETIC EYE 
DAMAGE. 

32 12/09/2022 09:26 AM 
ID: 199207710  

Heart failure  

33 12/09/2022 15:05 PM 
ID: 199237223  

breathing and therefore walking difficulties 

34 15/09/2022 19:09 PM 
ID: 199522064  

Alzheimer's, arthritis 

35 30/09/2022 17:32 PM 
ID: 200493710  

Immunocompromised 

 

 
9. Anything else?  
  
 

Page 98



24. If you have any additional comments you would like to make, please provide them 
in the comment box below.  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Open-Ended Question 100.00% 51 

1 08/08/2022 19:59 PM 
ID: 197216222  

What a colossal waste of time and resources.  

2 08/08/2022 20:57 PM 
ID: 197218796  

Need a caring organised council that answers questions rapidly 

3 09/08/2022 09:08 AM 
ID: 197233169  

Please reconsider this daft policy. Add up the salaries and time taken and tell the 
public - then ask them if they think it is worth it 

4 09/08/2022 11:26 AM 
ID: 197242453  

There have been lots of surveys at various levels asking locals on their views. I 
think in view of the present economic situation the council really need to be clear 
about what is can and cannot do over next few years.  

5 09/08/2022 17:08 PM 
ID: 197269601  

The policy and training needs to be regularly refreshed. 

6 10/08/2022 13:21 PM 
ID: 197314382  

First survey I have seen for sometime. Obviously after Covid SODC needs to look 
at itself - probably fully amalgamate with the Vale. Will not be popular with many 
but so weak is SODC on sports planning, CIL use and other matters it might as 
well do so. 

7 10/08/2022 13:50 PM 
ID: 197271754  

None 

8 12/08/2022 14:03 PM 
ID: 197310257  

see point 18 

9 12/08/2022 14:18 PM 
ID: 197475500  

Get an expert in Equality Law to draft your strategy. It will save you money in the 
long run.  

10 12/08/2022 22:07 PM 
ID: 197498294  

Please make this policy a sensible one, not virtue signalling. Build in 
measurement so it delivers something 

11 13/08/2022 14:30 PM 
ID: 197515837  

I welcome the council's commitment to welcoming diversity in all our communities 
and taking measures to optimise participation and inclusiveness. 

12 14/08/2022 14:38 PM 
ID: 197540488  

It is vital that the council does not focus on marginal activities and focuses on its 
core obligations. 

13 15/08/2022 01:59 AM 
ID: 197445832  

A powerful Strategy that may sometimes be challenging to achieve but 
conscientiousness by all will lead to a satisfying result. 

14 15/08/2022 10:24 AM 
ID: 197569460  

Your proposed policy is a waste of time and money. Stick to what you are 
required to provide - and improve your planning policies. Your abandonment of 
Oxfordshire 2050 will be open season for development by appeal. 

15 15/08/2022 12:36 PM 
ID: 197579664  

The Council is constantly complaining about under funding and imposing 
maximum tax increases on residents. When basic services are not being provided 
at all or to a minimal standard this additional expenditure cannot be justified. Post 
relating to E&D should be removed along with training and time taken from other 
roles to follow the policy. I strongly object to council tax being spent on E&D. 

16 15/08/2022 12:36 PM 
ID: 197580021  

We live in a lovely part of the world but accessibility is still a problem for 
wheelchair users and those with mobility problems.  

17 15/08/2022 13:03 PM 
ID: 197581563  

At this unprecedented time of economic crises to receive a questionnaire on this 
matter is pure comedy. Wake up! 

18 15/08/2022 13:41 PM 
ID: 197585444  

Don't assume people want to download  

19 15/08/2022 13:58 PM 
ID: 197584777  

No 

Page 99



24. If you have any additional comments you would like to make, please provide them 
in the comment box below.  

20 15/08/2022 14:46 PM 
ID: 197590158  

Ethnic groupings used in the UK do not permit those with Australian Aborigine or 
New Zealand / Pacific native ancestry to answer. The ethnic groupings are not 
white, Asian or black. They are Polynesian or Melanesian. 

21 15/08/2022 15:52 PM 
ID: 197592845  

I hope my answers help you with yet another stupid exercise  

22 15/08/2022 17:08 PM 
ID: 197601404  

As an older person I feel annexed by the constant demands to use apps  

23 15/08/2022 17:54 PM 
ID: 197604595  

no 

24 15/08/2022 20:21 PM 
ID: 197610894  

N/A 

25 15/08/2022 21:42 PM 
ID: 197613265  

Please don't confuse the 'diversity' agenda which has been hijacked by certain 
lobby groups with the very real needs of some people who have great difficulty 
accessing services. These have been deliberately conflated too often and risk not 
focussing on the people that need the most assistance 

26 16/08/2022 07:31 AM 
ID: 197620624  

The majority of people I know would vote for lower local taxes. The district council 
element may not be a majority share but people don't pay close attention. This 
policy will be used by many to say that Liberal Democrats waste public money. I 
am sure you know this. 

27 16/08/2022 08:13 AM 
ID: 197622006  

Not sure what EASY READ is. Is it an internet or used with print on paper?  

28 16/08/2022 09:31 AM 
ID: 197625671  

I do resent the tendency to racially categorise in your questions 

29 16/08/2022 12:02 PM 
ID: 197633575  

I think it's great that you are identifying this as a need and actively working with it. 

30 19/08/2022 08:01 AM 
ID: 197891694  

All comments made previously also apply here. 

31 19/08/2022 18:33 PM 
ID: 197940528  

Read the survey.  

32 22/08/2022 08:58 AM 
ID: 198045650  

Response below received via email. 
 
Hello , I am now living and loving it, in Devon, could not stand the traffic and 
house building surrounding Watlington  
 
hope the edge road WILL make a difference 
 
i fought for ANPR from the M40, those big over 7.5 tonnes, coming through 
Watlington, it would pay for itself overnight, you need the edge road and this 
ANPR, to make Waatlington free of all the POLLUTION, NOISE AND TRAFFIC 
JAMS 
 
besst of luck 

33 22/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 198045827  

Response below was received via email.  
 
I have just come out of hospital after a total knee replacement, I am in a lot of pain 
so don't feel up to doing a lot of reading or research into this subject.  
The key to a good strategy as we all know is communication. A lot of elderly 
people live in the Vale especially in North Hinksey (Botley) I am a Parish 
Councillor so I know a lot of people in the area. Most elderly people do not know 
how to use a computer, so it is important that contact details for the Vale need to 
be in a paper format that can be posted to residents. A lot of people find it difficult 
to go to the library, there are steep hills all around so it is not easy for them. 
 
I am a wheelchair user and recently I have had to give up on going out after I was 
nearly tipped out of my seat after my wheels came to grief with a massive pothole. 

Page 100



24. If you have any additional comments you would like to make, please provide them 
in the comment box below.  

Both the roads and footpaths are in a terrible state. The inclusion Strategy says 
that people should feel included and supported, well I do not feel that I am, I have 
not been able to go out for some time and have missed quite a few important 
events. I feel totally excluded. 

34 25/08/2022 11:40 AM 
ID: 198262512  

(Ref. previous comment boxes). 

35 27/08/2022 10:41 AM 
ID: 198370630  

Just let me know when you start offering facilities and services which the Hindu 
community can start to benefit from. Hopefully this won't take long if you plan and 
implement your diversity strategy well. 

36 30/08/2022 11:05 AM 
ID: 198465749  

Is there any evaluation of the policy planned? 

37 30/08/2022 22:14 PM 
ID: 198515432  

Training should include interfacing(!) with many different types of people! 

38 03/09/2022 10:23 AM 
ID: 198730467  

I note that LGBTQ+ wasn’t mentioned. Homophobia and transphobia often read 
their ugly heads in our area. 

39 06/09/2022 09:36 AM 
ID: 198859442  

By asking me my age, ethnicity, and state of health you have already 
discriminated against me by attempting to label me. As such you are diminishing 
my value as an individual. The Diversity and Inclusion Strategy fails right here.  

40 06/09/2022 18:35 PM 
ID: 198907612  

Get off the woke bandwagon and deliver services that we need! Create a place 
where people feel pride to live - paint park fences, pick up litter, stop Thames 
water from dumping sewerage in the Thames, start recycling hubs, think 
creatively about library events, upgrade outdoor pools - the list is endless!!! 

41 09/09/2022 12:35 PM 
ID: 199118894  

None. 

42 09/09/2022 12:51 PM 
ID: 199120363  

Do something 

43 09/09/2022 13:45 PM 
ID: 199123549  

There is a need to be practical and not just ideological! 

44 09/09/2022 14:42 PM 
ID: 199127684  

I feel Councils should listen to the people more, after all they are the ones that 
elect the councillors and now we seem to be in the age of eco friendly resources 
not everyone can walk or cycle which our existing Councillors seem to think we 
can all do. We still live in the age of the car and from a business point of view 
should not be shutting Oxford down. Oxford City Council seems to want to take us 
back to the Horse and Cart if so perhaps we should bring back the trams.  

45 09/09/2022 17:53 PM 
ID: 199139729  

The younger generation will have more knowledge and understanding please do 
not try to have to many organisations and committees  

46 09/09/2022 19:51 PM 
ID: 199143763  

this shoudl not be the council's priority- the area generally is nice- it coudl be 
better. please focus on making the area generally better and then the levels of 
trust between people will all lift and you will make the lives of everyone better. 
treating people with respect will not itself make lives better. making places better 
and providing better quicker services would. 

47 10/09/2022 17:20 PM 
ID: 199165987  

ANY DIVERSE COMUNITY HAS MANY ALTERNATIVE MINORITIES 
CONTAINED WITHIN ITS REACH .THE EASIEST WAY TO GET PEOPLE 
INVOLVED IS BY MAKING IT TOTALLY INCLUSIVE ,IF YOU WANT CHANGE 
YOU CAN NOT HAVE THE SAME GROUP INVOLVED IN RUNNING THE 
SCHEME.THIS WOULD BE THE MOST OFF PUTTING SITUATION ,THE 
PARISH COUNCIL ECT CAN NOT BE INVOLVED THIS WOULD JUST 
CONVINCE PEOPLE THAT THIS IS JUST A BIT OF WINDOW DRESSING ITS 
NEEDS SOMETHING NEW IN ITS APPROACH. 

48 10/09/2022 22:11 PM 
ID: 199173256  

Yawn 

49 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

I don't see how this questionnaire with restricted answers does any good. 

Page 101



24. If you have any additional comments you would like to make, please provide them 
in the comment box below.  

50 13/09/2022 11:15 AM 
ID: 199288392  

No further comments. 

51 13/09/2022 22:02 PM 
ID: 199350649  

Redirect resources to front line services - stop wasting time and effort on Diversity 
and Inclusion. 

 

 
answered 51 

skipped 183 

 
10. Page 10  
  
 

25. How did you hear about the Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

Answer Choices 
Response 

Percent 
Response 

Total 

1 Twitter   
 

2.75% 6 

2 Facebook   
 

4.59% 10 

3 Instagram  0.00% 0 

4 Poster  0.00% 0 

5 Newsletter   
 

2.75% 6 

6 Email   
 

76.61% 167 

7 Letter   
 

3.67% 8 

8 Our website   
 

1.38% 3 

9 Another website   
 

0.46% 1 

10 Word of mouth   
 

1.38% 3 

11 Radio/TV  0.00% 0 

12 Read it in the newspaper   
 

1.38% 3 

13 District Council   
 

5.05% 11 

14 Parish Council   
 

5.96% 13 

15 Other (please specify):   
 

1.83% 4 

 
answered 218 

skipped 16 

Other (please specify): (4) 

1 15/08/2022 09:02 AM 
ID: 197562942  

Interesting that the first time I came across this was a post on twitter saying only a 
few days left! And I am interested in local politics (I know, a bit weird…) and use 
electronic Comms in many ways  

2 15/08/2022 12:29 PM 
ID: 197579609  

The email invite to take part in study 

3 06/09/2022 18:35 PM 
ID: 198907612  

Cornerstone  

Page 102



25. How did you hear about the Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy?  

4 12/09/2022 15:45 PM 
ID: 199239589  

Your email 

 

 

Page 103



 
 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Vicky Johnson 

Telephone: 01235 422481 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422481 

E-mail: Vicky.johnson@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Andrew Crawford 

Tel: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET on 2 December 2022 

To: COUNCIL on 7 December 2022 

 

 

Council tax base 2023/24 

Recommendations 

That Cabinet recommends Council to: 
 

(a) Approve the report of the head of finance for the calculation of the council’s tax 
base and the calculation of the tax base for each parish area for 2023/24. 

 
(b) Agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 

Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by Vale of White Horse 
District Council as its council tax base for the year 2023/24 is 56,664.9. 

 
(c) Agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 

Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by Vale of White Horse 
District Council as the council tax base for the year 2023/24 for each parish be the 
amount shown against the name of that parish in Appendix A of the report of the 
head of finance to Cabinet on 2 December 2022 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to ask Cabinet to recommend the council tax base for 
2023/24 to Council for approval. 

Corporate Objectives  

2. The calculation of the tax base is a legal requirement and an essential part of the tax 
setting process which helps to achieve the council’s corporate objectives. 

Page 104

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Vicky.johnson@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 
 

Background 

3. Before the council tax can be set by the council, a calculation has to be made of the 
council tax base, which is an estimate of the taxable resources for the district as a 
whole and for each parish area.   

4. The council tax base for the district has to be notified to Oxfordshire County Council 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley by 31 January 2023.  Each 
parish and town council is also notified of the figure for its area. 

5. The legislation requires that the council tax base is approved by full council or a non-
executive body with delegated powers.  No such delegation exists, so cabinet is 
therefore asked to recommend to council the schedule set out in Appendix A as the 
council tax base for the district as a whole and for each parish area. 

Options - Calculation of the tax base 

6. The starting point for the calculation is the total number of dwellings and their council 
tax band.  

7. The council then allows for the following information, for each band: 

(a) dwellings which will be entirely exempt, so no tax is payable (e.g. those occupied 
entirely by students) 

 
(b) dwellings which will attract a 25 per cent reduction (e.g. those with a single adult 

occupier) 
 
(c) dwellings which will attract a 50 per cent reduction (e.g. those where all the adult 

residents qualify for a reduction) 
 
(d) dwellings which will be treated as being in a lower band because they have been 

adapted for a severely disabled person.  The regulations provide methodology to 
take account of the reduction available to those in band A dwellings 

 
(e) dwellings which will be on the valuation list, but which attract discounts or 

disablement relief or are exempt, for only part of the year 
 
8. Each band is then converted into "band D equivalents" by applying the factor laid down 

by legislation.  For example, a band A dwelling is equal to 2/3 of a band D dwelling and 
is therefore multiplied by 2/3 to arrive at the band D equivalent figure, whilst a band H 
dwelling is equal to twice a Band D dwelling and is therefore multiplied by two to arrive 
at the Band D equivalent figure.  All these are then added together to give a total of 
band D equivalents.  

9. A final adjustment is required to allow for non-collection.  The council is required to 
decide what its collection rate is likely to be and apply this to its council tax base.  For 
the 2022/23 tax the council assumed 98 per cent would eventually be collected and it is 
proposed to use 98 per cent again in 2023/24.   

 

Page 105



 
 

Taxbase for 2023/24 

10. Based on the assumptions detailed above, the council tax base for 2023/24 is 56,664.9 

11. Similar calculations are required for each parish in order to calculate the proportion of 
the district's tax base which relates to its area.  A schedule of the tax base for each 
parish is set out in Appendix A. This includes a parish split (Harwell) from 1 April 2023, 
with the forming of a new parish, referred to within Appendix A as Harwell East. All 
dwellings within the new Harwell East boundary will be transferring from the existing 
Harwell parish.   

12. To calculate the council tax amounts payable per property band for the council, its 
council tax requirement (i.e. the amount of council tax to be raised) is divided by the 
Band D equivalent (tax base).  This will be finalised during January and February, 
culminating in the council tax being set by council on 15 February 2023 (this date is 
subject to the council being notified of the major precepting authorities’ council tax 
requirements).  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

13. There are no direct climate and ecological implications arising from this report 

Financial Implications 

14. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2022 showed that the council was able to set a balanced budget for 2022/23, but that 
there is expected to be a budget gap in future years.  

 
15. This future funding gap is predicted to increase to over £3.7 million by 2026/27. As 

there remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could 
increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisant of the need to 
address this funding gap in future years. 

 
16. The financial implications and calculations for the tax base are set out in the body of 

the report. 

Legal Implications 

17. These are set out in the body of the report. 

Risks 

18. The council’s methodology for calculating the tax base involves basing the calculation 
on actual dwellings at a certain point in time, rather than forecasting on potential new 
dwellings that may be built in the future.  Because of this the risk exposure is 
considered to be low. 

 

Page 106



 
 

Other Implications 

19.  n/a 

Conclusion 
 
20. As covered above, the calculation of the tax base is a legal requirement and it is asked 

that Cabinet recommends the council tax base for 2023/24 to Council for approval in 
accordance with Appendix A. 

 

Background Papers 

None 
 
 

Page 107



 

APPENDIX A 

 

PARISH COUNCIL TAX BASES - 2023-24

PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL NUMBER NUMBER PARISH PARISH ACTUAL%

OF OF TAX TAX CHANGECHANGE

DWELLINGS DWELLINGS BASE BASE ON YEARON YEAR

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

ABINGDON 15,035            14989 12,467.9         12,384.5 0.67%

APPLEFORD 146                 147 163.8              165.6     -1.09%

APPLETON WITH EATON 403                 402 457.9              459.3     -0.30%

ARDINGTON AND LOCKINGE 228                 223 229.8              222.7     3.19%

ASHBURY 259                 259 274.3              276.7     -0.87%

BAULKING 42                   40 49.9                48.6       2.67%

BESSELSLEIGH 66                   47 78.1                54.8       42.52%

BLEWBURY 813                 814 745.0              747.2     -0.29%

BOURTON 138                 138 151.0              152.0     -0.66%

BUCKLAND 266                 265 337.3              335.8     0.45%

BUSCOT 87                   87 86.0                87.8       -2.05%

CHARNEY BASSETT 127                 126 153.7              152.7     0.65%

CHILDREY 228                 228 240.6              240.6     0.00%

CHILTON 673                 674 692.5              693.5     -0.14%

COLESHILL 74                   73 68.1                68.2       -0.15%

COMPTON BEAUCHAMP 31                   30 39.4                38.5       2.34%

CUMNOR 2,833              2811 3,020.3           3,011.6  0.29%

DENCHWORTH 84                   82 88.8                85.3       4.10%

DRAYTON 1,274              1271 1,209.0           1,199.1  0.83%

EAST CHALLOW 502                 438 435.4              374.8     16.17%

EAST HANNEY 544                 523 598.7              576.0     3.94%

EAST HENDRED 607                 606 630.0              627.3     0.43%

EATON HASTINGS 35                   35 34.8                34.6       0.58%

FARINGDON 3,935              3846 3,208.8           3,131.3  2.48%

FERNHAM 103                 102 122.9              117.2     4.86%

FRILFORD 102                 100 141.6              139.1     1.80%

FYFIELD AND TUBNEY 201                 202 247.7              242.7     2.06%

GARFORD 70                   70 83.4                82.6       0.97%

GOOSEY 57                   57 66.9                66.4       0.75%

GREAT COXWELL 164                 160 195.8              189.9     3.11%

GROVE 3,835              3672 3,249.1           3,096.8  4.92%

HARWELL (*) 1,396              2241 1,347.8           2,033.6  -33.72%

HARWELL EAST(*) 889                 0 743.6              N/A N/A

HATFORD 38                   37 47.9                46.5       3.01%

HINTON WALDRIST 153                 153 157.0              154.3     1.75%

KENNINGTON 1,784              1780 1,725.6           1,714.0  0.68%

KINGSTON BAGPUIZE AND SOUTHMOOR 1,746              1656 1,766.8           1,674.5  5.51%

KINGSTON LISLE 112                 112 117.5              120.1     -2.16%

LETCOMBE BASSETT 79                   79 93.4                93.8       -0.43%

LETCOMBE REGIS 386                 386 362.1              361.5     0.17%

LITTLE COXWELL 70                   70 81.6                80.8       0.99%

LITTLEWORTH 97                   97 123.5              122.0     1.23%

LONGCOT 241                 237 251.0              243.0     3.29%

LONGWORTH 250                 248 285.8              281.3     1.60%

LYFORD 23                   23 25.8                26.0       -0.77%

MARCHAM 946                 935 931.4              931.4     0.00%

MILTON 710                 660 691.5              628.9     9.95%

NORTH HINKSEY 2,599              2331 2,168.7           1,975.1  9.80%

PUSEY 30                   29 40.4                38.7       4.39%

RADLEY 1,118              1059 1,002.2           937.7     6.88%

ST HELEN WITHOUT 856                 852 834.6              850.3     -1.85%

SHELLINGFORD 87                   87 84.3                85.4       -1.29%

SHRIVENHAM 1,468              1364 1,444.1           1,361.8  6.04%

SOUTH HINKSEY 173                 176 199.9              202.9     -1.48%

SPARSHOLT 140                 140 154.5              155.8     -0.83%

STANFORD IN THE VALE 1,109              1045 1,024.2           969.1     5.69%

STEVENTON 932                 933 883.0              878.3     0.54%

SUNNINGWELL 385                 384 451.8              453.3     -0.33%

SUTTON COURTENAY 1,285              1281 1,215.9           1,212.3  0.30%

UFFINGTON 365                 365 370.2              364.9     1.45%

UPTON 184                 181 225.8              214.1     5.46%

WANTAGE 6,215              6049 5,281.8           5,087.3  3.82%

WATCHFIELD 1,139              1128 1,035.0           1,033.6  0.14%

WEST CHALLOW 99                   97 111.2              110.4     0.72%

WEST HANNEY 261                 260 303.4              302.1     0.43%

WEST HENDRED 150                 149 166.4              166.3     0.06%

WOOLSTONE 62                   62 78.6                78.3       0.38%

WOOTTON 1,199              1199 1,182.4           1,185.0  -0.22%

WYTHAM 73                   73 85.7                85.2       0.59%

TOTAL 61,811            60,475            56,664.9         55,362.8 2.35%

(% Change on year) 2.21% 2.35%

(*) Boundary change - Harwell East is a newly created parish (split from Harwell Parish), with all properties previously

falling within Harwell Parish. Please note, the Parish name for Harwell East is likely to be subject to change

Page 108



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Policy and Programmes 

Author: Emma Baker 

Telephone: 01235 422422 

E-mail: emma.baker@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Debby Hallett 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 2 December 2022 

 

 

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 ceasing 

production and implications for the Joint 

Local Plan and Local Development 

Scheme 

Recommendations 

That Cabinet: 
 
(a) Formally note the cessation of work on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050. 
  
(b) Approve the updated Joint Local Development Scheme (December 2022) attached 

at Appendix 1. 
 
(c) Subject to recommendation (b), authorise the Head of Policy and Programmes in 

consultation with the Cabinet member for Planning, to make any updates to the 
Joint Local Development Scheme. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To provide an update on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, noting that that the production of 
the Oxfordshire Plan has ceased, and that as a result, the emerging Oxfordshire Plan 
will not form part of the development plan for Vale of White Horse.  

2. As a consequence the Local Development Scheme (LDS), which sets out what the 
development plan consists of and contains the timetable for the production of new 
development plan documents, needs updating. The proposed changes are made in 

Page 109

Agenda Item 9

mailto:emma.baker@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


the updated Joint Local Development Scheme (December 2022), included at 
Appendix 1.  

Corporate Objectives  

3. Tackling the Climate Emergency – the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 would have included a 
strategic policies on zero carbon targets, mitigating and adapting to climate change, 
enhancing biodiversity, circular economy, nature recovery, air quality and active 
travel. These policies will now be developed at a local level through the Joint Local 
Plan and neighbourhood plans.  

4. Building healthy communities – the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 would have included 
strategic policies including economic recovery of centres, nature recovery, connected 
communities with sustainable transport and green infrastructure. These policies will 
now be developed at a local level through the Joint Local Plan and neighbourhood 
plans.  

5. Providing the homes people need – the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 would have included 
strategic policies setting the housing requirement to 2050, and the broad locations for 
strategic scale development in Oxfordshire. To establish the housing need, an 
Oxfordshire Growth Needs Assessment was in development to inform decision 
making in the Oxfordshire Plan. This project was not completed. The evidence will 
now be developed at a local level, and policies to address homes and infrastructure 
that meet local need will be developed through the Joint Local Plan and 
neighbourhood plans.  

Background 

6. The council had previously authorised our participation in the development of the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 alongside other districts.  

7. At a Council meeting of 14 February 2018, it was agreed: 

to participate in the preparation of a Joint Statutory Spatial Plan (the previous name 
for the Oxfordshire Plan) for Oxfordshire in accordance with the timescales set out in 
the Delivery Plan and in accordance with Section 28 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004, the milestones for progressing the JSSP being contingent on 
Government delivering the Planning Freedoms and Flexibilities as described in the 
Delivery Plan; and  

agree that commencement of work to support and deliver the JSSP is subject to 
Cabinet being satisfied that the conditions set out at Appendix 4 of the report of the 
head of partnership and insight to Cabinet on 9 February 2018 have been met.   

8. At a Cabinet meeting of 28 September 2018: 

a Local Development Scheme (LDS) was approved for the Joint Statutory Spatial 
Plan. 

 
9. Between late 2018 and summer 2022, work took place to develop the Joint Statutory 

Spatial Plan (later re-named the Oxfordshire Plan 2050). This included establishing a 
core team of officers who were mostly seconded from the local authorities, 
commissioning evidence studies on strategic planning matters, and holding two public 

Page 110



consultations (Introducing the Oxfordshire Plan - February 2019, and the Oxfordshire 
Plan Regulation 18 (Part 2) Consultation - July 2021). The work was overseen by a 
Member Advisory Group made up of a councillor from each authority, which reported 
progress at Future Oxfordshire Partnership meetings.  

10. The next planned step was to have a further Oxfordshire Plan Regulation 18 (Part 3) 
consultation in autumn 2022, which would have preferred options for housing need 
and broad locations for development. 

11. On 3 August 2022 all District and City leaders of the Oxfordshire Councils agreed that 
they were unable to reach agreement on the approach to planning for future housing 
needs within the framework of the Oxfordshire Plan. This meant that the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050 work programme ended, and we have commenced our transition to a 
process focused on Local Plans. This was confirmed in a Joint Statement published 
on each Council’s website as follows: 

Joint statement from the leaders of South Oxfordshire District Council, Vale of 
White Horse District Council, Cherwell District Council, Oxford City Council, and 
West Oxfordshire District Council 
 
“The five Local Planning authorities in Oxfordshire have been working together on a 
joint plan for Oxfordshire to 2050. It is with regret that we were unable to reach 
agreement on the approach to planning for future housing needs within the 
framework of the Oxfordshire Plan.  
 
Local Plans for the City and Districts will now provide the framework for the long 
term planning of Oxfordshire.  The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 work programme will end 
and we will now transition to a process focused on Local Plans.  The issues of 
housing needs will now be addressed through individual Local Plans for each of the 
City and Districts.  The Councils will cooperate with each other and with other key 
bodies as they prepare their Local Plans.”   

 
12. The process of preparing a submission version consultation (a Regulation 19 version) 

of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, and submitting that plan for an examination, will no 
longer be progressed, and no further Council scrutiny and approval for the 
Oxfordshire Plan will be progressed.  

13. A key implication of the decision to stop progress on the Oxfordshire Plan is that the 
Joint Local Plan timetable will need to be reconsidered. Some of the important pieces 
of evidence that were being prepared with the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 such as the 
evidence on housing need and employment need, will now need to be commissioned 
and prepared by us. The Oxfordshire Plan ‘call for ideas’ submissions will need to be 
incorporated into the Joint Local Plan’s Housing and Economic Land Availability 
Assessment. This means that additional time is required for the procurement and 
development of evidence at a local level and involve members through steering group 
and roundtable sessions before the next consultation can take place. 

14. Our current Local Development Scheme was approved in May 2022. It included the 
Oxfordshire Plan preparation timetable within it, as well as the Ox-Cam Arc Spatial 
Framework timetable, which appears to be on hold. When we last updated our LDS in 
May 2022, the latest version of the separate Oxfordshire Plan LDS was the 15 June 
2021 version, therefore our current LDS included that timetable. 

Page 111



15. The Local Development Scheme needed to be revised to remove references to the 
Oxfordshire Plan and the Arc Spatial Framework and their timetables. Since the last 
LDS was approved there have also been other changes such as new made 
Neighbourhood Plans or progress on Neighbourhood Plans, and these parts of the 
LDS need to be kept up to date. For completeness the Conservation Area Character 
Appraisal SPDs have been added to the Supplementary Planning Document list. The 
proposed changes are made in the updated Joint Local Development Scheme 
(December 2022), included at Appendix 1.  

16. On the Joint Local Plan timetable, to allow for new studies to be commissioned and 
progressed and to take account of the local election period, the planned early 2023 
Regulation 18 consultation on the Joint Local Plan is recommended for 
August/September 2023 instead. Submission of the Joint Local Plan is now 
recommended for January 2025 rather than January 2024, and adoption of the Joint 
Local Plan is recommended for September 2025 rather than October 2024. In total 
this is an extension of the LDS timetable for the Joint Local Plan of 11 months.  

Options 

17. There are no other options to ceasing production of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050. The 
cessation of work in August 2022 was a unanimous decision of the district and city 
councils in Oxfordshire, as set out in the joint statement (paragraph 12 above). All 
partners have ceased their participation in its development.  

18. There is a ‘do-nothing’ option for the LDS approval, because the LDS update can be 
rejected and not approved. We are legally required to have a LDS (see Legal 
Implications at paragraph 28 below) but the do-nothing option could be a rejection of 
Appendix 1 in favour of sticking with the out-of-date timetable that is published on the 
Council’s website (not recommended). 

19. There is an alternative option of approving an LDS with a different timetable for the 
production of the Joint Local Plan. This is not recommended because the proposed 
timetable reflects the work that needs to be carried out resulting from the end of the 
Oxfordshire Plan before the next public consultation can take place. This work 
includes commissioning some new evidence and developing preferred policy options. 
The revised timetable takes account of all likely influences on the timetable (like 
elections) to the best of our current knowledge.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

20. Addressing climate change was a core theme of the emerging Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
and we had much influence over the development of that as a strong, central part of 
the plan, as shown for example in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Regulation 18 Part 2 
consultation document. However, the scope in the Joint Local Plan to shape and 
develop policies which are leading the way nationally on climate and ecological action 
is even stronger under the Joint Local Plan.  

21. Cross-boundary work on climate and biodiversity will continue, including through the 
Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s Environment Advisory Group, the Local Nature 
Partnership for Oxfordshire, and the responsibilities for the County Council arising 
from the Environment Act to draw up a Local Nature Recovery Strategy and a 
mapped Nature Recovery Network. On climate action, joint work is already underway 
to develop the Pathways to a Net Zero Carbon Oxfordshire work. Although strategic 

Page 112



planning policies will not be developed to achieve policy consistency across 
Oxfordshire, this is offset by the opportunity to create policies for the district that 
mesh with the corporate plan. There are therefore no significant implications of the 
decision to cease the Oxfordshire Plan production.  

22. There are no climate or ecological implications resulting from the changes to the LDS.  

Financial Implications 

23. The council has already set aside funding to cover the costs of preparing the Joint 
Local Plan (so too have South Oxfordshire Council), and for consulting on it at key 
stages. No additional funding is envisaged to support the recommendations.  

24. There will also be some additional financial costs because we now need to 
commission new studies to support the Joint Local Plan, to replace studies that were 
being done Oxfordshire-wide for the Oxfordshire Plan. However, it was looking likely 
that districts would asked to contribute funding for some remaining Oxfordshire Plan 
studies, a cost which will no longer be required.   

25. We also have avoided the risk of any abortive costs on evidence that may not have 
been agreed by all Districts if the Oxfordshire Plan had been continued.  

26. The decision to add an 11 month longer timescale for the production of the Joint 
Local Plan will increase staffing costs associated with the plan. This is because the 
planning policy team will continue to work on the Joint Local Plan project for longer, 
which will mean that other smaller projects need to wait until the Joint Plan is adopted 
(an opportunity cost).  

27. This is balanced against the savings of staff and councillor time from not having a 
heavy commitment of Oxfordshire Plan work. The return of planning policy team 
members from their secondments to the Oxfordshire Plan core team is welcomed. 
These were staffing costs that had not been reimbursed since the end of March 2021. 

Legal Implications 

28. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) requires local 
planning authorities to produce a local plan for their area. The Local Development 
Scheme sets out the timetable for the production of that Local Plan (the Joint Local 
Plan). 

29. Legal support and advice have been received where required to inform the progress 
of both the Oxfordshire Plan and the Joint Local Plan. 

Risks 

30. We are preparing a Joint Local Plan with South Oxfordshire District Council, and an 
accompanying Joint Local Development Scheme. As one of two cabinets considering 
the revisions to the LDS for approval (South Cabinet is Thursday 1 December), there 
is a risk that South’s Cabinet does not approve the LDS. If so, this would require 
further discussions between the Head of Service and Cabinet Members to resolve 
any outstanding issues. This is considered a low and manageable risk.  

Page 113



31. There is no clarity yet about the timing of a potential general election in 2024, which 
could impact on the delivery of the Joint Local Plan timetable. This could either cause 
a delay, or more positively, provide the opportunity for the Regulation 19 consultation 
to be brought forward. This depends on the timing of the general election and the 
progress of the Plan.  

Other implications 

32. The government could make reforms to the planning system, through the Levelling-up 
and Regeneration Bill (currently at the report stage in the House of Commons) and 
also through changes to national policy, including amendments to the National 
Planning Policy Framework. These include possible changes to the way local plans 
are produced, and their scope. If that happens there is a risk of needing further 
updates to the LDS. Until we know what these changes are, we would not advise any 
specific contingency measures, however officers will monitor this and will keep 
councillors briefed. 

Conclusion 

33. The decision to stop the production of the Oxfordshire Plan does not impact on our 
ability to achieve any relevant corporate plan objectives because we can prepare 
policy at the local level. The new Local Development Scheme provides an important 
update for the public and stakeholders on how and when the Council will develop 
policy in a post-Oxfordshire Plan era.  

 

Background Papers 

None 

Page 114



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Development Scheme 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
DECEMBER 2022 

(Draft for Cabinets) Page 115



2 
 

What is the Local Development Scheme? 
 

1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended by the Localism 
Act 2011) requires local planning authorities to prepare, maintain and publish a 
Local Development Scheme (LDS). 

 
2 The LDS sets out the timetable to produce the Development Plan Documents 

(DPDs), including key production and public consultation stages. It must be made 
available publicly and be kept up to date. This enables the community, businesses, 
developers, service and infrastructure providers and other interested organisations 
to know which DPDs are to be prepared for the area and when they are able to 
participate in their preparation1. 

 

3 This LDS updates the previous Local Development Scheme published in May 2022 
by South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council. It 
is a joint LDS that covers South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District 
Councils. It provides information about the Development Plans and other Planning 
Policy documents the Councils plan to prepare. 

 
4 Authority Monitoring Reports produced by both Councils annually, monitor and 

review the implementation of the LDS. 
 

5 Whilst not a formal requirement, for ease of reference the LDS also includes 
information about the main supporting and procedural documents that do or will 
accompany the Joint Local Plan. 

 

Background to Local Planning Documents 
 

6 The development plan for South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse consists of a 
range of documents which guide development within the districts. The statutory 
Development Plan is the set of DPDs and Neighbourhood Development Plans that 
together form the statutory basis for determining planning applications for the 
Councils. Key elements of the Development Plan are: 

 

• Local Plans – Local Plans detail the planning strategies for development 
within the districts. This includes strategic and non-strategic policies to 
address the district’s priorities for the development and use of land in its area, 
usually including the allocation of land for development, such as housing or 

 
 
 

1 Public consultations will continue to be advertised and stakeholders notified when important 
documents are published for public consultation, in accordance with our published Statement of 
Community Involvement which is available here: https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-
horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/statement-of-
community-involvement/  

 

Page 116

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/statement-of-community-involvement/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/statement-of-community-involvement/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/statement-of-community-involvement/


3 
 

employment and open spaces. These policies must be in general conformity 
with government guidance, in particular the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). 

• Minerals and Waste Local Plans - in areas that have County and District 
Councils, the County Council has the responsibility for producing Minerals 
and Waste Local Plans - such as is the case for Oxfordshire. 

 

• Neighbourhood Development Plans (NDP) are community-led plans for 
guiding future development and growth of a local area. Whilst they are not 
compulsory, once duly prepared and once they legally come into force, they 
become a statutory document that form part of the Development Plan. 
NDPs must be in general conformity with the strategic policies contained in 
any Local Plan that covers their area. NDPs are prepared by qualifying 
bodies (parish or town councils in parished areas and neighbourhood 
forums in non-parished areas). They are prepared to a timescale that is set 
by the qualifying body, not the Councils, and therefore the timetable for their 
preparation is not contained within this LDS. 
 

The Statutory Development Plan – South Oxfordshire 
 

7 The current Development Plan for South Oxfordshire comprises: 
 

Name of DPD Date 
Adopted 

Under Review 

South Oxfordshire Local 
Plan 2035 

December 
2020 

Yes – the Joint Local Plan with Vale 
of White Horse District Council will 
eventually supersede this Plan 

Oxfordshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan 2031 Part 
1: Core Strategy2

 

September 
2017 

No – although Oxfordshire Minerals 
and Waste Local Plan Part 2: Site 
Allocations is currently being drafted. 
The timetable for the Minerals and 
Waste Local Plans is set by the 
County Council and can be obtained 
from their website3

 

 
 
 
2 h ttps://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/minerals-and-waste-core-strategy 
3 https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-
policy/site-allocations-document#paragraph-638  

Page 117

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/minerals-and-waste-core-strategy
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-policy/new-minerals-and-waste-plan#paragraph-638
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-policy/new-minerals-and-waste-plan#paragraph-638


4 
 

Saved policies from the 
Oxfordshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan 

July 1996 Yes – this will eventually be replaced 
by the new Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan that is being prepared in two 
parts: Core Strategy and Site 
Allocations. The Core Strategy was 
adopted on 12 September 2017, and 
Part 2: Site Allocations is currently 
being drafted 

The Baldons Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 

October 
2018 

No 

Benson Neighbourhood Plan August 
2018 

Yes - Statutory pre-submission 
consultation on the draft plan ended 
on 20 June 2022. The NDP review 
was submitted 7 October 2022 

Berrick Salome 
Neighbourhood Plan 

December 
2019 

No 

Brightwell cum Sotwell 
Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 

October 
2017 

Yes – NDO review was submitted on 
22 November 2022 

Chalgrove Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 

December 
2018 

Yes – Plan review preparation stage 

Chinnor Neighbourhood Plan 
  (First Made October 2017) 

May 
2021 

No 

Cholsey Neighbourhood 
Plan (First Made April 
2019) 

October 
2022 

No 

Crowmarsh 
Neighbourhood Plan 

October 
2021 

No 

Cuddesdon and 
Denton 
Neighbourhood Plan 

May 2021 No 

Dorchester on Thames 
Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 

April 2018 No 

East Hagbourne 
Neighbourhood Plan 

April 2019 Yes – Plan review preparation stage 

Ewelme 
Neighbourhood Plan 

May 2021 No 

Goring Neighbourhood Plan July 2019 No 

Joint Henley and Harpsden 
Neighbourhood Plan 

April 2016 Yes – A referendum took place on 24 
November 2022. The Council is 
expected to consider whether the 
plan should be made at the full 

Page 118



5 
 

Council meeting scheduled for 8 
December 2022.  

Kidmore End 
Neighbourhood Plan 

September 
2022 

No 

Little Milton Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 

December 
2018 

No 

Long Wittenham 
Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 
(First made 
October 2017) 

Septem
ber 
2022 

No 

Pyrton Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 

April 2019 No 

Shiplake 
Neighbourhood Plan 

September 
2022 

No 

Sonning Common 
Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 

October 
2016 

Yes – examination concluded. The 
Council is expected to decide if the 
plan should progress to referendum 
within 5 weeks from publication of 
the examiner’s report 

Sydenham 
Neighbourhood 
Plan 

May 
2021 

No 

Tetsworth Neighbourhood 
Plan 

May 2021 No 

Thame Neighbourhood Plan July 2013 Yes – Plan review preparation stage 

Wallingford Neighbourhood 
Plan 

May 
2021 

No 

Warborough and Shillingford 
Neighbourhood Plan 

October 
2018 

No 

Watlington Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 

August 
2018 

Yes – the parish council have now 
begun a review of the neighbourhood 
plan 

Wheatley Neighbourhood 
Plan 

May 
2021 

Yes – The NDP Review was 
submitted 21 November 2022 

Woodcote Neighbourhood 
Plan (First made May 
2014) 

October 
2022 

No 

 

8 Additionally, a number of Neighbourhood Development Plans are currently 
being prepared in South Oxfordshire. The following parish or town councils are 

Page 119



6 
 

currently preparing their Neighbourhood Development Plans with their 
communities: 

 

• Aston Rowant 

• Beckley and Stowood 

• Berinsfield 

• Binfield Heath  

• Clifton Hampden 

• Culham 

• Eye and Dunsden 

• Garsington 

• Horspath 

• Lewknor 

• Sandford-on-Thames (preparation paused) 

• South Stoke 

• Stanton St John 

• Tiddington with Albury 

• Towersey 

• Whitchurch-on-Thames (preparation paused) 

 
 
 

The Statutory Development Plan – Vale of White Horse 
 

9 The current Development Plan for Vale of White Horse comprises: 
 

Name of DPD Date Adopted Under Review 

Vale of White Horse Local 
Plan 2031 Part 1 

December 
2016 

Yes – A Regulation 10A review for 
Local Plan Part 1 (LPP1) was 
completed in December 20214, 
evaluating LPP1’s policies for their 
consistency with national policy, 
considering current evidence and any 
relevant changes in local 
circumstances. The review shows that 
five years on, LPP1 (together with 
LPP2) continues to provide a suitable 
framework for development in the Vale 
of White Horse that is in overall 
conformity with government policy. The 
Joint Local Plan with South Oxfordshire 

 
 
 
4 https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/12/Local-Plan-Part-1-Review-Dec-2021..pdf  

Page 120

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/12/Local-Plan-Part-1-Review-Dec-2021..pdf


7 
 

District Council will eventually 
supersede this Plan 

Vale of White Horse Local 
Plan 2031 Part 2 

October 2019 Yes – the Joint Local Plan with South 
Oxfordshire District Council will 
eventually supersede this Plan 

Oxfordshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan 2031 
Part 1: Core Strategy 

September 
2017 

No – although Oxfordshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan Part 2: Site 
Allocations is currently being drafted. 
The timetable for the Minerals and 
Waste Local Plans is set by the County 
Council and can be obtained from their 
website5

 

Saved policies from the 
Oxfordshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan 

July 1996 Yes – this will eventually be replaced 
by the new Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan that is being prepared in two parts: 
Core Strategy and Site Allocations. The 
Core Strategy was adopted on 12 
September 2017, and Part 2: Site 
Allocations is currently being drafted 

Appleton with Eaton 
Neighbourhood Plan 

October 2021 No 

Ashbury 
Neighbourhood Plan 

July 2019 No 

Blewbury Neighbourhood 
Plan 

December 
2016 

No 

Chilton Neighbourhood 
Plan 

October 2021 No 

Cumnor Neighbourhood 
Plan 

May 2021 No 

Drayton Neighbourhood 
Plan 

July 2015 No 

Faringdon 
Neighbourhood Plan 

December 
2016 

No 

Great Coxwell 
Neighbourhood Plan 
(first made July 
2015) 

October 2020 No 

Longworth 
Neighbourhood Plan 

October 2016 No 

 
 
 
5 h ttps://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-
policy/new-minerals-and-waste-plan#paragraph-638 
 

Page 121

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-policy/new-minerals-and-waste-plan#paragraph-638
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/planning-policy/minerals-and-waste-policy/new-minerals-and-waste-plan#paragraph-638


8 
 

North Hinksey 
Neighbourhood Plan 

May 2021 No 

Radley Neighbourhood 
Plan 

October 2018 No 

Shrivenham 
Neighbourhood Plan 

May 2021 No 

Uffington and Baulking 
Neighbourhood Plan 

July 2019 No 

West Hanney 
Neighbourhood Plan 

October 2021 No 

Wootton and St Helen 
Without 
Neighbourhood Plan 

December 
2019 

No 

 

10 A number of Neighbourhood Development Plans are currently being prepared 
in Vale of White Horse. The following parish or town councils are currently 
preparing their Neighbourhood Development Plans with their communities: 

 

• Abingdon 

• East Challow 

• East Hanney 

• Marcham 

• Shellingford 

• Stanford in the Vale 

• Steventon 

• Sunningwell (preparation paused) 

• Sutton Courtenay 

• Wantage 

 

11 In addition to those listed above, the statutory Development Plan for both 

Councils will also include the following once adopted or made: 

• Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan Part 2: Site Allocations 

• Any other “made” (adopted) Neighbourhood Development Plans. 

 

  

Page 122



9 
 

Programme for the Local Plan Review 
 

13  South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils have commenced 
work on a Joint Local Plan and associated documents. The following table 
describes the content, coverage and timetable for the Joint Local Plan, which is 
also illustrated in Figure 1. Further documents will be added to the LDS 
programme as the need for them becomes apparent and resources allow. 

 
 

 
Joint Local Plan 2041 

Role & Subject - This document will set out the overall development strategy and 
requirements for the period up to 2041. It will include strategic policies as well as 
local level policies and any allocations such as for housing and employment with 
any associated infrastructure requirements. 

Coverage - District-wide (South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse Districts) 

Conformity - With the National Planning Policy Framework 

Replaces – SODC Local Plan 2035 and VOWH Local Plan 2031 (Parts 1 and 2) 
(unless any policies are saved) 
Timetable - Key Stages  

Public Consultation on Issues and Scope (Regulation 18) May/June 2022 
(Complete) 

Public Consultation on Preferred Options (Regulation 18) August/ 
September 2023 

Public Consultation on Pre-Submission (Regulation 19) July/August 2024 

Submission to Secretary of State (Regulation 22) January 2025 

Examination in Public (Regulation 24) May 2025 

Inspector’s report (Regulation 25) August 2025 

Adoption (Regulation 26) September 2025 

Regulation references taken from The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012. 
Timings and requirements post submission to the Secretary of State are determined by the appointed 
Inspector. 

 
 

Page 123



10 
 

 

 

 

Figure 1: Production timetable 
 
 

 
 

 2023 2024 2025 

J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D 

 
Joint Local Plan 

2041 

    
 
 

  

C P P 

   
 
 

      
 

C 

 
 

P 

 
 

P 

    
 
 

 
 

S 

   

E 

 

 R A 

 
 
 

  

 
 

Key 

Preparation, analysis and/or plan development  

Cabinet Member, Cabinet or Full Council review and decision C 

Public Consultation on Preferred Options (regulation 18) P 

Public Consultation prior to plan submission for examination (regulation 19) P 

Submit plan and supporting documents to the Secretary of State for independent examination S 

Examination commencement of the plan by an independent Planning Inspector E 

Receipt of Inspector’s Report R 

Formal adoption and publication of the Plan A 

P
age 124



11  

 

Related documents supporting the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 
2035 

 
14 The current South Oxfordshire Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was 

adopted in 2016 and needs updating to align with the up to date Local Plan 
2035. There is a CIL Review in progress with the Inspector’s report issued in 
September 2022 and adoption planned for December 2022. 

 

South Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  

Role and Subject – This document will detail the types of development required 
to pay the Council a levy based on a cost per square metre of development. 
Collected funds will contribute to appropriate infrastructure to support new 
development. 

Coverage – South Oxfordshire district-wide 

Conformity – The Local Plan 2035, the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) 

Timetable – Key Stages 

Adoption December 2022 
(anticipated 
implementation 
date from January 
2023) 

 
15 Supplementary Planning Documents Current and planned Supplementary 

Planning Documents (SPDs) and Conservation Area Character Appraisals 
for South Oxfordshire District Council are set out below: 

 
Name of 

SPD/SPG 

Description of SPD Date 

Adopted 
Review Target 

Completion 

Date 

Joint Design 
Guide SPD 

The design guide is intended to assist 
landowners, developers, applicants, 
agents, designers and planners through 
all stages of the design and planning 
process to achieve high quality and 
sustainable development. 

June 2022 No review 

planned 

Section 106 
Planning 
Obligations 
SPD 

Provides guidance for negotiating 
planning obligations. Planning 
obligations enable a development’s 
impact to be mitigated and are intended 
to make a development. 

November 
2022 

No review 

planned 

Didcot Town 
Centre SPD 

This document was adopted in May 
2009 and provided planning 

guidance to aid the development of 

May 2009 No review 

planned 

Page 125



12  

the Didcot Town Centre. It set out the 
Council's vision and strategic 
development principles for the 
expansion of the town centre. A new 

phase of Didcot Town Centre’s 
Orchard Centre opened in 2018. 
New and updated policies for Didcot 
Garden Town are also included in the 
recently adopted South Oxfordshire 
Plan. 

Affordable 
Housing SPG 

Provides clear practical guidance on 
the delivery of affordable housing within 
the district. 

September 
2004 

Production has 
started on a 
joint Affordable 
Housing 
Guidance 

Paper, due to 
be published in 

2023 

Vauxhall 
Barracks 
Development 
Brief SPG 

Informs the preparation and submission 
of Planning Applications on land known 
as Vauxhall Barracks, Didcot. 

February 
2004 

No review 

planned 

South 
Oxfordshire 
Landscape 
Assessment 
SPG 

A District-wide landscape assessment 
that sets out individual Character 
Areas, describing in detail their 
landscape and settlement character 
together with appropriate guidelines for 
landscape enhancement, planning and 
development. 

July 2003 No review 

planned 

Henley-on-
Thames 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal  

Conservation area character appraisals 
help residents and us to understand the 
history of an area and why it is special. 
They help shape future developments 
and planning policies, as well as giving 
residents an idea of what 
enhancements could be made 

September 
2022 

No review 

planned 

Pyrton 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal  
 

Conservation area character appraisals 
help residents and us to understand the 
history of an area and why it is special. 
They help shape future developments 
and planning policies, as well as giving 
residents an idea of what 
enhancements could be made 

December 
2018 

No review 

planned 

Wallingford 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal 
 

Conservation area character appraisals 
help residents and us to understand the 
history of an area and why it is special. 
They help shape future developments 
and planning policies, as well as giving 

April 2018 No review 

planned 

Page 126



13  

residents an idea of what 
enhancements could be made 

Brightwell-cum-
Sotwell 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal 

Conservation area character 
appraisals help residents and us to 

understand the history of an area and 
why it is special. They help shape 
future developments and planning 
policies, as well as giving residents 
an idea of what enhancements could 
be made 

February 
2006 

No review 

planned 

Thame 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal 

Conservation area character 
appraisals help residents and us to 
understand the history of an area and 
why it is special. They help shape 

future developments and planning 
policies, as well as giving residents 
an idea of what enhancements could 
be made 

February 
2006 

No review 

planned 

West 
Hagbourne 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal 

Conservation area character 

appraisals help residents and us to 
understand the history of an area and 
why it is special. They help shape 
future developments and planning 

policies, as well as giving residents 
an idea of what enhancements could 
be made 

February 

2006 
No review 

planned 

Great Haseley 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal  

Conservation area character 

appraisals help residents and us to 
understand the history of an area and 
why it is special. They help shape 
future developments and planning 
policies, as well as giving residents 
an idea of what enhancements could 

be made 

January 
2005 

No review 

planned 

Aston 
Tirrold/Upthorp 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal 

Conservation area character 
appraisals help residents and us to 

understand the history of an area and 
why it is special. They help shape 
future developments and planning 
policies, as well as giving residents 
an idea of what enhancements could 
be made 

January 
2005 

No review 

planned 

 

16 There is a list of emerging Conservation Area Character Appraisals programmed 

including: 

 

• Aston Rowant and Kingston Blount 

• Cuxham 

• Dorchester on Thames and Overy 

• Goring 

Page 127



14  

• Preston Crowmarsh 

• Watlington  

• Whitchurch on Thames 

 

Related documents supporting the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031 

 

17 The Vale of White Horse CIL was adopted in 2017 and updated in 
November 2021 to align with the Vale Local Plan 2031.  

 
18 Current and planned Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) and 

Conservation Area Character Appraisals for Vale of White Horse District 
Council are set out below: 

 

Name of 

SPD 

Description of SPD Date 

Approved 

Review Target 

Completion Date 

Joint Design 
Guide SPD 

The design guide is intended to assist 
landowners, developers, applicants, 
agents, designers and planners through 
all stages of the design and planning 
process to achieve high quality and 
sustainable development. 

June 2022 No review 
planned 

Dalton 
Barracks SPD 

Sets out a strong vision for a new 

mixed-use development that is highly 

accessible, incorporating sustainable 

transport initiatives and being 

sensitive to Cothill Fen Special Area 

of Conservation through provision of 

parkland. Provides further detail on 

how development will need to 

consider the landscape, ecology, 

pollution, transport, historic 

environment, facilities capacity, 

phasing of development and how 

Garden Village Principles will be 

delivered to achieve the exemplar 

design. 

April 2022 No review 
planned 

Developer 
Contributions 
SPD 

Provides guidance for negotiating 
planning obligations. Planning 
obligations enable a development’s 
impact to be mitigated and are 
intended to make a development 
acceptable when it would otherwise 
be unacceptable in planning terms. 

November 
2021 

No review 
planned 

Page 128



15  

Name of 

SPD 

Description of SPD Date 

Approved 

Review Target 

Completion Date 

Botley Centre Provides clear guidance on how 

development could come forward in 
this Local Service Centre. 

January 
2016 

No review 
planned – 
development 
under 

construction 

Abbey 

Shopping 

Centre and 

Character 

Area 

Provides a guide to detailed 
applications and possible future 
development options for the area 

December 
2011 

No review 
planned 

Bourton 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal 

Conservation area character appraisals 
help residents and us to understand the 
history of an area and why it is special. 
They help shape future developments 
and planning policies, as well as giving 
residents an idea of what 

enhancements could be made 

January 

2011 

No review 
planned 

Cumnor 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal 

Conservation area character appraisals 
help residents and us to understand the 
history of an area and why it is special. 
They help shape future developments 
and planning policies, as well as giving 

residents an idea of what 
enhancements could be made 

January  

2011 

No review 
planned 

Great Coxwell 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal  

Conservation area character appraisals 
help residents and us to understand the 
history of an area and why it is special. 
They help shape future developments 

and planning policies, as well as giving 
residents an idea of what 
enhancements could be made 

September 
2022  

No review 
planned 

Milton 
Conservation 
Area Character 
Appraisal 

Conservation area character appraisals 
help residents and us to understand the 
history of an area and why it is special. 

They help shape future developments 
and planning policies, as well as giving 
residents an idea of what 
enhancements could be made 

December 
2016 

No review 
planned 

Affordable 
Housing SPD 

This would provide clear practical 

guidance on the delivery of affordable 

housing within the district. 

N/A Production has 

started on a joint 
Affordable 
Housing 
Guidance 
Paper, due to be 
published in 

2023 

 
  

Page 129



16  

 

19 There is a list of emerging Conservation Area Character Appraisals programmed 

including: 

• Abingdon Albert Park 

• Blewbury 

• Drayton 

• Harwell 

• Stanford in the Vale 

• Steventon 

 

20 Local Development Orders (LDO) are policy instruments that extend 
permitted development rights for certain forms of development that the local 
authority considers to be suitable, either in general or limited to defined areas. 
LDOs are intended to simplify the process for development. Development that 
conforms to an LDO would not require planning permission. LDOs in the 
districts are as follows: 

• Milton Park LDO - an LDO was adopted for Milton (Business) Park in 
2012 and committed to undertaking a review every 5 years. A review of 
the LDO has started and is looking at extending the LDO to 2040. 
Consultation was undertaken recently that closed in October 2022, and 
the Council is aiming to progress for adoption in early 2023.  

• Didcot Technology Park LDO - currently in preparation. 

• Harwell Campus - Vale Local Plan 2031 Part 2 proposes that an LDO for 
Harwell Campus will be prepared to facilitate the effective and 
accelerated planning of proposals coming forward on the campus but 
this has not commenced.  

• Didcot Garden Town - LDOs may also be produced to support Didcot 
Garden Town but none have commenced. 

 
Statement of Community Involvement 

 
21 A Joint Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) to cover both districts 

was adopted in December 2021, and a minor update published in November 
2022.  

 
22 The SCI is a code of practice that shows how and when the Councils will 

involve different groups, organisations and communities in the production of 
planning documents, including the Local Plan.  It also sets out how the Councils 
will involve people when assessing and deciding on planning applications for 
development. It describes the Council’s overall approach to community 
engagement and people’s involvement in the planning process, as well as how 
people can become involved with planning applications. 

 
  

Page 130



17  

Monitoring and Review 

 
23 The Councils are required to monitor annually how effective their policies and 

proposals are. An Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) will be published by the 
Councils each year to inform LDS reviews and will be made public. 

 
24 As part of the monitoring process, the Councils will assess: 

• whether they are meeting, or are on target to meet, the milestones set out 
in the LDS and, if not, what the reasons are 

• what impact Local Development Documents are having on other national 
and locally set targets 

• whether any policies need to be reviewed, or replaced to meet sustainable 
development objectives 

• what action needs to be taken if policies need to be replaced. 

 
25 As a result of the monitoring, the Councils will consider what changes, if any, 

need to be made. If changes are appropriate these will be brought forward 
through a review of the LDS. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



 

 
 
 
 

 

Alternative formats of this publication, a summary of its 

contents or specific sections, are available on request. 

 
These include large print, Braille, audio, email, 

easy read and alternative languages. 
 

Please contact customer services to discuss 

your requirements on 01235 422422. 
 
 
 

Planning Policy Team 
Abbey House 
Abbey Close 

Abingdon 
OX14 3JD 

Email:planning.policy@southandvale.gov.uk 

Page 132

mailto:planning.policy@southandvale.gov.uk


Vale of White Horse District Council 

Corporate Performance Report

2022/23 Quarter Two 
October 2022

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 10



 2whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Table of content

Background               3
Strategic context              4
Quarter two performance highlights           6

Theme 1:  Providing the homes people need          7
Theme 2:  Tackling the climate emergency          9
Theme 3:  Building healthy communities          12
Theme 4:  Building stable finances           15
Theme 5:  Working in partnership           17
Theme 6:  Working in an open and inclusive way         20

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures   22
Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures   24
Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures   32
Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures    40
Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures    45
Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures  54

P
age 134

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


 3whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Background

• The Council monitors performance and progress towards achieving the aims and priorities set out in the Vale of White Horse District Council 
Corporate Plan 2020-2024.

• This report provides a strategic overview of the performance for quarter two (01 July to 30 September 2022), focusing on the activity to 
deliver our priorities in the Corporate Plan.

• In addition to providing a performance update and assurance against the delivery of the Council’s six strategic themes in the Corporate 
Plan, this report will also provide any strategic context relevant to the Council’s operations. 

• This report is the sixth iteration, and it is expected that it will evolve in line with the new approach to Performance Management being 
embedded by the Council, as well as from feedback from senior officers and Members.

P
age 135

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Strategic context 4whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Strategic context

Quarter two of 2022/23 saw the global economic situation 
deteriorate further. Soaring prices have driven inflation across the 

world, stalling the post-pandemic recovery and placing individuals, 
families and businesses under increasing financial pressure. 

Within the UK, the rate of inflation reached 10.1 per cent in the 12 
months to September 2022 (equalling the figure from July). The main 
drivers of this increase have been housing & energy costs (up 20.2 per 
cent since September 2021) and food & non-alcoholic drink prices (up 
14.6 percent) – the Bank of England currently forecasts that inflation 
will remain above 10.0 per cent for the next few months before starting 
to fall back. The Bank’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC), as part of 
their remit to keep inflation under control, raised interest rates to 2.25 
per cent in September. Since the end of 2021, the MPC has approved 
seven consecutive increases. In the medium-term it is expected that 
these actions will dampen demand within the economy and, therefore, 
hopefully push down the rate of inflation.  

The high rate of inflation has meant that household finances have 
been squeezed as incomes have failed to keep pace with the rising 
cost of living. Figures from the Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
show that in August 2022 regular pay, when adjusted for inflation, fell 
by 2.9 per cent on the year – one of the largest decreases seen since 
comparable records began in 2001.

As the cost-of-living crisis has worsened throughout the quarter, 
the Council’s Community Hub has continued to assist those in 
our communities that are most in need. Activities in this area have 
included the sharing of information, the provision of advice and, where 
appropriate, the delivery of food parcels or funding.

The rise in prices has also impacted upon British businesses – 
figures from the ONS (released in early October) show that in the 

three months to June, company insolvencies in England and Wales 
rose to a 13-year high.

During quarter two, HM Government announced that they would 
introduce an Energy Price Guarantee for households (due to start on 1 
October). This is designed to reduce the size of energy bills by capping 
the amount consumers are charged for each unit of gas and electricity 
they use in their homes. A similar programme (the Energy Bill Relief 
Scheme) was also introduced for businesses.

The pressures on household and businesses, combined with the 
ongoing economic uncertainties, has impacted on overall economic 
growth. In August 2022, the economy shrank by 0.3 per cent (this 

P
age 136

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Strategic context 5whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

was driven by 1.8 per cent reduction in the production sector). This 
contraction followed July’s very weak growth (0.1 per cent). 
The Bank of England believes that the UK economy is already in a 
recession (two consecutive quarters of decline in GDP).

In late September, HM Government announced its Growth Plan, 
a series of measures intended to realise a 2.5 per cent trend rate 
for economic growth. Following its introduction, the pound sterling 
(which had already been declining in value over recent months) fell 
precipitously against the United States Dollar and the borrowing 
costs on government bonds rose. Many banks and building societies 
withdrew mortgage products and increased their interest rates on 
fixed-rate mortgages.  

The devastating war in Ukraine continued during quarter two 
2022/23. As part of the Council’s ongoing response to this 

humanitarian crisis, it continues to work alongside partners across 
Oxfordshire to help provide ‘wrap-around’ care for refugees within 
the county through the Homes for Ukraine scheme (this offers the 
opportunity for individuals in the UK to sponsor named guests to come 
and live with them in their home). 

The five Local Planning authorities in Oxfordshire have been working 
together on a joint plan for Oxfordshire to 2050. It is with regret that we 
were unable to reach agreement on the approach to planning for future 
housing needs within the framework of the Oxfordshire Plan. 

Local Plans for the City and Districts will now provide the framework 
for the long term planning of Oxfordshire.  The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
work programme will end and we will now transition to a process 
focused on Local Plans.  The issues of housing needs will now be 
addressed through individual Local Plans for each of the City and 
Districts.  The Councils will cooperate with each other and with other 
key bodies as they prepare their Local Plans.

The United Kingdom entered a ten-day period of national mourning 
following the death of Queen Elizabeth II on 8 September. During 

this time, Vale of White Horse carried out its required communications 
as part of Operation London Bridge. All of the Council’s other regular 
communications and campaigns were paused throughout the period of 
national mourning.

P
age 137

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


6whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Quarter two performance highlights

P
age 138

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Providing the homes people need 7whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1:  Providing the homes people need 

We will: 

• find ways to provide more genuinely 
affordable housing, including housing 
for social rent, to better provide for the 
needs of the Vale residents

• aim to provide a mix of tenures in 
each development to build sustainable 
homes in balanced and sustainable               
communities

• use our influence on decision makers, 
where the responsibility lies outside of 
Vale.

We will do this by: 

• exploring and considering opportunities 
to bring forward the delivery of homes 
people can afford

• adopting a policy framework that ensures 
those homes could be delivered in a 
way that supports the environment and     
people living healthy lives.

Strategic Lead - Suzanne Malcolm (Deputy Chief Executive / Place)

Key Activities in quarter one 

Work on the strategic level plan for future housing needs in Oxfordshire (the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050) ceased in August after the participating councils were unable to reach an 

agreement on the approach required. The progress made to date will now continue through the 
Joint Local Plan.

As part of the Vale’s efforts to explore and consider opportunities to bring forward the delivery of 
homes that people can afford, the Property and Affordable Housing teams began a joint project 
to assess the suitability of pieces of land owned by the Vale for the development of affordable 
housing schemes. Work also continued on the development of the Housing Delivery Strategy. 
This strategy will provide a narrative on the provision of low-cost housing and the impact upon 
affordability based upon the ability to pay. It will also set out several short-term actions aimed 
at improving housing availability and quality – it is scheduled to come forward for consideration 
during quarter three.

See Theme 1 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 22

P
age 139

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Providing the homes people need 8whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Throughout the quarter, officers from the Planning and Housing 
teams also worked on the development of an Affordable Housing 

Guidance Note. This will be presented to the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
in quarter three.

The Pebble Hill site plan (to provide additional mobile home berths), 
constraints and costings were completed during quarter two. A Cabinet 
report has been drafted seeking approval of the project plan and 
budget – subject to approval the expected delivery of is scheduled for 
Autumn 2023.

During quarter two 2022/23, the Vale continued to hold discussions 
with both the Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) and the parish 
councils on advancing Dalton Barracks Garden Village (including 
the masterplan for the project). The DIO is currently awaiting the 
finalisation of the Oxfordshire Mobility Model – expected to be 
completed by the end of 2022 – which will support the transport 
modelling requirement for the site.

With the aim of adopting a policy framework that ensures that homes 
can be delivered in a way that support the environment and the living 
of healthy lives, the Council’s Planning Policy team continued to 
progress the Joint Local Plan Regulation Part One Issues Consultation 
Report. This consultation (held in quarter one) asked for views on a 
draft vision for the Joint Local Plan and included matters relating to 
both the environment and healthy lifestyles.

Progress also continued to be made on phase one of a placemaking 
strategy for the Didcot Central Corridor – this is expected to be 
finalised by the end of October. Phase two of project, to examine the 
recommended improvement schemes in more detail, will commence in 
quarter three.

In addition, scoping work was carried out for the 27 projects within the 
newly revised Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan.

P
age 140

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Tackling the climate emergency 9whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024 9whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2:  Tackling the climate emergency

We will: 

• do everything we can to help tackle the 
Climate Emergency

• reduce council emissions by 75% by 
2025

• become a carbon neutral council by 
2030

• reduce all emissions across the Vale 
District by 75% by 2030

• aspire to be a carbon neutral Vale district 
by 2045.

We will do this by: 

• a Climate Emergency programme,       
focussed on what the council has control 
over, working 

• towards our own targets for our own 
buildings, vehicles, leisure and arts   
centres

• a Climate Emergency programme        
focussed on encouraging the wider     
district community 

• to reduce its carbon footprint in order to 
meet the Climate Emergency targets

• a programme around exercising our 
influence with partners on wider policy, 
working with neighbouring authorities, 
lobbying Government, and identifying 
environmental policy gaps.

Strategic Lead - Suzanne Malcolm (Deputy Chief Executive / Place)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 2 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 24

Emissions from our leisure facilities make up a significant proportion of the Council’s carbon 
footprint. In line with our commitment to become a carbon neutral district by 2045, in quarter 

two, the Vale developed a bid for the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) for both 
the Wantage Leisure Centre and White Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre, based on new criteria 
announced in August. The bid will be submitted in October. 

With a view to tackling our emissions more broadly, officers are currently reviewing a draft 
report from the Energy Savings Trust which examines options for the decarbonisation of staff 
mileage and the Council’s vehicle fleet.  

P
age 141

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Tackling the climate emergency 10whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

The role of the Council as a planning 
authority is important in tackling the 

Climate Emergency and is vital to fulfilling the 
Vale’s aim to be a carbon neutral district by 
2045. The Planning Policy team continued to 
progress policy on sustainable construction 
as part of the wider development of the Joint 
Local Plan. Working with the Community 
Engagement team, officers continued to work 
on the Joint Local Plan Regulation Part 1 
Issues Consultation Report. This consultation 
(held in quarter 1) asked for views on a 
draft vision for the Joint Local Plan. The 
submissions received show good levels of 
support for lower-carbon construction. Officers 
will now develop research and policies to 
deliver this. 

Work on the strategic level plan for 
Oxfordshire (the Oxfordshire Plan 2050) 
ceased in August after the participating 
councils were unable to reach an agreement 
on the approach for future housing needs. The 
progress made to date on themes like climate 
change and nature recovery will continue 
through the Joint Local Plan.

During this quarter, the Leader of the Council 
wrote to the Chair of the Arc Leadership Group 
to confirm that the Vale does not support the 
proposal to continue to seek to develop a 
pan-regional partnership across the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc.

Working with neighbouring authorities continues to be a significant aspect of our work 
to tackle the Climate Emergency. Through our membership of the Future Oxfordshire 

Partnership, officers and Members were involved in the development of a route map and action 
plan for the Pathways to Zero Carbon Oxfordshire project. The Partnership also agreed the 
ending of the Oxfordshire Plan Advisory Group and the formation of a new Planning Advisory 
Group to provide of form for discussion of strategic planning issues across the county. 

During quarter two, the Council learned that our joint application with Oxfordshire County 
Council for Local Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) funding was unsuccessful. Officers are 
now considering a countywide procurement option for a specialist electric vehicle contractor on 
a fully funded basis if a second round of LEVI funding becomes available. 

P
age 142

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Tackling the climate emergency 11whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Work has continued on better measuring and improving air quality in the district. A contract has been provisionally awarded to consultants 
who will work on the development of new Air Quality Plans. The Particulate Matter Monitor in Marcham was in operation throughout the 

quarter and has provided provisional data. There were no instances where levels of particulate matter in the air exceeded national air quality 
objectives. 

The Council continued to encourage the wider district community to reduce its carbon footprint through a series of communications campaigns 
including on tree planting, promoting the Great Big Green Week, highlighting the award of Climate Action Funding to community groups 
in the district and supporting Oxfordshire County Council’s Climate Action Oxfordshire Campaign. Focused on litter and waste reduction, 
communications campaigns also supported free litterbug activity trails during the school holidays and a litter mapping project.  

In response to the cost of living crisis, the Council has launched a new energy saving webpage which includes information on retrofitting and 
sources of advice on reducing energy consumption. 

The Vale’s Climate Action Plan (CAP) was published in February 2022 and progress towards its delivery continues to be monitored. Vale’s 
Climate Emergency Advisory Committee (CEAC) were briefed during this quarter, on the planned approach for reporting on the CAP. The first 
CAP quarterly report was published, reporting on quarter one.

P
age 143

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building healthy communities 12whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3:  Building healthy communities

We will: 

• contribute to making people’s lives 
healthier by encouraging the switch 
to more active travel, improving air       
quality where people work and live,    
and providing active opportunities.

We will do this by: 

• building strong communities and        
connections with a sense of place and 
strong community identity

• promoting healthy place shaping and 
active communities for everyone

• safeguarding and supporting our         
vulnerable residents

Strategic Lead - Adrianna Partridge (Deputy Chief Executive / Transformation and Operations)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 3 performance updates against all reporting measures on page 32

On 30 September, the Council recorded 
only one rough sleeper. The very low 

levels of rough sleeping in the district reflects 
the success of the council’s preventative 
approach. 

The number of homeless households in 
temporary accommodation at the end of 
September 2022 was 18 – a significant 
increase on the previous quarter and a 
reflection of the impacts of the cost-of-living 
crisis and issues related to the Homes for 
Ukraine scheme. The average length of stay 
in emergency accommodation was 61 nights, 
above the ceiling target of 42 (this has been 
driven by the higher numbers of homeless 
clients coming forwards and the complexity 
of their needs). During quarter two 2022/23, 
the rate of successful homelessness 
prevention in the Vale was 77.0 per cent. 
This was marginally below the target of 80.0 
per cent (the average rate of homelessness 
prevention in the South East region is 55.0 
per cent).

P
age 144

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building healthy communities 13whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

As part of the Vale’s commitment to 
safeguarding and supporting the 

district’s vulnerable residents, the Council 
has actively participated in the countywide 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 
and is a member of both the countywide 
Homelessness Steering Group and the 
Homelessness Directors Group.

The Council has also, through its ‘Crashing’ 
and ‘Chelsea’s Story’ surveys, worked with 
schools to support awareness about sexual 
exploitation.

Throughout the quarter, the Council continued 
to assist those in our communities that are 
most in need – an issue that has become 
increasingly resonant in light of the cost-
of-living crisis. Activities in this area have 
included the sharing of information, the 
provision of advice and, where appropriate, 
the delivery of food parcels or funding.

With the aim of building strong communities 
and connections with a sense of place, the 
Planning Policy and Community Engagement 
teams continued to work on processing the 
responses the Council received to the Joint 
Local Plan consultation. This consultation 
(held in quarter one) included consideration of 
the following statement: “A place where history 
is still visible, where heritage and landscape 
character are safeguarded and valued, and 
the beauty and the distinctive local identity of 
our towns and villages have been enhanced.”

The Vale has also maintained its support for the Homes for Ukraine scheme with ongoing 
work regarding community integration and rematching work continuing apace. 

The Planning Policy team also held an all-councillor roundtable meeting on 12 July on the topic 
of town centres and retail. The event was well-attended and captured member’s ideas on the 
distinctiveness, qualities and challenges facing the area’s main settlements.

Further, as part of Great Big Green Week, the Vale ran a social media campaign that highlighted 
the support available to green community projects and encouraged people to get involved in 
local events.

Over 1,200 people are estimated to have joined this year’s Didcot Garden Party. Around 1,000 
of these attended the ten family friendly performances and arts activities (themed around 
health, wellbeing and the environment) across Cornerstone, while another 200 (children aged 
from five years to teenagers) got involved with sports provision. The feedback from participants 
was positive and emphasised the importance of having access to free or low-cost holiday 
programmes – especially during a cost-of-living crisis.P

age 145

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building healthy communities 14whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

With the intention of promoting healthy place shaping and active communities for everyone, the Cabinet approved an Active Communities 
Strategy in July 2022. Work is continuing on the development of the delivery plan and staffing structure required to implement the strategy. 

The Council have commissioned SYSTRA Ltd to develop a 
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan for Didcot and its 

surrounding area.  The project will run from October 2022 to April 
2023. Oxfordshire County Council have also commissioned the 
development of a Didcot Area Travel Plan which will look at how to 
promote the active travel network. A public consultation on the travel 
plan will held in autumn.

The Active Communities team have submitted plans to launch a 
Ride Revolution bike project. Under this scheme, unwanted bikes 
would be restored and repaired before being given to individuals from 
disadvantaged families in the district. The team have also prepared 
a Bugs Trails Walking route project which is designed to support 
residents to become more active.

The Council have provisionally awarded a contract to engage consultants to develop new Air Quality Plans for the district, with work expected 
to commence in quarter three.

Throughout quarter two, the Vale undertook a considerable amount of work to promote healthy communities within the district. Through its 
summer programme of health and wellbeing activities for residents and young people, the Council promoted the You Move programme (designed 
to help families on low incomes engage with physical activity) across the school holidays as well as highlighting its own schedule of activities. 
In addition, officers from across several teams worked closely together to deliver a range of free events for young people and their families. 
Between July and September, 2,270 people took part in the Vale’s regular activities and an additional 500 joined in with the Council’s summer 
holiday events.

During quarter two work was completed on updating the database of cultural and physical activities that are currently available in the Vale. Links 
are now being made with the Council’s settlement assessments and green space mapping project to ensure a joined-up approach.

The Strategic Property team also started to review sites which would potentially be suitable for community garden projects. To help further this 
work a cross-service officer working group was established to discuss how to take these projects forward.

P
age 146

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building stable finances 15whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4:  Building stable finances

We will: 

• manage the council’s resources            
responsibly and make effective use of 
the council’s assets

• do our best to build financial resilience 
to protect the council against future         
uncertainties

• work across the public sector to            
influence and maximise funding for local 
government, in order to continue to 
invest and provide the services residents 
and businesses need.

We will do this by: 

• exploring and actively considering all 
avenues to deliver financial stability, 
including maximising income available to 
the council

• making effective use of the                
council’s assets acting in a manner that 
ensures the long-term financial viability 
for the benefit of our residents and the           
environment.

Strategic Lead - Simon Hewings (Head of Finance)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 4 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 40

With the aim of managing the Council’s 
resources responsibly and to make 

effective use of its assets, the Vale’s Asset 
Management Group (established during 
quarter three 2021/22) continues to meet on 
a quarterly basis to progress implementation 
of the Strategic Property Review. The aim 
of the Group is to assess the Council’s land 
ownerships in a holistic manner and consider 
opportunities for their development, usage or 
disposal. Any outcomes from these meetings 
are progressed as business as usual.

During quarter two, the Senior Management 
Team considered a paper regarding income 
generation. The initial focus of the Vale’s 
activities in this area will be on ensuring 
budgets accurately reflect the income due and 
that the current level of discretionary fees/
charges cover the Council’s costs in delivering 
the service.

In September, the Council appointed a 
consultant to review activities at the Beacon. 
They are due to report at the end of quarter 
three.

P
age 147

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Building stable finances 16whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

The Council’s Ground Maintenance depot moved from Kingston Bagpuise to a temporary location at the former South Oxfordshire District 
Council site at Crowmarsh. Officers are also in negotiations with Taylor Wimpey about a potential long-term depot at Great Western Park.

As part of the Vale’s ongoing project to improve the performance of the Council’s finance systems, progress continued to be made on utilising 
Unit four to deliver budget setting. In quarter two, further discussions on the development of the reporting available to finance business partners 
and budget holders were held – a demonstration for finance staff and budget holders is expected to take place in quarter three.

With the intention of building financial resilience to protect the Council against future uncertainties, the Strategic Property Team continued to 
lease vacant properties, progress lease renewals and review rents during quarter two 2022/23. Progress was also made on work regarding 
potential housing development sites.

In order to help deliver on the Vale’s ambition to work across the public 
sector to influence and maximise funding for local government, work 

has continued during quarter two, on embedding the External Funding 
Lead within the organisation. Further progress has also been made on 
introducing the necessary governance structures and documentation 
to ensure that any future funding bids are deliverable and align with the 
Vale’s goals. 

Moreover, during the quarter, the Council developed an external 
funding bid for the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) 
for both the Wantage Leisure Centre and the White Horse Tennis and 
Leisure Centre. The application for funding is now ready for submission 
(the opening of the next PSDS funding round will take place in 
October). 

The pipeline of external funding opportunities was also maintained and 
assessed throughout quarter two to identify and maximise opportunities 
for additional resources to deliver Council objectives. 

P
age 148

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in partnership 17whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5:  Working in partnership

We will: 

• work in partnership with other councils, 
authorities and businesses, non-
profit organisations, community and               
residents’ groups, to achieve our aims 
and objectives effectively, efficiently and 
fairly

• provide support to residents and 
organisations to effect and drive change 
in the community

• provide all the support we can to    
businesses in the Vale to help them   
succeed.

We will do this by: 

• working in partnership to influence and 
shape regional and national agendas 
to maximise opportunities for our 
communities and businesses 

• working with and supporting our         
residents, businesses and communities 
to effect and enable change.

Strategic Lead - Suzanne Malcolm (Deputy Chief Executive / Place) 
Strategic Lead - Adrianna Partridge (Deputy Chief Executive / Transformation and Operations)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 5 performance updates 
against all reporting measures on page 45

To help realise the Council’s commitment 
to provide support to businesses in order 

to help them succeed, work continued to 
consolidate independent traders on a single 
e-commerce platform as part of the Vale’s 
Digital District Programme (Virtual High Street 
Initiative). A total of 114 traders are registered 
on the portal, with over 1,713 products 
available to order through the site. The Council 
also started to look at extending its contract 
with ShopAppy (the website hosting the 
e-commerce platform) beyond the initial pilot 
period (due to end March 2023).

During quarter two, the Vale’s Economic 
Development team focused upon compiling 
and submitting investment plans to unlock 
the Council’s conditional allocations from the 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) and 
Rural England Prosperity Fund (REPF). If the 
bids are successful, the funding will enable 
a three-year pipeline of projects for the Vale 
including supporting small and medium sized 
enterprises through the development of the 
visitor economy and facilitating business 
decarbonisation. 

The Economic Development team also 
continued to work in countywide partnerships 
to identify support schemes for local 
businesses. A focus during quarter two was 
on the development of materials to support 
companies through the emerging cost-of-
living-crisis.

During quarter two, the Vale has continued 
to promote the White Horse Community 
Lottery Scheme. One new “good cause” 
was approved between July and September. 
Throughout the quarter, 12,113 lottery tickets 
were sold generating an annual estimated 
income of £29,234 for the voluntary sector. 

P
age 149

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in partnership 18whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

As part of the Vale’s efforts to support residents and organisations to effect and drive change 
in the community, the Council continued their pilot of a simpler approach to neighbourhood 

planning in quarter two. This included the delivery of five capacity building workshops on the 
following topics:

1. Identifying areas their Neighbourhood Priority Statements could focus on
2. Exploring why and how to engage their communities
3. Developing a draft template/agreed format for their Neighbourhood Priority Statements
4. Gathering and assessing evidence 
5. Adding value to planning and place-making

The Vale has been working 
towards hosting workshops 

between parish councils with 
made neighbourhood plans and 
officers from the Development 
Management team. 

These events will start in October 
and will provide neighbourhood 
planning groups with an opportunity 
to explain their policies and 
give an insight into how they 
contribute towards meeting the 
neighbourhood plan’s objectives. 

15

9

NUMBER OF EMERGING 
NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANS

NUMBER OF NEIGHBOURHOOD 
PLANS IN PROGRESS

It will also give planning officers an opportunity to highlight any potential challenges that the 
neighbourhood planning groups may face in implementing their proposals. Officers have also 
kept, where differing views exist, advising town and parish councils of their recommendations 
on planning applications. This has helped to explain why decisions are being made and in turn 
has improved relationships between the Vale and these organisations.

P
age 150

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in partnership 19whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Preparations have also been made for the 
reopening of the Vale Climate Action Fund 

(scheduled for October 2022).  Furthermore, a 
partnership grant paper has been developed 
seeking a decision on the future of the 
Council’s Partnership Grant Fund.  This issue 
will be considered by Cabinet later in the year.

With the intention of progressing our goal of 
working in partnership to influence and shape 
regional and national agendas, the Council 
continued to respond to external consultations 
(one during quarter two) with the intention of 
helping to guide and mould both regional and 
national policy in a way that reflects the Vale’s 
ambitions. Work also progressed throughout 
the quarter on assessing the impact of the 
Council’s previous submissions.

During quarter two 2022/23, the Economic 
Development team supported the Oxfordshire 
Inclusive Economic Partnership (OIEP) 
Steering Group. The OIEP Steering Group 
seeks to drive business and community 
engagement through educational attainment, 
inclusive recruitment and social value in 
procurement. Officers will continue to work 
with the OIEP as they build “pledges” from the 
local community ahead of a showcase event 
scheduled for January 2023. 

In addition, the Vale also contributed to discussions with the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership (OxLEP) regarding the Partnership’s plans to refresh the economic recovery plan, 

the Local Industrial strategy (LIS) and the county’s economic baseline data.

P
age 151

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in an open and inclusive way 20whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6:  Working in an open and inclusive way

We will: 

• work openly and transparently, promoting 
a world in which all can participate 
equally

• listen to feedback from local residents, 
communities, businesses, partners and 
our own officers

• ensure our work particularly aims 
to include those groups that have 
historically been 

• marginalised or those that have been 
hard to reach

• ensure we are accountable and that 
our decisions are open to appropriate 
scrutiny, and we will admit when we get 
things wrong.

We will do this by: 

• improving our use of technology to 
increase understanding and access 
to what we do, how we work and the 
decisions we make

• increasing meaningful engagement and 
communication with everyone

• strengthening our governance framework 
and address our policy gaps, improving 
transparency.

Strategic Lead - Adrianna Partridge (Deputy Chief Executive / Transformation and Operations)

Key Activities in quarter one

See Theme 6 performance updates against 
all reporting measures on page 54

In order to facilitate the Council’s commitment 
to working openly and transparently, the 

Vale completed the procurement of a new 
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) 
system. The supplier is currently building the 
platform and the Council expects it to go live 
during quarter three /quarter four.

The CRM will be key to increasing online 
access and improving the customer 
experience. It will also provide better-quality 
information/data around both customer contact 
and fulfilment which can then be used to make 
further enhancements. 
 
Also, the performance management report 
for quarter one was published on the Vale’s 
website. The report is intended to increase 
the public’s understanding of what the 
Council does, how it is delivering on the aims 
of the Corporate Plan and the decisions 
that it makes/takes. In addition, further 
enhancements and modifications have been 
made to the data hub (also on the Council’s 
website) which contains reports and data 
on the Vale’s responsibilities, projects and 
programmes. 

It is the Council’s intention to continue to 
increase the amount of information that it 
provides through this route.  

As part of the Vale’s ambition to improve its 
use of technology to increase understanding 
and access to what the Council does, it 
continued to livestream all public meetings 
during quarter two 2022/23. This not only 
helped to ensure a greater degree of 
accessibility for residents, but also allowed 
them an insight into our decision-making 
processes.

IT has now been installed at Abbey House 
to ensure that all future meetings, with the 
exception of Full Council, can continue to be 
livestreamed (officers are currently exploring 
potential options for the livestreaming of Full 
Council meetings at the Beacon).

With the aim of increasing meaningful 
engagement with everyone, the Vale has 
streamlined its consultation processes to make 
it easier to collect feedback and has updated 
its reporting template to ensure responses can 
be presented in a concise and straightforward 
manner. Work has also begun on procuring a 
new consultation and engagement portal. 

P
age 152

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Working in an open and inclusive way 21whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Vale of White Horse quarter one independent cabinet member decisions

Date Description

06/07/2022 Covid-19 additional relief funding - to accept government funding and approve a discretionary scheme to assist local businesses.

08/07/2022 Customer relations management - to use the approved funds to procure a solution.

08/07/2022 Faringdon Leisure Centre works. 

14/07/2022 Food and farming champion - to appoint Councillor Paul Barrow as the Council’s Food and Farming Champion.

15/07/2022 Office accommodation – to approve funds for changes to office accommodation. 

21/07/2022 UK Shared Prosperity Fund - to approve submission of a three-year investment plan to secure funding.

02/08/2022 Section 106 funding - Wetlands habitat creation at Grove and Garford - to approve the funding request.

17/08/2022 Revised Milton Park Local Development Order - to approve the draft order for statutory consultation.

08/09/2022 Thames Water funding and maintenance agreement.

08/09/2022 Surface water flooding - to accept a grant and enter into a legal agreement.

16/09/2022 Financial management system - to approve contract arrangements.

It is hoped that by allowing the embedding of different types of media into surveys, an updated system will help create even more engaging 
content.

As part of the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy consultation (launched during quarter two), the Vale invited a range of groups (based around 
faith, age, disability and other protected characteristics) to participate as part of ongoing efforts to increase the Council’s level of engagement 
with under-represented communities. Materials, documentation and videos related to this survey were also made available in a variety of 
languages.

The Vale also carried out initial communication planning for the elections, including looking at the activities and actions of other local authorities 
in relation to initiatives and opportunities to encourage voter registration.

With the intention of delivering on the Vale’s commitment to strengthening the Council’s governance framework, progress continued to be made 
on the first tranche of amendments to the Constitution during quarter two 2022/23. These will be taken to Full Council in October.

In addition, new procurement rules and a whistleblowing/anti-fraud policy have been developed and will be taken to the Constitution Working 
Group in late October (with a view to referring them to the Full Council for adoption in December). 

P
age 153

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 22whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Explore and consider 
opportunities to bring forward 
the delivery of homes people 
can afford

Narrative report of newly 
identified opportunities to 
bring forward/expedite  the 
delivery of affordable homes

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The council continues to seek to build upon the success of 
delivering two affordable housing projects using commuted 
S.106 sums. Bidding remains open for registered providers and 
community land trusts to submit applications for grant funding to 
deliver new affordable housing schemes. 
 
In addition, during Q2, the Property and Affordable Housing teams 
began a joint project to assess the suitability of pieces of land 
owned by the Vale for the development of affordable housing 
schemes. 

PHPN1.1 Explore a council-owned 
holding company/vehicle, to 
focus on delivering a wide 
range of regeneration and 
community benefits including 
housing , community 
facilities, land maintenance 
and health

Narrative update on the 
potential opportunities/
challenges around the 
creation of a holding company/
SPV (special purpose vehicle)

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Master 
Planning 
Lead

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale continued to have conversations with 
a range of landowners and promotes to progress housing and 
residential-led, mixed-use schemes (including Dalton Barracks and 
Ock Valley Park). 
 
The option of a council-owned holding company is not currently 
being explored. 

PHPN1.2 Explore how the council can 
provide low-cost sustainable 
housing. Include working 
with developers, registered 
providers, community trusts, 
as well as new partnerships. 
Include council owned 
housing. Include a definition 
of affordability relative to 
ability to pay, not to market 
value, and social rent 
definitions

Narrative report on provision 
of low cost housing, focusing 
on partnership working, 
including an update on the 
shifting metric of affordability 
based on relative ability to pay 
rather than market value and 
social rent definitions

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q2 2022/23, several meetings were held between the 
council and local registered housing providers. These were 
designed to help give officers an understanding of their approach 
to low-cost sustainable housing and their plans for retrofitting 
properties. 
 
Also, in Q2, work continued on the development of the Housing 
Delivery Strategy. This will provide a narrative on the provision of 
low-cost housing and the impact upon affordability based upon 
the ability to pay. It will also set out several short-term actions 
aimed at improving housing availability and quality. The strategy is 
scheduled to come forward for consideration during Q3. 
 
Throughout the quarter, officers from the Planning and Housing 
teams worked on the development of an Affordable Housing 
Guidance Note. This will be presented to Joint Scrutiny in Q3. 

P
age 154

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 23whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PHPN1.3 Review our affordable 
housing planning policies and 
ensure they are providing 
what's needed in the Vale

Narrative report on review of 
planning policies 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q2 2022/23, work continued on the development of the 
Housing Delivery Strategy. This will present the aspirations for the 
council (and other developers within the district) in relation to types 
of housing, tenure mix and demographic. It will also set out several 
short-term actions aimed at improving housing availability and 
quality. The strategy is scheduled to come forward for consideration 
during Q3. 

PHPN1.4 Review our strategy for 
spending s106 sums paid 
in lieu of onsite affordable 
housing and identify how 
earmarked funds, including 
retained S106 monies, can 
be best utilised to deliver 
affordable homes

"Narrative report on s106 
spend, focusing on the stated 
aim and any updates to the 
existing strategy 
 
Additional quantitative 
elements - s106  spend/units 
provided from spend"

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The council continues to seek to build upon the success of 
delivering two affordable housing projects using commuted 
S.106 sums. Bidding remains open for registered providers and 
community land trusts to submit applications for grant funding to 
deliver new affordable housing schemes. 
 
In addition, during Q2 2022/23, work continued on the development 
of the Housing Delivery Strategy. This will contain an action plan 
that includes a review of criteria for the allocation of S.106 funds. 
The strategy is scheduled to come forward for consideration during 
Q3.

PHPN1.5 Explore how mobile homes 
might be better used as 
affordable homes, reviewing 
sites and policies to ensure 
good use of available space

Narrative update on utilisation 
of mobile homes/mobile home 
sites or opportunities for 
creating such sites

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Development 
and 
Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 2022/23, the Pebble Hill site plan, constraints and 
costings were completed. A Cabinet report was also drafted 
seeking approval of the project plan and budget – subject to 
approval the expected delivery of additional mobile home berths is 
scheduled for Autumn 2023. 

P
age 155

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 24whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PHPN1.6 Use Garden Villages and 
Towns designation as a 
mechanism to introduce 
innovative housing to meet 
our needs for high quality, low 
energy, zero-carbon homes

Narrative report on garden 
village and town designation 
utilisation and any projects 
which fall within this 
designation. Also to include 
initiatives which will result 
in low energy, zero carbon 
homes.

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q2 2022/23, scoping work was carried out for the 27 projects 
within the newly revised Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan.

During Q2 2022/23, the council (after a successful procurement 
exercise) commissioned SYSTRA Ltd to develop a Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plan for Didcot and its environs. The 
project will run from October 2022 to April 2023.

Work also commenced on the production of a brief to advance 
the Didcot Public Arts and Culture Strategy. The draft strategy will 
focus on the role that arts and culture can play in delivering on 
the aspirations of the garden town project (by not only creating 
inspiring visual and decorative enhancements to improve the 
quality of the town, but also by bringing the local community and 
visitors together). 

Over 1,200 people are estimated to have joined this year’s Didcot 
Garden Party. Around 1,000 of these attended the ten family 
friendly performances and arts activities (themed around health, 
wellbeing and the environment) across Cornerstone, while another 
200 (children aged from five years to teenagers) got involved with 
sports provision. The feedback from participants was positive and 
emphasised the importance of having access to free or low-cost 
holiday programmes – especially during a cost-of-living crisis. 

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale continued to hold discussions with 
both the Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) and the parish 
councils on advancing Dalton Barracks Garden Village (including 
the masterplan for the project). The DIO is currently awaiting the 
finalisation of the Oxfordshire Mobility Model – expected to be 
completed by the end of 2022 – which will support the transport 
modelling requirement for the site.

P
age 156

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 25whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 Adopt a policy framework that 
ensures those homes could 
be delivered in a way that 
supports the environment 
and people living healthy 
lives

Narrative report against the 
Programme aim

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, officers progressed the Joint Local Plan 
Regulation Part 1 Issues Consultation Report. This consultation 
(held in Q1) asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to both the environment and 
healthy lifestyles. 
 
Work on the strategic level plan for Oxfordshire (the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050) ceased in August after the participating councils were 
unable to reach an agreement on the approach for future housing 
needs. The progress made to date on themes like climate change, 
healthy places and nature recovery will now continue through 
South and Vale’s Joint Local Plan.

PHPN2.1 Develop a s106 obligations 
strategy to inform 
negotiations between 
planners and developers 

Narrative report on strategy 
development/adherance (once 
delivered)

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q2 2022/23 – Project completed.  

PHPN2.2 Update the CIL spending 
strategy and associated 
procedures to accelerate the 
delivery of local infrastructural 
improvements for our 
communities both in line with 
our corporate objectives and, 
where appropriate, to support 
current spending on existing 
infrastructure

"Narrative update on CIL 
spend to support the delivery 
of local infrastructure  
 
Total CIL spend + CIL spend 
breakdown"

Cllr Judy 
Roberts

Head of 
Finance

Work is currently in progress for the transfer of the October CIL 
allocations to relevant town and parish councils. The total amount 
transferred will be reported in Q3. 

PHPN2.3 Consider ways we can 
encourage lower-carbon 
construction in Vale

Narrative update to include 
any activity supporting lower-
carbon construction in the 
Vale

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Planning Policy and Community 
Engagement teams continued to work on processing the responses 
the council received to the Joint Local Plan consultation. This 
consultation (held in Q1) had asked several questions on climate 
change (e.g. on the requirement for new homes and buildings 
to minimise energy use through their layout and design). The 
submissions received show good levels of support for lower-
carbon construction and officers will now make progress with 
commissioning evidence and developing policies to deliver this.   

P
age 157

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 26whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PHPN2.4 Develop an affordable 
housing Supplimentary 
Planning Document (SPD). 
Evidence of housing needs, 
housing mix, self-build, rural 
exception sites. Include 
definition of 'affordable'

Narrative update on the 
development of an affordable 
housing SPD, additionally 
include information on 
planning permissions granted 
with affordable housing 
numbers

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

Following a meeting in May between lead members and officers, it 
was agreed that the most effective approach for delivering the aims 
of an Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document was 
to pursue policy changes through the Joint Local Plan.  
 
It was also decided during Q1 2022/23 that the Vale’s existing 
affordable housing policies should be brought together into a single 
guidance document for both developers and registered providers. 
Therefore, throughout Q2, officers from the Planning and Housing 
teams have been working on the development of this Affordable 
Housing Guidance Note. This will be presented to Joint Scrutiny in 
Q3.

PHPN2.5 Develop a Land Use 
strategy to inform and guide 
OxPlan2050 and Vale Local 
Plan with proposed need for 
housing, retail, employment, 
leisure, open spaces

Narrative update on 
progression against stated 
aim of PHPN 2.6 in the 
corporate plan.

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Work on the strategic level plan for Oxfordshire (the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050) ceased in August after the participating councils were 
unable to reach an agreement on the approach for future housing 
needs. The work to date on the land use strategy (spatial strategy) 
will transfer to the Joint Local Plan to join the existing developing 
topics which cover retail, employment, leisure and open spaces etc.  
 
Progress continued to be made on the Joint Local Plan during Q2. 
This included officers advancing the development of the Joint Local 
Plan Regulation Part 1 Issues Consultation Report.

PHPN2.6 Update the Local 
Development Plan to 
reflect the Oxfordshire 
Infrastructure Strategy 
(OxIS) and connecting our 
strategic housing sites with 
employment land

Narrative update on 
progression against stated 
aim of PHPN 2.7 in the 
corporate plan.

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, officers progressed the Joint Local Plan 
Regulation Part 1 Issues Consultation Report. This consultation 
(held in Q1) asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and covered topics including infrastructure needs and 
connecting homes/jobs. 
 
Work on the strategic level plan for Oxfordshire (the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050) ceased in August after the participating councils were 
unable to reach an agreement on the approach for future housing 
needs. The work will now continue through the Joint Local Plan.

P
age 158

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 1 performance updates 27whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q1 Performance Update

PHPN2.7 Update Vale’s Local Plan and 
OxPlan2050 with modern 
environmental policies in 
support of government's and 
Vale's goals

Narrative update on 
progression against stated 
aim of PHPN 2.8 in the 
corporate plan.

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, officers progressed the Joint Local Plan 
Regulation Part 1 Issues Consultation Report. This consultation 
(held in Q1) asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to the environment. 
 
Work on the strategic level plan for Oxfordshire (the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050) ceased in August after the participating councils were 
unable to reach an agreement on the approach for future housing 
needs. The work to date on themes like climate change and nature 
recovery will continue through the Joint Local Plan.

PHPN2.8 Develop a Housing Policy: 
that outlines the types of 
housing we are going to 
provide, in what mix of design 
and for what demographic 
and tenure, to inform our 
Local Plan and future work. 
Include affordable housing 
aspirations, consideration 
of an aging population, and 
environmental policies for 
housing

"Narrative update on housing 
policy and adherence.  
 
Include quantitative measures 
for housing mix, tenure, 
and affordable and shared 
ownership."

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q2 2022/23, work continued on the development of the 
Housing Delivery Strategy. This will present the aspirations for the 
council (and other developers within the district) in relation to types 
of housing, tenure mix and demographic. It will also set out several 
short-term actions aimed at improving housing availability and 
quality. The strategy is scheduled to come forward for consideration 
during Q3. 
 
The quantitative measures regarding housing mix, tenure and 
affordability will be determined as the development of the strategy 
progresses.

PHPN2.9 Work with partners to 
produce an Active Travel 
Network map of current and 
required coverage across the 
Vale to include commercial 
and community buses, cycle 
paths and storage facilities, 
pavements and footpaths, 
green and blue infrastructure, 
and local taxi firms. 
Encourage systems that 
increase use of the Active 
Travel Network

Narrative update on progress 
toward completion of map, 
once map completed, this 
should transition to an annual 
review of the accuracy of map 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, Oxfordshire County Council appointed PJA to 
create a Strategic Active Travel Network for Oxfordshire. PJA will 
work through four key stages:

- baseline mapping and analysis
- network development
- network prioritisation
- a design toolkit and recommendations

In addition, as part of the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan, 
Oxfordshire County Council have commissioned the development 
of a Didcot Area Travel Plan which will look at how to promote the 
active travel network. A public consultation on the travel plan will 
held in autumn.

P
age 159

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 24whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 A climate emergency 
programme, focussed on 
what the council has control 
over, working towards our 
own targets for our own 
buildings, vehicles, leisure 
and arts centres

A narrative summary 
comprised of all new activity 
to reduce the carbon footprint 
of all Council assets on a 
quarterly basis

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale developed a bid for the Public 
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) for both the Wantage 
Leisure Centre and the White Horse Tennis and Leisure Centre 
– this involved significant additional work due to changes in the 
criteria for the PSDS announced in August. The application for 
funding is now ready for submission (the opening of the next 
PSDS funding round is expected in October). 
 
In addition, the Vale also received a draft report from the 
Energy Savings Trust examining potential options for the 
decarbonisation of both staff mileage and the council’s vehicle 
fleet. The report is currently being reviewed by officers.  

TCE1.1 Develop a Climate 
Emergency Strategy for the 
Council, setting out how we 
will reach Zero Carbon for all 
Vale assets by 2030. Identify 
energy saving opportunities 
in council-owned buildings 
and fleets

A narrative report of activity 
underway to design the plan 
to achieve a zero carbon 
position for all Vale assets by 
2030. 

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The monitoring of the activities and actions undertaken by 
the Vale as part of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) during Q1 
2022/23 has been completed and the CAP Performance Report 
published on the council’s website. Progress on the delivery of 
the CAP will be tracked and reviewed on a quarterly basis.

TCE1.2 Complete the CEAC Year 
One Climate Action Plan and 
plan for future years

Narrative report on progress Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The monitoring of the activities and actions undertaken by 
the Vale as part of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) during Q1 
2022/23 has been completed and the CAP Performance Report 
published on the council’s website. Progress on the delivery of 
the CAP will be tracked and reviewed on a quarterly basis. 
 
One meeting of the CEAC was held during Q2 2022/23. During 
this, members received a briefing from officers on the planned 
approach for CAP reporting.

P
age 160

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 25whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

TCE1.3 Include in Councils Open 
Space Strategy opportunities 
to increase biodiversity, 
increase tree cover, and 
(other things we want to do 
on Council's open spaces)

Narrative report on specific 
opportunities which have 
arisen for the council to 
improve open spaces. Also 
include any additional policy 
developments.

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, officers have been exploring options for 
undertaking additional tree planting on council-owned land. 
This has involved the Climate Action and Parks teams working 
together to identify suitable locations. 

PROGRAMME 2 A climate emergency 
programme focussed on 
encouraging the wider district 
community to reduce its 
carbon footprint in order to 
meet the Climate Emergency 
targets

A narrative update of the 
work of the comms team in 
promoting measures/initiatives 
which will help the community 
to reduce it's carbon footprint.

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale ran several successful comms 
campaigns and initiatives designed to increase awareness of 
the Climate Emergency and to help the community to reduce its 
carbon footprint. These included:

• encouraging communities to get involved in local tree 
planting and to plan for the upcoming planting season

• supporting Oxfordshire County Council’s Climate Action 
Oxfordshire Campaign (including the launch of a new 
website)

• highlighting the awarding of Climate Action Funding to 13 
community projects

• promoting the Great Big Green Week to residents and 
community groups

TCE2.1 Complete those tasks in Year 
one Climate Action Plan that 
have to do with reducing 
carbon in the wider district

Narrative report on progress Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The monitoring of the activities and actions undertaken by 
the Vale as part of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) during Q1 
2022/23 has been completed and the CAP Performance Report 
published on the council’s website. Progress on the delivery of 
the CAP will be tracked and reviewed on a quarterly basis. 
 
One meeting of the CEAC was held during Q2 2022/23. During 
this, members received a briefing from officers on the planned 
approach for CAP reporting.

P
age 161

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 26whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

TCE2.2 Introduce policies for 
zero carbon construction 
requirements

Narrative update on progress 
toward design guide 
implementation, transitioning 
into review of relevant 
information/developments in 
this area

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23 work continued with the Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership to develop a Net Zero Route map and Action Plan 
which will inform this project. Officers and members have been 
involved in workshops and focus groups on topics related to 
zero carbon construction requirements for both new builds and 
the retrofitting of existing homes. These efforts culminated in 
the creation of a list of proposed priority actions which will help 
to inform future policy in the area – this is due to be published 
in Q3.  
 
Also, in Q2, the Planning Policy and Community Engagement 
teams continued to work on processing the responses the 
council received to the Joint Local Plan consultation. The 
submissions received show good levels of support for lower-
carbon construction and officers will now make progress with 
commissioning evidence and developing policies to deliver this.

TCE2.3 Introduce sustainable growth 
and environmental policies to 
our Local Plan

Narrative update on 
the progress towards 
development of new local 
plan, specifically referring to 
details in TCE2.3/4

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, officers progressed the Joint Local Plan 
Regulation Part 1 Issues Consultation Report. This consultation 
(held in Q1) asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint 
Local Plan and included matters relating to climate change, 
sustainable growth and the natural environment.  
 
Work on the strategic level plan for Oxfordshire (the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050) ceased in August after the participating councils 
were unable to reach an agreement on the approach for future 
housing needs. The progress made to date on themes like 
climate change and nature recovery will continue through the 
Joint Local Plan.

P
age 162

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 27whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

TCE2.4 Ensure our Local Plan 
contains polices to make new 
buildings carbon zero to build 
and to live/work in

Narrative update on 
the progress towards 
development of new local 
plan, specifically referring to 
details in TCE2.3/4

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Planning Policy team continued to 
progress policy on sustainable construction as part of the 
wider development of the Joint Local Plan. In addition, officers 
also continued to work on the Joint Local Plan Regulation 
Part 1 Issues Consultation Report. This consultation (held in 
Q1) asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local Plan 
and included matters related to sustainable construction. The 
submissions received show good levels of support for lower-
carbon construction and officers will now make progress with 
commissioning evidence and developing policies to deliver this.

TCE2.5 Develop a year two plan 
with CEAC for meeting our 
Climate emergency goals

High level narrative on 
progress towards approval of 
two year plan

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The two year Climate Action Plan (CAP) was published in 
February 2022.  The CAP is now subject to regular quarterly 
reporting and scrutiny.  This action is now complete.

TCE2.6 Improve how we measure air 
quality. Explore particulate 
measurement in our sensitive 
areas. Explore ways to 
publish AQ measurements 
in live time, so people can 
make decisions on whether 
it's healthy outside for them 
today

Narrative containing updates/
changes to AQ monitoring 
techniques, an update on 
work with partners to monitor 
AQ and details of published 
AQ measures

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

Particulate Matter (PM) and Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) monitoring 
in Marcham continued throughout Q2 2022/23. Provisional 
results (to date) show no exceedances in national air quality 
objectives for NO2, PM10 and PM2.5. (NB: This provisional 
data will need to be corrected and ratified at the end of the 
calendar year). 
 
The Air Quality Annual Status Report – submitted during Q1 – 
has been accepted by Defra and the council is now awaiting 
their response.  
 
Real Time Air Quality Data for sites within Vale of White Horse 
is available at https://www.airqualityengland.co.uk. 

TCE2.7 Update the Air Quality Action 
Plans for our Air Quality 
Management Areas

Until funding confirmed for 
development of new AQAP's, 
narrative update on any 
significant deviation from last 
relevant AQAP. Once funding 
confirmed, this can report on 
the development of the new 
AQAP.

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q2 2022/23, the contract to engage consultants on the 
new Air Quality Plans was completed. A contract has now been 
provisionally awarded, with work on the development of the 
new plans due to start in Q3. 

P
age 163

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 28whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

TCE2.8 Explore setting up a Habitat 
Bank to deliver biodiversity 
offsetting requirements and 
facilitate tree planting

Narrative update as to 
progress of potential pilot and 
other relevant initiatives

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Work on the Habitat Banking Pilot Scheme continued to be 
affected during Q2 2022/23 by delays to the publication of HM 
Government’s regulations and guidance on Biodiversity Net 
Gain. 
 
Progress has, however, been made in the development of 
the pilot site at Duxford and it is anticipated that the sale of 
Biodiversity Credits will start in either Q3 or Q4. 

PROGRAMME 3 A programme around 
exercising our influence with 
partners on wider policy, 
working with neighbouring 
authorities, lobbying 
Government and identifying 
environmental policy gaps

General Narrative update Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The Vale – through its membership of the Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership Environment Advisory Group – continued to 
work with neighbouring authorities in relation to climate 
and environmental matters. During Q2 2022/23, officers 
and members were involved, including through a series of 
themed focus groups and workshops, in the development of 
a route map and action plan for the Pathways to Zero Carbon 
Oxfordshire project.

TCE3.1 Complete the CEAC Year 
One Action Plan and plan for 
future years

Narrative report on progress Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The action is complete. The Climate Action Plan (CAP) is 
being monitored as part of the Vale’s corporate performance 
management framework and will provide a detailed overview of 
all actions that may have an impact on reducing carbon in the 
wider district. 

P
age 164

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 29whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

TCE3.2 Work with partners to define 
a waste reduction scheme: 
including ways to reduce 
bulky waste headed to 
landfill and reduce recycling 
contamination

Narrative report to outline 
steps to influence partners 
and our actions to reduce 
overall waste

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The June 2022 recycling rate was 59.78%, the landfill rate was 
0.20% and the contamination rate was 10.69%. These figures 
were not available for Q1 reporting. 
 
The July 2022 recycling rate was 56.56%, the landfill rate was 
0.21% and the contamination rate was 11.51%. 
 
The August 2022 recycling rate was 57.26%, the landfill rate 
was 0.23% and the contamination rate was 11.48%. 
 
The figures for September have yet to be finalised. 
 
During Q2 2022/23, the Vale ran several comms campaigns. 
These included:
• free litterbug activity trails for children in the school summer 

holidays
• a litter mapping project
• highlighting the introduction of new waste collection routes 

from the autumn

TCE3.3 Develop a tree-planting 
strategy and work with 
partners to plant more trees 
across the district

Narrative update to include 
development of the tree policy 
and subsequent activity

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, officers have been exploring options for 
undertaking additional tree planting on council-owned land. 
This has involved the Climate Action and Parks teams working 
together to identify suitable locations. 

TCE3.4 Develop a Biodiversity Net 
Gain Targeting Strategy 
and contribute to a Nature 
Recovery Network for 
Oxfordshire

Narrative update on related 
work, including but not limited 
to the work to support the 
Oxfordshire Plan.

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report owing to a delay from government in 
releasing the supplementary regulations and guidance required 
for this area.

P
age 165

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 30whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

TCE3.5 Work with partners to provide 
electric charging points in 
Vale car parks and at our 
buildings, and increase 
charging infrastructure across 
Oxfordshire

A narrative update to include 
work to promote and develop 
EV infrastructure across the 
district. 
 
Quantitative element - 
breakdown of existing/planned 
EV charging points

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

The joint application with Oxfordshire County Council for Local 
Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) funding was unsuccessful. 
Officers are now considering a countywide procurement for a 
specialist electric vehicle contractor on a fully funded basis if a 
second round of LEVI funding becomes available. 
 
Officers are also due to report on the uptake of the EV Park and 
Charge project in the coming months. This will show a steady 
increase in the use of the electric vehicle charging bays at the 
council’s car parks.  
 
Number of EV Charging Points: 
Audlett Drive – 16 
Cattle Market – 10 
West St Helens – 12  
Southampton Street – 12  
Portway – 12 

TCE3.6 Take an active role in the 
Oxford-Cambridge arc to 
influence the inclusion of 
sustainable growth and 
environmental policies

A narrative update on the 
work of the Oxford-Cambridge 
arc and our influencing activity

Cllr Emily 
Smith 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Leader of the Council wrote to the 
Chair of the Arc Leadership Group to confirm that the Vale 
does not support the proposal to continue to seek to develop a 
pan-regional partnership across the Oxford-Cambridge Arc. The 
Vale Leader formally withdrew from the Arc Leaders group at 
the end of September 2022.

P
age 166

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 2 performance updates 31whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

TCE3.7 Take an active role in 
the Growth Deal and the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 to 
influence the inclusion of 
sustainable growth and 
environmental policies

Narrative report on work to 
support the Oxfordshire Plan 
in accordance with TEC3.7

Cllr Emily 
Smith 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Work on the strategic level plan for Oxfordshire (the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050) ceased in August after the participating councils 
were unable to reach an agreement on the approach for future 
housing needs. The progress made to date on themes like 
sustainable growth, climate change and the environment will 
continue through the Joint Local Plan. 
 
In late September, the Future Oxfordshire Partnership agreed 
to both the ending of the Oxfordshire Plan Advisory Group and 
the formation of a new Planning Advisory Group (including 
the city, district and county councils) to provide a forum for 
discussion on strategic planning issues, which will include 
sustrainable development with the potential for some joint work 
with the FOP Environment Advisory Group.

TCE3.8 Work with local partners 
and Government to 
encourage retrofitting houses 
with sustainable energy 
schemes; help residents take 
advantage of schemes that 
come along to help with costs

Narrative report on work 
influencing work, comms 
activity and direct engagement 
with residents.

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale continued to work within the 
Future Oxfordshire Partnership on the development of a 
route map and action plan for the Pathways to Zero Carbon 
Oxfordshire project. Officers have also been reviewing potential 
ways for how district councils can best help to accelerate the 
uptake of retrofit within their areas. An options paper on this 
work is currently being progressed and will be reviewed once 
the draft Oxfordshire Net Zero Route Map and Action Plan are 
published in early October. 
 
In addition, the council has developed and launched a new 
Energy Saving webpage which focuses on tips that will help 
residents with the cost-of-living-crisis. It includes information 
on retrofitting and provides signposts to additional sources of 
advice and funding.  

P
age 167

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 32whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Building strong communities 
and connections, with a 
sense of place and strong 
community identity

Narrative update Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Planning Policy and Community 
Engagement teams continued to work on processing the 
responses the council received to the Joint Local Plan 
consultation. This consultation (held in Q1) included 
consideration of the following statement: “A place where history 
is still visible, where heritage and landscape character are 
safeguarded and valued, and the beauty and the distinctive 
local identity of our towns and villages have been enhanced.”” 
 
The Planning Policy team also held an all-councillor roundtable 
meeting on 12 July on the topic of town centres and retail. The 
event was well-attended and captured member’s ideas on the 
distinctiveness, qualities and challenges facing the area’s main 
settlements. 

BHC1.1 Review the use of 
Community buildings and 
other facilities owned or 
managed by the council to 
maximise usage, income 
for the council and ensure 
communities have spaces in 
which to come together.

Narrative update as to the 
progress/outcomes from the 
Strategic Property Review 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 2022/23, the District Centre on Great Western Park 
continued to see some growth in community usage. 
 
In September, the council appointed a consultant to review 
activities at the Beacon. They are due to report at the end of 
Q3.

BHC1.2 Establish a Public Arts policy Narrative update on the 
progress towards developing 
a public arts policy

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q2 2022/23 

BHC1.3 Maintain and develop 
the council’s Community 
Enablement function to 
respond to changing needs 
because of Covid-19

Narrative update on relevant 
areas of the Council response 
to Covid 19 as the needs/
requirements change 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Community Enablement team 
continued to provide ongoing support and advice to support 
voluntary sector organisations in their recovery from the impact 
of Covid-19. 
 
In addition, the council’s Move Together project continued to 
support residents, particularly those with mental health needs.

P
age 168

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 33whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BHC1.4 Work with others to promote 
Active Travel and support the 
development of Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure 
plans to help shape new 
developments that link 
homes to work, recreation 
and social spaces within 
communities

Narrative report on the 
work with partners to 
promote active travel and 
encouragement of cycling and 
walking infrastructure 
 
Quantitative measure of 
amount of new footpaths/cycle 
paths approved since last 
report/YTD etc.

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Cabinet approved the Active 
Communities Strategy – one of the key themes of which is to: 
‘create healthier communities through walking and cycling’. 
Work is now underway to prepare a delivery plan for the 
strategy. 
 
Plans have been submitted by the Active Communities team 
for authority to launch a Ride Revolution bike project. Under 
this scheme, unwanted bikes would be restored and repaired 
before being given to individuals from disadvantaged families in 
the district. The team have also prepared a Bugs Trails Walking 
route project which is also designed to support residents to 
become more active. 
 
In addition, the council (after a successful procurement 
exercise) have commissioned SYSTRA Ltd to develop a Local 
Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan for Didcot and its 
environs. The project will run from October 2022 to April 2023. 
 
During Q2 2022/23, Oxfordshire County Council appointed PJA 
to create a Strategic Active Travel Network for Oxfordshire. PJA 
will work through four key stages: 
 
• baseline mapping and analysis 
• network development 
• network prioritisation 
• a design toolkit and recommendations 
 
The County Council have also commissioned the development 
of a Didcot Area Travel Plan which will look at how to promote 
the active travel network. A public consultation on the travel 
plan will held in autumn.

P
age 169

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 34whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BHC1.5 Develop planning policies to 
ensure careful consideration 
of the effect of air pollution on 
the lives of people who will 
live there

Narrative update to include 
information relevant to 
BHC1.5, 
 
Quantitative measure -  the 
number of neighbourhood 
plans and the stage they are 
current at

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, officers progressed the Joint Local Plan 
Regulation Part 1 Issues Consultation Report. This consultation 
(held in Q1) asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint Local 
Plan and included matters relating to air quality. 
 
The council has provided input into the development of the draft 
East Hanney Neighbourhood Plan. The draft plan details local 
air quality issues and includes a policy which seeks to mitigate 
them. 
 
In Q2 2022/23, the Vale continued their pilot of a simpler 
approach to neighbourhood planning. Officers delivered five 
capacity building workshops in Q2. These workshops aimed at 
helping the pilot groups: 
 
• identify areas their Neighbourhood Priority Statements could 
focus on  
• explore why and how to engage their communities 
• develop a draft template/agreed format for their 
Neighbourhood Priority Statements 
• gather and assess evidence  
• add value to planning and place-making 
 
The pilot project also provides an opportunity for communities 
to explore how to tackle air quality issues locally.  
 
As of 30 September 2022, there are 15 made Neighbourhood 
Plans in the district (one of which is currently under review). 
There are nine plans in progress, three of which have 
completed pre-submission consultations. 

P
age 170

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 35whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BHC1.6 Update the Air Quality 
Management Action Plans 
for the Vale’s air pollution 
hotspots; Work with 
Oxfordshire County Council 
to improve how we measure 
and report air pollution and 
how we will work with schools 
and community groups to 
raise awareness of our clean 
air campaigns 

Narrative update on activity 
related to BHC 1.6

Cllr Sally 
Povolotsky 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The Air Quality Annual Status Report – submitted during Q1 – 
has been accepted by Defra and the council is now awaiting 
their response.  
 
During Q2 2022/23, the contract to engage consultants on the 
new Air Quality Plans was completed. A contract has now been 
provisionally awarded, with work on the development of the 
new plans due to start in Q3. 
 
The Communications Team promoted World Car Free Day (22 
Sept) with reference to the council’s own Turn It Off campaign.

PROGRAMME 2 Promoting healthy place 
shaping and active 
communities, for everyone

Narrative update Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, work was completed on updating the 
database of cultural and physical activities currently available 
in the Vale. Links are now being made with the council’s 
settlement assessments and green space mapping project to 
ensure a joined-up approach.  
 
Participants in the Move Together programme continue to be 
signposted to both existing (and new) physical activities located 
within their vicinity. 
 
Between July and September, 2,270 people took part in the 
Vale’s regular activities and an additional 500 joined in with the 
council’s summer holiday events.

BHC2.1 Produce an Active 
communities strategy; setting 
out how the council will 
work with our communities 
and partners and enable 
everyone to participate in 
physical activities

Narrative update on progress 
against strategy development 
and work with partners to 
encourage involvement in 
physical activities

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The Active Communities Strategy was approved by Cabinet 
in July 2022. Work is continuing on the development of the 
delivery plan and staffing structure required to implement the 
strategy.  
 
The Vale continues to work with its partners (particularly Active 
Oxfordshire) to encourage involvement in physical activities.

P
age 171

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 36whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BHC2.2 Work with Active Oxfordshire 
to target get active projects 
in our most deprived 
communities 

Narrative update on proposals 
form Active Oxfordshire 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The ‘You Move’ project aimed at families with children and in 
receipt of benefits (including refugee children and young carers) 
is fully funded by the public health team of Oxfordshire County 
Council. Vale now has 336 participants signed up to the project.  
 
Applications to Sport England for the ‘Together Fund’ have 
been approved for activities in Faringdon and work is continuing 
to get a funding bid for Wantage. 
 
The ‘Move Together’ project, designed to help people with long 
term health conditions to become more active, had 349 people 
registered on its pathway scheme at the end of Q2 2022/23. 

BHC2.3 Promote use of the Council’s 
public green spaces for 
exercise and activity.  

Narrative update on the work 
to promote green spaces for 
exercise and activity

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, additional outdoor table tennis tables were 
ordered for Grove, Charney Bassett and East Hendred. 
 
Work was also undertaken to scope a new ‘bug trail’ project 
for South Abingdon with the aim of encouraging family outdoor 
activities. 

BHC2.4 Identify councils owned land 
for community gardening and 
allotments projects

Narrative update on the work/
outcomes from the Strategic 
Property Review

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 2022/23, the Strategic Property team started to 
review sites which would potentially be suitable for community 
garden projects. They also established a cross-service officer 
working group to discuss how to take these projects forward. 

P
age 172

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 37whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BHC2.5 Active engagement with 
the Oxfordshire Health 
Improvement Board and 
Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to ensure the Vale 
has strong representation in 
countywide health forums

Narrative update on work 
with the Oxfordshire Health 
Improvement Board/Health 
overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The Oxfordshire Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee met 
in July and September 2022. At these events, the Committee 
received updates on: 
 
•  Oxfordshire Integrated Improvement Programme  
•  ICB Development 
•  Healthwatch Oxfordshire Annual Impact Report 2021/22 
•  Muscular Skeletal Services Update 
•  Oxfordshire Tobacco Control Strategy 
•  Health Inequalities in Rural Areas 
•  South Central Ambulance Service  
 
The Health Improvement Board met on 29 September 2022 
and received updates on: 
 
•  Health Protection 
•  Performance Report  
•  Report from Healthwatch Ambassador  
•  MECC (Make Every Contact Count) Implementation in 
Oxfordshire 
•  Tobacco Control Strategy  
•  Domestic Abuse Strategy 

PROGRAMME 3 Safeguarding and supporting 
our vulnerable residents

Narrative report on support 
provided by the VCS and 
potentially the number of 
properties approved with 
special adaptations (drawn 
from AMR data, available 
annually)

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Legal and 
Democratic

During Q2 2022/23, 13 safeguarding concerns were raised with 
the council – the majority of these were for poor mental health. 
Six of these resulted in referral to Oxfordshire Safeguarding 
Teams. 
 
Five closure orders were issued during Q2 (a closure order acts 
to safeguard access to properties where vulnerable tenants are 
being exploited). This was a decrease on the previous quarter.

P
age 173

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 38whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BHC3.1 Work as part of the South 
and Vale Community 
Safety Partnership on the 
agreed priorities: tackling 
Domestic abuse; exploitation 
of vulnerable people and 
children (including modern 
slavery, county lines); and 
reducing knife crime, harm 
and vulnerability caused by 
drugs and alcohol

Narrative report on work 
with partners, to include 
relevant published statistics 
as quantitative measure for 
information

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Legal and 
Democratic

The data from the domestic abuse service for Quarter 2 
2022/23 will be available at the beginning of Q3 2022/23. 
 
During Q1 2022/23, the countywide service received 1,113 calls 
to their helpline, a decrease on the previous quarter. Of these, 
404 were new contacts, 86 of whom came from South and 
Vale. Across Oxfordshire, 68 cases were referred for outreach – 
of which 27 came from South and Vale. 
 
In Q2 2022/23, there were 21 referrals to the South and Vale 
domestic abuse sanctuary scheme. This was a slight increase 
on Q1 2022/23 (20).

BHC3.2 Develop a new framework 
on vulnerability, responding 
to changes in needs arising 
from the Covid-19 pandemic 

Narrative update on related 
work

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the council worked to assist those most in 
need – particularly in light of the cost-of-living crisis. This has 
included advice, signposting and where appropriate funding or 
food parcels. 
 
The Vale has also continued to support the Homes for Ukraine 
scheme.

BHC3.3 Review and Revise the Joint 
Taxi Licensing Policy

Narrative update on the JTLP Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Legal and 
Democratic

The work to review, revise and embed the new Joint Taxi 
Licensing Policy was completed during Q2 2021/22.

P
age 174

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 3 performance updates 39whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BHC3.4 Take a key role in countywide 
homelessness prevention 
and provision for young 
people, those with mental 
health conditions and review 
of adult homelessness 
pathway

Narrative update on 
influencing/partnership 
activity, new initiatives. 
 
Quantitative update on 
successful homelessness 
cases + other homelessness 
stats, TA stats including 
average length of stay etc. 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

Vale of White Horse recorded only one rough sleeper at the 
end of Q2 2022/23. The very low levels of rough sleeping in 
the district reflects the success of the council’s preventative 
approach. 
 
The number of homeless households in temporary 
accommodation (TA) on 30 September 2022 was 18 – a 
significant increase on the previous quarter that reflects 
the impacts of the cost-of-living crisis and the Homes for 
Ukraine scheme. The average length of stay in emergency 
accommodation was 61 nights, above the ceiling target of 42 
(this is a reflection of both the higher numbers of homeless 
clients coming forwards and the complexity of their needs). 
 
During Q2 2022/23, the rate of successful homelessness 
prevention in the Vale was 77.0 per cent. This was marginally 
below the target of 80.0 per cent (the average rate of 
homelessness prevention in the South East region is 55.0 per 
cent). 
 
The council continues to actively participate in the countywide 
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy and is a member 
of both the countywide Homelessness Steering Group and the 
Homelessness Directors Group.

P
age 175

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 40whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Explore and actively consider 
all avenues to deliver 
financial stability, including 
maximising income available 
to the council

Narrative update on initiatives 
to deliver financial stability 
and maximise income across 
the Council

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

SMT considered a paper on income generation during Q2 
2022/23. The initial focus will be on ensuring that budgets 
accurately reflect the income due and that the current level 
of discretionary fees/charges cover the council’s costs in 
delivering the service. 

BSF1.1 Introduce an Investment 
Strategy and associated 
Investment Policy which 
gives the Council greater 
ability to invest in a wider 
range of assets to maximise 
its return on capital and 
therefore improve its income

Narrative update on the 
introduction of an introduction 
of the investment strategy and 
subsequent decision-making 
around investing

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23.

P
age 176

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 41whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BSF1.2 Commit resources to identify 
more third-party income, 
including government and 
other grants, to help pay for 
our services

Narrative update as to current 
initiatives to increase external 
funding for Council activities, 
with details of additional 
resources committed to 
support these activities

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, work continued on embedding the External 
Funding Lead within the organisation. Further progress was 
also made on introducing the necessary governance structures 
and documentation to ensure that future funding bids are 
deliverable and align with the Vale’s goals.  
 
The joint application with Oxfordshire County Council for Local 
Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (LEVI) funding was unsuccessful 
– the feedback, neverthless, rated the bid quality as excellent. 
Officers are now considering a countywide procurement for a 
specialist electric vehicle contractor on a fully funded basis if a 
second round of LEVI funding becomes available. 
 
In Q2, the External Funding Lead collaborated with colleagues 
from the Economic Development team on the investment plans 
for the UK Shared Prosperity Fund and the Rural England 
Prosperity Fund.  
 
In addition, the Vale developed a bid for the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) for both the Wantage Leisure 
Centre and the White Horse Tennis and Leisure Centre – this 
involved significant additional work due to changes in the 
criteria for the PSDS announced in August. The application for 
funding is now ready for submission (the opening of the next 
PSDS funding round is expected in October). 
 
The pipeline of external funding opportunities was also 
maintained and assessed throughout the quarter. 

BSF1.3 Identify opportunities to 
generate additional income 
from our services and assets 
and review these annually 
as part of the budget setting 
process

Narrative describing activity/
referring to programme 1 
narrative

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23.

P
age 177

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 42whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BSF1.4 Review the schedule 
of existing contracts to 
identifying opportunities for 
rationalisation and savings

Narrative update initially 
detailing BAU activity to 
support this aim, until specific 
project is kicked off at which 
point reporting would be 
based on the project activity

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report Q2 2022/23. This action is identified in 
the procurement plan for 2022/23.

BSF1.5 Upgrade the council’s finance 
IT systems to improve 
functionality and support in-
year budget monitoring

Narrative report on the 
implementation of new 
systems, and then a yearly 
light-touch review 

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

The council’s budget setting activity is primarily being 
undertaken on Unit4. During Q2 2022/23, discussions 
on the further development of the reporting available to 
finance business partners and budget holders continued – a 
demonstration for finance staff and budget holders is expected 
to take place in Q3. 

BSF1.6 Lobby for the ability to set 
our Council Tax at a level that 
can sustain council services 
while seeking opportunities to 
reduce council tax for those 
on the lowest incomes

Narrative report covering 
external influencing/lobbying 
work (and work with partners) 
and additionally, relevant 
information pertaining to 
Council Tax decisions within 
the Council

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Revenues and Benefits initiated work to extend the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme so as to provide increased benefit to 
those on the lowest incomes. We intend to extend CTRS relief 
from 91.5% to 100% for eligible households subject to Council 
approval and to take effect from the start of the municipal year 
2023/24.

BSF1.7 Lobby for a fairer distribution 
of government funding and 
more devolution of funding to 
councils to sustain essential 
local services 

Narrative report detailing 
lobbying activity over the 
period and any successes 
occurring as a result

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23. 

P
age 178

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 43whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 Make effective use of the 
council’s assets acting in 
a manner that ensures the 
long-term financial viability for 
the benefit of our residents 
and the environment

Narrative report on the 
progress of the Strategic 
Property review and other 
relevant initiatives

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 2022/23, the Strategic Property team continued to 
progress lease renewals, review rents and – where appropriate 
– seek new tenants. 
 
The Strategic Property team, in collaboration with colleagues 
in housing, made progress in their work regarding potential 
housing development sites. 
 
In addition, the Asset Management Group (established during 
Q3 2021/22) continued to meet on a quarterly basis to progress 
implementation of the Strategic Property Review and to 
consider assets in line with the council’s corporate priorities.  

BSF2.1 Develop a comprehensive 
and ethical Procurement 
Policy that reflects our 
corporate goals and aims

Narrative update reporting on 
completion of activity and an 
annual review of success

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23.

BSF2.2 Conduct a Strategic 
Property Review to identify 
opportunities to enhance, 
redevelop, transfer the 
councils assets to maximise 
income and/or benefit to the 
district

Narrative report on the 
progress of the SPR 

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

The Strategic Property Review was completed in Q3 2021/22.

BSF2.3 Complete an asset 
management plan to provide 
a comprehensive policy to 
inform how assets may be 
most efficiently maintained

Narrative report on progress 
of this within the SPR

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23. 

BSF2.4 Undertake a full review of all 
leases and licences to ensure 
council income is collected 
when due and maximised

Narrative report on progress 
of this within the SPR

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

The review was completed during Q1 2021/22.

P
age 179

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 4 performance updates 44whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

BSF2.5 Undertake a detailed review 
of the financial position of 
the Beacon in Wantage and 
determine what changes to 
its operations can be made to 
improve its viability

Narrative update on the 
review of financial position of 
the Beacon

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In September, the council appointed a consultant to review 
activities at the Beacon. They are due to report at the end of 
Q3.

BSF2.6 Insource our grounds 
maintenance and public 
conveniences contracts to 
save funds and increase 
flexibility over how our 
public spaces are used and 
managed

Narrative update on the 
activities of the new insourced 
team and the initiatives being 
undertaken

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 2022/23, the council undertook job evaluations of 
the Grounds Maintenance team and are now awaiting written 
confirmation of the results. The next stage of this exercise is to 
arrange for a formal consultation of the grounds maintenance 
staff to consider contractual terms and conditions (with a view 
to bringing them inline with the council’s policies). 
 
Also, in Q2, the Grounds Maintenance depot moved to a 
temporary location at the former South Oxfordshire District 
Council site at Crowmarsh. Officers are in negotiations with 
Taylor Wimpey about a potential long-term depot at Great 
Western Park. 
 
The council have continued to explore the acquisition of 
electric vehicles for the Grounds Maintenance team during 
Q2. Unfortunately, however, the specification required to tow 
large grass cutting machinery/equipment is not yet available on 
the market (further, the infrastructure required to charge such 
vehicles would only be installed after the Grounds Maintenance 
depot had moved to a permanent location). Officers have, 
therefore, prepared an update for SMT and will submit a growth 
bid to continue the leasing of existing vehicles. 

P
age 180

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 45whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Work in partnership to 
influence and shape regional 
and national agendas to 
maximise opportunities 
for our communities and 
businesses

Narrative report on work 
with partners across the 
organisation which will 
maximise opportunities for 
communities and businesses

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Economic Development team engaged 
with multiple partners to define approaches to apply for (and 
allocate any money awarded through) both the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund and the Rural England Prosperity Fund. 
 
The External Funding Lead and the Technical Services team, in 
partnership with Oxfordshire County Council, worked on ways of 
developing electric vehicle infrastructure and car clubs across the 
county. As part of these efforts they looked to ensure that their 
strategy/strategies aligned with the needs of communities and 
businesses within the Vale.   

WIP1.1 Create a partnerships 
protocol. Map our current 
partnerships and assess 
the effectiveness of each. 
clarify which local, regional, 
and national partnerships 
Vale needs to have an 
active presence in and focus 
resource accordingly. 

Narrative update on the 
position of this work and 
an annual review after it's 
completion

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q2 2022/23 – this work was completed 
during Q4 2021/22. It will now be subject to an annual review.

WIP1.2 Develop an enhanced 
consultations strategy 
and process to ensure we 
respond to consultations and 
proactively lobby national 
government and other bodies 
on matters that impact our 
corporate priorities

Narrative update on proactive 
work to lobby govt and key 
organisations, update on key 
consultations responded to 
within the period.  
 
Quantitative -- Number of 
consultations replied to.

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale responded to one external 
consultation:  The Building Safety Regulator (BSR) Operating 
Standard Rules consultation. The BSR will be operating as part of 
the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) from April 2023.  
 
In addition, work continued on assessing the impact of the 
council’s submissions. This is designed to ensure that responses 
are consistent and lead to demonstrable change in policy/
decisions.

WIP1.3 Create a framework that sets 
out how we will engage with 
developers, other councils, 
and members to maximise 
opportunities for our priorities 
to shape development

Narrative update on the work 
of planning and engagement 
activity 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Master 
Planning Lead

During Q2 2022/23, several meetings have been held with 
developers, promoters and public/private landowners. Officers 
have also continued to meet with members, town/parish council, 
other interested stakeholders, Oxfordshire County Council and 
Homes England. These events are part of the Vale’s framework of 
coordinated activity in this area.

P
age 181

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 46whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIP1.4 Work with businesses 
to undertake economic 
development review 
to ensure that council 
is providing support 
to SMEs, homebased 
businesses, supporting skills 
development, and ensuring 
that businesses are playing a 
role in place making 

A narrative report of activity 
to undertake an economic 
development review and 
details of how the Council 
is supporting SME's at this 
time.  
 
Quantitative information from 
CRM detailing number of 
businesses engaged with

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 2022/23, the Economic Development team focused 
upon compiling and submitting investment plans to unlock the 
council’s conditional allocations from the UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund (UKSPF) and Rural England Prosperity Fund (REPF). If the 
bids are successful, the funding will enable a three-year pipeline 
of projects for the Vale (including supporting SMEs through the 
development of the visitor economy and facilitating business 
decarbonisation) and would substantially uplift the council’s 
Economic Development budget. 
 
Nine enquiries were logged in Tractivity, with 267 emails triaged 
through the business support inbox during this period. 
 
Throughout the quarter, the Economic Development team 
continued to work in countywide partnerships to identify support 
schemes for local businesses. A focus during Q2 was on the 
development of materials to support companies through the 
emerging cost-of-living-crisis.  
 
A business intelligence gathering exercise is scheduled to take 
place in Q3.

P
age 182

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 47whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIP1.5 Strengthen any existing 
network of local business 
groups to increase 
awareness of the council’s 
ED programmes and 
communication throughout 
the district

Detail engagement with small 
business newsletter, number 
of recipients, clickthrough

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

By the end of Q2 2022/23, there were 2,385 subscribers to South 
and Vale’s economic development newsletter. There was 1,318 
clickthroughs from these – and the average open rate was 50.61 
per cent (much higher than the industry average). 
 
From July to September, there were 6,729 pageviews of the South 
and Vale Business Support Website – 2,222 new users visited the 
website. 
 
Twitter activity undertaken during the quarter created 10,316 
impressions, gained 11 new followers and generated 1,941 profile 
visits.  
 
At the end of Q1 2022/23, South and Vale Business Support’s 
Facebook page created 9,677 impressions, generated 596 
engagements and there were 151 profile visits.  
 
Overall comms activity was affected by the national period of 
mourning in September. This forced the cancellation of two 
planned newsletters and social media comms.  
 
The sponsorship of the Business Buzz networking events came to 
an end in September due to a lack of appropriate budget.

P
age 183

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 48whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIP1.6 Input into countywide 
and Arc-wide economic 
recovery plans to maximise 
understanding of the local 
impact of Covid-19 and 
to help shape the support 
available to our local 
economy

Narrative update on activity 
supporting WIP 1.5

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 2022/23, the Economic Development team supported 
the Oxfordshire Inclusive Economic Partnership (OIEP) Steering 
Group. The OIEP Steering Group seeks to drive business and 
community engagement through educational attainment, inclusive 
recruitment and social value in procurement. Officers will continue 
to work with the OIEP as they build “pledges” from the local 
community ahead of a showcase event scheduled for January.  
 
The council also contributed to discussions with the Oxfordshire 
Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP) regarding the Partnership’s 
plans to refresh the economic recovery plan, the Local Industrial 
strategy (LIS) and the county’s economic baseline data.   
 
Throughout the quarter, the Economic Development team 
continued to work in countywide partnerships to identify support 
schemes for local businesses. A focus during Q2 was on the 
development of materials to support companies through the 
emerging cost-of-living-crisis.  
 
The Economic Development team also focused upon compiling 
and submitting investment plans to unlock the council’s conditional 
allocations from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) and 
Rural England Prosperity Fund (REPF) in Q2. If the bids are 
successful, the funding will enable a three-year pipeline of projects 
for the Vale.

WIP1.7 Work with Oxfordshire 
County Council to introduce 
civil parking enforcement for 
the Vale

Narrative update on progress 
in this area, if impacts are 
seen in other areas as a 
result of this activity, those 
impacts should be included 
(PnD parking income for 
example)

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2, the Vale published new draft car park orders that 
reflect civil parking enforcement legislation. Cabinet agreed to 
these in July – the council is scheduled to make the new orders in 
October and implement civil parking enforcement in its off-street 
carparks on 1 November 2022.   

P
age 184

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 49whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 Work with and support our 
residents, businesses and 
communities to effect and 
enable change 

Narrative update on work 
with Parish Councils, 
particularly relating to the 
transfer of management of 
assets. Update on other 
activity that directly supports 
residents and business 
effecting  change 
 
Quantitative elements - 
number of neighbourhood 
plans adopted, number 
of community initiatives 
undertaken, breakdown of 
assets where management 
has been transferred

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q2 2022/23, the Vale continued their pilot of a simpler approach 
to neighbourhood planning. Officers delivered five capacity 
building workshops in Q2. These workshops aimed at helping the 
pilot groups:

• identify areas their Neighbourhood Priority Statements could 
focus on 
• explore why and how to engage their communities
• develop a draft template/agreed format for their Neighbourhood 
Priority Statements
• gather and assess evidence 
• add value to planning and place-making

As of 30 September 2022, there are 15 made Neighbourhood 
Plans in the district (one of which is currently under review). There 
are nine plans in progress, three of which have completed pre-
submission consultations.

The Vale’s Planning Policy team also continued to work on the 
development of the Joint Local Plan in Q2. As part of these efforts, 
they invited all parish councils to complete a questionnaire about 
the services and facilities in their area. The responses received will 
feed into an assessment of the district’s settlements to determine 
their profile and the level of services available locally – having a 
strong understanding of the nature of the Vale’s towns and villages 
is a key part of the council’s Joint Local Plan evidence base.

P
age 185

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 50whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIP2.1 Support new business 
start-ups and support 
schemes for businesses 
and residents through post 
Covid-19 economic recovery 
initiatives, by implementing 
the “Opening Up High Streets 
Safely Fund” and associated 
schemes 

Narrative update on support 
schemes for businesses and 
residents. Updates on any 
relevant schemes should be 
included

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 2022/23, work continued to consolidate independent 
traders on a single e-commerce platform as part of the council’s 
Digital District Programme (Virtual High Street Initiative). A total of 
114 traders are registered on the portal, with over 1,713 products 
available to order through the site. The council has also started to 
look at extending its contract with ShopAppy (the website hosting 
the e-commerce platform) beyond the initial pilot period (due to 
end March 2023).  
 
Also, in Q2, the Economic Development team supported the 
Oxfordshire Inclusive Economic Partnership (OIEP) Steering 
Group. The OIEP Steering Group seeks to drive business and 
community engagement through educational attainment, inclusive 
recruitment and social value in procurement. Officers will continue 
to work with the OIEP as they build “pledges” from the local 
community ahead of a showcase event scheduled for January.  
 
Throughout the quarter, the Economic Development team 
continued to work in countywide partnerships to identify support 
schemes for local businesses. A focus during Q2 was on the 
development of materials to support companies through the 
emerging cost-of-living-crisis.  
 
A business intelligence gathering exercise is scheduled to take 
place in Q3. 
 
During Q2 2022/23, the Economic Development team focused 
upon compiling and submitting investment plans to unlock the 
council’s conditional allocations from the UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund (UKSPF) and Rural England Prosperity Fund (REPF). If the 
bids are successful, the funding will enable a three-year pipeline 
of projects for the Vale including supporting SMEs through the 
development of the visitor economy and facilitating business 
decarbonisation

P
age 186

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 51whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIP2.2 Find ways to elevate the 
understanding of and 
promote Neighbourhood 
Plans in planning 
decisions with a review of 
development appraisal and 
communications with all 
parties prior to an application 
coming to committee 

Narrative update on activity 
to support and promote 
Neighbourhood plan 
adoption. 
 
Quantitative measure - 
number of Neighbourhood 
plans adopted 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Officers have continued to use internal planning communications 
to confirm new neighbourhood plans and the appropriate weight 
they carry when determining planning applications. All relevant 
parish councils are informed of the council’s decision to progress 
and make neighbourhood plans and webpages are updated 
accordingly. 
 
During Q2 2022/23, the Vale has been working towards hosting 
workshops between parish councils with made neighbourhood 
plans and officers from the Development Management team. 
These events will start in October and will provide neighbourhood 
planning groups with an opportunity to explain their policies and 
give an insight into how they contribute towards meeting the 
neighbourhood plan’s objectives. It will also give planning officers 
an opportunity to highlight any potential challenges that the 
neighbourhood planning groups may face in implementing their 
proposals. 
 
As of 30 September 2022, there are 15 made Neighbourhood 
Plans in the district (one of which is currently under review). There 
are nine plans in progress, three of which have completed pre-
submission consultations.

P
age 187

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 52whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIP2.3 Review the planning 
committee process to identify 
ways to maximise public 
understanding, engagement 
and participation as well as 
supporting member input into 
the committee meetings with 
opportunities for training and 
development

Narrative update on activities 
to review and promote the 
activities and understanding 
of the planning committee.  
 
Quantitative elements - 
Online engagement figures 
relating to the planning 
portal/planning sections of 
the website.

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Head of 
Planning

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale maintained the processes that had 
been developed around the Planning Committee. This meant that 
the Weekly Chair Briefing sessions continued – including debriefs 
on the meetings of the Committee. 
 
In addition, the Chair and the Deputy Chair, along with the 
Development Manager, have regularly reviewed all call-in requests 
to determine whether they should be referred to the Planning 
Committee. They have also decided which Committee items 
require a site visit. 
 
The Chair and Deputy Chair continue to receive the Planning 
Committee decision monitoring report, which in conjunction with 
the Weekly Chair Briefings, help to inform any requirements for 
member training sessions – in September, training was provided 
for all councillors in relation to appeals and looked at Planning 
Committee overturn decisions.  
 
The Vale have continued with the Town and Parish Council 
Surgeries during Q2 2022/23. Uptake has, however, remained low 
(officers are looking at ways to improve this).   
 
Officers also continue, where differing views exist, to advise 
town and parish councils of their recommendations on planning 
applications. This helps to explain why decisions are being made 
and improves partnership working between the Vale and these 
organisations.  
 
Five Planning Committee meetings were held between July and 
September 2022.  
06-07-2022 – this had 133 views  
27-07-2022 – this had 148 views 
17-08-2022 – this had 1,500 views 
07-09-2022 – this had 314 views  
28-09-2022 – this had 62 views 

P
age 188

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 5 performance updates 53whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIP2.4 Review developer 
contribution collection and 
spend policy and improve 
ward member and parish 
council involvement with 
a clear timetable that is 
triggered by officers, with 
improved communication 
from the council 

A narrative update on 
activities relating to the 
spend of CIL 
 
Quantitative element - 
Breakdown of CIL spend by 
type/amount/area

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Head of 
Finance

Work is currently in progress for the transfer of the October CIL 
allocations to relevant town and parish councils. The total amount 
transferred will be reported in Q3. 
 
During Q2 2022/23, the Vale approved CIL funding of £46,381 to 
upgrade the Faringdon Leisure Centres power supply.  
 
Projects to be considered for CIL funding allocation as part of 
2023/24 budget setting were submitted and collated during Q2. 
These will be put forward for review by the CIL Member Working 
Group who will make recommendations to Cabinet – projects 
previously allocated CIL funding will also be reviewed.

WIP2.5 Refresh our community 
grants scheme and introduce 
a Community Lottery to raise 
funds for groups to develop 
in line with our corporate 
objectives 

Narrative report on activity 
relating to new community 
grants, information relating 
to the implementation of the 
Community Lottery, and once 
implemented performance 
metrics

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Council continued to promote the White 
Horse Community Lottery Scheme. One new “good cause” was 
approved between July and September. Throughout the quarter, 
12,113 lottery tickets were sold generating an annual estimated 
income of £29,234 for the voluntary sector. 
 
Preparations were made for the reopening of the Vale Climate 
Action Fund (scheduled for October 2022).  
 
Officers also drafted a partnership grant paper seeking a decision 
on the future of the council’s Partnership Grant Fund during Q2. 
This is scheduled to be considered by Cabinet later in the year. 

P
age 189

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 54whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 1 Improve our use of 
technology to increase 
understanding and access 
to what we do, how we work 
and the decisions we make.

Narrative update on 
any work relating 
to  technological 
implementation/adaptation 
and processes making 
greater use of existing 
technology to bring about 
efficiency or increase 
accessibility.

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale completed the procurement of 
a new Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system. 
The supplier is currently building the platform and the council 
expects it to go live during Q3/Q4. 
 
The CRM will be key to increasing online access and improving 
the customer experience. It will also provide better-quality 
information/data around both customer contact and fulfilment 
which can then be used to make further enhancements.  
 
The initial focus of the CRM will be on customer accounts, 
garden waste and general enquiries.

WIOI1.1 Provide and maintain a new 
Vale website with increased 
accessibility to services 
and information, on multiple 
devices

Quantitative report on 
website usage

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

During Q2 2022/23, web traffic was slightly down on the 
previous reporting period (this was due in part to this quarter 
covering the summer months). Planning, recycling/waster and 
council tax remain the top pages for traffic. 
 
Q2 Web Usage Figures: 
174,157 unique visitors 
468,017 page views 
2m05s average visit duration. 
 
The Vale website now also includes a data hub where it 
regularly publishes reports and data on its responsibilities, 
projects and programmes. The council continues to increase 
the amount of information that it provides through this route. 

P
age 190

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 55whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIOI1.2 Develop our use of social 
media platforms to reach and 
engage with more residents 
and local businesses 

Narrative report on new 
social media initiatives 
 
Quantitative report on social 
media engagement

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

During Q2 2022/23, the council’s Facebook reach was slightly 
down on the previous quarter. This was partly due to a small 
decrease in the total number of posts. 
 
Facebook 
• Posts: 233 
• Reach: 378,095 
• New fans: 255 
Total fans: 6,063 
 
Reach on Instagram, however, was up by over 1,000 despite a 
negligible increase in the number of posts compared to Q1. 
 
Instagram 
• Posts: 138 
• Reach: 6,848 
• New followers: 39 
Total followers 567 
 
Twitter impressions were down in Q2, but this was likely due to 
a significantly lower number of tweets being issued. 
 
Twitter 
• Tweets: 216 
• Impressions: 95,028 
• New followers: 47 
Total followers: 9,220 
 
In addition to the quarterly reporting cycle, the Vale is now also 
tracking social media reach and impact to study the long-term 
trends in the effectiveness of its work in this area.

P
age 191

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 56whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIOI1.3 Introduce live streaming and 
recordings of public meetings 
to increase accessibility 
and understanding of the 
democratic process

Number/Percentage of public 
meetings streamed live 
 
Number/percentage of public 
meetings available to watch 
online

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

The council has now vacated the offices at Milton Park. All 
future meetings, with the exception of Full Council, will now 
be held at Abbey House. IT has been installed that not only 
ensures that these meetings can be livestreamed, but also 
allows both members and the general public to interact without 
the use of Surface Pros.  
 
Unfortunately, the Vale will not be able to livestream Full 
Council meetings (which will be held at the Beacon). Officers 
are, however, currently exploring potential solutions.  
 
During Q2 2022/23, 100% of public meetings were broadcast.

WIOI1.4 Review the current use of 
online surveys assessing 
their take up over time, 
and by subject, as well as 
reviewing survey design 

Narrative update on survey 
utilisation/progress towards 
this review/details of any 
particularly successful 
surveys

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale launched a consultation on 
the draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. By the end of the 
quarter, the council had already received over 200 responses. 
This feedback will be analysed during Q3 and will inform 
the updated draft when it is considered by Scrutiny and the 
Cabinet.  
 
In order to both increase participation rates and to improve 
the interactivity of consultations, the Vale began to work on 
procuring a new engagement portal. It is hoped that by allowing 
the embedding of different types of media into surveys, an 
updated system will help officers create even more engaging 
content.

P
age 192

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 57whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

PROGRAMME 2 Increase meaningful 
engagement and 
communication with everyone

Narrative update on 
successful communication 
initiatives

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

In Q2, the Vale ran 33 campaigns. 10 of these highlighted/
publicised events and council news, 20 promoted behavioural 
change and three promoted diversity and inclusion. (The 
behavioural change campaigns included the highlighting of 
flytipping prosecutions with the intention of helping to deter this 
type of activity). 
 
Between July and September, the council produced three town 
and parish and residents’ newsletters and disseminated five 
InFocus newsletters to share important stories and information 
with our communities. The Vale also promoted the Community 
Governance Review consultations to local residents. 
 
Following the death of Her Majesty the Queen, the council 
carried out its required communications as part of Operation 
London Bridge. This included sharing time sensitive information 
with stakeholders and keeping residents informed about 
key details such as the funeral and the location of books of 
condolence. All of the Vale’s other regular communications 
and campaigns were paused throughout the period of national 
mourning. 
 
During Q2 2022/23, the Vale launched a consultation on the 
draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. To assist with this work, 
materials were provided to members to support engagement 
with both colleagues and community groups. The survey was 
also promoted to all staff, with a drop-in session held for those 
wishing to address questions directly to the People and Culture 
team.

P
age 193

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 58whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIOI2.1 Ensure the creation of 
community liaison groups 
form part of all early stages 
of development planning, 
to understand local 
infrastructure needs and 
support community cohesion  

Narrative update on the 
creation and utilisation of 
community liaison groups 
and the development of the 
policy 
 
Quantitative measure - 
number of community liaison 
groups 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, officers progressed the Joint Local Plan 
Regulation Part 1 Issues Consultation Report. This consultation 
(held in Q1) asked for views on a draft vision for the Joint 
Local Plan and considered a wide range of topics from the 
environment and healthy lifestyles to infrastructure needs. 
As part of this exercise, the team reached out to stakeholder 
contacts and community groups. 
 
The Vale’s Planning Policy team also continued to work on 
the development of the Joint Local Plan in Q2. As part of 
these efforts, they invited all parish councils to complete a 
questionnaire about the services and facilities in their area. The 
responses received will feed into an assessment of the district’s 
settlements to determine their profile and the level of services 
available locally – having a strong understanding of the nature 
of the Vale’s towns and villages is a key part of the council’s 
Joint Local Plan evidence base. 
 
No community liaison groups were established between July 
and September. 

WIOI2.2 Refresh Town and Parish 
Forums so they are more 
interactive and useful for 
communities and develop 
the Connecting Communities 
Policy

Narrative update on Town 
and Parish Forums and 
the development of the 
connected communities 
policy

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report in Q2 2022/2023.

P
age 194

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 59whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIOI2.3 Work with communities, 
schools and other local 
organisations on shared 
campaigns and initiatives that 
help further our corporate 
objectives 

Narrative update on comms 
and engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools and 
other local organisations

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale shared the latest cost-of-living 
information, support funding and advice with residents 
and members. As part of this work, the council created an 
information pack for a BBC Oxford event in Abingdon on 26 
September. 

Through its ‘Crashing’ and ‘Chelsea’s Story’ surveys, the Vale 
continued to work with schools to support awareness about 
sexual exploitation. This project included the organisation of 
theatre performances at schools followed by completion of 
feedback forms that have been developed in partnership with 
the Community Safety team. 

During Q2 2022/23, officers from the council also worked with 
local schools on the development of a survey for students and 
teachers on topics related to waste and recycling. 

The Vale undertook a considerable amount of work to promote 
healthy communities within the district. Through its summer 
programme of health and wellbeing activities for residents and 
young people, the council promoted the You Move programme 
(designed to help families on low incomes engage with physical 
activity) across the school holidays as well as highlighting its 
own schedule of activities. In addition, officers from across 
several teams worked closely together to deliver a range of free 
events for young people and their families. 

To help reduce anti-social behaviour during the holidays, the 
council also promoted the Summer of Skate sessions organised 
by the Community Safety team to engage with young people. 

In Q2 2022/23, the council supported the launch of the new 
Climate Action Oxfordshire website. This provides communities 
and residents with guidance on actions they can take to help 
tackle climate change. 

(this update continue on page 61)

P
age 195

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 60whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIOI2.3 Work with communities, 
schools and other local 
organisations on shared 
campaigns and initiatives that 
help further our corporate 
objectives 

Narrative update on comms 
and engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools and 
other local organisations

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

As part of Great Big Green Week, the Vale ran a social media 
campaign emphasising the work that the council is doing to 
reduce emissions, highlighting the support available to green 
community projects and encouraging people to get involved in 
local events. Throughout the summer the Vale also promoted 
free Litterbug activity trails for children and its litter mapping 
project. 

Q2 2022/23 also marked the first anniversary of the White 
Horse Community Lottery. The council, therefore, undertook 
work to highlight the difference that it has made to organisations 
across the district.

WIOI2.4 Reinstating residents surveys 
in a refreshed form - deliver 
effective ways for the public 
to have their say, to reach 
more people, mechanisms 
for feedback, more timely 
dialogue, educate and 
provide subject matter 
information to facilitate 
opinions being more informed

Narrative update to be 
provided on the progress of 
this work

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale carried out the communications 
and engagement plan for the Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. 
This included raising awareness of the campaign with the 
council’s external stakeholders via corporate comms channels.  
 
The Vale also promoted the Community Governance Review 
consultations to local residents to ensure that they know about 
the potential changes for their area. 
 
The procurement of a new consultation and engagement portal 
will help with the delivery of refreshed surveys. The council 
have also streamlined consultation processes to make it easier 
to collect feedback and has updated its reporting template 
to ensure responses can be presented in a concise and 
straightforward manner.  

WIOI2.5 Explore initiatives to increase 
voter registration and turnout 
levels at elections, especially 
amongst young people

Narrative update on 
individual initiatives and 
opportunities to encourage 
voter registration

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

During Q2 2022/23, the Vale carried out initial comms planning 
for the elections. It also started to look at the activities and 
actions of other local authorities in relation to initiatives and 
opportunities to encourage voter registration – the bulk of this 
work ahead of the 2023 local elections will take place in Q3/Q4. 

P
age 196

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 61whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIOI2.6 Ensure council’s 
consultations engage 
specifically with young people 
and other under-represented 
groups

A narrative report with input 
from the engagement/
comms teams and the 
equalities officer on activity 
to encourage these groups

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

The Vale provided a mandarin introduction to the draft Diversity 
and Inclusion Strategy survey within the offer of fully translated 
materials. The consultation was also supported by videos 
available in multiple languages. 
 
As part of the council’s efforts to increase levels of engagement 
with under-represented people and communities, a range of 
groups based around faith, age, disability and other protected 
characteristics were invited to take part in the draft Diversity 
and Inclusion Strategy consultation.

PROGRAMME 3 Strengthen our governance 
framework and address 
our policy gaps, improving 
transparency

Narrative update on policies/
strategies currently in 
development/awaiting 
approval/recently approved.

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 2022/23, the Planning Policy team continued to work 
on the development of the Joint Local Plan. 

WIOI3.1 Work to adopt new CIPFA 
financial management code 
to enhance our financial 
governance

Narrative update detailing 
the elements of the 
code which have been 
implemented, which are 
underway and which are yet 
to be started

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23.

WIOI3.2 Council reporting and 
decision-making templates to 
include impact on the climate 
emergency

Narrative update on 
significant decisions which 
have key environmental 
considerations, additionally 
any updates to key policies 
which have an focus on the 
climate emergency

Cllr Debby 
Hallett 

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

The action is complete. All council reporting and decision 
making templates have been updated to include climate change 
considerations.

P
age 197

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Theme 6 performance updates 62whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

Corp Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 
description Reporting Measure Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 
Title Q2 Performance Update

WIOI3.3 Review the councils 
constitution and scheme of 
delegation annually 

Narrative update with the 
outcome of the review

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

Progress continued to be made on the first tranche of 
amendments to the Constitution during Q2 2022/23. These will 
be taken to Full Council in October. 
 
In addition, new procurement rules and a whistleblowing/
anti-fraud policy have been developed and will be taken to 
the Constitution Review Group in late October (with a view to 
referring them to the Full Council for adoption in December).  

WIOI3.4 Increase and improve 
publicly available information 
– e.g.- code of conduct 
complaints (decision 
noted) FOIs (responses), 
corporate complaints (data)
Improve accessibility of 
corporate information through 
publishing on our website

Narrative update on relevant 
reviews/newly available 
information/website 
improvements and metrics 
 
Quantitative - FOI/
Complaints data

Cllr Debby 
Hallett

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

The Vale website includes a data hub where it regularly 
publishes reports and data on its responsibilities, projects and 
programmes. The council continues to increase the amount of 
information that it provides through this route. 
 
During Quarter 2 2022/23, the performance management report 
for Q1 2022/23 was published on the Vale’s website. This is 
intended to increase the public’s understanding of what the 
council does, how it works and how decisions are made. 
 
In Q2 2022/23, the Vale received 476 FOI/EIRs. 95% of these 
were responded to within the target time of 20 working days – 
this is in line with the ICO’s target. 
 
The Council received 26 stage one complaints, six stage 
two complaints and 0 new Local Government Ombudsman 
complaints between July and September 2022. The Stage one 
complaints break down as follows: 

• 18 Finance (inc. council tax & benefits)
• 5 Planning
• 1 Corporate Services
• 1 Development and Corporate Landlord
• 1 Housing and Environment

P
age 198

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


63whitehorse.gov.uk/corporateplan2020-2024

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.
Please contact customer services to discuss your requirements on 01235 422422

Policy and Programmes Team

Vale of White Horse District Council
Abbey House
Abbey Close
Abingdon
OX14 3JE

Email:  performance@southandvale.gov.uk 

Follow us

@whitehorsedc

@WhiteHorseDC

@valeofwhitehorsedc

P
age 199

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


Climate Action Plan

PERFORMANCE      
REPORT

2022/23 
Quarter TWO

October 2022

P
age 200



Introduction             3
Quarter context            4
Quarter two performance highlights         6

THEME 1  Our ways of working         7
THEME 2  Our service delivery         8
THEME 3  Our people           9
THEME 4  Our land           10
THEME 5  Our buildings           11
THEME 6  Our communities          12
THEME 7  Our partners           13

Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures 14
Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures  22
Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures    26
Theme 4: Our land - performance updates against reporting measures    28
Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures   30
Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures   33
Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures    38

Table of Contents

P
age 201



      3 whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

Introduction

The Vale of White Horse District Council Climate Action Plan 
(CAP) 2022-24 sets out to demonstrate and deliver the council’s 
commitment to the Corporate Plan objective of Tackling the Climate 
Emergency and target of becoming a carbon neutral council by 
2030, with a 75 per cent emissions reduction by 2025.

Progress on the actions and outputs in the CAP are reported 
quarterly, in line with the council’s Corporate Performance 
Management Framework. This report is the second iteration, 
and it is expected that it will evolve in line with the approach 
to Performance Management being embedded by the council, 
as well as from feedback from senior officers and Members. 
This report provides a strategic overview of the climate action 
performance across the council for Quarter two 2022/2023 (01 
July to 30 September 2022) and should be reviewed in context 
with the council’s quarterly Corporate Plan Priorities Strategic 
Performance Report. The council’s greenhouse gas emissions 
are also reported and published annually.

The CAP is one piece of a much larger picture, consisting of 
national, regional and local initiatives and plans all of which 
influence our priorities. The CAP was designed to be a live 
document, where quarterly progress reporting may result in the 
reprioritisation or refocusing of actions by Cabinet where necessary.

P
age 202

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf
http://Climate Action Plan 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/10/Vale-Q1-22_23-CAP-draft.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/10/Vale-Q1-22_23-CAP-draft.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/08/Greenhouse-gas-emissions-report-Vale-2021-22-final.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/08/Greenhouse-gas-emissions-report-Vale-2021-22-final.pdf


      4 whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

Quarter context
Extreme Weather 

In July 2022, a temperature of over 40°C was recorded for the first 
time in the UK. The Met Office’s chief of science and technology 

said exceeding 40 degrees Celsius in the UK was “virtually 
impossible” in an undisrupted climate. The extreme temperatures on 
this day were also much more widespread, compared to previous 
times when the preceding record temperature of 38 degrees Celsius 
was exceeded (2019). The extreme temperatures this quarter 
heavily affected services, with the closure of education settings 
and businesses, as well as leading to travel disruption and many 
weather-related emergency incidents. Overall, in July 2022, the UK 
saw just 56% of its average rainfall for July, making it the driest July 
in over 20 years, with southern England reporting its driest July on 
record.

Environment Act 

Significant delays to the publication of supplementary legislation 
and guidance which will provide the detail needed to allow 

effective implementation of the Environment Act 2021 continued 
across quarter two. The Environment Act received its royal assent 
in November 2021 and covers a broad range of issues across the 
four priority areas of air quality, biodiversity, water and waste. The 
implications of the Act will have significant impacts in certain areas of 
the council’s service delivery. Continued delays will have impacts to 
our ability to deliver some of our climate ambitions, particularly those 
related to waste and air quality.   

P
age 203

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


      5 whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

Impact of rising energy costs  

The cost-of-living crisis has come into sharp focus this quarter, with rising energy costs being of particular concern. Reducing energy use 
and making homes more energy efficient are important steps to tackling climate change, and the demand for domestic renewable energy 

solutions has soared. However, there is a rising concern that the strain on household finances may cause people to delay implementing more 
expensive energy saving measures to their homes or making an investment to purchase an electric vehicle for example. Figures released by the 
RAC in September 2022 showed that the cost of charging an electric car using public charge points on a pay-as-you-go basis, had risen by 42% 
in four months, demonstrating a current narrowing of the gap between the lower cost of charging an electric vehicle and refuelling with petrol or 
diesel.   

Review of Net Zero

This quarter, the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy commissioned an independent review of the government’s 
approach to delivering its net zero target. The Government’s Net Zero Strategy was published last year, setting out a pathway to reaching net 

zero greenhouse gas emissions by 2050. Since then, global factors have fundamentally changed the economic landscape in the UK. As a result 
of this, the review aims to consider its approach to net zero and ‘better understand the impact of the different ways to deliver its net zero pathway 
on the UK public and economy and maximise economic opportunities of the transition [to net zero].

At the council 

During quarter two the Climate and Biodiversity Team welcomed several new members of staff and are now at full capacity. We completed the 
first reporting period for the Climate Action Plan and have commenced our internal processes for performance management to ensure we 

deliver on our promises. 

 

P
age 204

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


 

Quarter two performance highlights

P
age 205



See Theme 1 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 14

      7whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur ways of working

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER TWO

THEME 1  Our ways of working
GOAL  

To make climate action 
inherent in all the council’s 
work by designing and 
updating our policies, 
strategies and
governance with the climate 
emergency at their core In quarter two, progress on developing the Joint Local Plan continued with officers processing 

consultation responses received in quarter one. The consultation included questions on 
planning for a move away from fossil fuels and greenhouse gas emissions, requiring new 
homes and buildings to minimise energy use through their layout and design, and to have the 
highest standards of fabric efficiency, transitioning to renewable forms of energy, as well as 
the concept of ‘20-minute neighbourhoods’. The consultation evidence at this stage shows 
that these proposals are mainly well supported by those who responded. The outcomes of the 
various stages of the public consultations and the examination are key to allowing the council 
to attain our corporate climate targets. 

During quarter two the council moved into new office accommodation at Abbey House, 
Abingdon. This transition has resulted in opportunity to install enhanced IT technology which 
improves the hybrid meeting experience. Committee and staff-based meetings can now 
be held both face-face and online simultaneously providing for a more natural committee 
experience and thus encouraging participation in the virtual option, progressing the aim of a 
digital by default approach to meetings where appropriate. The move to Abbey House has 
also resulted in a reduction in the number of Multi-Function Devices by five, which provides a 
reduction in both energy and toner consumption and consequent carbon savings.

P
age 206

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


GOAL  
To plan and deliver services 
to our residents in ways that 
reduce carbon emissions 
and prepare our district for
future ways of living

      8whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur service delivery

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER TWO

GOAL  THEME 2  Our service delivery

To reach the council’s target of being a carbon neutral council by 2030, we are reviewing 
all the services that the council delivers. This includes the waste collection service which 

accounts for just over 40% of our greenhouse gas emissions. In quarter two planning for, and 
communication around, the new waste route optimisation changes continued. These changes 
will be implemented at the beginning of next quarter and are designed to make the rounds more 
efficient across the district and reduce the fuel used by the waste collection vehicles. 

The CAP sets out the aim for the council to implement a delivery plan for council vehicles to 
be zero emission by 2025. Progression of this action continued this quarter with completion of 
the Energy Saving Trust’s Ultra-Low Emission Fleet Review and production of a draft report. 
The report’s initial findings suggest that all of the council fleet is suitable for replacement with 
currently available battery electric vehicles, with many offering a lower whole life cost than 
equivalent diesel vehicles. The report is now subject to officer review and a presentation for 
senior officers has been arranged for quarter three. 

See Theme 2 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on
page 22

P
age 207

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 3 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 26

      9whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur people

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER TWO

GOAL 

To create a culture of climate 
action amongst staff and 
councillors in the workplace 

THEME 3  Our people

To enable and encourage staff and councillors to embed climate action in their day-to-day 
work, a draft online training module on climate change has been developed and will be 

progressed through the council’s approval process for online training next quarter. The draft 
module includes information on understanding climate change, how we can respond to climate 
change, the South and Vale story so far and how climate action is a role for everyone.

This quarter, as part of ‘Great Big Green Week’ communications, staff were asked to take a 
photo showing what protecting the planet and supporting nature recovery means to them, with 
the aim of progressing the CAP commitment to building a culture of climate action amongst staff 
in the workplace and initiating some staff reflection and discussion on climate change.   P

age 208

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 4 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 28

      10whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur land

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER TWO

THEME 4  Our land
GOAL  
To approach our land
management with 
sustainable and 
climate-friendly 
best practices

Commitment to enhancing biodiversity on council owned land continued this quarter through 
extension of the ‘No Mow May’ campaign, to the end of the growing season. The aim of ‘No 

Mow May’ is to give plants, like clover and dandelions, the chance to grow and provide nectar 
for pollinators.  

This quarter officers have continued to explore other opportunities to plant more trees across 
the district and through a comms campaign, encouraged communities to get involved in tree 
planting and to plan for the upcoming planting season. 

P
age 209

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 5
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on
page 30

      11whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur buildings

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER TWO

THEME 5  Our buildingsGOAL  
To decarbonise our 
buildings and their 
operations to ensure they 
are fit for the future

To progress the council’s aim to ensure 
our buildings are fit for the future, in 

quarter two soft market testing and funding 
bid preparation was completed for Wantage 
and White Horse Leisure Centres. A Public 
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) 
bid was developed and written this quarter, 
ready for submission when the fund opens, 
which is anticipated to be quarter three. 

As part of the council’s office transition 
to Abbey House, Abingdon, more 
efficient LED lighting was installed as 
part of the occupation works to decrease 
energy consumption and a new Building 
Management System (BMS) at Abbey 
House is being sought. A BMS is an 
overarching control system that is 
responsible for monitoring and regulating 
a building’s equipment such as power 
systems, lighting and ventilation. A BMS is 
a key element of intelligently being able to 
manage energy demand and efficiency. 

P
age 210

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 6 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 33

      12whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur communities

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER TWO

THEME 6  Our communitiesGOAL  
To guide and support the 
district’s businesses, 
voluntary sector and 
communities to take action 
on the climate
emergency In line with the council’s aims to work with communities, businesses, the voluntary sector and 

residents to address the climate emergency, this quarter we have continued to deliver our 
strategic climate communications plan, sharing appropriate information on a variety of climate 
issues. For example, a weeklong promotion of the ‘Great Big Green Week’ initiative, celebrating 
local action on climate change and encouraging participation across the district. 

The council’s social media channels were also used to encourage members of the community 
to reduce waste and unnecessary consumption, by promoting Litter Bug activity trails for 
children, promoting reduce, reuse and recycling waste messages and the council’s litter 
mapping project which encourages litter pickers to map where they find the most litter, so 
resources can be targeted. 

As part of the council’s ongoing activity to respond of the cost-of-living crisis and recognising 
the links this has with the importance of energy saving, this quarter energy saving measures 
were promoted via a newly created council webpage and signposting to the Sustainable 
Warmth Fund managed by Oxfordshire County Council. This Fund provides means tested 
financial help for retrofit and home energy saving measures, with the aim of helping reduce 
energy bills, making homes warmer and more comfortable, and lowering carbon emissions.

P
age 211

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


See Theme 7 
performance 
updates against 
all reporting 
measures on 
page 38

      13whitehorse.gov.uk/climateactionOur partners

KEY ACTIVITIESQUARTER TWO

THEME 7  Our partnersGOAL  
To work in partnership to 
reduce carbon emissions 
across the district and 
support county-wide 
initiatives, making a 
greater impact together The CAP aims to build on the council’s partnership work as key to achieving our climate 

emergency targets. To this end, officers have been heavily involved in the engagement 
process for the Oxfordshire Net Zero Route Map and Action Plan, including attending 
workshops and focus groups on topics such as low carbon energy, land use and enabling 
mechanisms. This work will continue to develop over the next quarter.

In quarter two officers contributed to the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership’s (OxLEP) 
roundtable event ‘What would need to happen to get every business in Oxfordshire to cut 
their carbon emissions in half by 2030?’. OxLEP were also a consultee on the Green Skills 
Courses section of our UK Shared Prosperity Fund investment plan, which was submitted to 
Government in August 2022.

We promoted a survey from Community First Oxfordshire to communities, on how collaborative 
working between Town & Parish Councils and community groups can be used to help tackle 
climate related challenges. The results will be shared next quarter and officers will review the 
findings to help inform our approach with communities and parishes.

P
age 212

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2022/02/Vale-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW1 Update the 
Corporate Delivery 
Framework 
to include 
considerations for 
climate impact and 
carbon emissions 

Report on the 
climate impact and 
carbon emission 
considerations 
included in the 
Corporate Delivery 
Framework providing 
examples

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023

WOW2 Implement internal 
governance to 
progress and monitor 
the Climate Action 
Plan

Update on the 
internal governance 
including its structure 
and approach to 
progressing and 
monitoring the 
Climate Action Plan

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

The first reporting period for the Climate 
Action Plan (CAP) has completed. A 
methodology for performance management 
of the CAP is in place, in alignment with the 
Corporate Plan performance management 
approach. Quarterly reports are published 
that specifically give a strategic overview of 
climate activity and performance across the 
Council, including a RAG rating of progress, 
relevant narrative and statistical data where 
appropriate. Each quarter the performance 
report is reviewed by the Climate 
Emergency Advisory Committee, Scrutiny 
and Cabinet to ensuring we are on track to 
meet the Council’s carbon neutral targets, 
through delivery of the actions set out in 
the CAP. Therefore, CAP action WOW2 is 
complete.

WOW3 Publish an internal 
toolkit with guidance 
for staff on how to 
assess the climate 
implications of 
projects and 
proposals

Update on the 
content of the toolkit 
and examples of 
projects and proposal 
that have used 
learning from the 
toolkit for the climate 
implications section 
of reports

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 

No further update Q2 2022/2023

      14Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 213

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW4 Develop and 
implement measures 
for monitoring 
procurement 
contracts based on 
carbon emissions 
and climate action

Update on monitoring 
of procurement 
contracts based on 
carbon emissions 
and climate action, 
providing examples of 
relevant contracts

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

In Q2, work on identifying a suitable online 
reporting and monitoring tool continued. 
Consideration of funding for such a system 
will be part of budget setting activity

A suitable tool needs to 
be identified and will 
then require funding to 
pay for it

WOW5 Update the contract 
evaluation quality 
scoring procedure 
to include carbon 
reduction criteria

Report on how the 
contract evaluation 
quality scoring criteria 
has been updated 
to include carbon 
reduction criteria, 
providing examples 
of relevant awarded 
contracts

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

No further update Q2 2022/2023 Progress being made 
but further work to be 
done

WOW6 Deliver staff training 
on the Procurement 
Strategy which 
includes 
understanding of 
carbon reduction 
objectives and 
criterion

Percentage of staff 
who completed 
the procurement 
training quarterly / 
report on how the 
training has impacted 
procurement 
contracts, providing 
relevant examples

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Finance

The training planned for Q2 on revised 
procurement procedures has been delayed, 
while the Contracts Procedure Rules (CPRs) 
are being reviewed. This review is taking 
place as part of a wider review of the 
constitution and is designed to facilitate 
a revised approach to procurement more 
generally. The new CPRs will therefore 
influence the content of the procurement 
training.

      15Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 214

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW7 Conduct a review 
of all report writing 
templates, adding a 
climate implications 
section where 
missing 

Percentage of report 
writing templates 
that include a climate 
implications section 
/ Narrative on the 
updates to report 
writing templates

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Leader of the 
Council

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023 Whilst the report 
templates include 
climate implications, 
colleagues in the 
climate team will be 
asked to help develop 
a means of  assessing 
climate impact so that 
officers have something 
tangible to enable them 
to measure impact. 

WOW8 Divest direct 
investments from 
environmentally 
harmful activities 
where possible, 
whilst protecting the 
security of tax-payer 
funds

Narrative update 
on the introduction 
of the investment 
strategy and 
subsequent decision-
making around 
investing

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

No further update Q2 2022/2023

WOW9 Incorporate a 
policy statement on 
environment/social/
governance factors 
in the financial 
implications section 
of reports 

Update on the 
statement included 
in Council templates 
under financial 
implications 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23

      16Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 215

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW10 Engage with the 
council's investment 
portfolio to ask for 
and review their 
carbon reduction 
plans as part of 
decision making 
for the treasury 
management 
strategy

Number of 
investment portfolios 
reviewed for their 
carbon reduction 
plans / narrative 
on any changes in 
investments based on 
investment portfolio 
carbon reduction 
plans / percentage 
of Council portfolio 
in Paris Agreement 
aligned companies

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23

WOW11 Review internal audit 
processes and where 
appropriate include 
risk considerations 
for the climate 
emergency

Report on how 
the internal audit 
processes have been 
updated to include 
carbon emission 
considerations

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Finance

During Q2, the internal audit team have 
continued to use the updated audit 
scoping document on individual audits, 
to assess climate change risks, and where 
appropriate, incorporate climate change 
objectives into the scope of the review.

WOW12 Refine criteria 
for community 
infrastructure 
levy (CIL) funding 
to maximise 
opportunities for 
including carbon 
reduction measures 
in projects and 
supporting climate 
action projects 

"Narrative update on 
CIL spend to support 
the delivery of local 
infrastructure 
 
Quantitative elements 
- Total CIL spend and 
spend break down"

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 
/ Head of 
Finance

Projects for consideration for CIL funding 
allocation as part of 2023/24 budget 
setting have been submitted and collated.  
These will be put forward for review by 
the CIL Member Working Group who will 
make recommendations to Cabinet for 
which projects should receive CIL funding 
in 2023/24 Capital Programme.  Projects 
previously allocated CIL funding will also be 
reviewed. 
 
CIL funding approved during Q2 = 
£46,381  for Faringdon leisure centre power 
supply upgrade

      17Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 216

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW13 Promote community 
infrastructure levy 
(CIL) criteria to 
all relevant staff 
to ensure they 
maximise carbon 
emission reductions 
in all CIL projects

Percentage of 
CIL projects that 
include carbon 
emission reduction 
considerations/ 
relevant project 
proposals, providing 
examples

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 
/ Head of 
Finance

"Projects for consideration for CIL 
funding allocation as part of 2023/24 
budget setting have been submitted and 
collated. These will be  reviewed by the CIL 
Member Working Group, who will make 
recommendations to Cabinet for which 
projects should receive CIL funding in 
2023/24 provisional capital programme. 
 
Wording was included on encouraging 
projects put forward to consider 
environmental implications. All internal 
projects will require consultation with the 
Climate Action Team.  Details of CIL projects 
that include carbon emission reduction 
considerations will be reported on an 
annual basis in Q4."

WOW14 Include more 
ambitious climate 
criteria in the 
conditions of our 
affordable housing 
grant funding

Updates on changes 
to the climate criteria 
of the affordable 
housing grant 
funding and how this 
has impacted new 
affordable housing 
developments, 
providing examples

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The Housing Delivery Strategy has been 
under development during Q2, and will 
come forward for consideration in Q3.  This 
will contain an action plan which includes 
the review of criteria for allocation of S106 
funds, including the climate criteria.  The 
council is currently recruiting to the new 
Housing Delivery Manager post that will 
support progression of this action.

New criteria on 
affordable housing 
funding are on track 
to be presented 
to members for 
consideration before 
the end of the 2022-23

      18Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 217

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW15 Include policies 
in the Joint Local 
Plan that will help 
deliver zero carbon 
development and 
encourage more 
sustainable choices

Narrative update on 
sustainable and net 
zero planning policies 
being developed 
and included in the 
emerging JLP

Long 
Term (2 
years 
plus to 
deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2 officers processed consultation 
responses from the Joint Local Plan 
consultation.The consultation included 
questions on planning for a move away from 
fossil fuels and greenhouse gas emissions, 
requiring new homes and buildings to 
minimise energy use through their layout 
and design, and have the highest standards 
of fabric efficiency, and transitioning to 
renewable forms of energy, as well as the 
concept of '20 minute neighbouhoods'. 
The consultation evidences that the above 
proposals are mainly well supported by 
those who responded. 

WOW16 Produce an options 
paper for setting 
up a carbon 
offsetting scheme for 
developers as part of 
the new Joint Local 
Plan

Report on options 
paper development 
and suggested ways 
forward

Long 
Term (2 
years 
plus to 
deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Officers are currently at early stage of 
work on scoping and vision for the Joint 
Local Plan,  (consultation was held in Q1). 
Progression of this work will consider 
detailed policy development and as part 
of this, may explore the merits of a carbon 
offsetting scheme for developers.

Work on this action is 
likely to be incorporated 
into the Joint Local Plan 
rather than progressed 
as a separate options 
paper.

WOW17 Produce an options 
paper for pool 
electric vehicles 
for use by council 
staff to reduce 
emissions from 
business mileage, 
implementing if 
approved 

Update on the 
development of 
options paper for 
piloting pool electric 
vehicles, including on 
the carbon emission 
savings and decision 
making progress

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q2, the staff mileage report digest was 
received from the Energy Saving Trust. 
Officers are in the early stages of exploring 
a contract for the supply of EV’s, to be used 
for a pilot for staff to use as pool cars.  Soft 
market testing for a 12 month trial is being 
undertaken. A specificaiton for the potential 
procurement of this trial is being prepared.  

      19Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 218

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW18 Develop and 
implement 
an internal 
communications plan 
to keep staff updated 
on climate action 
work, including 
useful advice and 
guidance on how to 
incorporate climate 
action into projects 
and programmes

Data on the 
number of internal 
communications 
campaigns on climate 
action work and a 
narrative update 
on the type of 
information shared 
and any feedback 
from staff on the use 
of the information

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

During Q2 through the weekly staff email 
update, staff were informed about five 
climate action projects, including the Great 
Big Green Week national campaign, the 
Oxfordshire Climate Action website and the 
Climate Action Fund launch. Staff were also 
alerted to the councils' new Climate and 
Biodiversity officers being in post and the 
support they can offer to services.

WOW19 Move to a digital by 
default approach 
for virtual meetings 
where possible 
given the current 
conditions around 
decision making in 
Local Government 

Percentage of virtual 
meetings taken place, 
benchmark to include 
CEAC, Scrutiny, 
Cabinet and Council 
meetings

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Leader of the 
Council

Head of Legal 
and Democratic

The council has now vacated 135 Milton 
Park and moved to Abbey House. All 
meetings, with the exception of full council, 
will be held in the meeting room at Abbey 
House.  IT has been installed during Q2 to 
ensure that meetings can be live streamed 
and which enable members and members 
of the public to interact.  Council meetings 
will be held in the Beacon . Unfortunately, 
we are unable to live stream council 
meetings, but we are looking at potential 
solutions. The Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee remains a virtual committee. 

      20Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 219

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

WOW20 Improve our use of 
existing technology 
to move to digital by 
default working 

Update on the use 
of technology for 
meetings; data on 
percentage of MFD 
printing 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q2 meeting Room 1 at Abbey House 
was enahnced with MS Teams Rooms 
technology which improves the hybrid 
meeting experience. Committee and staff 
based meetings can be held both face-face 
and online simultaneously providing for a 
more natural committee experience. All 
committee meetings except Full Council 
can be accommodated at Abbey House. 
The move to Abbey House has resulted in 
reduction of MFDs being deployed to the 
main office by 5 devices; reducing both 
energy and toner consumption.

WOW21 Develop and 
implement an anti-
idling policy for staff 
and contractors on 
council business, 
to ensure engines 
are turned off when 
appropriate

Update on the 
development of the 
policy and examples 
of anti-idling 
implementation from 
staff and contractors

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
for Climate 
Emergency and 
Environment

Head of 
Corporate 
Service

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023

      21Theme 1 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 220

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD1 a) Prepare new waste 
management approach 
to align with provisions 
of the Environment Bill 

Narrative report 
to outline steps to 
influence partners 
and our actions to 
reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
                      

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q2, work continued on developing 
the strategic approach to future waste 
services and a number of information 
gathering exercises took place, to help 
inform preperations for the new waste 
contract.

SD2 b) Specify new waste 
management contract 
with route optimisation, 
collection frequency and 
vehicle size to minimise 
carbon emissions

Narrative report 
to outline steps to 
influence partners 
and our actions to 
reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
                         

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q2, the council communicated 
with residents about the new waste round 
optimisation changes, which will take 
place at the start of Q3.  These changes 
are designed to make the rounds more 
efficient and reduce the fuel used by 
waste collection vehicles. 

SD3 c) Trial electric refuse 
vehicles and other 
relevant vehicle 
options, to identify 
the most suitable 
vehicles for reducing 
carbon emissions whilst 
maintaining service 
delivery 

Narrative report 
to outline steps to 
influence partners 
and our actions to 
reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
                         

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023

SD4 d) Replace end of life 
waste collection vehicles 
with electric fleet where 
range available allows

Narrative report 
to outline steps to 
influence partners 
and our actions to 
reduce overall waste                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
                         

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

During Q2, a review of the council's 
approach to ownership of fleet 
capital (waste collection vehicles) was 
undertaken.

      22Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 221

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD5 Explore opportunities 
for a new waste depot 
including research 
into renewable energy 
supplies

Update on proposals 
for a new waste 
depot, including 
potential carbon 
reduction figures 

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

In Q2, opportunities continued to be 
explored and it is hoped that a report 
will be presented to members in Q4 
2022/2023, with an update on discussions 
and some options for decision.

SD6 Develop a business 
case and implement a 
delivery plan for council 
vehicles to be zero 
emission by 2025, where 
available on the market

Data on potential 
carbon reduction 
savings from 
switching vehicles 
to zero emission; 
narrative report 
on business case 
development and 
delivery plan for 
doing so, including 
market options for 
EVs

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and 
Corporatre 
Landlord

In Q2 the Energy Saving Trust completed 
an Ultra-Low Emission Fleet Review for 
the council and provided a draft report. 
Initial findings suggest that all of the 
council fleet is suitable for replacement 
with currently available battery electric 
vehicles, with many offering a lower whole 
life cost than equivalent diesel vehicles. 
The report is now subject to officer review. 
A presentation for senior officers has been 
arranged for Q3.

      23Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 222

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD7 Install electric vehicle 
(EV) charge points in 
council depot and other 
locations as necessary 
to meet needs of council 
fleet 

Data on the number 
of EV charge points 
installed for use 
by council fleet; 
narrative update on 
the location of the 
EV charge points and 
how they meet the 
needs of the council 
fleet

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress Q2 2022/2023 We have been exploring 
the aquisition of Electric 
Vehicles however the 
specification required 
to tow large grass 
cutting machinery and 
equipment is not yet 
available on the market.  
Also the infrastucture 
required to charge the 
vehicles will be installed 
only when we move to a 
permanent depot at GWP.  
For the moment, officers 
are preparing an update 
to SMT and will submit 
a growth bid to continue 
leasing existing vehicles. 

SD8 Feedback on planning 
applications to 
include signposting to 
information sources 
to improve the energy 
efficiency of proposals 

Data on the 
percentage of 
applications that 
include sign posting 
to energy efficiency 
advice 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Planning

No further update Q2 2022/2023

SD9 Update the council 
planning and 
development webpages 
to signpost to advice 
on energy efficiency 
considerations for 
inclusion in planning 
applications

Update on the energy 
efficiency information 
provided on the 
council webpages; 
data on the number 
of clicks on the links

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Planning

No further update Q2 2022/2023

      24Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 223

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

SD10 Work with our town and 
parish councils who are 
developing projects that 
reduce carbon emissions 
locally by providing 
advice on planning 
permissions needed for 
their projects to be a 
success

Report on support 
provided to town 
and parish councils 
on their carbon 
reduction projects; 
data on number of 
carbon emissions 
reduction projects 
submitted by town 
and parish councils

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Planning

No further update Q2 2022/2023

SD11 Support the 
implementation of the 
air quality action plan 
across the district

Narrative containing 
updates/changes 
to AQ monitoring 
techniques, an update 
on work with partners 
to monitor AQ and 
details of published 
AQ measures

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency 
and 
Environment

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

In Q2, the contract to engage 
consultants on the new Air Quality 
Plans was completed and a contract was 
provisionally awarded.  Work is due to 
start in Q3, with completion of the new 
Plans expected to be in Spring 2023.

      25Theme 2 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 224

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

P1 Provide all-staff and 
councillor training on 
the council's climate 
action plan and carbon 
literacy

Data on percentage 
of staff that have 
taken the climate 
action plan training; 
narrative on how staff 
have integrated the 
training into their 
work, using case 
studies 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

During Q2, a draft of an internal, online 
training module on climate change 
was written and developed and a first 
draft version has been uploaded on 
the council's online learning platform 
for review and refinement. This will be 
progressed through the council's approval 
process for online training, in Q3.

P2 Provide enhanced 
specialist training on 
latest carbon reduction 
or climate action 
approaches to relevant 
staff and councillors

Data on percentage 
of specialist training 
delivered to staff; 
narrative on how staff 
identify the training 
they need and how 
they have used the 
training in their work 

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services / Head 
of Policy and 
Programmes

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023. To 
follow after implementation of CAP Action 
P1. 

P3 Ensure there is 
relevant skill and 
capacity to support 
grant application 
writing and bidding 
for climate related 
funds, maximising the 
opportunities to include 
carbon emissions 
reductions and energy 
efficiency in all projects

Dedicated bid writing 
resource secured; 
Data on the number 
of applications to 
grants and funds 
that relate to climate 
action and carbon 
emission reduction; 
narrative report 
on grant writing 
skills and training 
that has taken 
place to maximise 
opportunities on bid 
writing

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q2, work was undertaken in preparing 
for an application to the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Scheme Phase 3b, 
with an expected submission date in Q3 
(October 2022). Work also continued on 
creation of a framework of governance 
processes and tools to assess and 
develop proposals for external funding 
opportunities. 

      26Theme 3 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 225

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

P4 Implement a green 
travel plan for all 
staff and councillors, 
including a digital by 
default approach where 
possible to reduce travel

Data on staff mileage 
once this plan is 
implemented and 
narrative report on 
the changes to staff 
travel as a result of 
the plan

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023

P5

Set up green champions 
network for interested 
staff to support climate 
work 

Report on outcomes 
of green champion 
network meetings, 
including case studies 
of green champions 
to highlight key areas 
of work and impact of 
the champions

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

In Q2, work was initiated on scoping 
the aims, ethos and structure of the 
green champions role and network and 
capturing interested staff. Initial staff 
engagement with, and interest in, climate 
change and nature was sought this 
quarter, with a call out to staff as part of 
'Great Big Green Week' communications; 
asking staff to take a photo showing what 
protecting the planet and supporting 
nature recovery means to them.

P6

Incorporate climate 
action opportunities 
within council 
volunteering scheme for 
staff

Data on the number 
of climate action 
opportunities within 
council volunteering 
scheme and data 
on the number of 
take up of these 
opportunities; case 
studies from staff 
on how they have 
engaged with this 
opportunity

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

In Q2, work started on scoping possible 
opportunities to encourage climate 
volunteering within the current volunteer 
policy, and how volunteering might be 
promoted as part of staff wellbeing. The 
Food and Safety team took part in a team 
volunteering day doing conservation 
work, which will be used as a case study 
to encourage others.

      27Theme 3 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 226

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 4: Our land - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

L1 Following the grounds 
maintenance operational 
review, update grounds 
maintenance operations 
to enhance biodiversity 
and tree cover including 
considering the need for 
mowing, opportunities 
to allow for wilding, 
and reducing the 
use of pesticides and 
herbicides where 
possible

Report sharing 
the updates to the 
grounds maintenance 
operations that 
address the climate 
emergency and 
how they support 
biodiversity 

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

The 'No Mow May' campaign which was 
initiated in Q1,  has been extended until the 
end of the cutting season (October 2022).

In Q3/4, officers will be 
carrying out consultation 
with residents and 
parishes on the trial of 
‘No Mow May’ sites plus 
asking for suggestions 
for more locations for 
2023/2024.

L2 Identify sites for new 
tree planting and 
wilding opportunities 
on Our land or 
through partnership 
opportunities on 
privately owned land to 
support natural carbon 
capture

Report on 
identification of sites 
for new tree planting 
opportunities, 
including plans to 
plant trees on these 
sites

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2 further work on the Tiny Forest 
site in Abindon has identified potential 
archaelogical constraints. These constraints 
have had a significant impact on the cost of 
the project and the likelihood of delivery in 
the next planting season. One tree planting 
application was received in Q2 and is 
currently under review. 

L3 Prepare a business 
case and, if approved, 
implement a local 
renewable energy 
project, such as a 
solar farm, to address 
unavoidable council 
emissions

Data on the amount 
of renewable energy 
produced and 
emissions offset; 
Narrative update 
on the progression 
of plans for this 
project and how the 
renewable energy 
produced neutralises 
council emissions

Long 
Term (2 
years 
plus to 
deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023

      28Theme 4 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 227

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 4: Our land - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

L4 Deliver the Park 
and Charge scheme, 
installing EV charge 
points in our car parks, 
in partnership with 
Oxfordshire County 
Council 

Data on the number 
of EV charge points 
installed in council 
car parks; narrative 
update on the 
partnership approach 
for delivering this 
project

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

Action completed in Q1 2022/2023

L5 Develop an options 
paper for installing 
public EV charging 
points on additional 
council premises, 
including funding 
sources available

Update on the 
business case 
development for 
installing public EV 
charging points; data 
on energy use of the 
points, including how 
much charge they 
provide to EVs 

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q2 officers explored further grant 
opportunities, following the announcement 
that the LEVI (local electric vehicle 
infrastucture) grant bid was unsuccessful.  
Officers are working jointly with Oxfordshire 
County Council and other local districts to 
see how a contractor could be procured for 
further EV charging point installation

Officers are due to report 
on the uptake of the EV 
Park and Charge project 
in Q3/Q4 which will show 
a steady increase of use 
over the first few months 
of use.

      29Theme 4 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 228

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

B1 a) Complete energy 
efficiency and site 
decarbonisation 
assessments for all 
leisure centres

Data on the energy 
efficiency of all 
leisure centres; 
narrative report on 
site decarbonisation 
assessments, with 
projections for how 
the sites will be 
decarbonised 

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

During Q2, works at Faringdon Leisure 
Centre were ongoing and are near 
completion. Public Sector Decarbonisation 
Scheme (PSDS) bids were developed and 
written during Q2, ready for submission 
for Wantage and White Horse Leisure 
centres when the fund opens - anticipated 
Q3. The funding bids used data from site 
decarbonisation assessment reports. Site 
assessment for Abbey Meadows pool to be 
included in forthcoming tender (see update 
on action B2)

B1 b) Following site 
assessments of leisure 
centres, prepare 
for external funding 
opportunities, including 
soft market testing

Narrative update as 
to current initiatives 
to increase external 
funding for Council 
activities, with 
details of additional 
resources committed 
to support these 
activities 
 
Specific elements 
which should be 
included - proportion 
of spend on leisure/
community facilities 
vs amount funded by 
Council; externally 
funded Capital 
schemes; total 
external funding 
received figure

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q2 soft market testing and funding bid 
preparation was completed for Wantage 
and White Horse Leisure Centres. Public 
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) bids 
were developed and written during Q2, 
ready for submission when the fund opens 
- anticipated Q3.

      30Theme 5 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 229

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

B2 a) Complete energy 
efficiency and site 
decarbonisation 
assessments for all 
non-leisure operational 
properties

Data on the energy 
efficiency of all 
non-leisure centres; 
Narrative report on 
site decarbonisation 
assessments, with 
projections for how 
the sites will be 
decarbonised 

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023 due 
to resources required for funding bid 
preparation (see action B1)

No further comments

B2 b) Prepare for external 
funding opportunities 
for non-leisure 
properties, particularly 
properties with an end-
of-use heating plant, 
including carrying out 
soft market testing

Narrative update as 
to current initiatives 
to increase external 
funding for Council 
activities, with 
details of additional 
resources committed 
to support these 
activities 
 
Specific elements 
which should be 
included - proportion 
of spend on leisure/
community facilities 
vs amount funded by 
Council; externally 
funded Capital 
schemes; total 
external funding 
received figure

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023 No further comments

      31Theme 5 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 230

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER 
or RED ratings

B3 Include carbon and 
energy reduction targets 
in management plans 
for the monitoring of 
site operations including 
all leisure centres to 
enforce and encourage 
low carbon operational 
behaviour in council 
assets

Report on the 
changes to the carbon 
and energy reduction 
targets in the criteria 
for monitoring 
operations and report 
on the changes 
to operational 
procedures to meet 
carbon and energy 
reduction targets; 
data on carbon 
emissions from 
operations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Development 
and 
Infrastructure

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q2, new LED lighting was installed as 
part of Abbey House occupation works. 
Proposals for new Building Management 
System at Abbey House are being sought. 
Once control systems are upgraded, we will 
evaluate improved control for efficiency 
and target setting, in conjunction with 
output of actions B1 and B2

No further comments

B4 Develop a policy 
to agree an energy 
efficiency standard for 
new asset acquisitions 
and council owned 
builds

Update on the 
development of the 
energy efficiency 
standards policy 
for new asset 
acquisitions and 
builds, including 
case studies of 
how this has been 
implemented

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Assets

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023. This Action requires 
involvement from a 
wider officer group 
(Property Assets, 
Housing and the 
climate action team). 
Strategic Property 
will be co-ordinating 
discussions going 
forward.

      32Theme 5 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 231

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C1 Implement an external 
communications plan 
which shares updates 
on the climate action 
work undertaken 
by the council, and 
advice and guidance to 
residents, businesses 
and the voluntary and 
community sector 
on reducing carbon 
emissions. To include:

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q2 we continued work on the 
actions in the Comms & Engagement 
Forward Plan and are updating the plan 
each fortnight. In September recruitment 
started for a new Senior Communications 
Officer to deliver and implement the 
communications plan on climate-related 
topics. 

C2 Advice and guidance 
on circular economy 
principles and how 
to implement them, 
especially for businesses 
and the voluntary and 
community sector

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q2 the Economic Development 
team continued their joint work 
programme with Oxfordshire Greentech 
to run sustainability events/workshops 
throughout the year. They are currently 
planning a Business Eco Fairs in Abingdon 
for 2023 and will also be carrying out our 
'One Planet Living' training.  Economic 
Development officers attended the 
OxLEP roundtable event and contributed 
to the discussion around 'What would 
need to happen to get every business in 
Oxfordshire to cut their carbon emissions 
in half by 2030?’

C3 Advice and guidance 
on energy efficiency of 
operations, including 
consideration for 
delivery options and 
the energy efficiency 
of buildings used 
by businesses and 
the voluntary and 
community sector 

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q2 the Economic Development 
team continued to share energy efficiency 
initiatives and events from Low Carbon 
Hub and Oxfordshire Greentech via their 
SVBS newsletter and social media accounts. 

      33Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 232

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C4 Share climate friendly 
lifestyle changes, 
including ways to make 
homes more energy 
efficient

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q2 the Communications team 
supported the launch of the new 
Climate Action Oxfordshire website, led 
by Oxfordshire County Council, which 
informs people about the action they can 
take at home and in their community. In 
September we promoted and encouraged 
residents and community groups to get 
involved with the Great Big Green Week. 

C5 Promote climate funding 
opportunities for 
businesses, voluntary 
and community sectors, 
and residents

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q2 we promoted the first round of 
awards from the Climate Action Fund and 
highlighted the fund during the Great Big 
Green Week through a press release and 
social media, as well as through resident, 
town and parish council and councillor 
newsletters. 

C6 Promote community 
sharing and reuse 
to reduce waste 
and unnecessary 
consumption 

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q2 we used our social media 
channels to encourage members of 
the community to reduce waste and 
unnecessary consumption, including 
promoting Litter Bug activity trails for 
children, promoting reduce, reuse and 
recycling waste messages, World Car 
Free Day and the councils’ litter mapping 
project which encourages litter pickers 
to map where they find the most litter so 
resources can be targeted.

      34Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 233

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C7 Promote relevant 
housing energy 
efficiency schemes, 
including grants, to 
residents, landlords and 
housing associations

Narrative update 
on comms and 
engagement activities 
which interface with 
communities, schools 
and other local 
organisations

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services

During Q2, as part of our ongoing activity 
responding to the cost of living crisis, we 
continued to promote support for home 
energy improvements. This campaign 
was promoted through several channels 
including a dedicated webpage, regular 
social media and as part of our recent BBC 
Radio Oxford roadshows. Additionally in 
September a new webpage was added to 
the council website on 'how to reduce your 
home energy use and costs'.

C8 Include in Community 
Employment Plans 
considerations for 
addressing the councils 
climate neutral targets 
through commitments 
such as green skills 
training, sourcing 
through a local and 
sustainable supply chain, 
supporting local social 
enterprises and charities 
and accessing local 
employment

Update on the 
conditions of 
Community 
Employment Plans 
that address the 
climate emergency 
and how they are 
being implemented 
by developers; data 
on the number 
of Community 
Employment Plans 
implemented with 
conditions that 
address the climate 
emergency

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

Conditions in under the five operational 
CEPs in Vale of White Horse include targets 
for developers to distribute construction 
and electronic materials (that would 
otherwise be wasted) to local community 
organisations. Whilst not explicitly included 
as a climate target, this condition prevents 
construction waste from entering landfill, 
and ensures electronic devices are reused 
through local organisations. 
 
During Q2, work to include an appropriate 
policy in the future local plan progressed, 
with Economic Development Officers 
contributing to a CEP focused workshop for 
Oxfordshire's Planning Policy officers. 

Appropriate 
measures can 
currently be 
evidenced as 
included within 
CEPs, but are not 
specifically included 
as sustainability 
/ climate taregts. 
Further policy 
development is 
required to ensure 
that climate 
forms a central 
theme of future 
CEPs. Although 
this forms part of 
conversations with 
officers developing 
the joint local 
plan, inclusion of 
an appropriate 
CEP clause is not 
guaranteed. 

      35Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 234

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C9 Support communities 
with their 
neighbourhood planning 
by providing up-to-date 
advice and guidance on 
climate measures and 
actions, encouraging 
climate considerations 
to be at the core of 
neighbourhood plans

Data on the number 
of neighbourhood 
plans developed; 
Narrative update on 
the types of climate 
actions incorporated 
into neighbourhood 
plans

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
for Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation 

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 

In Q2 work continued to assist 
communities preparing neighbourhood 
plans, including the insertion of climate 
measures. There are 9 neighbourhood 
plans (including 1 plan review) currently 
being prepared. In Q2 the neighbourhood 
plans for Sutton Courtenay and 
Wantage have reached pre-submission 
consultation stage. The council has 
formally commented on these plans and 
provided encouragement and advice on 
the development of policies addressing the 
challenges of climate change.

C10 Support taxi drivers in 
switching to electric 
vehicles, including 
reviewing options to 
incentivise the switch 
through fees and 
charges

Data on the number 
of taxi drivers driving 
electric vehicles and 
narrative update on 
the support to taxi 
drivers for doing so

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Healthy 
Communities

Head of 
Legal and 
Democratic

No progress to report Q2 2022/2023 This will always 
be a long term 
initiative until 
the Government 
embargo on new 
petrol and diesel 
vehicles comes into 
effect, but we have 
to recognise that the 
trade will not readily 
move to what is in 
reality a developing 
technology 
without readily 
available charging 
infrastructre. 

      36Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 235

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on 
AMBER or RED 
ratings

C11 Organise quarterly 
climate focused 
network meetings 
for town and parish 
councils, and voluntary 
and community 
organisations, linking 
with existing networks

Data on number 
of meetings held; 
narrative update 
on the agendas, 
outcomes and actions 
from the meetings

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

No progress to report in Q2 2022/23

      37Theme 6 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 236

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP1 Build relationships 
with town and parish 
councils to support 
and encourage 
their climate action 
initiatives 

Update on how the 
council has worked 
with town and parish 
councils on climate 
action initiatives, 
including case studies

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Community 
Engagement

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 

In Q2, work continued to build and 
launch the second round of the Climate 
Action Fund 22/23, which opens in Q3 
and welcomes applications from town 
and parish councils, to help support 
their climate action initiatives. Key 
communications were also shared with 
town and parish councils around the 'Great 
Big Green Week' and celebrating local 
action on climate change. Additionally this 
quarter, the council promoted a survey 
from Community First Oxfordshire on how 
collaborative working between Town & 
Parish Councils and community groups 
are helping to tackle climate related 
challenges. The results will be shared in 
Q3 and will help inform our approach with 
communities and parishes going forward.

OP2 Identify areas in our 
community that are 
most vulnerable to 
the effects of climate 
change to ensure 
they are properly 
supported and 
protected to promote 
wider community 
wellbeing

Update on the 
identification of areas 
most vulnerable to 
the effects of climate 
change and how the 
council has supported 
them to adapt to 
these changes, 
including through 
initiatives such as 
Better Housing Better 
Health

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2, energy saving measures were 
promoted via the council's website, as 
part of the council’s response to help 
residents seeking cost of living support. 
Information was also added signposting 
to the Sustainable Warmth Fund managed 
by Oxfordshire County Council, which 
provides means tested financial help for 
retrofit and home energy saving measures.

OP3 Work with Oxfordshire 
County Council to 
support active and 
sustainable travel 
infrastructure 
initiatives 

Narrative update 
on progress toward 
completion of map, 
once map completed, 
this should transition 
to an annual review 
of the accuracy of 
map                                                                     

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2, Oxfordshire County Council 
comissioned PJA to develop a Strategic 
Active Travel Network proposal.  PJA 
will work through four key stages; 
baseline mapping and analysis, network 
development, network prioritisation and a 
design toolkit and recommendations. 

      38Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 237

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP4 Work with the 
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership on a 
county-wide approach 
to reducing carbon 
emissions, building 
on the strategic vision 
and Pathways to Zero 
Carbon Oxfordshire

Update on progress 
on the Future 
Oxfordshire 
Partnership's county-
wide approach to 
reducing carbon 
emissions, including 
examples of projects 
and programmes that 
address the strategic 
vision and Pathways 
to Zero Carbon 
Oxfordshire

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q2, officers have been heavily involved 
in the engagement process for the 
Oxfordshire Net Zero Route Map and 
Action Plan, including attending workshops 
and focus groups with City Science on 
topics such as low carbon energy, land use 
and enabling mechanisms. In addition to 
providing comments on the draft proposed 
15 priority actions. 

OP5 With Our partners, 
support the 
development of 
a coordinated 
retrofit programme 
for Oxfordshire 
through our role in 
the Environmental 
Advisory Group of the 
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership

Narrative report on 
work influencing 
work, comms 
activity and direct 
engagement with 
residents.

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q2, officers have undertaken extensive 
research into potential initiatives that the 
council could take forward, to scale up 
retrofit actions across the district. This 
research and analysis of option will be 
developed further in Q3/Q4. 

OP6 Support Registered 
Social Landlords in 
applying for retrofit 
funding, such as 
Social Housing 
Decarbonisation 
Funding 

Narrative update on 
engagement with 
Registered Social 
Landlords on retrofit 
funding

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member 
Healthy 
Communities

Head of 
Housing and 
Environment

The Registered Provider Sovereign 
confirmed in Q2 that they intend to bid for 
the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund.  
This will include properties in Vale of White 
Horse.  The council will provide support 
for the bid as required and are awaiting 
further details of the bid proposal.

It is important to 
understand the 
decarbonisation 
plans of all Registered 
Providers in the District.  
This will be requested 
during Q3

      39Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 238

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP7 Use our membership 
of Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership 
(OxLEP) to ensure 
rapid growth of the 
green economy 

Update on the 
council's influence in 
OxLEP to ensure rapid 
growth of the green 
economy, including 
examples of projects 
and programmes that 
address this work

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Development 
and Corporate 
Landlord

In Q2, officers attended the OxLEP 
roundtable event and contributed to 
the discussion around “What would 
need to happen to get every business in 
Oxfordshire to cut their carbon emissions 
in half by 2030?””. As a next stage, officers 
will contribute towards a showcase event 
for Net Zero Week - 1st – 7th July 2023 
aimed at driving business engagement with 
a zero carbon future.  
 
Officers also continued to work toward 
hosting a green skills event with partners.

OP8 Support and influence 
the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050 ensuring climate 
considerations are 
integrated throughout 
the plan

Narrative report on 
work to support the 
Oxfordshire Plan 
in accordance with 
TCE3.7

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

OP8 aims to directly influence the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050. During Q2 (August 
2022) the Oxfordshire Plan programme 
was halted by all Local Authorities involved 
and the Oxfordshire Plan will no longer be 
progressed. This means that OP8 is not 
achievable. However, there are continuing 
discussions through Oxfordshire Planning 
Policy Officers group scoping out future 
collaborations on climate change evidence. 
This potential evidence would provide a 
consistent evidence base to influence each 
Districts Local Plans.

OP9 Utilise the opportunity 
of the Oxford to 
Cambridge Arc to 
advance corporate 
objectives around the 
Climate Emergency

Narrative update 
on the work of the 
Oxford-Cambridge arc 
and our influencing 
activity

Long 
Term (2 
years plus 
to deliver)

Cabinet 
Member for 
Strategic 
Partnerships 
and Place

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

In Q2 the Leader has written to the Chair 
of the Arc Leadership Group to confirm 
that the Vale of White Horse District 
Council does not support the proposal to 
continue to seek to develop a pan-regional 
partnership across the Oxford – Cambridge 
Arc.

Performance against 
this measure can no 
longer be measured due 
to the council’s decision 
to no longer support 
this proposal

      40Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 239

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 

CAP ID Actions Reporting Measure Delivery 
Timescale

Cabinet 
Lead Officer Lead Performance Update

RAG rate 
progress 
against 
each 
measure

Comments on AMBER or 
RED ratings

OP10 Support the Thames 
Valley Rivers network 
to meet their aims 
and use this group to 
facilitate and influence 
work cross party and 
cross boundary to 
end pollution in the 
river and promote the 
sustainable use and 
enjoyment of the River 
Thames

Update on work with 
the Thames Valley 
Rivers network, 
including case 
studies of projects 
and programmes 
that have been 
implemented to 
meet the aims of the 
network

Short 
Term (1 
year)

Cabinet 
Member 
Climate 
Emergency and 
Environment

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2, work continued on reviewing 
the aims and forward plan for the Thames 
Valley Rivers Network and establishing its 
future role, with consideration to the remit 
and work of Catchment Partnerships. This 
work will continue into Q3/Q4.

OP11 Engagement across 
the energy sector 
on activity required 
to move to carbon 
neutral and work 
with them to tackle 
the challenge of grid 
capacity, time of day 
demand and energy 
infrastructure 

Update on 
engagement with the 
energy sector and 
examples of work 
with them to tackle 
the challenge of grid 
capacity, time of day 
demand and energy 
infrastructure

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

During Q2, initial investigation was 
undertaken to better understand the 
opportunities available, including 
participation in a webinar organised by 
Distribution Network Operator

OP12 Partner with Good 
Food Oxfordshire 
to support their 
Good Food Strategy 
for Oxfordshire, 
ensuring climate 
considerations are 
included throughout 
the strategy

Update on the 
development of 
the Good Food 
Strategy for 
Oxfordshire, including 
examples of climate 
considerations

Medium 
Term (2 
years)

Cabinet 
Member 
Corporate 
Services and 
Transformation

Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes

Part one of the Good Food Oxfordshire 
Strategy was due to go to Cabinet in Q2, 
but this has now been put forward for 
consideration in Q3.

      41Theme 7 performance updates whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 240

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  Please contact customer 
services to discuss your requirements on 01235 422422.

Policy and Programmes

South Oxfordshire District Council
Abbey House
Abbey Close
Abingdon
OX14 3JE

Email:  climateaction@southandvale.gov.uk 

Follow us

@whitehorsedc

@WhiteHorseDC

@valeofwhitehorsedc

      42whitehorse.gov.uk/climateaction

P
age 241

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/02/South-Climate-Action-plan-2022-2024.pdf


 

 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Policy and Programmes 
 

Reporting Officer: Jayne Bolton, Community Wellbeing Manager 

Report Author: Louise Birt, Community Hub Team Leader 

Telephone: 07917 088341 / 07801 203508 

E-mail: louise.birt@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: District wide 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr. Helen Pighills 

Tel: 01235 534446 

E-mail: helen.pighills@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 2 December 2022 

 

 

 

Oxfordshire Food Strategy  

Recommendations 

(a) That Cabinet endorses the Oxfordshire Food Strategy (Part One) principles and 
framework for delivery, attached at appendix one.   

(b) That Cabinet asks officers to work with relevant partners to develop a detailed local 
food strategy action plan (Part Two). 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To update Cabinet on the Oxfordshire Food Strategy drafted by Good Food 
Oxfordshire, including the principles and framework for delivery, and consider it for 
endorsement. 

2. To outline how the Oxfordshire Food Strategy aligns with the Council’s aims and 
priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan, Climate Action Plan and the Council’s 
motions on sustainable food and farming and on the cost-of-living, of 18 May 2022. 

3. To outline the next steps of the Oxfordshire Food Strategy, notably the 
development of a detailed local action plan with community, voluntary and 
community sector (VCS) and business partners which will enable the council to 
drive forward key initiatives based on our sphere of influence and the resources 
available to us. 

Page 242

Agenda Item 11

mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:helen.pighills@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 

4. To provide an overview of the potential uses of the funding allocation proposed by 
Oxfordshire County Council, to assist with the development and implementation of 
the food action plan. 

Corporate Objectives  

5. The Strategy supports many of the council’s priorities and aims as set out in both 
the Corporate Plan and Climate Action Plan. The key ones are listed in the 
attached appendix two.   

6. On 13 July 2022, the Council passed a Motion on the Cost of Living Crisis and on 
18 May 2022 passed a Motion addressing Food and Farming in the district. The 
Oxfordshire Food Strategy is congruent with each of these resolutions and with the 
commitment which came out of the latter to appoint a Food and Farming Champion 
role in Vale.  Its adoption would help provide a framework for taking forward the 
resolutions with multi stakeholder partners including VCS organisations, food 
producers and suppliers across Oxfordshire.  

7. The Food Strategy has been written to sit alongside the differing priorities and 
commitments of the organisations involved, including district councils. To that end, 
the strategy seeks to be integrated within existing policies and programmes, 
whether these are organisation or district specific, or county-wide.  

Background 

8. Covid-19 brought the issues of food insecurity, access to healthy, affordable food 
and the impact of these on health into sharp focus.  Oxfordshire food banks saw a 
three-four-fold increase in use, with a conservative estimate that around 6,000 
people a week required support to access food.1  While, local community food 
networks across the district rose to the challenge, working closely and 
constructively with our Community Hub team, it became evident that there was a 
requirement for an end-to-end strategy covering all key organisations and 
stakeholders in the Oxfordshire system. The district and city councils agreed that 
Oxfordshire County Council would commission Good Food Oxfordshire to develop 
a food strategy for Oxfordshire. 

9. Since the strategy was commissioned, its importance has been highlighted by the 
cost-of-living crisis, Brexit and the war in Ukraine which have created additional 
strain on the food system.  

10. At the time of writing the strategy it was estimated that eight to ten per cent of all 
households in Oxfordshire experience food insecurity2.  This equated to 20,000-
25,000 households and 55,000-69,000 people.  It is estimated that six to seven per 
cent of all households were experiencing moderate to severe food insecurity.  This 
equates to 15,500-18,000 people.3 Given the current cost of living crisis it is 

                                            
1 GFO Good Food Oxford ‘Oxfordshire’s Community Food Services: Summary of Research Findings’ (May 
2020), Oxfordshire’s Community Food Services: Summary of Research Findings (goodfoodoxford.org)   
2 Data specific to the district is not currently available 
3 Good Food Oxfordshire, ‘A Food Poverty Action Plan for Oxfordshire’ (August 2021), GFO-Food-Poverty-
Report-2021-FINAL-layouted.pdf (goodfoodoxford.org) 7. This figure is an estimate based on data from the 
ONS, Food Foundation and the DWP Household Survey in 2021.  

Page 243

http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=108&MId=3041
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=108&MId=2850
https://goodfoodoxford.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/GFO-CFS-Research-Summary-Final-July-2020-sm.pdf
https://goodfoodoxford.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/GFO-Food-Poverty-Report-2021-FINAL-layouted.pdf
https://goodfoodoxford.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/GFO-Food-Poverty-Report-2021-FINAL-layouted.pdf


 

 

reasonable to assume that this picture will have worsened in the intervening 
months. 

11. Across the UK, it is estimated that fifty per cent more people are now in fuel 
poverty with some studies estimating this figure could be as high as seventy-five 
per cent by January 2023. The latest ONS figures state that food prices have 
increased by up to sixty-five per cent in the last year with staples such as dairy, 
pasta, eggs and cooking oils increasing at the fastest rate.  The largest proportional 
impact of these increases is on low-income households who are unable to switch 
away from essential spending.  Of course, the food banks at the forefront of this 
crisis are faced with the same rising costs, greater demand, and lower supply of 
staple food items.   

12. Poor diets, exacerbated by food insecurity is evident in the growing obesity rates. 
Ensuring access to healthy food and education around its use is a key intervention 
to counteract a range of health conditions from Covid-19 to heart disease and type 
2 diabetes. 

13. The environmental effects of our food system are also a matter of concern as 
identified in the council’s corporate objectives.  According to the IPCC, food 
systems currently account for between 21 and 37 per cent of total greenhouse 
gases and contribute to biodiversity loss.4 

14. The need to build resilience into our local food systems to ensure better access to 
food has never been greater and it is these issues which the Oxfordshire Food 
Strategy aims to address. 

Developing the strategy   

15. Oxfordshire County Council commissioned Good Food Oxfordshire in agreement 
with the city and district councils to develop a food strategy for Oxfordshire. It is 
seen to be a strategy not just for councils but for the whole food system 
encompassing community organisations, food producers, businesses, institutions, 
and individuals.  

16. The Oxfordshire Food Strategy has been developed using a multi-stakeholder 
approach, including the Oxfordshire city and district councils, representatives from 
Oxfordshire community sector groups, local food producers and other major 
institutions, brought together by Good Food Oxfordshire. It has been created in 
partnership because it is recognised that to address the aforementioned challenges 
of food poverty, food supply, climate change and public health tipping points we 
need a whole system approach to maximise the benefits.  

17. Good Food Oxfordshire has drawn on research5 into food insecurity, the impact of 
food on health, the environmental impact of the food system and the local food 
picture to develop the strategy. 

18. Public and stakeholder engagement has played an integral role in developing the 
strategy.  Initial engagement including initial consultation with Oxfordshire local 
authorities took place between August and October 2021. This included one-to-one 

                                            
4 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, ‘Climate Change and Land’ (Jan 2020), SPM_Updated-
Jan20.pdf (ipcc.ch), p. 10.5 GFO Oxfordshire Food Strategy Appendix page 24 
5 GFO Oxfordshire Food Strategy Appendix page 24 

Page 244

https://www.ipcc.ch/site/assets/uploads/sites/4/2020/02/SPM_Updated-Jan20.pdf
https://www.ipcc.ch/site/assets/uploads/sites/4/2020/02/SPM_Updated-Jan20.pdf


 

 

meetings, round table events and related discussion forums, including the Health 
Improvement Board and Climate Action Programme Board.  A timeline of 
engagement and research events and papers consulted is published on the Good 
Food Oxfordshire website (see appendix three). Events included: 

a. Healthy Weight Community Insights Programme attended by 146 people 
including over 50 organisations.  

b. Oxfordshire Schools Food Workshop attended by more than 40 people 
representing schools, councils, communities and caterers.  

c. Regular Community Food Network Meetings with over 80 local organisations are 
part of the Community Food Networks (CFNs). These include foodbanks, 
community larders and fridges as well as local advice services, councils and 
other VCS organisations. 

19. It is recognised that there is a necessity for much more substantial engagement at 
a local district level in the development of more detailed local action plans which 
would form the second part of this work.    

The Strategy 

20. The Oxfordshire Food Strategy put forward to Cabinet is envisioned as a ‘first step 
towards drawing together the many strands of work that are already happening 
across the county and seeing them as a coherent whole’.  

21. It aims to tackle the challenges of health and wellbeing; climate change and 
biodiversity; fair incomes and employment; and to facilitate a vibrant and 
sustainable food system allowing all residents equal opportunity to access healthy 
food all year long. The strategy (attached as appendix one) seeks to identify priority 
areas for action, links to existing initiatives and policy and showcases examples of 
excellence that can be learnt from and built upon. 

22. It seeks to address the issue of food insecurity by supporting more locally produced 
and sustainable food, allowing all residents equal opportunity to access healthy 
food all year round, through education to minimise food waste or grow their own, 
and through accessing food banks or community larder schemes. There are longer 
term ambitions within the strategy to grow Oxfordshire’s local food economy 
through local enterprises, local jobs, and local wealth generation. 

23. This high-level vision seeks to achieve these aims through the following ambitions: 

a) Food justice: healthy and sustainable food is affordable and accessible to everyone 

b) Sustainable food economy: local food businesses flourish, with more productions, 
more outlets, more employment and better standards for workers 

c) Good food movement: more people can enjoy and engage with healthy, 
sustainable food and ‘good food for everyone’ is part of our culture 

d) Food for the planet: we waste less food and the food that we do produce, consume 
and waste has a less negative impact on the planet 

Page 245



 

 

e) Sustainable supply chains: more locally produced, sustainable food is bought and 
consumed locally, and supply chains are more resilient 

f) Governance and strategy: continue, evaluate and strengthen existing initiatives. 
Build foundations for new initiatives. Establish enablers to manage and monitor 
progress. 

24. The next stage (referred to in the Strategy as Part Two), is where the detail and 
actions will lie and where the council has the opportunity to lead the development 
of and have for meaningful input into a future local action plan with partners. 

Next Steps – Action Plan Development 

25. As a next step, we are invited to develop an action plan with other key stakeholders 
across our district, drawing on further consultation and engagement with local 
communities, farmers, food businesses and town and parish councils.  Actions 
could include: 

 communications and marketing 

 practical support such as identifying opportunities or providing access to 
green spaces for community gardens  

 provision of local business support to address food waste 

 supporting infrastructure, guidance and access to funding for Community 
Food Services  

 exploring locally sourced food options and any other ideas or initiatives we 
wish to explore. 

26. To help facilitate this, Oxfordshire County Council agreed to allocate £250,000 of 
funding to all district and city councils to deliver actions that will directly impact 
accessibility to food.  The actual amount for Vale of the White Horse is expected to 
be in the region of £40,000. The funding will be allocated per District/City Council, 
using a previously established DWP formula, which is based on population 
weighted by deprivation as measured by the index of multiple deprivation index.  
The funding can be used internally by each council or directed towards community 
groups within each district’s area. Full engagement within the development process 
of the strategy can ensure that the actions proposed are in support of our priorities 
and the specific needs of our district.  

27. The funding on offer cannot be used to resource personnel.  However, there is both 
policy resource within the community hub and resource from Good Food 
Oxfordshire (funded by Oxfordshire County Council) who will help to form, drive 
and collate the action plans. This should be sufficient to create a meaningful action 
plan. 

28. If agreed, the officer representation on the local steering group from the council will 
liaise with a working party of officers within the council from relevant internal teams 
such as Economic Development, Environmental Health, Community Wellbeing, 
Waste and Property. 

29. A draft timeline is set out below:  

Page 246



 

 

Date:  Action  

7 November 2022  Food Strategy taken to Joint South and Vale Scrutiny 
Committee 

1 December 2022 Strategy taken to South Cabinet for endorsement 

2 December 2022 Strategy taken to Vale Cabinet for endorsement 

December 2022/ 
January 2023  

Development of terms of reference for local action plan group  

February - March 2023  Development of local area action plan 
 

July 2023 Part 2 - Local food strategy action plan to Scrutiny Committee 
for comment and recommendations to Cabinet. 
Part 2 – Local food strategy action plan proposal to Cabinet 
for approval. 

 

Options 

30. There is no legal obligation to adopt the Oxfordshire Food Strategy.  However, not 
supporting the strategy and not participating in its implementation may see the 
Council miss out on funding that could support work to tackle food poverty and 
other food related issues in the district.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

31. The ambition ‘Food for the planet’ is specifically designed to focus on reducing food 
waste and reducing the carbon impact that food consumption has in the county. 

32. The ‘sustainable supply chains’ ambition will also seek to encourage the 
development of local, sustainable supply chains which will support local producers 
and reduce the carbon impact of food supply.  

33. The council’s own Climate Action Plan includes the action OP12, to ‘Partner with 
Good Food Oxfordshire to support their Good Food Strategy for Oxfordshire, 
ensuring climate considerations are included throughout the strategy’, therefore 
engagement with the Strategy would meet the spirit of this action and work towards 
the overall aim becoming carbon neutral district by 2030/2045.   

Equalities and Diversity implications 

34. The strategy has a specific focus on providing support to people living in food 
poverty.  It is noted that we have seen a significant increase in people requiring 
support to access food, including the use of food banks. 

35. People with protected characteristics are more likely to experience food poverty 
and therefore the creation of the strategy will have a positive impact. 

36. The strategy also seeks to promote fair wages for people working in the food 
economy and will therefore seek to positively impact on those living in areas of 
social deprivation.  

Page 247



 

 

Financial Implications 

37. Note the proposed grant allocation from Oxfordshire County Council that is outlined 
in paragraph 26 of this report.  Expenditure will be kept within the grant allocation 
received from Oxfordshire County Council with no additional costs to the council 
budget. Any further cost implications will be developed in the local food strategy 
action plan and reported as part of a separate report.  

38. It is accepted that, prior to the action plans being developed it is not possible to 
know whether this figure will cover all actions which impact accessibility to food, 
and it is not allocated with this expectation. Rather it is a contribution to be borne in 
mind while plans are being developed alongside any other funds from contributing 
partners existing budgets or fund-raising campaigns. 

39. Scrutiny expressed concern around the sufficiency of the grant allocation and 
requested that this concern be noted. Officers anticipate that the local action plan 
will be about creating synergies and connections between the work already taking 
place in our communities and the facilitation of a more strategic, coordinated, and 
efficient approach be taken across the network rather than funding specific issues 
such as food banks. The steering group will be aware of the budget and will make 
the best use of the budget available when creating the action plan. Should 
proposed actions be identified within the draft action plan that require additional 
funding, funding options will be explored, and any relevant budget approval 
processes will apply. 

40. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the 
knowledge of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position 
reflected in the council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full 
Council in February 2022 showed that the council was able to set a balanced 
budget for 2022/23, but that there is expected to be a budget gap in future years. 

41. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £3 million by 2026/27. As there 
remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-
term financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this 
gap could increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisant of 
the need to address this funding gap in future years. 

Legal Implications 

42. Supporting principles of the Oxfordshire Food Strategy neither imposes nor infers 
any additional obligations on the council and it is therefore considered that there 
are no legal implications in adopting the strategy. 

Risks 

43. Given the council’s commitment to support residents during the cost of living crisis, 
its Climate Emergency declaration and its Food and Farming motion of the 18 May 
2022, not adopting a strategy which mirrors and is in alignment with these 
commitments could pose both a reputational risk and questions around the 
council’s commitment to taking action. 

Page 248



 

 

44. Not supporting the strategy, when it is enacted by others, entails a further possible 
reputational risk. 

45. Not supporting the strategy may also risk the council being excluded from the 
benefits of future collaborations including the opportunity to develop the Local Food 
action plans with local stakeholders. 

46. Exclusion from developing the food action plans could also prevent access to 
funding on offer which could be used to develop and support work in the district for 
which there would otherwise not be a budget.  

47. There is a risk that trying to create a ‘one-size-fits-all’ strategy will mean that the 
different food related challenges across the county are not sufficiently appreciated. 
This should be addressed in Part 2 as partners seek to develop action plans to 
address challenges at a local level.  However, if the strategy is not endorsed the 
opportunity to work with community partners and influence this work could be lost. 

Other implications 

48. There are not considered to be any other implications beyond those set out above. 

Conclusion 

49. The Oxfordshire Food Strategy is a first step in the development and facilitation of 
work around Sustainable Food (Food and Farming) which meets many corporate 
and climate objectives and seeks to help residents struggling to access food.  

50. The strategy confers no obligations on the council, but it does offer the opportunity 
to develop work which is line with many of the council’s priorities. Officers therefore 
recommend that Cabinet endorses the Oxfordshire Food Strategy.   

51. If Cabinet supports the officer recommendation, then the development of a local 
food strategy action plan will commence and be further considered by cabinet as 
part of a further report to include an update on costs and funding.  

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1: The Oxfordshire Food Strategy 

Appendix 2: Corporate Plan and Climate Action Plan objectives 

Appendix 3: Oxfordshire Food Strategy Appendices 

Appendix 4: Sustainable Food and Farming Motion 18 May 2022 

 

Page 249



May 2022

Oxfordshire
Food
Strategy

Part 1

P
age 250



1

1. Introduction 2

2. Oxfordshire’s food challenge

a. The local picture
b. Voices from Oxfordshire

6

8
10

3. Vision and strategic priorities

a. Ambitions to deliver a collective vision
b. Priority areas for action

14

15
16

4. Delivering the strategy

a. Integration within existing
policy and programmes

b. Existing programmes and campaigns
c. Building new foundations
d. Examples of excellence
e. Calls to action

15

16
18
20
23
24
28

Contents

P
age 251



3

Introduction

1.

Building a healthy, fair
and sustainable food 
system for Oxfordshire.

Food is both the source of,
and solution to, many of the 
problems we face today. 

To tackle the challenges of health and wellbeing, climate change and 
biodiversity loss, and fair incomes and employment, Oxfordshire must 
have a vibrant and sustainable food system. This is integral to our 
organisations, community, and culture.

Alongside environmental and health 
drivers, the stresses placed on local 
communities and businesses through 
global events - COVID, Brexit, the war in 
Ukraine, rising fuel, food, and other living 
costs - have highlighted the need to 
re-evaluate the entire food system and 
take action. This was recognised in the 
2021 National Food Strategy, which also 
noted the need for local areas to develop 
their own food strategies.
 
The Oxfordshire local food strategy was 
developed by a multi-stakeholder 
partnership including county and district 
councils, community groups, local food 
producers, retail and hospitality 
businesses, and major institutions. It is a 
first step towards drawing together the 
many strands of work that are already 
happening across the county and seeing 
them as a coherent whole. 

Part 1 of this strategy, presented here, 
identifies priority areas of action, links to 
existing initiatives and policy, and 
showcases some examples of excellence 
that we can learn from and build on. Part 
2 will embed the strategy in existing 
programmes and plans, develop Food 
Action Plans for each District, initiate pilot 
projects, and monitor and evaluate 
progress.

COP26 highlighted that 1.5 is still alive but 
we must act swiftly. Whilst much 
emphasis is placed on fossil fuels and 
………

alternative energy sources, food systems 
currently account for roughly 40% of total 
greenhouse gases and contribute to 
biodiversity loss (IPCC,2022). 
Furthermore, food poverty in Oxfordshire 
is real, and whilst COVID exacerbated the 
problem, it is not a new phenomenon. 
Between 9-14% of all households in 
Oxfordshire experience food insecurity.  
This equates to 62,000-96,000 people 
(Moretti et al 2021). 

Removing barriers and ensuring that 
everyone in Oxfordshire can access 
affordable, healthy food in ways that 
promote dignity, recognise diversity, and 
celebrate our rich cultural heritage are 
fundamental to this strategy. Alongside 
building vibrant, thriving communities, 
supporting the local food economy can be 
part of the solution. It is fundamental to 
providing local jobs that serve local 
communities’ needs. Oxfordshire’s food 
economy accounts for 10% of jobs, and in 
2020 generated turnover of £2.2 billion 
or 10% of the local economy. We also 
know that “pound-for-pound, money 
spent in the local food web supports three 
times the number of jobs as the 
equivalent spent in national grocery 
chains” (Willis, 2012). 

The challenges of food poverty, the 
climate emergency, food supply, and our 
diet-related health crisis cannot be 
addressed without redefining our food 
systems. The time for action is now. 

P
age 252



Part 1: Developing
Oxfordshire’s food strategy

Understanding the strategic challenges of food in Oxfordshire, 
in consultation with the Good Food Oxfordshire (GFO) network. 

Defining the vision and strategic priorities.  Identifying the 
influencing factors and priority areas for action.

Building on what is currently being done. How the strategy 
supports, evaluates, and strengthens existing initiatives, and 
builds the foundations for new initiatives.

Part 2: Implementing Oxfordshire’s 
food strategy 

Support and strengthen existing programmes and campaigns

Embed actions to deliver strategic priorities in existing policies 
and plans 

Develop detailed Food Action Plans with each key stakeholder

Initiate foundation projects to build our knowledge base and 
inform detailed implementation plans for new initiatives

Good Food Oxfordshire is a network of 
over 150 local organisations committed 
to a better food system for Oxfordshire.

Throughout this document we refer to 
“good food”. To us, this means food that 
provides health and social benefits, 
contributes to thriving local economies 
and communities, enhances our natural 
resources, and tackles climate change.

In other words: food that is good for 
people, good for communities, and good 
for the planet. 

54

P
age 253



Oxfordshire’s 
food challenge

2.

76

Fair access to good quality, sustainably produced food is problematic 
across Oxfordshire, and has been made worse by pressures over the last 
few years.

Oxfordshire’s food 
challenge was real,
and now it’s far worse.

Alongside environmental and health 
drivers, the stresses placed on local 
communities and businesses through global 
events - COVID, Brexit, war in Ukraine, 
rising fuel, food, and other living costs - 
have highlighted the need to________

re-evaluate the entire food system and take 
action. This was recognised in the 2021 
National Food Strategy, which also stressed 
the need for local areas to develop their 
own food strategies to increase food 
security and improve good food access.

Food
poverty

Health
crisis

Climate 
emergency

Food 
supply

Local action 
required

P
age 254



98

9-14% of Oxfordshire’s residents 
experience food insecurity. This is
62,000—96,000 people
(Moretti et al 2021)

In 2022, the rise in living costs
mean households face an average loss of
£1,200 to their annual incomes
forcing people into a ‘heat or eat’ dilemma 
(Harari et al. 2022)

1 in 4 children 
in Year 6 are obese.  Children living 
in the most deprived areas are more 
than twice as likely to be obese than 
those living in least deprived areas.

In 2013, half  of Oxford’s food 
came from the UK, a third came 
from the EU, and 15% was 
imported from further afield. Less 
than 1% was sourced directly 
from the region (Curtis, 2013).

74% of Oxfordshire’s land area is 
agricultural, mostly cereals, followed 
by livestock grazing for meat and dairy

In 2020, Oxfordshire’s local food 
economy contributed £2.2 billion in 
turnover, supporting 19,500 jobs 
and 2,970 enterprises (ONS, 2022)

Cost of living rises disproportionately 
impact lower income households.  

There are fewer good-quality ‘value’ 
ranges and 

prices increase up to 350% 
for basic items (Monroe, 2022)

The local picture 
Localised, sustainable food systems can provide an 
opportunity to improve food security for vulnerable 
groups, meet Oxfordshire’s climate and sustainability 
targets, and improve food supply resilience.

Obesity rates in both Reception-age and 
Year 6 children increased by around 

4.5% between 2019-20 and 2020-21. 
These are the highest annual rises since 
the measurement programme began in 

2006/7 (NCMP, 2021)

55% of adults in Oxfordshire are 
classified as overweight or obese

(JSNA, 2021)

People limited by health problems and 
disability are 5x more likely to 
experience food insecurity (Food 

Foundation, 2021)

Oxfordshire’s food economy
turnover (£millions) by subsector 
(ONS, 2022)

Agriculture

Manufacture

Wholesale

Food retail

Services

Food supply

558 91

525

840

163

Health
crisis

Food poverty

Food systems contribute 
40% of greenhouse
gas emissions (IPCC, 2022)

Biodiversity of priority species
has fallen more than 70%
in the UK since 1970 (NFS, 2021)

Climate
emergency

Research by GFO (2020) reported 
the valuable contribution of 

small-scale and community food 
production to sustainable land 

management, food security, and physical 
and mental health.

P
age 255



Snapshots and learnings

Childhood Malnutrition: From 
Grassroots to Policy Action
Roundtable Event November 2021 

Key learnings:

“Taking a whole systems approach to address the 
double burden of both underweight and overweight 
childhood malnutrition involves recognition of the 
important overlap between the food system, 
education system and health system”

“breaking down artificial silos between sectors” 

“need to trust their [grassroots organisations’] 
ability to understand the needs and priorities of the 
community” 

(Nagraj et al 2022) 

Interviews / survey
of growers and producers

“Turnover [of workers] is very high….we need skills 
and mentoring programmes for apprentice 
growers… places to live affordably in rural areas.”

“Food margins being driven down every year… we 
need to value doing good and sustainability.”

“Every person in the food chain doubles the price.”

“Local markets build strong relationships and loyal 
customers.”

School food surveys
May 2021
and workshop
March 2022 

“We need to listen to children’s voices 
- understanding why they sometimes 
avoid the food is powerful and can 
help with small changes.”

Parents on school meals:”They try 
things they wouldn’t at home then 
come back asking for it, it’s fantastic.”

“Too many chips according to my 
daughter.”

“nobody needs meat every day, and 
for the price it can’t be from 
sustainable and high welfare sources. It 
just destroys our planet and is 
irresponsible.”

Caterers need to keep their businesses 
viable and struggle to balance 
children’s preferences for unhealthy 
food with their ambitions to provide 
nutritious meals.  

Schools have the ambition to improve 
school food, but they lack the time, 
capacity, and resources necessary to 
make a significant change.

Key Events

September 2021
Good Food Procurement Webinar
20 attendees OSEP and GFO

November 2021
Childhood Malnutrition
Roundtable Event 
33 attendees, representing community 
groups, schools, housing associations, 
councillors, council officers, academics, 
and researchers*

March 2022
Oxfordshire Schools Food Workshop
40+ attendees representing schools, 
councils, communities, and caterers

April 2021 - ongoing 
Healthy Weight Community
Insights Programme
To date… engaged 28 community partners in 
Banbury Ruscote/Grimsbury, Blackbird Leys, 
Abingdon, Witney, and Berinsfield
Conversations with children at target sites
Listened to wider stakeholders at three 
workshops (146 people, 50 +organisations)

September 2021 - January 2022
GFO Research
11 locations, 100+ members of public interviewed 
50+ individual stakeholder meetings held
75+ stakeholders engaged at eight GFO events 
and network meetings

Voices from Oxfordshire

Chippy Larder

Visiting a local farm, engaging with 
growers, and learning new skills, having 
your own chick and farm fresh eggs at an 
affordable price, makes the 'aspirational' 
accessible.
 
Cherwell Collective
We need to return to a more symbiotic 
relationship between food systems and 
communities. By connecting people to 
their food, through growing and cooking, 
people learn the value of food and not 
just the price. This in turn helps to reduce 
food waste and improves health and 
wellbeing through a stronger sense of 
community and engagement with nature.

Orange Bakery

We love having a good relationship with 
our mill, our milk and our eggs…
it makes all the difference

Community insights

Life is complex and chaotic: “Many families 
tell us they have bigger issues to deal with 
than their child being a bit overweight” 

Many people lack the skills, capacity, or 
resources to cook and to change routines & 
habits: “We don’t plan, we live day to day” 

Professionals can lack resources or skills to 
have difficult conversations about weight, 
food, and wellbeing to help people to 
achieve a healthy weight: “It is easier to talk 
about death than to talk about their child 
being overweight”

GFO community research
Over 90% of respondents (members of 
the public) emphasised the importance 
of buying local food: to support the local 
economy, reduce food miles, and care for 
the environment.

1110

Through our Oxfordshire Community Insights Programme and through 
workshops, questionnaires, and interviews with local residents, groups, 
and businesses we have heard what matters to people about food and 
their current experiences.

Voices from Oxfordshire
We have listened to local 
people, groups, and enterprises.

P
age 256



Meal planning

Home food 
recycling

Appropriate 
portion size

Appropriate 
food storage

Workshops on food and climate 
identified common themes and 
links across health, supply, 
waste, and poverty.

Demand for 
healthy food

Quality of
rural transport

Need to drive 
to get food

Price of food in 
deprived 

neighbourhoods

Availability of shops
selling healthy food 
and rural shops

More takeaways 
in deprived areas 

Urban areas contribute 
to the risk of unhealthy 
weight. For example, 
there are more 
fast-food outlets 
in deprived urban 
areas.

1312

A third of the rubbish 
in the bin is food 

waste, which is not 
eaten or composted.

Local and 
seasonal food

Affordable diet

Less and 
better 
meat

More veg!

Culturally 
appropriate 
food

Food tasting 
experiences

Eating more veg, and less and 
better meat, reduces climate 

emissions, and supports 
sustainable farming practices and 

better animal welfare.

Enjoying more fruit 
and vegetables

Land-owners: 
aspirations for 
how they use itSuitable land 

for local 
production

Ability of 
producers to 
supply

Much of the UK’s fruit and 
vegetable supply comes 
from a small number of 
growing areas in Europe. 
Access to land for food 
production in Oxfordshire 
is difficult.

Tenant farms - ability 
to make change

Improving access to land 
for food production

Demand for 
animal-based 

meals

Demand for 
choice all year 

round

Increase in 
seasonal veg 
consumption

Plant-based meals 
and labelling, 
avoiding ‘vegan’

Consistent messaging

Sustainable 
food campaigns 

in schools
150g CO₂

P
age 257



Climate
emergency

Food 
poverty

Food
supply

Health
crisis

Healthy, sustainable, 
and culturally 

appropriate food is 
affordable and 
accessible for 

everyone.

15

Local food 
strategy

Vision and
strategic priorities

A coherent food strategy for all those involved with food in Oxfordshire 
can help push back against these pressures and deliver a vision in 
which everyone in Oxfordshire can enjoy the healthy and sustainable 
food they need every day.

3.

Everyone in 
Oxfordshire can 

enjoy the healthy 
and sustainable 
food they need 

every day.

Ambitions to help 
deliver a collective vision

We waste less food 
and the food that do 
we produce,consume 
and waste has less 
negative impact on 
the planet.

Local food businesses flourish 
with more production, more 

outlets, more employment, and 
better standards for workers.

Sustainable 
food 

economy

Food 
for the 
planet

Food 
justice

Sustainable 
supply 
chains

More locally produced 
sustainable food is bought and 
consumed locally, and supply 

chains are more resilient.

Good Food 
Movement

More people can engage with and 
enjoy healthy, sustainable food 
through events, education, and 
campaigns that build connections, 
knowledge, and skills.

Fair, healthy, and sustainable food is 
integrated into strategies, policies, and 

plans of stakeholder organisations. 
Progress towards ambitions is monitored 

and evaluated.

Governance 
and strategy

P
age 258



Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill health
Priorities

Expand and strengthen existing services and 
programmes aimed at those at risk of food 
poverty, including Community Food 
Networks (foodbanks, larders, and fridges), 
Healthy Start Vouchers, Holiday Activities 
and Food.  

Adopt Healthy Place Shaping principles and a 
Whole Systems Approach to Healthy Weight.

Outcomes

Everyone in Oxfordshire can access healthy 
food every day without shame or stigma.

More eligible people accessing existing 
schemes that tackle health and nutrition 
inequality.

Uptake of available central government 
funding is maximised, making full use of 
available funds, and providing evidence of 
the local need.

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity 
and skills to enjoy food together

Priorities

Support communities to grow, cook, learn, 
and enjoy food together. Promote campaigns 
and events that enable everyone to access 
healthy food, reduce food waste, and 
encourage dietary choices that are good for 
health and for the planet.  

Outcomes

Stronger communities through sharing and 
participation in food-related activities.

More people can access knowledge and skills 
to support growing, cooking, and better 
nutrition.

People make food choices that are better for 
their health and planetary health.

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, local 
jobs, local wealth generation

Priorities

Focus on local enterprises that are driven by 
local needs, provide employment, and multiply 
the impacts of money earnt and spent locally.

Use the power of anchor institutions (schools, 
hospitals, universities, businesses, etc) to 
procure locally and provide access to finance, 
infrastructure, and skills. This is called a 
Community Wealth Building approach. 

Outcomes

More local food enterprises flourish.

Better livelihoods, skills, and opportunities 
for local food workers.

Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Priorities
Detailed scoping project to define the needs, 
options, and future plans for local supply 
chain solutions for Oxfordshire.  

Consider public and institutional procurement 
as a way to provide scale and certainty for 
local sustainable producers.

Identify appropriate infrastructure to support 
the supply chain including local food 
processing hubs and dynamic procurement 
systems.

Work with landholders, existing producers, 
and new agricultural practitioners to explore 
access to land, infrastructure, and skills to 
meet local food demands.

Outcomes

Clear and robust understanding of
appropriate solutions for Oxfordshire. 

More sustainable food is produced and 
processed locally for local consumption.

Net zero goals are supported through 
sustainable food production and reduced
food miles.

Consumers are more engaged and 
connected to the provenance of their 
food, reinforcing healthier and more 
sustainable habits.

Improve the health and sustainability
of institutional catering

Priorities

Embed healthy, sustainable local food 
principles and targets within institutional 
catering.

Link food to net zero targets and promote 
accreditation schemes such as Food for Life, 
Fairtrade, and Sustainable Restaurant 
Association.

Outcomes

More people have access to healthy and 
sustainable food via local institutions.

The local food economy is supported by 
institutional procurement.

Institutions’ climate and sustainability 
targets are supported through better food 
practices.

We have identified 
the following priority
areas for action
Addressing these priorities will deliver
the following outcomes.

1716

P
age 259



Delivering the 
outcomes

4. To achieve these ambitions, 
we need to ensure that food 
is integrated within existing 
policy and programmes.

19

Whole Systems 
Approach to 
Healthy Weight 

Healthy Place 
Shaping Agenda

Climate 
Action 
Framework

Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050

Corporate and 
Local Plans

Policy/
programme Synergies with food strategy

Whole Systems 
Approach to
Healthy Weight

Access to healthy food
Awareness and promotion of a healthy diet
A healthy start for families
Planning healthy weight environments
Tackling health inequalities

Healthy
Place Shaping

20 minute neighbourhoods - easy access to healthy food 
Planning healthy weight environments
Food systems central to healthy places – growing, buying, 
cooking, sharing

Tackling Health 
Inequality

Focus on areas of inequality where access to food and health 
outcomes such as higher rates of obesity in children, and life 
expectancy gaps, are usually worse than the Oxfordshire 
average (Director of Public Health Report 2019/20)

Climate Action 
Framework

Emissions and biodiversity: food choices, 
production, handling, and waste
Improved local supply chains, reducing emissions from e.g., 
transportation, waste, and higher production standards

Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050

Climate action planning and infrastructure
Healthy Place Shaping to guide housing growth 
and inclusion of growing spaces
Land-use – local food production to support
short, local supply chains

Corporate and
Local Plans

Role of farming in climate, nature, and economy
Sustainable food businesses as part of green economy
Food as a facilitator of Inclusive communities through growing, 
cooking, and sharing together
Community health and wellbeing improved through 
access to affordable, nutritious food
Access to spaces and infrastructure

Tackling Health 
Inequality

P
age 260



2120

We must ensure that 
flourishing campaigns and 
initiatives across 
Oxfordshire are recognised, 
supported, and 
strengthened.

P
age 261



Priority areas to develop

Work with schools, caterers, and children to better 
understand the challenges of school food. 
Collaboratively develop solutions that are impactful but 
achievable to improve the quality and sustainability of 
school food. This approach can also benefit the local food 
economy through institutional commitments to buying 
local, ethically, and sustainably produced food. The 
learnings from the schools pilot can be applied to other 
institutional settings, including – hospitals and social 
care.

Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains 
that improve resilience to external shocks and the local 
food economy. 
Work with local institutional buyers – including schools, 
universities, and hospitals – to commit to increasing local 
procurement. 
Work with local producers to increase local, sustainable 
production to meet demand. Identify the technology, 
infrastructure, processes, and relationships to facilitate 
this.

Support Community Wealth Building approaches to 
preventing food poverty, building resilient 
communities, and developing skills, jobs, and 
enterprises that retain wealth locally. 
Councils and major institutions commit to being anchor 
organisations, increasing local procurement, making local 
assets available to local enterprises, and championing 
local enterprise.

2322

By showcasing examples 
of excellence, we aim to 
celebrate success and 
show what is possible...

Case study Great example of…

Chippy Larder and 
Bruern Farm

Communities growing and sharing food together

Salt Cross Garden 
Village

Ambition to create better food environments in new 
developments, navigating complex planning challenges

Oxford City Council – 
Healthy Start

Partnership working to increasing the uptake of 
Healthy Start Vouchers

Swan School Improving the health and sustainability of school food

Play:Full Community-led approaches to tackling holiday hunger

Cherwell Collective Building solutions to food poverty and the climate 
crisis through community growing, cooking, sharing

OX4 Food Crew Community Wealth Building, tackling food poverty, 
supporting resilience and community-led enterprise

Abingdon 
Community Fridge

Building community, tackling food poverty, reducing 
food waste

The Wonky Food 
Company

Sustainable food enterprise preventing food waste

The Orange Bakery, 
Watlington

Supporting local producers and providing employment 
for disadvantaged persons

Oxford City Farm Community education and engagement in growing

Sandy Lane Farm Organic and regenerative agriculture

…as well as building 
foundations and 
collaborations, and 
developing new initiatives.

P
age 262



2524

Examples of excellence 
from Oxfordshire

The Wonky Food Company makes relishes 
from imperfect and surplus fruit and 
vegetables. Started in Oxfordshire in 2018, 
the business sells via the Midcounties Co-op and Ocado, as well as through 
a growing network of independent delis, farm shops and artisan food stores.

Chippy Larder and Bruern Farm
Promoting dignity, affordable access to good 
food and community growing.

I set up The Chippy Larder to redress
the imbalance in my community. We 
support families who are not only in 
food, fuel, and educational deprivation 
but also at high risk of poor physical and 
mental health. To be surrounded by businesses offering high quality, nutritionally 
dense, locally produced food, that was and still is financially inaccessible to many 
is not acceptable.

The first step was to set up a hub that didn't stigmatise those in need, the key was to 
be inclusive so the whole community could benefit. The Community Larder model was 
a perfect fit - Chippy Larder is open to everyone providing access to affordable food 
and reducing food waste. Partnering with Bruern Farm we have set up the Chicky 
Larder - getting members outdoors and involved with growing. Visiting a local farm, 
engaging with growers, and learning new skills, having your own chick and farm fresh 
eggs at an affordable price, makes the 'aspirational' accessible. 

Wonky Food Company

Reducing food waste - flourishing 
with support from OxLEP

In 2022, it was accepted on to the Co-op’s first national incubator scheme, focusing on 
small sustainable food and drink brands. The Wonky Food Company has benefited from local 
business support since its inception. It received start-up support via OxLEP and is now part 
of OxLEP’s eScalate programme, a three-year European funded initiative supporting social 
enterprises, charities, and purposeful businesses in Oxfordshire. “It’s been such a fantastic 
programme to be part of,” says founder Ashley Cavers. “We have benefitted from some 
great peer group and networking opportunities. It has also enabled us to build our 
knowledge in important areas such as impact measurement and raising investment.

OX4 Food Crew (OX4FC) is a partnership of nine organisations based in OX4 working 
with and for people experiencing food poverty, which has been exposed and 
exacerbated by the pandemic. Founded in April 2020, we quickly responded to local 
needs by delivering nutritious cooked meals to people experiencing food insecurity in 
the local area. We are now developing the partnership to move beyond the emergency 
pandemic-driven response to include services which help build community food 
resilience. These include free cooking for health and wellbeing courses for parents, 
‘Pay as you feel’ community meals, and incubator support for food social enterprises 
including Damascus Rose Kitchen and No Vice Ice. As a coalition of organisations, our 
aim is to work with local communities to co-investigate and design flexible, 
community-led support and innovations that will help build food resilience in the local 
area, alongside ongoing emergency food support.

Community Wealth Building
from food poverty to resilience and prevention

The Swan School Oxford
Improving school food

Family dining enables all students and 
teachers to share a delicious hot 
meal together every day. No packed 
lunches are allowed.

We recreate a ‘family’ atmosphere.  Everyone is encouraged to engage in conversation and 
take responsibility for different aspects of the service, for example laying the table, serving 
food, or tidying the table at the end of the meal.  

Lunches at The Swan are vegetarian (meat is available at other times) for three main reasons:

• Quality – vegetarian meals allow us to provide better quality for the same price.

• Environment – reducing meat consumption decreases our carbon footprint.

• Community – all our students are able to sit together, regardless of their dietary 
preferences or religious requirements.

P
age 263



2524

Examples of excellence 
from Oxfordshire

Cherwell Collective
Stronger communities, reducing waste, 
alleviating poverty by growing, cooking, learning, 
and sharing together.

Started during COVID lock-down, Cherwell Collective was 
a response to food poverty, hardship, and isolation. We 
have developed our ambitions to empower our 
community, to increase well-being, to support the 
vulnerable, and to reduce waste and environmental 
impact in daily lives. We have over 5,000 users, 
hundreds of whom are supported weekly.

Orange Bakery, Watlington

Embedded in local community, supporting mental 
health, local producers, employment, and training

Play:Full
A local response to holiday hunger

Play:Full is a response to tackle holiday hunger 
experienced by many children who rely on Free School 
Meals during term-time. The evidence suggests that this 
group of children start the new term several weeks, if 
not months intellectually behind their more fortunate 
peers who have enjoyed a more wholesome diet and lots 
of activity during school holidays.   

Play:Full was initiated in Banbury as part of the Brighter Futures project, and has 
since been trialled in the City and South and Vale. Healthy, nourishing food is 
embedded alongside enrichment activities and positive food experiences from trying 
new foods, preparing simple snacks and meals, and enjoying shared meal-times with 
friends. Sessions are open to all to avoid stigmatisation, but focused on the most 
deprived wards to target children most in need. The impacts of the programme are 
clear: children try new foods, learn through enrichment, have fun, and are less 
isolated. Play:Full helps parents and carers with extra holiday food bills, and 
connects vulnerable families to a wider network of support.

Our food services include three main groups: 

Cherwell Larder: Friends feeding friends - alleviating food poverty, reducing food waste, 
and a community hub for distributing surplus of all kinds. 

Harvest at Home: Food security from the ground up - supporting people to grow at home 
and in the community. Providing home-growing kits, skills training, support, and access 
to resources. We have helped over 900 people start growing food for the first time.

Climatarian Kitchen: Eat to save the earth! At our food surplus cafe we enjoy 
climate-friendly meals together, using surplus and locally grown food. ‘Pay what you can’ 
meals have suggested donations according to the carbon footprint of the dish. We also 
offer freshly made ready meals, meal kits, flexi recipes, shared equipment (via Oxford 
Party Library), and cooking courses.

Abingdon 
Community Fridge

Fighting food waste 
and building community

At Abingdon Community Fridge we are focused on reducing food waste by collecting 
surplus food from local organisations and making this freely available to the whole 
community. Over 85 tonnes of food has been redistributed since opening in July 2019. 
Local residents benefit from this access to healthy, nutritious food, with the fridge 
supporting over 150 visits each week. As a volunteer-led group we are extremely proud 
of maintaining this free resource and the real sense of community which has grown 
between the fridge-users, volunteers, and the wider community.

We bake from the Scout Hut and now employ an apprentice from the local prison. We have 
learnt so much, from the basics of baking through to running a business. Being embedded in 
our local community has been vital to this journey - we have benefitted from the generosity 
of other bakers who offered their time, expertise, and equipment as well as those who 
crowd-funded us. More formal start-up support from small local enterprise schemes for 
mission-driven businesses via OSEP’s Escalate scheme has been invaluable, particularly the 
opportunity to connect with peers and networks of like-minded organisations.  

We started in our kitchen during lockdown to support 
mental health and help young people with focus, 
purpose, and an opportunity for creativity. Initially we 
baked for ourselves, then our neighbours who were 
isolating, and then through crowd-funding we were able 
to fund a shop front on the high street in Watlington.

P
age 264



2524

Examples of excellence 
from Oxfordshire

Oxford City Farm
Growing food 
and growing community

At Oxford City Farm we provide valued opportunities for people of all ages and 
backgrounds to engage with farming and food production, animals, nature, and 
each other. The food we grow is shared with volunteers and distributed within our 
local community, enabling us to get fresh produce onto the plates of people who 
might otherwise have limited access to it.

We work with a range of local organisations to deliver engaging hands-on land- 
and kitchen-based social and educational opportunities related to food and farming 
and the environment. Participants include children, vulnerable adults, and people 
experiencing loneliness and mental health challenges. Not only can participants 
learn growing and cooking skills in our new on-site teaching kitchen, but also 
experience an increased sense of well-being and connectedness, greater 
confidence, team-working, and life skills.

Sandy Lane Farm

Organic and regenerative agriculture

Salt Cross Garden Village

Ambition to create better food 
environments in new developments, 
navigating complex planning challenges.

‘a place to grow, a space to breathe’

West Oxfordshire’s Salt Cross Garden Village is a 
landscape-led proposal. It hopes to tackle 
climate change, is proposing a zero-carbon 
community, and 25% biodiversity net gain. It 
hopes to contain 2,200 homes, 50% of which 
will be affordable within walkable 
neighbourhoods; a park and ride with 6 minute 
connection to Oxford City; and utilise the local 
rail station to Oxford and London.

Oxford City Council - Healthy Start Vouchers 

Partnership working 
to increase the uptake
of Healthy Start 
Vouchers in Oxford

Healthy Start Vouchers support eligible pregnant women and young children to buy fruit, 
vegetables, and dairy and are funded centrally via the NHS. In January 2022 in Oxford 
City, around 240 eligible families were missing out on Healthy Start Vouchers, equivalent 
to £9,000 per week of unclaimed vouchers. 

Through joined-up working across housing, health, and locality teams, the City Council 
has supported an additional 36 families to access the scheme since the start of 2022. 
Providing a dedicated contact point within the council to liaise with other teams and 
provide training, and communications materials has been pivotal to making this change 
happen.

them and us, and a good variety of produce throughout the year keeps things interesting. The 
Bennett's commitment to organic growing is both a passion and a mission, and they utilise 
traditional farming methods - firmly backed by modern science. Biodiversity (above and below 
ground) is at the heart of organic farming, and our approach is try to keep ‘nature in balance’ 
every step of the way. Each year the farm's fields are bordered by beautiful 'beetle banks,' 
areas of wildflowers and grasses, sown to encourage pollinators and 'nature's pest controllers' 
to the crops. Early in 2020, the teams also planted nearly 1000 trees on the farm, a 
mini-agroforestry project which should improve irrigation, provide a habitat for birds and other 
wildlife, as well as providing valuable aerial cover for the farm’s 350 organic egg laying hens.

We are a traditional, mixed, family run farm in the 
South Oxfordshire countryside, passionate about 
growing organic veg. The team produces a wide 
diversity of vegetables in the farm’s sandy soil. This is 
partly to spread the risk that is inherent when you farm 
without pesticides, partly to keep the soil healthy, and 
also to champion locally grown veg. Selling vegetables 
directly to our customers means better value for  

Salt Cross’s edible garden community aims to embed sustainable food systems and maximise 
food growing opportunities. It will connect people to growing, production, consumption, and 
contribute to local, fresh food supply. 

It proposes: private and community food growing gardens, doorstep allotments, and 
community orchards; people coming together to cook, learn about, and celebrate changing 
seasons; careful species selections, hedgerows, woodland edges providing foraging grounds; 
edible trees and plants along walkways; places for residents to engage with growing food and 
nature. Planning, delivery, and stewardship challenges are being carefully considered with 
committed leadership, vision, and ambition. Salt Cross will be an edible garden community 
that will contribute to Good Food Oxfordshire’s sustainable food network, providing healthy, 
fair, and environmentally sustainable food for all.

P
age 265



Ideas for local councils Ideas for institutions and businesses

• Adopt a whole systems approach to food, ensuring that 
food is considered within health, climate, and economy 
policies and programmes

• Embed healthy and sustainable food and healthy weight 
environments within existing policies, plans, and targets

• Develop a specific food policy that encapsulates key 
themes and recommendations defined in the strategy

• Champion the development of district level Food Action Plans in partnership with other 
stakeholders to agree specific council commitments and measure progress against these

• Promote and support community groups and businesses working for 
a better food system through public procurement and access to resources

• Support vibrant, healthy food communities through access 
to skills and spaces for growing, cooking, and sharing food

• Lobby national government using local evidence and action

• Appoint food champions at cabinet level 
as conduits for food issues and action

• Commit to buying more sustainably-produced local 
food for catering 

• Participate in initiatives to scope and develop short, 
local supply chain solutions. Contact mail@gfo.org.uk 
to find out more

• Ensure food policies and reporting reflect health and 
sustainability targets, and link into net zero ambitions

• Participate in the development of Food Action Plans 
for local areas, agree specific commitments and 
measure progress against these

• Adopt accreditation and measurement schemes that 
support food targets

• Engage employees around healthy, sustainable local 
food. Support campaigns and events. Visit gfo.org.uk 
to find out more

Ideas for community groups Ideas for individuals

• Sign the Oxfordshire Good Food Charter and join a movement of 
collective action for a better food system for everyone in Oxfordshire

• Connect with a range of partners in your local food system to work 
together to solve local food problems like community food services, 
cooking and growing groups, councils, farms, and food businesses. 
Together we can do more. Contact mail@gfo.org.uk to find out more

• Participate in the development of Food Action Plans for local areas, 
and agree specific commitments.  Measure progress against these

• Join campaigns and events that bring communities together to grow, 
cook, and share food. Visit gfo.org.uk to find out more

• Support local organisations working to tackle food poverty and food waste 

• Join local growing schemes. Visit www.cagoxfordshire.org.uk 
and www.goodtogrowuk.org to find out more 

• Use local sustainable food businesses and markets whenever possible 

• Support and volunteer with campaigns and events that promote 
good food like cooking, nutrition, and growing programmes 

• Participate in the develop of Food Action Plans for local areas

• Visit gfo.org.uk or email mail@gfo.org.uk to find out more

We all need to act now to 
make this vision a reality

  A

2928

ACT
NOW

P
age 266

mailto:mail@gfo.org.uk
http://www.gfo.org.uk
https://goodfoodoxford.org/good-food-charter/
mailto:mail@gfo.org.uk
http://www.gfo.org.uk
https://www.cagoxfordshire.org.uk/
https://www.goodtogrowuk.org/
http://www.gfo.org.uk


End of part 1

P
age 267



Appendix 2 

Corporate Plan and Climate Action Plan Supporting Document 

The Oxfordshire Food Strategy supports the following key priorities and aims in the 

Corporate Plan and Climate Action Plan. 

 

Corporate Plan 

a. PHPN2.5: Develop a land use strategy to inform and guide OxPlan2050 and 
Vale Local Plan with proposed need for housing, retail, employment, leisure, 
open spaces – measures around land for growing and a number of other 
propositions. 

b. PHPN2.7: Update Vale’s Local Plan and OxPlan2050 with modern 
environmental policies in support of government's and Vale's goals. 

c. TCE1.2: Complete the CEAC Year One Climate Action Plan and plan for future 
years – measures relating to food for the planet. 

d. TCE1.3: Include in Councils Open Space Strategy opportunities to increase 
biodiversity, increase tree cover, and (other things we want to do on Council's 
open spaces) – measures to improve biodiversity through better agricultural 
practices and measures to encourage community food growing.  

e. TCE2.3: Introduce sustainable growth and environmental policies to our Local 
Plan. 

f. TCE3.7: Take an active role in the Growth Deal and the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
to influence the inclusion of sustainable growth and environmental policies – 
engagement with the county wide Strategy.  

g. BHC1.3: Maintain and develop the council’s Community Enablement function to 
respond to changing needs because of Covid-19 – measures to support local 
food networks and support access to food. 

h. BHC2.4: Identify council-owned land for community gardening and allotments 
projects. 

i. WIP1.4: Work with businesses to undertake economic development review to 
ensure that council is providing support to SMEs, homebased businesses, 
supporting skills development, and ensuring that businesses are playing a role in 
place making – measures to support local food businesses including in 
infrastructure and skills. 

j. WIOI2.3: Work with communities, schools and other local organisations on 
shared campaigns and initiatives that help further our corporate objectives. 

 

Climate Action Plan: 

a. OP12: Partner with Good Food Oxfordshire to support their Good Food Strategy for 
Oxfordshire, ensuring climate considerations are included throughout the strategy.  

b. C8: Include in Community Employment Plans considerations for addressing the 
council’s climate neutral targets through commitments such as green skills training, 
sourcing through a local and sustainable supply chain, supporting local social 
enterprises and charities and accessing local employment. 

Page 268



c. OP7: Use our membership of Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP) to 
ensure rapid growth of the green economy – measures that promote economic 
growth in climate conscious areas. 

d. OP2: Identify areas in our community that are most vulnerable to the effects of 
climate change to ensure they are properly supported and protected to promote 
wider community wellbeing. 

 

Page 269



25

May 2022

Oxfordshire
Food
Strategy

Appendix

P
age 270



1

1. Stakeholder Engagement   2

2. Analysis of influencing factors for each 
ambition

Food justice
Food for the planet
Sustainable food economy
Good food movement
Sustainable supply chains
Governance and strategy

8

10
14
16
18
20
22

3. Policy Links

Cherwell
City of Oxford
South Oxfordshire
Vale of White Horse
West Oxfordshire

26

28
30
34
36
40

4. References 44

Contents

P
age 271



Event
Informing the food 
strategy around …. Audience

Childhood 
Malnutrition 
Roundtable Event
November 2021

• Food justice

• Governance and strategy

• Good food movement

An all-day event, co-hosted by GFO, Public Health, Green Templeton College 
(University of Oxford).  33 attendees representing community groups, schools, housing 
associations, councillors, council officers, academics and researchers. The event 
explored experiences, challenges, and opportunities around childhood malnutrition and 
child food poverty with a cross-sector group of stakeholders aiming to increase 
awareness and shared understanding. Learning from this event are reflected in the food 
strategy

Healthy Weight 
Community Insights 
programme
April 2021 - ongoing

• Food justice

• Good food movement

To date… engaged 28 community partners in Banbury Ruscote/Grimsbury, Blackbird 
Leys, Abingdon, Witney, and Berinsfield
Conversations with children at target sites regarding eating habits, knowledge and 
awareness and attitudes
Listened to wider stakeholders at three workshops (146 people, 50 +organisations). 
Learnings from this programme are reflected in the food strategy

Oxfordshire Schools 
Food Workshop
March 2022

• Food justice

• Good food movement

• Food for the planet

40+ attendees representing schools, councils, communities, and caterers. Exploring 
challenges and opportunities to improve school food. The workshop identified 4 future 
areas of focus for future work with schools: food poverty, healthy eating, climate 
action and food; local sourcing

Short, local supply 
chains, roundtable 
meeting
April 2022

• Food for the planet

• Sustainable supply chains

• Sustainable food economy

25 attendees representing local farmers, NFU,  councils, schools, University of Oxford, 
Oxford Colleges, and community representatives came together to discuss the 
challenges and opportunities to increase the amount of locally sourced food that is sold 
locally within Oxfordshire, particularly via institutional procurement. The discussions 
have been reflected in the food strategy

1. Stakeholder 
Engagement

32

P
age 272



Event
Informing the food 
strategy around …. Audience and event format

Climate Action and 
Food Group
September 2021- 
January 2022

• All areas Hosted by Oxfordshire Public Health in partnership with GFO and council climate teams. 
Over three workshops 146 representatives from 50+ groups ,including councils, 
voluntary sector, local institutions, frontline workers, communities, and local businesses 
came together to share perspectives, and develop a better understanding of the 
connections between climate and food for a wide range of stakeholders, creating a 
shared understanding of the connections, and identifying levers for change. Learnings 
from these have informed the food strategy

GFO community  
research
September 2021- 
January 2022

• Food justice

• Food for the planet

• Sustainable food economy

• Sustainable supply chains

100+ members of the public interviewed at 11 locations to explore what matters to 
them about the food that they buy e.g., cost, health, quality, local, convenience.

Locations included a local market and a outside local supermarkets/ convenience stores 
in each District to include a cross-section of shoppers: 

Locations included: Wallingford farmers market, Waitrose in Wallingford, East Oxford 
farmers market, Co-op on Cowley Road, Botley Road farmers market, Aldi on Botley 
Road, South Oxford farmers market, Tesco, The Market Garden, Eynsham, Spar in 
Eynsham

Community Food 
Network Meetings
All Districts: Oct & Dec  
2021, Feb 2022

• Food justice

• Good food movement

Over 80 local organisations are part of the Community Food Networks (CFNs). These 
include foodbanks, larders and fridges as well as local advice services, councils and 
other VCS organisations. GFO hosts regular meetings  1 per district, where members  
come together to share challenges, resources and ideas. At these meetings we have 
presented the food strategy and invited contributions. We have listened to the 
challenges and ideas of members and these are reflected in the food strategy.

GFO events 
September 2021

• Good food movement Engaged with over 50 members of the public at GFO cooking and public engagement 
events (Ready Steady Cook Challenges in Broad Street, Community Event at Flo’s Cafe, 
OX4, Blenheim Palace Food Festival). Engagement involved questionnaires and 1:1 
discussions, to understand: what matters to them about food, their buying habits, 
what would influence them to change their ways, and what they would like to find out 
more about/ get involved in

GFO Catering and 
Procurement Working 
Group
October 2021

• Sustainable supply chains

• Sustainable food economy

• Food for the planet

GFO’s catering and procurement working group includes over 30 representatives from 
big institutional procurers such as Universities and schools. At our October meeting (8 
attendees) we provided the group with an overview of the food strategy and invited 
participation and engagement around their priorities for a food strategy. We explored 
ideas around how the public sector food can reduce its impact on the planet and  
dynamic procurement systems to facilitate local sourcing.
 

GFO network meeting- 
Producers and 
Growers
January 2022

• Food for the planet

• Sustainable food economy

• Sustainable supply chains

25 local producers and growers attended our network meeting. We presented the food 
strategy and invited contributions. We listened to the challenges and ideas of members 
and these are reflected in the food strategy. 

54

P
age 273



Event
Informing the food 
strategy around …. Audience and event format

Good Food 
Procurement Webinar
September 2021

• Sustainable supply chains

• Sustainable food economy

Co-hosted by GFO and OSEP with 20 attendees including sustainable, local food 
businesses. Webinar explored opportunities and challenges around increasing direct 
sales to local institutions or larger procurers. Learnings from this event are reflected in 
the food strategy

Interviews with 
producers and 
growers
September 2021- 
January 2022

• Food justice

• Food for the planet

• Sustainable food economy

• Sustainable supply chains

In-depth interviews with 9 local producers to better understand their organisations, 
ambitions and challenges, as well as their vision for a local food system. These are 
reflected in the food strategy. Interviewees included: Blackland Organics, Bruern Farm, 
Nettlebed Creamery, Pudlicote Farm, Sandy Lane Farm, Shotover Park, The Earth 
Trust, Tolhurst Organic, Warborough Honey. 

Oxfordshire Farmers 
meeting (NFU, OCC, 
GFO)
March 2022

• Sustainable supply chains

• Sustainable food economy

• Food for the planet

Farm tour and meeting with 8 local farmers at D’Oyley’s farm, Stadhampton, organised 
by the local NFU representative, in partnership with Oxfordshire County Council Climate 
team, and GFO. Discussed the challenges and opportunities around agro-ecological 
farming, and what the councils, and other partners  can do to support farmers. 

Food Sustainability 
and Health Group
November 2021 & March 
2022

• Food justice

• Good food movement

The Oxfordshire Food Sustainability and Health group is coordinated by Oxfordshire 
Public Health in partnership with GFO. The group includes representatives from a wide 
range of teams across Oxfordshire working around food and nutrition e.g., health 
visitors, midwives, early years, oral health, activity leaders, school nursing. At meetings 
in November 2021 and March 2022 we presented the emerging food strategy and 
invited contributions. We listened to the challenges and ideas of members and these 
are reflected in the food strategy. 
 

Other institutions
Oct 2021- Feb 2022

• All areas Individual meetings held with people with responsibility for sustainability and 
procurement from University of Oxford, Oxford Brookes University

Individual meeting held with OXLEP 

76

P
age 274



Objective Influencing factors relevant to local food strategy

Food justice Healthy, sustainable, and culturally appropriate 
food is affordable and accessible for everyone.

• Incomes

• Cost of healthy and sustainable food

• Cost of living aside from food

• Availability and access - local outlets and transport 

• Public, institutional and community delivered schemes

• Individual capacity, preferences and life-course needs 

• Support structures

Food for the planet We waste less food and food that we do  
produce, consume and waste has less negative 
impact on the planet.

• Land-use and farming practices

• Food waste - amount and handling

• Dietary choices

Sustainable food economy Local food businesses flourish with more 
production, more outlets, more employment 
and better standards for workers.

• Access to land for new farm entrants

• Access to premises, support and start-up grants for food businesses

• Infrastructure to support innovative and efficient local supply and distribution

• Skills and Training

• Awareness and public support for local sustainable food businesses

Good food movement More people can engage with and enjoy 
healthy, sustainable food through events, 
education, and campaigns that build 
connections, knowledge and skills. 

• People are aware of sustainable food debates and options available locally

• People are able to participate in sustainable food 

• Participating in sustainable food is a positive experience for people

Sustainable supply chains More locally produced sustainable food is 
bought and consumed locally and supply chains 
are more resilient.

• Demand for locally produced sustainable food from local institutional buyers

• Demand for locally produced sustainable food from local retail buyers

• Incentives to increase local production to meet local demand

• Capacity to increase local production to meet local demand

• Infrastructure to support local supply and distribution

Governance and strategy Fair, healthy and sustainable food is integrated 
into strategies, policies and plans of 
stakeholder organisations. Progress towards 
ambitions is monitored and evaluated

• Food strategy ambitions are translated into specific and measurable policy and 
programme targets for each stakeholder organisations

• These are tracked, monitored, and reported to the overall Steering Group 
responsible for the strategy. 

2. Analysis of 
influencing factors 
for each ambition

98

P
age 275



Food justice: healthy, sustainable, 
and culturally appropriate food is 
affordable and accessible for everyone

1110

Influencing 
factors

What needs to happen 
to influence this?

Potential actions that 
could make this happen

Incomes

Healthy and sustainable food is 
affordable and accessible for everyone.

• GFO highlights relevant campaigns to local councils for support 

• Councils appoint a Food Champion – at Cabinet level to harness council support for 
relevant campaigns 

Nurturing of community 
wealthy building models

• Scoping study to evaluate existing pilots; identify further opportunities and 
operational models including identification of and roles for anchor institutions 

Build local sustainable food economy to 
increase employment,  fair wages and 
business start up support

• Ensure that the needs of local food businesses are reflected in local business 
support and training provision 

Cost of healthy and 
sustainable food

Lobby central government and support 
national and local campaigns e.g., Sugar Tax

• Councils appoint a Food Champion – at Cabinet level to harness council support for 
relevant campaigns 

Support for local independent food economy 
to achieve scale and efficiency 
improvements

• Scoping project to explore dynamic procurement and local food hubs that can 
support better local supply chains 

• Continue to promote personal connections between producers and buyers via 
networking events 

Local supermarkets support local producers 
and adopt healthy eating principles within 
their stores

• Integrate work with local supermarkets into Healthy Place Shaping Agenda

Cost of living aside
from food

Support national and local campaigns to 
tackle poverty

• Councils appoint a Food Champion – at Cabinet level to harness council support for 
relevant campaigns 

Availability and access
- local outlets and transport

Healthy, sustainable food outlets accessible 
in all local neighbourhoods

• Healthy sustainable food outlets central to Healthy Place Shaping Agenda and 20 
minute neighbourhood plans

More healthy sustainable food accessible via 
community food services including fresh fruit 
and vegetables

• Continue to support local surplus distribution networks such as SOFEA and Oxford 
Food Hub 

• Support stronger links between CFNs and local producers 

P
age 276



1312

Influencing 
factors

What needs to happen 
to influence this?

Potential actions that 
could make this happen

Public, institutional and 
community delivered 
schemes

Strengthen delivery and awareness of 
existing schemes that support healthy and 
sustainable food: HSV; School Food 
Programmes; Holiday Activities; Community 
Food Services

• Strengthen training and support for frontline workers via available schemes 

• Link HSV uptake into HWB 

• Expand PlayFull principles into early years settings 

• Strengthen capacity of local VCS to join HAF scheme 

• Strengthen PlayFull principles within HAF scheme

Private institutions including universities and 
businesses recognise the importance of food 
in their sustainability and CSR strategies and 
embed it in policy

• Work with institutions to support the development of sustainable food policies and 
ways to integrate this with their net zero targets 

Public institutions including hospitals, 
prisons, care homes recognise the 
importance of healthy, sustainable food in 
their sustainability and health objectives and 
embed it in policy

• Anchor institutions set precedents and lead the way- food is explicit and integral to 
the social value policy for procurement standards 

Better food is offered via public, private and 
community delivered schemes

• Strengthen and support for public institutions to improve contractual arrangements 
with caterers 

• Promote accreditation schemes such as Food for Life and support public and 
private institutions to achieve this

Individual capacity and 
preferences

All individuals have the capacity, knowledge 
and skills to access the healthy and 
sustainable food they need

• Strengthen capacity of communities to support needs and preferences of all 
members (including older adults, vulnerable adults and diverse communities) via 
CFNs and community outreach work

• Strengthen support for knowledge and skills building around healthy eating - 
including current campaign and cooking training. Strengthen and support 
Community Food Networks

Support structures Community Food Networks: Foodbanks, 
community larder, fridges and advice 
services accessible to all in need

• Continue to support the CFNs and ensure access to emergency food services for all 
residents in need

• Support capacity building of CFNs and links to advice services to ensure long term 
resilience beyond COVID funding

• Link CFNs into Community Wealth Building approaches

Food justice: healthy, sustainable, 
and culturally appropriate food is 
affordable and accessible for everyone

P
age 277



1514

Influencing 
factors

What needs to happen to 
influence this?

Potential actions that 
could make this happen

Land-use

Increase the amount of land allocated to growing 
locally consumed food

• Adopt a local land-use strategy that enables grade 1, 2 and peri-urban land to be 
used for community growing and commercial sustainable agriculture

• Review all council land holdings with potential for release or repurposing for 
community growing

• Work with private landholders to pilot and evaluate models for partial conversion 
to horticulture

Central government/ DEFRA policy and subsidies 
support land use that is optimised to meet 
Oxfordshire’s food needs 

• Appoint a Food Champion to share local research e.g., PAZCO and raise awareness 
of Oxfordshire’s food and farming needs with national decision makers

• Link into national campaigns for better food and farming via Sustain and similar

Build local sustainable food economy to increase 
employment,  fair wages and business start up support

• Ensure that the needs of local food businesses are reflected in local business 
support and training provision (LEP)

Farming practices

Training, funding, and support for local producers 
looking to adopt agro-ecological approaches

• Strengthen skills via supporting existing apprenticeship schemes  or via higher 
education providers

• Strengthen partnerships with existing training providers and work in partnership to 
develop further

Food waste Amount of food waste
Handling of food waste

• Awareness raising and support for campaigns to reduce food waste e.g., Love 
Food, Hate Waste 

• Ensure kerbside food waste collection in all Districts to all residents

• Support for food surplus redistribution via CFNs

• More waste directed to composting, AD, or animal feed 

• Promote community composting 

Dietary choices

Support campaigns that promote sustainable food 
choices

• Support and promote healthy, sustainable food campaigns to public e.g., Eat Them 
To Defeat Them, Switch Up Your Lunch

Adopt an approach thatt recognises that healthy 
choices are also better for the planet

• Continue to embed sustainable food choices as an integral part of a Whole 
Systems Approach to Healthy Weight 

Set institutional precedents and lead the way on 
influencing consumer choices

• Reduce the amount of meat and increase the amount of veg procured via public 
institutions via policy commitments 

• Promote accreditation schemes such as Food for Life and support public and 
private institutions to achieve this

Food for the planet: we waste less 
food and the food that we do produce, consume 
and waste has less negative impact on the planet 

P
age 278



1716

Influencing 
factors

What needs to happen to 
influence this?

Potential actions that 
could make this happen

Access to land for new farm 
entrants

Finance and support for CSA and similar 
models

• Strengthen skills and training via higher education colleges and other

• Signposting support to wider grants and finance schemes for CSAs

Landowners, including councils, encouraged 
and supported to convert land to horticulture

• Explore council-owned land that could be repurposed for fruit and vegetable 
production

• Work with private landholders to pilot and evaluate models for partial conversion 
to horticulture

Access to premises, support 
and  grants 

Retail premises are accessible and affordable 
for independent food businesses

• Start-up grants and training for new entrants and existing businesses

• Expand meanwhile leases

• Broker events that raise awareness and profile of local independents and 
candidates for new business opportunities e.g., meet the supplier/ buyer

Support for Community Wealth Building 
Approaches

• Scoping study to evaluate existing pilots

• Identify further opportunities and operational models including identification of 
and roles for anchor institutions

Infrastructure to support 
local supply and distribution

Better contracting and procurement, 
infrastructure and processes

• Explore models such as food hubs to reduce costs for local producers and retailers 
via aggregation and shared infrastructure

• Explore dynamic procurement solutions

Skills and training Skills and training tailored to the needs of 
local food businesses including producers, 
retailers, cafes

• Strengthen skills and training via higher education providers/ colleges

• Strengthen partnership with existing training providers and work in partnership to 
develop further

Awareness and public 
support for local independent 
sustainable food businesses

Awareness building, campaigns, 
communications

• Strengthen directories/ mapping of local independent food businesses

Sustainable food economy: 
Local food businesses flourish with more 
production, more outlets, more employment and 
better standards for workers

P
age 279



1918

Influencing 
factors

What needs to happen to 
influence this?

Potential actions that 
could make this happen

People are aware of health 
messaging and sustainable 
food debates 

Campaigns to raise awareness of healthy, 
sustainable food 

• Support for sustainable food campaigns e.g.., Good to Grow, Switch Up Your 
Lunch, Love Food Hate Waste, Eat Them To Defeat Them, Pumpkin Festival

Directories to signpost people to where they 
can access healthy sustainable food locally

• Strengthen and promote local directories and maps where people can access 
sustainable local food 

People are able to engage 
with healthy and sustainable 
food 

Healthy and sustainable food is accessible to  
and affordable for everyone

• Embed healthy food environments within neighbourhood plans and planning policy

• Continue to support CFNs to promote fridge and larders as sustainable solutions 
for everyone

• Strengthen connections between local producers and CFNs

• Explore local food hubs and short local supply chains as a way to improve the 
affordability and accessibility of sustainable local food

Skills and facilities are available locally to 
support cooking, growing and eating 

• Increase community access to growing spaces via allotments and community 
gardens

• Promote the use of community centres for cooking and eating together

Participating in sustainable 
food is a positive experience 
for people

Food as a connector - bringing communities 
together to enjoy growing, cooking and 
eating together

• Continue support for community groups promoting access to sustainable surplus 
and local food and events via lunch clubs, community dinners, cultural 
celebrations, PlayFull activities, Big Lunches/ Little Lunches

Good food movement: More 
people can engage with and enjoy healthy, 
sustainable food through events, education, and 
campaigns that build connections, knowledge 
and skills. 

P
age 280



2120

Influencing 
factors

What needs to happen to 
influence this?

Potential actions that 
could make this happen

Demand for locally produced 
sustainable food from local 
institutional buyers

Institutions buy more locally produced food - • Public sector set targets and precedents for local procurement for their own 
catering purposes

• Scoping project to explore dynamic procurement solutions and local food hubs that 
can support robust local supply chains

Demand for locally produced 
food from local retail buyers

More local outlets offer sustainably 
produced, local food

• Adopt a MECC approach to interactions with local businesses to explore ways to 
increase supply of healthy and sustainable local produce e.g.., via EHO teams

• Host met the supplier events for existing and new retail opportunities that invite 
and promote local independent businesses committed to supporting healthy, 
sustainable communities

Cost of local produce is competitive due to 
scale and efficiency improvements facilitated 
by better procurement practices (whilst 
supporting fair wages)

• Scoping project to explore dynamic procurement solutions and local food hubs that 
can support robust local supply chains

Incentives to increase local 
production to meet local 
demand

Farm support schemes and incentives 
support increases in local production

• Lobby central government and DEFRA around National Food Strategy, ELMS and 
farming policy. 

• Link to national campaigns via Sustain and similar

• Appoint a Food Champion to harness council support for relevant campaigns and 
to take local concerns to a national level

Better contractual arrangements give 
producers confidence and certainty to 
increase production

• Scoping project to explore dynamic procurement and local food hubs that can 
support robust local supply chains

Sustainable supply chains: More 
locally produced sustainable food is bought and 
consumed locally and supply chains are more 
resilient

P
age 281



2322

Influencing 
factors

What needs to happen to 
influence this?

Potential actions that 
could make this happen

Capacity to increase local 
production to meet local 
demand

Improving skills in sustainable agriculture and 
support for apprentice growers

• Scoping project to understand the skills gaps and training needs of local 
sustainable producers

• Understand the additional support needs e.g., isolation of young farmers, access to 
accommodation

Access to land for production • Explore council owned land that could be repurposed for fruit and vegetable 
production

• Work with private landholders to pilot and evaluate models for partial conversion 
to horticulture

Access to funding for Community Supported 
Agriculture

• Explore funding models to support CSA and similar models

• Signposting support to wider grants and financing opportunities

Infrastructure to support 
local supply and distribution

Better connections between producers and 
buyers - personal and digital

• Strengthen and promote personal networking between producers and buyers

• Explore digital ways to connect and different models e.g., REKO rings, DPS

Procurement infrastructure and practices 
that facilitate local procurement as a viable 
alternative to national supply chain options - 
including aggregation, storage and 
distribution

• Scoping project to explore dynamic procurement solutions and local food hubs that 
can support robust local supply chains

Contractual certainty • Incorporate review and evaluation of contracting arrangements as part of dynamic 
procurement scoping exercise 

• Link this to Social Value Policies and procurement guidelines

Sustainable supply chains: More 
locally produced sustainable food is bought and 
consumed locally and supply chains are more 
resilient

P
age 282



2524

Influencing 
factors

What needs to happen to 
influence this?

Potential actions that 
could make this happen

Food policies 
Organisations have food policies that set out 
clear guidance for members to ensure 
strategic objectives are delivered 

• Leading institutions create food policies and set precedents and templates that 
smaller organisations can follow

• Food policies link to the ambitions of the food strategy

Food Action Plans 

Local areas take ownership for local food 
action plans 

Participatory processes ensure that the plan 
is owned by and meaningful to local 
stakeholders, tackling issues that matter 
most locally 

• Establish working groups for each District to lead on the development of Food 
Action Plans

• Working groups encourage participation from all local stakeholders and guide the 
development of the plan to ensure that it represents local views, priorities and 
needs

Monitoring and evaluation Process and measures established • Establish shared measurement practices to ensure that all action plans can 
meaningfully evidence progress towards the shared vision of the strategy

• Establish reporting and governance procedures so that working groups are 
independent but work collaboratively to deliver a shared vision 

Governance and Strategy: Fair, 
healthy and sustainable food is integrated into 
strategies, policies and plans of stakeholder 
organisations. Progress towards ambitions is 
monitored and evaluated

P
age 283



Recommendation Ownership Key Policy Links

1 Councils appoint a Food Champion – at Cabinet level to harness council support 
for relevant campaigns and lobbying (County, District and City Councils)

County and 
District Councils

• Corporate and Local Plans

2 Explore and implement a dynamic procurement and local food processing hubs 
that can support better local supply chains (LEP/ County Council)

LEP/
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership

• Oxfordshire Plan 2050

• Climate Action Framework

• Healthy Place Shaping Agenda

• Corporate Plans

3 Understand the skills gaps and training needs of local sustainable food 
organisations; build connections to training organisations including FE colleges 
and aligned organisations e.g., Farm Ed, Landworkers Alliance (LEP)

LEP/
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership

• Oxfordshire Plan 2050

• Climate Action Framework

• Corporate Plans

4 Strengthen support for public institutions to improve contractual arrangements 
with caterers (County Council) and promote accreditation schemes such as Food 
for Life (HWB) and support public (HWB) and private institutions (GFO) to 
achieve this;

Health and 
Wellbeing Board

• Whole Systems Approach to Healthy Weight

• Climate Action Framework

5 Scoping study to evaluate existing Community Wealth Building pilots; identify 
further opportunities and operational models including identification of and 
roles for anchor institutions (County council, City Council) 

County Council/ 
City Council

• Oxfordshire Plan 2050

• Corporate and Local Plans

6 Build understanding of the skills gaps and training needs of local sustainable 
food businesses - including producers, retailers and hospitality; build 
connections to training organisations including FE colleges and aligned 
organisations e.g., Landworkers Alliance (LEP)

LEP/
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership

• Oxfordshire Plan 2050

• Climate Action Framework

• Corporate Plans

7 Explore council owned land that could be re-purposed for fruit and vegetable 
production (District and County councils); Work with private landholders to pilot 
and evaluate models for partial conversion to horticulture (GFO)

District and 
County Councils/ 
GFO

• Healthy Place Shaping Agenda

• Climate Action Framework

• Corporate Plans

2726

2. Policy links
Potential links to existing 
policy

P
age 284



Body Location Policy Summary Relevant Food Strategy Recommendation

CDC Business Plan 2021-22 Deliver on our commitment to be carbon 
neutral by 2030

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, local jobs and local 
wealth creation

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Strengthen short transparent, local food supply chains 

CDC Business Plan 2021-22 Promote the Green Economy Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, local jobs and local 
wealth creation

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Strengthen short transparent, local food supply chains 

CDC Business Plan 2021-22 Protect our natural environment and our 
built heritage

Strengthen short transparent, local food supply chains

CDC Business Plan 2021-22 Develop skills and generate enterprise Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, local jobs and local 
wealth creation

CDC Business Plan 2021-22 Work with businesses to ensure compliance 
and promote best practice

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, local jobs and local 
wealth creation

CDC Business Plan 2021-22 Promote health and wellbeing in our 
communities to help create a more inclusive 
'Including Everyone' community and 
workplace

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

CDC Business Plan 2021-22 Support community and cultural 
development

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

CDC Business Plan 2021-22 Work with partners to address the causes 
of health inequality and deprivation

Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

2928

Potential support for 
other policy goals
Cherwell DC

P
age 285

https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/189/performance
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/189/performance
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/189/performance
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/189/performance
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/189/performance
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/189/performance
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/189/performance
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/189/performance


Body Location Policy Summary Policy Ref.
Relevant Food Strategy 
Recommendation

Ox City 
Council 

Business Plan 2021-22 Support local businesses, social 
enterprises and co-operatives, through 
procurement of goods and services. 
Promote Oxford Living Wage

P1.1 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs, and local wealth generation

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Support local businesses through 
grants, infrastructure and skills support

P1.3 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs, and local wealth generation

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Through Meanwhile in Oxfordshire 
support access to empty spaces for 
local people to start, test and grow 
business ideas

P1.4 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs, and local wealth generation

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Promote and support local businesses 
including outdoor seating and 
redevelopment of Covered Market

P1.6 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs, and local wealth generation

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 New East Oxford Community Centre 
and regeneration of community spaces 
in Blackbird Leys

P2.2 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 More organisations in Oxford will be 
socially and environmentally 
responsible

P1.8 Improve the health and sustainability of institutional 
catering

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Reduce inequality, improve cohesion, 
and improve health and wellbeing

P3.1 Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Improve children and young people’s 
resilience and confidence through 
educational and recreational activities

P3.2 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

3130

Potential support for 
other policy goals
City of Oxford

P
age 286

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22


Body Location Policy Summary Policy Ref.
Relevant Food Strategy 
Recommendation

Ox City 
Council 

Business Plan 2021-22 Locality-based service team - 6 hubs 
that bring together community services 
and support co-productive social action 
and support locality-based 
decision-making

P3.3 Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Thriving Community Strategy: Increase 
engagement with local community and 
voluntary groups, supporting them to 
improve the city and lives of citizens

P3.6 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs, and local wealth creation

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Continue to support vulnerable people 
impacted by COVID-19

P3.9 Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

Build vibrant food communities with thecapacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Reduce carbon footprint of council 
operations to zero

P4.1 Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional 
catering

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Increase green spaces and biodiversity P4.8 Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Ox City 
Council

Business Plan 2021-22 Citizens, businesses and other 
organisations will be taking action to 
reduce carbon emissions and increase 
biodiversity

P4.11 Build vibrant food communities with thecapacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional 
catering

3332

Potential support for 
other policy goals
City of Oxford

P
age 287

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/7620/oxford_city_council_business_plan_2021-22


Body Location Policy Summary
Policy 
Ref. Relevant Food Strategy Recommendation

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Recognise and support the role of 
farming

PRN4 Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Grown the local food economy through local enterprises, local jobs and local 
wealth generation

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Achieve carbon neutrality by 2025 
and support the district target of 
zero carbon by 2030

ACE1 Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, local jobs and local 
wealth generation

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional catering

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Promote and encourage 
behavioural change

ACE4 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Mitigate climate change through 
planning and land-use

ACE6 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Support local businesses to 
respond to climate change and 
nature recovery

ACE8 Strengthen short transparent local food supply chains

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, local jobs and local 
wealth generation

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Partner with regional agencies to 
ensure a strong economy and 
vibrant community

ECW1 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, local jobs and local 
wealth generation

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Launch  a new community 
wellbeing strategy

ECW4 Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Use our planning powers to 
preserve green spaces

ECW5 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

SODC Quarterly Report Q2 Exercise strong stewardship of 
our council assets

IRFV3 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional catering

3534

Potential support for 
other policy goals
South Oxfordshire

P
age 288

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2021/11/Quarterly-Report-South-Q2.pdf


Body Location Policy Summary Policy Ref.
Relevant Food Strategy 
Recommendation

VWH SPR Q2 Develop a Climate Emergency 
Strategy; identify energy-saving 
opportunities in council-owned 
properties

PHPN2.4 Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional 
catering

VWH SPR Q2 Include in Councils Open Space 
Strategy opportunities to increase 
biodiversity

TCE1.1 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

VWH SPR Q2 Encourage the wider district 
community to decrease its carbon 
footprint

TCE1.3 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

VWH SPR Q2 Exercising influence on wider 
environmental policy

TCE 
Programme 2

Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional 
catering

VWH SPR Q2 Identify council-owned land for 
community allotment and 
gardening projects

TCE 
Programme 3

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

VWH SPR Q2 Use council assets effectively to 
ensure financial viability and 
benefit residents and the 
environment

BHC2.4 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional 
catering

VWH SPR Q2 Develop a comprehensive and 
ethical procurement policy

BSF2.1 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional 
catering

3736

Potential support for 
other policy goals
Vale of White Horse

P
age 289

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf


Body Location Policy Summary Policy Ref.
Relevant Food Strategy 
Recommendation

VWH SPR Q2 Conduct a Strategic Property 
Review of council assets to 
maximise income and benefit to 
the district

BSF2.2 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

VWH SPR Q2 Work in partnership to influence 
and shape agendas to maximise 
benefits for the community and 
businesses

WIP 
Programme 1

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

VWH SPR Q2 Conduct a review to ensure 
support for SMEs and 
home-based businesses

WIP1.4 Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

VWH SPR Q2 Refresh community grants 
scheme and introduce a lottery to 
raise funds for groups

WIP 
2.5

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

VWH SPR Q2 Work with communities, schools 
and organisations on shared 
campaigns and objectives

WIO12.3 Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional 
catering

3938

Potential support for 
other policy goals
Vale of White Horse

P
age 290

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-Priorities-Strategic-Performance-Report-Q2-2021-22-3.pdf


Body Location Policy Summary Policy Ref. Relevant GFO Strategy Recommendation

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

Leading the way in protecting and enhancing the 
environment

Climate Action Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional catering

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

Work in partnership to drive forward climate action in the 
district

Climate Action Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional catering

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

Achieve carbon reduction targets Climate Action Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Improve the health and sustainability of institutional catering

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

A natural environment increasing in value for biodiversity 
and people

Climate Action Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

The design and building of sustainable, low carbon 
communities

Climate Action Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

Managing the councils’ land and assets for biodiversity Climate Action Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

Using the council’s planning powers to ensure that new 
developments deliver a net gain in biodiversity

Climate Action Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

Adopt a healthy place shaping approach Healthy Towns 
and Villages

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

WODC Council Plan 
2020-2024

Working closely and creatively with residents to 
understand needs and co-produce sustainable 
community-led solutions to tackle health and well-being 
challenges

Healthy Towns 
and Villages

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills to enjoy food 
together

Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health 4140

Potential support for 
other policy goals
West Oxfordshire

P
age 291

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf


Body Location Policy Summary Policy Ref.
Relevant GFO Strategy 
Recommendation

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Reviewing and delivering the council’s 
grants programme to ensure that it 
facilitates the enhancement of community 
facilities and the provision of activities 
which promote health and wellbeing

Healthy Towns 
and Villages

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Working proactively and in partnership to 
ensure residents benefit from effective 
large scale county-wide or national health 
and wellbeing programmes 

Healthy Towns 
and Villages

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

Tackle food poverty and diet-related ill-health

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Producing an Asset Management Plan to 
maximise the community benefit of the 
council’s estate

Healthy Towns 
and Villages

Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Support local businesses Vibrant District 
Economy

Strengthen short, transparent local food supply chains

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Promote West Oxfordshire as a visitor 
destination

Vibrant District 
Economy

Grow the local food economy through local enterprises, 
local jobs and local wealth generation

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Place-making for strong, vibrant, inclusive 
and connected communities

Strong Local 
Communities

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Providing shared spaces to promote social 
integration and cohesion

Strong Local 
Communities

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 A new Asset Management Plan to improve 
joint use of sites via the One Public Estate 
programme

Strong Local 
Communities

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Helping build resilience in communities with 
more effective joint working and 
intelligence sharing

Strong Local 
Communities

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together

WODC Council Plan 2020-2024 Amplifying the voices of underrepresented 
residents and takes a strengths based 
approach to create inclusive communities

Strong Local 
Communities

Build vibrant food communities with the capacity and skills 
to enjoy food together 4342

Potential support for 
other policy goals
West Oxfordshire

P
age 292

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/media/vtnnfcjj/westoxoncouncilplan.pdf


4344

4. References

Curtis, T. (2013) Foodprinting Oxford: How to Feed a City [online] Oxford: Low Carbon Oxford. 
available from <http://www.landshare.org/uploads/7/5/4/1/7541639/food_printing_web.pdf>

Dent, P., Melling, M., and Bird, A. (2021) Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing: Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment 2021 [online] Oxford: Oxfordshire County Council. available from 
<https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/system/files/documents/JSNA_Final_20210331.pdf>

Dimbleby, H. (2021) National Food Strategy [online] London: DEFRA. available from 
<https://www.nationalfoodstrategy.org/>

Driessen, B. (2020) Improving Access to Land for Food Production in Oxfordshire: What Are 
the Possibilities and Where Do We Go from Here? [online] Oxford: Good Food Oxford. 
available from 
<https://goodfoodoxford.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Improving-access-to-land-for-fo
od-production-FINAL.pdf>

Goudie, S. and McIntyre, Z. (2021) A Crisis Within a Crisis: The Impact of Covid-19 on 
Household Food Security [online] London: The Food Foundation. available from 
<https://foodfoundation.org.uk/sites/default/files/2021-10/FF_Impact-of-Covid_FINAL.pdf>

Harari, D., Francis-Devine, B., Bolton, P., and Keep, M. (2022) Rising Cost of Living in the UK 
[online] 9428. London: House of Commons. available from 
<https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-9428/CBP-9428.pdf>

IPCC (2022) Climate Change 2022: Impacts, Adaptation and Vulnerability [online] Sixth 
Assessment Report. International Panel on Climate Change. available from 
<https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar6/wg2/downloads/report/IPCC_AR6_WGII_FinalDraft_FullRep
ort.pdf>

Moretti, A., Whitworth, A., and Blake, M. (2021a) UK Local Food Insecurity Methods Briefing 
[online] Sheffield: University of Sheffield. available from 
<https://docs.google.com/document/d/e/2PACX-1vSI8Pa97QXlzWT6Lm-NUzxhn7-q5ZG4aoH
2f60ZC3O74MIfoRUFuieentUMYEXdJQ/pub?urp=gmail_link>

Moretti, A., Whitworth, A., and Blake, M. (2021b) UK Local Food Insecurity of Adults Jan 2021 
[online] Sheffield: University of Sheffield. available from 
<https://shefuni.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=8be0cd9
e18904c258afd3c959d6fc4d7>

NHS Population Health Team (2021) National Child Measurement Programme, England 
2020/21 School Year [online] Richmond, UK: NHS Digital. available from 
<https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/national-child-measur
ement-programme/2020-21-school-year>

ONS (2022) Food Industry in Oxfordshire - Office for National Statistics [online] 14374. 
London: Office of National Statistics. available from 
<https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/activitysizeandlocation/adho
cs/14374foodindustryinoxfordshire>

Osborne, H. (2022) ‘Asda Makes Cheapest Food Pledge after Pressure from Jack Monroe’. 
The Guardian [online] available from 
<https://www.theguardian.com/business/2022/feb/07/asda-to-make-cheapest-food-ran
ges-more-widely-available-jack-monroe>

Willis, G. (2012) From Field to Fork: The Value of England’s Local Food Webs [online] 
London: Campaign to Protect Rural England. available from 
<https://www.cpre.org.uk/resources/from-field-to-fork-2/>

P
age 293



End of Appendix

P
age 294



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 1 

Minutes 

of the annual meeting of the 

Council 

 

 
held on Wednesday 18 May 2022 on the rising of the preceding extraordinary 
meeting of Council, First floor, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton,  
OX14 4SB  
  
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 
Present in the meeting room:  

Councillors: Jerry Avery, Ron Batstone, Samantha Bowring, Nathan Boyd, Cheryl Briggs, 
Andy Cooke, Andy Crawford, Margaret Crick, Eric de la Harpe, Neil Fawcett, 
Andy Foulsham, Hayleigh Gascoigne, David Grant, Jenny Hannaby, Simon Howell, 
Alison Jenner, Bob Johnston, Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison, Sarah Medley, 
Patrick O'Leary, Sally Povolosky, Judy Roberts, Janet Shelley, Emily Smith, 
Bethia Thomas, Max Thompson, Elaine Ware, Catherine Webber and Richard Webber 
 

Officers:  Patrick Arran, Head of Legal & Democratic and Monitoring Officer,  
Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager, and Suzanne Malcolm, Deputy Chief 
Executive - Place 
  

Remote attendance (not entitled to vote):  
Councillors Eric Batts and Ben Mabbett 
 
 
 

1. Apologies for absence  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Paul Barrow,  
Amos Duveen, Debby Hallett, Helen Pighills, Mike Pighills and Val Shaw. 
 

2. Election of chair  
 
Councillor Crick left the room during consideration of this item. 
 
Councillor Crick was nominated as chair for the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 
RESOLVED:  to elect Councillor Crick as chair of the council for the 
2022/23 municipal year, until the next annual meeting of the Council in 
May 2023. 
 

Councillor Crick signed her declaration of acceptance of office and made an 
acceptance speech.  

 
 
 

Page 295



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 2 

 
 

 

3. Appointment of vice-chair  
 
Councillor Avery left the room during the consideration of this item. 
 
Councillor Avery was nominated as vice-chair for the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 
RESOLVED:  to appoint Councillor Avery as vice-chair of the council 
for the 2022/23 municipal year, until the next annual meeting of the 
Council in May 2023. 
 
Councillor Avery signed his declaration of acceptance of office. 

 

4. Minutes  
 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2022 as a 

correct record and agree that the chair sign them as such. 
 

5. Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest  
 
None. 
 

6. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
On behalf of Council, the Chair welcomed Councillor Sally Povolotsky, the newly 
elected ward councillor for the Steventon and the Hanneys Ward. 
 

7. Public participation  
 
Two members of the public had registered to ask a question. 
 

A. Elizabeth Fell asked the following question: 
 
“I would like to know why there are still building projects going on (and further 
permissions being sought), when we already exceed the targets and in fact are in the 
top third for development in the country. Unfortunately, we are also down the bottom 
of the list for infrastructure to support the housing.  

I am deeply disappointed for example that despite all the housing being built on Grove 
airfield, more houses are going to build along Letcombe Brooke behind Westbrook 
and Wick Green - we are losing all our green spaces.”  

Councillor Bethia Thomas, Cabinet member community engagement responded as 
follows: 

“It is true that the Vale of White Horse is a strong performer in delivering new homes, 
and we work to continue to meet government targets.  

The Government compiles tables annually for the Housing Delivery Test, and the 
latest results show that Vale was in the top 25% of local authorities for homes 
delivered in 2020/21. For authorities in the lower ranks, there are planning penalties 
including the imposition of a presumption in favour of development, and higher buffers 
which raise housing numbers for the next year. So, it is a good thing that Vale has 

Page 296



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 3 

consistently avoided government interventions that befall lower performers. It means 
we retain control of where new housing development is built in our district.  

At the same time the council works incredibly hard to plan for the infrastructure 
needed to support new housing and will continue to do so to secure new and 
improved public facilities like leisure, sports pitches, schools, open space, cycling and 
walking networks and better public transport, and is lobbying for the re-opening of 
Grove Station.   

We are also working more with Clinical Commissioning Groups who are responsible 
for primary health care provision and pushing for districts to be part of the new system 
of Integrated Care Systems governance to ensure health care is planned on a more 
joined up way across the region. 

However, this work is not easy when we are committed to the high levels of housing 
growth agreed by previous administrations.  

The history of this goes back many years. In 2014 the Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment identified a need for 100,000 homes for Oxfordshire for the period 2011 
to 2031. 

The Vale's Local Plan adopted in December 2016 by the previous administration, 
baked in this high quantity of development in the district and allocated the sites you 
refer to in your question at Grove Airfield and Monks Farm including land near 
Letcombe Brook for housing. This was further reinforced in 2018 with the signing of 
the housing and growth deal. With this deal the County Council received some funding 
for infrastructure, but not at a level to cover the cost of all that would be required. 

Unfortunately, these decisions are not something we are able to go back on and 
change.   
 
It takes time for housing to come forward so the developments we see now are the 
outcome of this period and the decisions made by a previous administration; we are 
still having to use those targets and policies when our planning department and 
committee make decisions on applications coming through now.   

Our administration has always been committed to a fairer and more sustainable 
approach to planning. We are working on a new Local Plan with South Oxfordshire 
District Council and we are working through the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 process with 
other Oxfordshire Councils to agree a new housing requirement figure.   

Changing planning policy takes time, but after a lot of work behind the scenes, our first 
consultation on the Joint Local Plan launched last week. We really want to hear from 
the public about what their vision for the future of our district is, and what policies we 
can put in place to guide planning in coming years and give this council more levers to 
insist on sustainable levels of housing and the infrastructure and affordable homes our 
communities need.  

The new local plan will provide policies that seek to strike a balance between green 
spaces, housing, employment sites, renewable energy, agricultural land, etc. so 
please do, and encourage others, to get involved in our consultations to make sure we 
are getting the balance right in the future. 
 
We expect that our new local plan will be produced and taken through the 
independent examination and adoption process by the end of 2024. Until then we 
continue to do our best with the policies that are currently in place to address the 
concerns that you identify in your question, and that this administration shares”.   

 
 

Page 297



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 4 

 
 
 

B. Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager, read out the following 
question on behalf of Chris Henderson 

 
“Can the appropriate Cabinet Member tell me when we will be able to see any specific 
plans from Vale of White Horse District Council for spending their Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) income? I can find nothing on the website. The last report on 
CIL expenditure appears to be from the year 2018/19 and the only expenditure was 
the 5% allowed for administration. 
 
At Radley Parish Council we have consulted with the community and have come up 
with detailed plans for spending the CIL allocation from the strategic sites in our 
Parish. Many of these plans are well developed and some have already been 
implemented. 
 
Yet as someone who has taken an interest in this issue since CIL was introduced I still 
have no clue as to how one penny of the tens of millions of pounds going to the Vale 
Council will be spent. 
 
While many in our Parish initially opposed the housing developments, they can at 
least now start to see some benefits in improved infrastructure from our projects. It 
would be good if we could also point to similar projects being proposed by the district”. 
 
 

Councillor Judy Roberts, Cabinet member for development and infrastructure, 
responded as follows: 
 

“The council approved an updated Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Spending 
Strategy in December 2020 that took effect in April 2021, setting out how the CIL 
contributions raised from development will be shared between public health care 
providers, the County Council, the Vale District Council and the parish and town 
councils to provide facilities that our communities need across the Vale. 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/01/Vale-CIL-
Spending-Strategy-April-2021-1.pdf  
 
When we set the 2022/23 budget council allocated CIL funds in the capital programme 
totalling £3,029,000 as set out in the attached table.  This was also published in 
Appendix D.3 with the budget papers at our full council meeting in February. Most of 
these funds are to be used on the Vale’s capital programme to support projects across 
the district 
 
This allocation of funding will be included in the 2021/22 Infrastructure Funding 
Statement which will be published in line with CIL regulations.  
 
Whilst funding has been allocated towards these projects, this does not constitute 
approval of either of the delivery of the project itself or use of the CIL for this purpose.  
Both the project and CIL expenditure approval will be done in line with the council’s 
constitution and will be dependent on the project cost and funding required and may 
require cabinet or full council approval. But this table gives you an idea of the projects 
we are looking to use CIL for. 
 
The total of the council's CIL proportion (from its 30 per cent share as set out by the 
CIL spending strategy) currently stands at £2,526,284.  It is to be noted that of the 

Page 298

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/01/Vale-CIL-Spending-Strategy-April-2021-1.pdf
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2021/01/Vale-CIL-Spending-Strategy-April-2021-1.pdf


Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 5 

allocated £3,029,000, £770,000 of the allocated funding is spread out from 23/24 to 
26/27 which will be covered from near term CIL receipts. 
 
The council has also approved CIL funding of £2,722,627 to Oxfordshire County 
Council for education and transport, of which £2,079,976 is for the Radley CE Primary 
School Extension project, and also released £1,880,352 to town and parish councils in 
accordance with the CIL regulations”. 
 

8. Petitions  
 
None. 
 

9. Appointments to committees, panels and joint committees for 
2022/23  

 
Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic on the appointment 
of those committees and joint committees which are required to be politically 
balanced; together with the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee, Licensing Acts 
Committee, the area committees and appointments to joint bodies. 
 
The chair referred to the following recommendation, circulated prior to the meeting, 
covering these appointments and to reflect the allocation of the vacant committee 
positions. This provided for the Liberal Democrat Group to take the vacant seats on 
the Planning Committee and Scrutiny Committee, the Conservative Group taking the 
vacant seat on the Joint Staff Committee and the non-group councillor taking the 
vacant seat on the Appeals Panel. The Liberal Democrat Group allocated one of its 
seats on the Planning Committee, General Licensing Committee and Licensing Acts 
Committee to the non-group councillor and one of its seats on the Scrutiny Committee 
to the Conservative Group. 

 
That for the 2022/23 municipal year Council 
 
1. appoints the committees and panels for the 2022/23 year and allocate seats to 

each political group as set out in the schedule circulated prior to the meeting;  

2. appoints councillors and substitutes to sit on the committees and panels as set 

out in the schedule circulated prior to the meeting: 

3. appoints councillors to the Licensing Acts Committee as set out in the schedule 

circulated prior to the meeting;  

4. appoints councillors to the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee as set out 

in the schedule circulated prior to the meeting; 

5. appoints chairs and vice-chairs as set out in the schedule circulated prior to the 

meeting;  

6. appoints all local members representing the wards covered by the relevant area 

committees to those committees for the 2022/23 municipal year with the 

following chairs:   

 Abingdon and North East – Andy Foulsham   

 Faringdon – David Grant 

 Wantage – Hayleigh Gascoigne 

7. appoints Paul Barrow as the council’s representative and Andy Foulsham as 

substitute on the Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee;  

Page 299



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 6 

8. appoints Neil Fawcett as the council’s representative and Helen Pighills as 

substitute on the Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel;  

9. appoints Samantha Bowring, Andy Cooke and Nathan Boyd to the Future 

Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel; 

10. authorises the head of legal and democratic to make appointments to any 

vacant committee or panel seat and substitute positions in accordance with the 

wishes of the relevant group leader. 

 

RESOLVED: (with no councillor voting against) to 

1. appoint the following committees and panels for the 2022/23 municipal year and to 
appoint the membership, substitutes and chairs and vice-chairs as indicated to sit 
on them (see table below); 

 

Planning Committee, 9 Members  

Liberal Democrat (7) Conservative (1)  Non-group 

councillor (1) 

Ron Batstone Janet Shelley  Cheryl Briggs 

Jenny Hannaby   

Diana Lugova   

Rob Maddison   

Mike Pighills   

Val Shaw (Vice-Chair)   

Max Thompson (Chair)   

Preferred substitutes 

Liberal Democrat (7) Conservative (3)  

Jerry Avery Nathan Boyd   

Paul Barrow Ben Mabbett  

Andy Cooke Elaine Ware   

Amos Duveen   

Hayleigh Gascoigne   

Alison Jenner   

Sarah Medley   

 
 

Scrutiny Committee, 9 Members  

Liberal Democrat (7)  Conservative (2) 

Jerry Avery Nathan Boyd (Chair) 

Ron Batstone (Vice-Chair) Ben Mabbett  

Eric de la Harpe  

Page 300



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 7 

Hayleigh Gascoigne  

David Grant  

Max Thompson  

Patrick O’Leary  

Preferred substitutes 

Liberal Democrat (7)  Conservative (3) 

Paul Barrow Elaine Ware 

Samantha Bowring Janet Shelley 

Andy Foulsham Simon Howell  

Alison Jenner  

Diana Lugova  

Rob Maddison  

Sarah Medley  

 

Joint Scrutiny Committee, 5 Members   

Liberal Democrat (3) Conservative (1)  Non-group 

councillor (1) 

Andy Cooke Nathan Boyd (Co-

Chair) 

Cheryl Briggs 

Amos Duveen   

David Grant   

Preferred substitutes 

Liberal Democrat (3) Conservative (3)  

Alison Jenner Simon Howell   

Andy Foulsham Ben Mabbett  

Max Thompson Elaine Ware  

 
 
 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee, 4 Members 

Liberal Democrat (3) Conservative (1) 

Amos Duveen Simon Howell 

Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair)  

Mike Pighills  

Preferred substitutes 

Liberal Democrat (3) Conservative (3) 

Andy Cooke Nathan Boyd 

Page 301



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 8 

Eric de la Harpe Ben Mabbett  

Alison Jenner Elaine Ware 

 
 

Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee, 6 Members 

Liberal Democrat (5) Conservative (1) 

Paul Barrow Janet Shelley 

Ron Batstone (Chair)  

Alison Jenner  

Sarah Medley (Vice-Chair)  

Mike Pighills  

Preferred substitutes 

Liberal Democrat (5) Conservative (3) 

Rob Maddison Simon Howell  

Patrick O’Leary Ben Mabbett 

Max Thompson Elaine Ware 

Diana Lugova  

Richard Webber  

 
 

Joint Staff Committee, 3 Members 

Liberal Democrat (2) Conservative (1) 

Debby Hallett  Elaine Ware  

Emily Smith  

Substitutes  

The Leader may be substituted by another Cabinet member.  

Other members of the committee may be substituted by any other member of the council.  

 
 

General Licensing Committee, 12 Members 

Liberal Democrat (9) Conservative (2) Non-group 

councillor (1) 

Jerry Avery Eric Batts  Cheryl Briggs 

Paul Barrow Ben Mabbett   

Ron Batstone (Vice-Chair)  

Margaret Crick  

Debby Hallett  

Page 302



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 9 

Alison Jenner (Chair)  

Patrick O’Leary  

Val Shaw  

Richard Webber  

NO SUBSTITUTES 

 

Licensing Acts Committee, 12 Members 

Liberal Democrat (9) Conservative (2) Non-group 

councillor (1) 

Jerry Avery Eric Batts  Cheryl Briggs 

Paul Barrow Ben Mabbett   

Ron Batstone (Vice-Chair)  

Margaret Crick  

Debby Hallett  

Alison Jenner (Chair)  

Patrick O’Leary  

Val Shaw  

Richard Webber  

NO SUBSTITUTES 

 

Appeals Panel, 3 Members 

Liberal Democrat (2) Non-group councillor (1) 

Paul Barrow Cheryl Briggs 

Alison Jenner (Chair)  

PREFERRED SUBSTITUTES 

Liberal Democrat (3)  

Val Shaw  

Richard Webber  

Debby Hallett  

 

Climate Emergency Advisory Committee, 7 Members 

Liberal Democrat (6) Conservative (1) 

David Grant  Eric Batts  

Hayleigh Gascoigne (Chair)  

Eric de la Harpe (Vice Chair)  

Alison Jenner  

Page 303



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 10 

Bob Johnston  

Catherine Webber  

Preferred substitutes 

Liberal Democrat (6) Conservative (3) 

Ron Batstone Nathan Boyd  

Amos Duveen Ben Mabbett 

Andy Foulsham Elaine Ware  

Rob Maddison  

Sarah Medley  

Mike Pighills  

 
 
2. appoints all local members representing the wards covered by the relevant area 

committees to those committees for the 2022/23 municipal year with the following 

chairs:   

 Abingdon and North East – Andy Foulsham   

 Faringdon – David Grant 

 Wantage – Hayleigh Gascoigne 

3. appoints Paul Barrow as the council’s representative and Andy Foulsham as 

substitute on the Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee;  

4. appoints Neil Fawcett as the council’s representative and Helen Pighills as 

substitute on the Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel;  

5. appoints Samantha Bowring, Andy Cooke and Nathan Boyd to the Future 

Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel; 

6. authorises the head of legal and democratic to make appointments to any vacant 

committee or panel seat and substitute positions in accordance with the wishes of 

the relevant group leader. 

 

10. Adoption of Oxfordshire Code of Conduct for Councillors  
 
Council considered the recommendation of the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee, made at its meeting on 29 March 2022, to adopt the Oxfordshire Code of 
Conduct. 
 
RESOLVED: to approve the Oxfordshire Code of Conduct, appended to the report of 
the monitoring officer to the meeting of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
held on 29 March 2022. 
 

11. Appointment of Independent Persons  
 
Council considered the report of the head of legal & democratic and monitoring officer 
which proposed the appointment of six Independent Persons to assist the monitoring 
officer with code of conduct matters. The report proposed that the Independent 
Persons are appointed by both South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District 
Councils. 

RESOLVED: to appoint Mike Boon, Julie Byron, George Green,  

Page 304



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 11 

Andrew Mills-Hick, Chris Smith and Martin Wright as Independent Persons for a 
period of four years until the annual meeting in May 2026. 
 

12. Oxford Flood Alleviation Scheme - discharge of planning 
functions  

 
Council considered the report of the head of planning which sought approval for the 
delegation to Oxfordshire County Council of any planning responsibilities that would 
otherwise be exercised by Vale of White Horse District Council in relation to the 
Oxford Flood Alleviation Scheme.   

 
RESOLVED: to delegate the discharge of the district planning authority functions in 
connection with the processing and determination of any planning application for the 
Oxford Flood Alleviation Scheme to Oxfordshire County Council, under section 101 of 
the Local Government Act 1972.  

 

13. Report of the leader of the council  
 
Councillor Emily Smith, Leader of the council, provided an update on a number of 
issues. The text of her address is available on the council’s website. 
 

14. Questions on notice  
 
No questions had been submitted by councillors. 
 

15. Motions on notice  
 
Council considered the motions from councillors set out in the agenda in accordance  
with Council Procedure Rule 38. 

 

A. Councillor Bethia Thomas moved, and Councillor Bob Johnston 
seconded the motion as set out in the agenda at agenda item 15:  

 
After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 

RESOLVED: That 

Healthy food is vital to us all and food production and farming is an important 
economic and employment sector in our district, with agriculture at the heart of many 
of our communities. However, the rising costs of fuel and other supplies is creating 
increased pressure on farmers across the district, whilst government policies on 
international trade deals threaten to undermine UK food quality standards and risk 
putting farmers out of business – as well as exacerbating food insecurity in the UK.  At 
the same time, significant increases in the cost of living are putting pressure on 
residents across the Vale, forcing them to make difficult choices regarding their 
household budgets, including the amount spent on food and heating. 
  
The district council has a number of powers and opportunities that can help influence 
food production, support sustainable farming and distribution, reduce food waste, and 
promote healthy eating for the benefit of our residents and the environment, whilst 
supporting action to address climate change. 
  
Council therefore resolves: 
   

Page 305

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/uncategorised/leaders-statement-18-may-2022/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 12 

1.     To create a Member Food and Farming Champion to promote local food 

production and distribution, as well as healthy eating in the Vale. 
2.   To encourage farming communities and agricultural businesses to respond to any 

consultation on our new Joint Local Plan and Oxfordshire Plan 2050. 
3.   To encourage developers to include community gardens and allotment provision 

within all new housing developments. 
4.   To encourage and promote high environmental health standards at all stages of 

food production, distribution and redistribution, and continue to support local 
businesses and ‘farm-door’ sales, recognising their positive impact on reducing 
the carbon emissions associated with food miles. 

5.   To maximise opportunities to highlight the importance of food and farming in our 
local economy via the press and through social media. 

6.   To continue to investigate ways we can support food redistribution organisations 
and food charities to address food poverty in the district, noting the work that has 
already been done in this regard. 

7.   To continue to promote ways we can reduce food waste through our waste service 
and the use of food recycling bins. 

8.   To continue to promote the use of waste food and the highlight the climate benefits 
this can bring. 

9.   To minimise food waste at any event that we may host that serves food, and to 
use such occasions to highlight the use of waste food, low carbon options, and 
locally sourced produce wherever possible. 

 
B.   Councillor Eric de la Harpe moved, and Councillor Samantha Bowring 
seconded the motion as set out in the agenda at agenda item 15:  

 

After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 

RESOLVED: That 

There have been a number of fatal road accidents in Oxfordshire recently involving 
cyclists.   This is despite changes to the highway code which came into force on the 
29 January 2022.   The aim of these changes, which Council believes are to be 
commended, is to improve the safety of pedestrians, cyclists and horses on the 
highway by assigning a hierarchy of responsibility such that the heavier the mode of 
transport, the more responsibility the operator carries for the safety of others using 
lighter modes of transport. Motorists turning left, for example, must stop for cyclists 
behind them in a cycle lane.   Cyclists are now also advised to ride in the centre of the 
lane and to ride two-abreast  
   
Encouraging active travel is central to Council’s key themes of tackling the Climate 
Emergency and Building Healthy Communities.  However, not all residents are aware 
of these new changes to the Highway Code and any confusion arising from this could 
lead to serious incidents, between motorists and cyclists and this could discourage 
active travel.  
   
Council resolves to:  

1. Express regret for the recent loss of life on our roads and believes that the 
changes to the Highway Code should be commended as they seek to mitigate 
any risk to safety.  

2. Asks the Leader to write to Oxfordshire County Council to ensure that   

a. the County Council as the highways authority publicises the changes to 
the Highway Code widely as part of its highways safety messaging 
and requesting it ensures that all future transport schemes in the Vale of 

Page 306



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 18 May 2022 13 

White Horse reflect the latest changes to the Highway Code and 
encourage Active Travel by default.   

b. all cycle infrastructure should be delivered in accordance with the 
standards set out in the Government's Cycle infrastructure design (LTN 
1/20) guidance   

3. Ask the Cabinet member for Community Engagement to work with officers to 
highlight government and county council communications about the Highway 
Code changes via our media channels and signpost (for example in Vale News) 
to the Government website and the latest guidance where relevant.   

C. Councillor Max Thompson moved, and Councillor Richard Webber 
seconded the motion as set out in the agenda at agenda item 15:  

 

After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 

RESOLVED: That 

Oxfordshire County Council has been undertaking consultation on its new Oxfordshire 
Transport and Connectivity Plan, which will support the County Council’s local 
transport plan vision, which is to deliver a zero-carbon Oxfordshire transport system 
that enables all parts of the county to thrive, with the intention of supporting clean 
growth, tackling inequality and protecting our natural and historic environment. 

The County Council are seeking to reduce the need to travel within the County and 
discouraging unnecessary individual private vehicle use by individuals and wish to see 
walking, cycling, public and shared transport become the natural first choice for 
residents.   These objectives are in line with those that the district and city councils 
within the County have already signed up to as part of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
process and also with the Government’s climate change and carbon reduction 
policies. 

Council resolves to: 

 Welcome Oxfordshire County Councils commitment to set out an ambitious 
plan to reduce car journeys and reliance on private motor vehicles  

 Support the commitment by the County Council to put climate change action at 
the heart if its proposals.  

 Continue to respond to consultations on the Oxfordshire Transport and 
Connectivity Plan supporting the overarching objectives but asks the cabinet 
member to work with Officers to challenge the policies, as appropriate, in order 
to ensure they are robust enough to achieve their aim.  

 Ask the Cabinet member for Planning to work with officers to continue to 
ensure that this council’s contributions to OxPlan2050 and the forthcoming 
Joint Local Plan support these aspirations and work to develop spatial planning 
and policies within those plans reflects the need to reduce the number of 
avoidable journeys that are currently undertaken by car, such as those required 
purely for commuting or shopping.  

 Ask the leader to write to the Leader of the county council encouraging them to 
ensure that they reflect, as far as possible, their aspirations when responding to 
planning consultations, not only Vale, but across the County noting that they 
will need to comply with policy.  

 

 
The meeting closed at 9:10pm  

 
 
Chair:       Date:  

Page 307



Vale Capital Programme 2021-22 CIL Financing 

2021/22 
Latest 
Budget 

£000

2022/23 
£000

2023/24 
£000

2024/25 
£000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

Fitness Extension Development WHLC 110

Faringdon Pitch 882

Car park lighting improvements 10 63

Changes to Rye Farm car park 0 45

Rye Farm Commercial CP Resurfacing 0 40

Car park resurfacing (all vale except Rye Farm) 40 40 40 50 50 50

Replacement CCTV cameras 185

CCTV Equipment 9

CIL financing agreed in 2022-23 Capital Programme for new projects

No Title of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

1 Wantage Leisure Centre Air 
Handling Unit - Dryside (Dance 
and Gym)

The AHU Handling unit has reached 
end of life and needs to be replaced for 
sports to continue.  New equipment has 
environmental benefits

One-off Vale 50,000 0 0 0 0

2 Faringdon Leisure Centre 
Replacement Pool Filters

Replacement of end of life pool filters 
and install UV filtration

One-off Vale 105,000 0 0 0 0

3 Wantage Leisure Centre - 
Changing Village Enhancement

Full refurbishment of wetside changing 
village.  

One-off Vale 160,000 0 0 0 0

4 Wantage Leisure Centre Spin 
Studio

Convert current creche area into 
designated spin studio

One-off Vale 75,000 0 0 0 0

5 Abingdon Outdoor Pool Air Source Heat Pump (or GSHP) and 
Solar Panels 

One-off Vale 50,000 0 0 0 0

6 Botley Pavilliion Contribution to Botley Pavillion 
development

One-off Vale 250,000 0 0 0 0

7 Play Areas Enhance Play equipment in Vale owned 
play areas with accesible equipment for 
children with special needs

Rolling Vale 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

8 Tree Planting Tree planting on Vale and other publicly 
owned land including Tiny Forests

Rolling Vale 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

9 Vale parks and Open Spaces Capital projects for improvements to 
infrastructure and facilities in Vale parks 
and open spaces. Including non DDA  
compliant bridge in Abbey Meadows.

Rolling Vale 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

10 Letcombe Brook Grant for enhanced maintenance works 
and flood risk management

Rolling Vale 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

2022/23 allocation total £1,415,000 £835,000 £145,000 £145,000 £145,000 £145,000

OVERALL CIL ALLOCATION £3,029,000

£45,000

£40,000

£270,000

£185,000

£9,000

£1,614,000

CAPITAL SPEND
One-off or 

rolling
Vale only 
or joint 

bid?

Spending profile:

CIL Allocated to projects previously included in the Capital Programme Scheme Total

£110,000

£882,000

£73,000

P
age 14

M
inute Item

 7

P
age 308



 

 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Deputy Chief Executive - Partnerships 

Author: Sean Thornton-Mills 

Telephone: 07717 225857 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422422 

E-mail: sean.thornton-mills@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: Drayton, Sutton Courtenay 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Neil Fawcett 

Tel: 01235 422422 

E-mail: neil.fawcett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 2 December 2022 

 

 

Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise 

Zone Memorandum of Understanding 

Recommendations 

That cabinet agrees: 

1. that Vale of White Horse District council should enter into a new memorandum of 
understanding (MoU) with Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP), South 
Oxfordshire District Council and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) for the retention and 
distribution of business rates growth income from the Didcot Growth Accelerator 
Enterprise Zone, agreeing the roles of each party and specifically that Vale of White 
Horse District Council becomes sole Accountable Body. 

2. that authority to finalise terms of the new MoU, including non-material amendments, 
and to enter into it, is delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive - Partnerships in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Strategic Partnerships and Place. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To request that cabinet notes that the Didcot Growth Accelerator memorandum of 
understanding (MoU) with the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government, South Oxfordshire District Council and Oxfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership (OxLEP) for the establishment of the Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise 
Zone (also known as EZ2), expired on 31 March 2020, and that a new MOU is required 
to provide governance for ongoing objectives and priorities for the Enterprise Zone. 

Page 309

Agenda Item 12

mailto:sean.thornton-mills@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:neil.fawcett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 

2. To request that the cabinet agrees that Vale of White Horse District Council should 
enter into a new memorandum of understanding (MoU) with OxLEP, South Oxfordshire 
District Council and Oxfordshire County Council for the retention and distribution of 
business rates growth income from the Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone. 

Corporate Objectives  

3. Entering into a new MOU supports the Vale of White Horse District Council's corporate 
objective: 'Work in partnership to influence and shape regional and national agendas to 
maximise opportunities for our communities and businesses'. 

Background 

4. In 2016, following a competitive process, Government named Didcot Growth 
Accelerator as an enterprise zone, based on sites around Didcot, Milton Park and the 
Milton Interchange. OxLEP, with the support of Vale of White Horse District Council 
and South Oxfordshire District Council, made the bid for enterprise zone status, and 
has overall responsibility for the delivery of the zone. Enterprise zone status brought a 
number of advantages for businesses locating to the zone, such as business rate 
discounts. 

5. Government legislation and policy allows all business rate growth within the Didcot 
Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone to be retained locally until 2041, providing that 
such sums are directed towards the development of the Enterprise Zones and 
thereafter towards OxLEP’s other identified growth priorities. A local authority must be 
nominated to be the accountable body for the retained business rates for audit and 
accounting purposes. As 95% of the Enterprise Zone lies in the Vale, Vale of White 
Horse District Council has been acting as de facto accountable body. The accountable 
body is also expected to undertake the following tasks: 

 Prepare and revise estimates of additional business rates income generated in 
the enterprise zone; 

 Report actual additional business rates income retained to OxLEP; 

 Agree with OxLEP, and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) as OxLEP’s 
accountable body, mechanisms to disburse the retained business rates income. 

6. As the Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone includes areas in both Vale of White 
Horse and South Oxfordshire, there is a need to codify the roles of South Oxfordshire 
District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council as billing authorities and Vale 
of White Horse District Council as accountable body. As such, a mechanism needs to 
be established for the enterprise zones business rates retained by South Oxfordshire 
District Council to flow to Vale of White Horse District Council for disbursement. 

7. Therefore, there is a need for a new MOU to be put in place. Officers, in consultation 
with OxLEP and Oxfordshire County Council have drafted a proposed MOU. A copy of 
the proposed MOU is attached as appendix A. 

Options 

8. Enter into the proposed MOU - Vale of White Horse District Council will become sole 
accountable body for the entirety of the Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone and 

Page 310



 

 

continue as billing authority for those areas of the enterprise zone which fall within Vale 
of White Horse District Council boundaries. South Oxfordshire District Council, as 
billing authority for those areas of the enterprise zone which fall within its boundaries, 
will make enterprise zone business rates they retain available to Vale of White Horse 
District Council for disbursement. Vale of White Horse District Council secure a 
commitment from OxLEP that business rates retained within the Didcot Growth 
Accelerator Enterprise Zone are directed towards the further development of the 
enterprise zone, where projects are available to be funded, before being made 
available to OxLEP’s other identified growth priorities. 

9. Not to enter into the proposed MOU – Vale of White Horse District Council will continue 
as accountable body for those areas of the enterprise zone which fall within Vale of 
White Horse District Council boundaries and will make enterprise zone retained rates 
available on demand to OxLEP for use in their identified growth priorities. South 
Oxfordshire District Council, as accountable body for those areas of the enterprise 
zone which fall within its boundaries, will need to make separate arrangements for the 
disbursement of retained business rates to support OxLEP’s identified growth priorities. 

10. To no longer be the accountable body – 95% of the Didcot Growth Accelerator 
Enterprise Zone is within Vale of White Horse District Council’s area, and the council 
manages and promotes the enterprise zone. As billing authority, the council will in any 
event have to account for the retained business rates, and is therefore well placed to 
forecast future receipts. 

Financial Implications 

11. The proposed MOU sets out those costs that can reasonably be recharged to OxLEP. 
Any other costs incurred by the council, the council will need to meet from existing 
resources. This is in line with OxLEP’s and Government’s expectation that all 
Oxfordshire local authorities will support OxLEP in delivering its objectives. 

Legal Implications 

12. The Non-Domestic Rating (Designated Areas) Regulations 2021 provide Vale of White 
Horse District Council, as billing authority, with the power to retain additional business 
rates generated in the enterprise zone area over and above a baseline quoted in those 
regulations for use by OxLEP. 

13. If Vale of White Horse District Council becomes sole accountable body, an MOU is 
needed between Vale of White Horse District Council, South Oxfordshire District 
Council, OxLEP and Oxfordshire County Council that determines the arrangements for 
managing the retained business rates collected in the enterprise zone area. All parties 
are required to act properly in the expenditure of such funds and in accordance with 
statute and the principles of democratic and financial accountability. 

14. A memorandum of understanding provides this accountability and also provides clarity 
for all parties about how they can work together effectively. It is not a legally 
binding/enforceable document and can be terminated by one or all the parties without 
legal consequences. 

Page 311



 

 

Risks 

15. There is a risk that OxLEP will commit retained business rates income that does not 
materialise. This will be managed through ensuring that estimates of retained business 
rates income are robust and prudent. 

Timeline 

16. Estimated timeline for MOU approval is as follows: 

 15/11/2022 - OxLEP Enterprise Zones Sub-Group 

 01/12/2022 – South Oxfordshire Cabinet 

 02/12/2022 – Vale of White Horse Cabinet 

 13/12/2022 – OxLEP Board 

Conclusion 

17. Cabinet are asked to agree that Vale of White Horse District Council enter into a 
memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership, South Oxfordshire District Council and Oxfordshire County Council for the 
retention and distribution of business rates growth income from the Didcot Growth 
Accelerator Enterprise Zone, and authority to finalise terms and enter into the 
agreement delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive - Partnerships in consultation with 
the cabinet member for Strategic Partnerships and Place. 

 

Appendices 

 Draft Didcot Growth Accelerator MOU 

 Signed Didcot Growth Accelerator MoU with Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government, 2nd December 2016 

Page 312



1 

 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is made on 2022 

BY AND 

BETWEEN THE 

PARTIES: 
 

1 OXFORDSHIRE LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP LTD 
of HQ Building, Thomson Avenue, Harwell Campus, Didcot, 
Oxfordshire, OX11 0GD (“OxLEP”) 

 

2 
 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL of Abbey House, Abbey 
Close, ABINGDON, OX14 3JE (“Vale”) 

3 
 

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL of Abbey House, Abbey 
Close, ABINGDON, OX14 3JE (“South”) 
 
 

 
4 OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, New Road, 

Oxford OX1 1ND (“OCC”) 
 

 

each a “Party” and together known as the “Parties”. 
 

1 Introduction and Background 

 
1.1 This memorandum of understanding (MoU) sets out the arrangements 

between the Vale of White Horse District Council, South Oxfordshire 
District Council, Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP) and 
Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) for the retention and distribution of 
business rates growth income from designated sites in the Vale of 
White Horse and South Oxfordshire districts that together constitute the 
Science Vale Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone (EZ2)1.  

 
1.2 This MoU supplements the MoU entered into by the Vale, South 

Oxfordshire and OxLEP with the Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government in 20162.  

 
1.3 OxLEP was established in 2011 with the aim of encouraging enterprise 

in the Oxfordshire economy, helping to create more sustainable, value 
adding jobs and removing barriers to growth. It is a primary partnership 
between the business community and local government. OxLEP was 
incorporated in March 2015 as a private company limited by guarantee. 
 

1.4 The Governance and Working Arrangements of OxLEP are attached as 
Schedule One hereto. 

 
1.5 Science Vale UK includes two enterprise zones amounting to 216 

hectares (ha). This was achieved through two successful OxLEP bids 
to Government in 2012 and 2016. Didcot Growth or Science Vale 

                                                             
1 The Non-Domestic Rating (Designated Areas etc.) Regulations 2016 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/317/schedule/1/made#regulation-5-2 
2 Science Vale Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone MoU 
https://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1375 

Page 313



2 

 

 

Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone (EZ2) consists of 7 brown and 
green field sites around Didcot and a green field site at the A34 Milton 
Interchange, amounting to 101.4 ha of employment land.  A map 
detailing the EZ site is attached at Annex A. 

 

1.6 Enterprise zone status means that business rates growth income 
earned within each zone over a 25-year period will be retained locally 
and will be spent on local economic priorities. For EZ2 this retention 
period runs from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2041. 

 
 

1.7 The OxLEP Board is responsible for determining how business rates 
achieved through growth in the Enterprise Zone is spent. It does this by 
setting an overarching investment strategy for Oxfordshire whilst 
ensuring that there are clear governance, management, and delivery 
arrangements in place. The preceding MoU with the Secretary of State 
for Communities and Local Government (referred to at 1.2), permitted 
the retention of business rates sums for EZ2, as described at 1.6, 
provided that such sums are directed towards the further development of 
the enterprise zone and thereafter towards OxLEP’s other identified 
growth priorities. 

 
1.8 The role of “Accountable Body” for management of retained business 

rates requires a body which must be a legal entity, nominated to act on 
behalf of OxLEP for the receipt of business rates growth income within 
the enterprise zones area and correct usage of that growth in line with 
economic priorities as supported by the OxLEP Board.  The Vale of 
White Horse District Council (the Vale) will undertake this role on 
behalf of the parties to this MoU for EZ2.  All subsequent references to 
the Vale refer to the Vale acting in that Accountable Body role, unless 
otherwise stated. 

 

1.9 Specific sites within the Enterprise Zone sit within South Oxfordshire 
District Council district and South Oxfordshire is the business rates 
billing and collection authority for those specific sites within the 
Enterprise Zone within its district. South Oxfordshire agrees that the 
Vale shall undertake the role of “Accountable Body” as set out at 1.8 
above and South Oxfordshire agrees to make the retained business 
rates collected in respect of the specific sites within the Enterprise 
Zone within its district available to the Vale (as Accountable Body) 
when funding is required for the further development of the Enterprise 
Zone and thereafter towards OxLEP's other identified growth priorities. 

 
1.10 The purpose of this MoU is to set out the respective roles and 

responsibilities of the Vale acting as Accountable Body for OxLEP for 
retained business rates growth income in EZ2, and that of OxLEP 
itself. Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) is included as a party to this 
agreement as they are the Accountable Body for OxLEP. South 
Oxfordshire District Council is included as a party to this agreement as 
they are a business rates billing and collection authority for specific 
sites that are part of EZ2.  The parties hereby agree the Scheme of 
Operation as set out in Schedule Two hereto and the Scheme of Roles 
and Responsibilities set out in Schedule Three hereto. 
 

1.11 Under this MoU, the Vale will act as an Accountable Body only for 

Page 314



3 

 

 

retained business rates growth income within EZ2. 
 

1.12 These arrangements may be changed by mutual agreement of all parties 
hereto. 

 
2 Commencement 
 
 

2.1 This MoU shall commence upon the date hereof and shall continue in 
effect until terminated by any party upon giving three months’ notice in 
writing to the others. In terminating this MoU, the parties shall comply 
with current UK legislation and the requirements, if any, of central 
government and any other funding agencies. 
 

3 Principles of Decision Making  
 

3.1 The following principles apply to decision making: 
 

3.1.1 due regard to all relevant considerations and disregard of all 
irrelevant factors; 

3.1.2 proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the 
desired outcome); 

3.1.3 lawfulness and financial propriety and prudence; 

3.1.4 the ability to explain the options considered and the reasons for 
decisions; 

3.1.5 due consultations; 

3.1.6 taking of professional advice, as required; 

3.1.7 respect for human rights and application of the Human Rights 
Act 1998; 

3.1.8 a presumption in favour of openness; 

3.1.9 clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 

 

4 Termination and Variation 

 

4.1 If the Vale ceases to be the Accountable Body, it shall: 

 
4.1.1 continue to co-operate with OxLEP and any successor 

Accountable Body and with all grantors to ensure a smooth 
transition, and; 

 
4.1.2 provide to OxLEP or the new Accountable Body (where 

requested to do so by OxLEP) all such invoices, receipts and 
other relevant records which are in its possession and which it 
holds in connection with its role of Accountable Body. For the 
avoidance of doubt, documents will be retained in accordance 
with Vale’s Corporate Retention Schedule Policy. 

 
4.2 This MoU shall terminate automatically on 31 March 2041, being the last 

qualifying date for the EZ2 business rates retention. The allocation and 
/or distribution of any fund balances remaining at termination will be 

Page 315



4 

 

 

decided by the OxLEP Board in advance of the termination date, together 
with the arrangements for making outstanding and/or future payments 
due under existing funding agreements. 

 
4.3 This MoU shall be varied only by the written mutual agreement of all 

parties hereto save that this shall not prevent OxLEP from making 
amendments to its Governance and Working Arrangements. Where a 
variation of this MoU requires a change to be made to OxLEP’s 
Governance and Working Arrangements, that change shall not come into 
effect until the Governance and Working arrangements have been duly 
amended in accordance with its requirements. 

 
5 Charges and Liabilities  
 

5.1 Except as otherwise provided, the parties shall bear their own costs and 
expenses in the preparation of this MoU and any variation of the MoU. 

 
5.2 Vale and South, as billing authorities, will collect all business rates 

generated in the enterprise zone areas.  As Accountable Body, Vale will 
forecast and retain business rates growth income in the Enterprise Zone 
2 area and, on behalf of OxLEP, will disburse funds in accordance with 
the funding agreements put in place by OxLEP and OCC.  The Vale will 
advise OxLEP and OCC of sums available for distribution, which will be 
the amount of retained business rates growth income received less a 
sum held for contingency purposes. The contingency value will be agreed 
between the parties and reviewed annually. OxLEP shall not commit to 
spend more than the sum identified as being available for distribution. 

 

5.3 As set out at 1.9 above South Oxfordshire will pay over retained business 
rates for the specific sites within the Enterprise Zone within its district to 
Vale as Accountable Body for the Enterprise Zone when requested to do 
so by Vale on an annual basis at year end. 

 
5.4 Where OxLEP agrees to disburse funds to agreed projects/activities, 

OCC will prepare relevant funding agreements with the participating 
parties.  OCC will pay out funds to the agreed parties in accordance with 
funding agreements, subject to there being enough retained business 
rates available to make the agreed payments.   

 

5.5 Funding agreements will include enforceable terms to protect the delivery 
of the project, including recovery of funds if the recipient fails to 
satisfactorily complete the funded project/activity.  In such circumstances 
OCC will use reasonable endeavours to recover such sums as may be 
due and to enforce such terms. If full recovery is not possible, the risk of 
any shortfall will be borne by the retained business rates income fund. 

 
5.6 A record of retained business rates income and expenditure funded from 

those receipts will be prepared by the Vale on an annual basis, with 
quarterly updates being reported to the Enterprise Zone sub group and 
twice per year to the OxLEP Board as part of the overarching finance 
report prepared by Oxfordshire County Council as the Accountable Body 
for OxLEP. 

 
5.7 The Vale will consolidate OxLEP’s retained business rates balances with 

its own cash balances and deposit the aggregate funds in accordance 

Page 316



5 

 

 

with the Vale's Treasury Management Strategy.  
 

5.8 The Vale will pay interest annually on the average cash balances held for 
OxLEP in the retained business rates growth fund, based on the average 
Bank of England base rate for the period in question.  Interest will be 
charged to the retained business rates growth fund on overdrawn 
balances, at 2 per cent above the Bank of England Base Rate. In the 
event that the 2 percent above the Bank of England Base Rate would 
result in negative interest rates being applied then it is agreed that these 
negative rates will not be applied to funds held for OxLEP unless the Vale 
interest rates are negative overall.  

 
5.9 Vale in its role as Accountable Body will provide internal staff resources 

for the management and financial administration of the retained business 
rates growth fund, free of charge.  

 

5.10 Vale and South in their operational role will provide internal staff 
resources for operations to include preparation of accurate business 
rates growth forecasts, marketing and strategic level work, focusing on 
assisting existing sites to come forward for development, collaboration 
with OxLEP officers to prepare proposals for OxLEP Board consideration 
on retained rates spend criteria and priorities, data gathering and 
reporting against targets. Costs arising from this arrangement will be 
funded from the retained business rates, subject to approval determined 
by OxLEP’s governance processes. The detail of these costs will be 
reviewed annually with OxLEP. 

 
5.11 External support will be procured where specialist skills are needed that 

are not available from the Vale’s internal staff resources, for example for 
any business rates forecasting, due diligence process, evaluation of and 
assessment of subsidy control status, preparing legal agreements, 
programme management, if required, and to deal with peak workflows. 
Where these additional services are required the Vale, acting as the 
Accountable Body, will ensure value for money in the procurement of 
these services, compliance with applicable legislation, appropriate 
procurement policies and with the Vale’s constitutional requirements. 
The cost of the additional services will be agreed with OxLEP and will be 
met from the retained business rates growth fund. 

 
5.12 The Vale will maintain satisfactory insurances to cover the extent of its 

obligations under this MOU. 
 

6 Data Protection 

 
6.1 The Parties hereto shall comply with their obligations under the Data 

Protection Act 2018 in the performance of their obligations under this 
agreement. 

 
7 Confidentiality 

 
7.1 No Party to this agreement will use or disclose any confidential 

material provided by the other pursuant to this agreement otherwise 
than for the performance of their obligations under this agreement, 
save as may be otherwise agreed or required by law. 

 

Page 317



6 

 

 

7.2 For the avoidance of doubt, confidential information shall not include 
(a) any information obtained from a third party who is free to divulge 
such information; (b) any information which is already in the public 
domain otherwise than as a breach of this agreement; or (c) any 
information which was rightfully in the possession of a Party prior to the 
disclosure by the other Party and lawfully acquired from sources other 
than the other Party. 

 
8 Freedom of Information 

 
8.1 Each of the parties hereto shall co-operate with the other parties hereto 

and supply all information properly required in connection with any 
request received by the Vale, South or OCC under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 
and shall supply all such information and documentation at no cost to the 
requesting party within 5 working days of a request. 

 
8.2 Each of the parties hereto acknowledges that in responding to requests 

received by the Vale, South or OCC under the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004, the 
requesting party will be entitled to provide information relating to the 
MoU. 

 
9 Escalation 

 
9.1 If any Party has any issues, concerns or complaints about any matter in 

this MoU, that Party shall notify the other Parties and the Parties shall 
then seek to resolve the issue by a process of consultation. If the issue 
cannot be resolved within a reasonable period, the matter shall be 
escalated to the OxLEP Chief Executive, South and Vale councils’ 
Acting Deputy Chief Executive - Partnership & Planning and OCC’s 
Director of Finance who shall collectively decide on the appropriate 
course of action to take. 

 
9.2 If any Party receives any formal enquiry, complaint, claim or threat of 

action from a third party they shall notify the other Parties and co-operate 
with each other to respond, or take such action, as is appropriate and/or 
necessary 

 
10 Equality 

 
10.1 In performing their obligations in pursuance of this MoU, the Parties shall 

comply with requirements of the Equality Act 2010. 
 
11 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 

 
11.1 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 shall not apply to this 

MoU but this does not affect any rights which are available apart from 
this Act. 

 
12 Status 

 
12.1 This MoU is not intended to be legally binding, and no legal obligations 

or legal rights shall arise between the Parties from this MoU. The Parties 
enter the MoU intending to honour all their obligations. 

Page 318



7 

 

 

 

13 Governing Law  
 

13.1 This MoU shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
English law. 

 
  

Page 319



8 

 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding is agreed and signed by: 
 
Signed for and on behalf 
of Oxfordshire County Council by 

 

 
 
 
………………………………………… 
Signature 

 
………………………………………… 
Name and Position 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Signed for and on behalf of Vale of 
White Horse District Council by 

 

 
 
 
………………………………………….. 
Signature 

 
………………………………………….. 
Name and Position 

 
 
 
 
Signed for and on behalf of South Oxfordshire  
District Council by 

 

 
 
 
………………………………………….. 
Signature 

 
………………………………………….. 
Name and Position 
 
 
 
Signed for and on behalf of Oxfordshire 
Local Enterprise Partnership Ltd by 

 

 
 
 
………………………………………….. 
Signature 

 
………………………………………….. 
Name and Position 

  

Page 320



9 

 

 

Schedule One 

 

Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Ltd (OxLEP) 

Governance and Working Arrangements 
 
1 Overview 
 
1.1 The Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership was established at the 

beginning of 2011. Its primary aim is to provide strategic leadership in 
encouraging enterprise in the Oxfordshire economy, helping to create 
more sustainable, value adding jobs and removing barriers to growth. 

 
1.2 OXLEP Ltd was incorporated as a private company limited by guarantee 

without share capital on 31 March 2015 (Company number 09519056).  
 
1.3 OxLEP’s governance and working arrangements are designed to ensure 

that OxLEP fulfils its primary aim. In so doing it works with existing 
partnerships or working arrangements that are already operating 
successfully in support of economic growth. The working relationship 
between OxLEP and any other partnership and/or working group is 
typically captured in the form of a Memorandum of Understanding and/or 
a Service Agreement. 
 

2 OxLEP’s Governance arrangements 
 
2.1 OxLEP’s governance structure is published on its website at 

https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/about/our-governance and is set out in 
detail in its Assurance Framework, describing the roles of its Board and its 
Committees and Sub-Groups.  As OxLEP is an incorporated entity, its 
governance is also directed by its Articles of Association and its By-Laws.  
These documents and others relevant to OxLEP’s governance can be 
found here https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/z-key-policies-and-documents, 
together with our Chair and Chief Executive’s assurance statements, 
updated annually. 
 

2.2 OxLEP’s Corporate Plan and Delivery Plan set out OxLEP’s key 
objectives, delivery strategy and programme priorities and is reviewed 
annually.  They can be found here 
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/publications 

 

2.3 OxLEP’s funding status requires there to be a public sector body identified 
as the Accountable Body for audit and transparency purposes. OCC is the 
Accountable Body for OXLEP.  OxLEP’s relationship with OCC as its 
Accountable Body is set out in a separate Memorandum of Understanding 
(MoU).  OCC’s S151 Officer publishes an Annual Assurance Statement; the 
latest MoU and assurance statement can be found here 
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/z-key-policies-and-documents. 

  

Page 321

https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/about/our-governance
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/z-key-policies-and-documents
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/publications
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/z-key-policies-and-documents


10 

 

 

Schedule Two 
 

Scheme of Operation 
 
1 Organisational frameworks 
 
1.1 OxLEP will operate in accordance with: 

i) its governance and working arrangements; 
ii) This MoU; 
iii) The guidelines provided by central government or any other body 

whose regulation controls the use of funds provided to OxLEP; 
and 

iv) Statutory requirements. 
 
1.2 Vale will operate in accordance with: 

i) their constitutions; 
ii) This MoU; 
iii) The guidelines provided by central government or any other body 

whose regulation controls the use of funds provided to OxLEP; 
and 

iv) Statutory requirements. 
 
2 Science Vale Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone 

 
2.1 OxLEP successfully bid for an enterprise zone (Science Vale Didcot Growth 

Accelerator Enterprise Zone, also known as EZ2) to be designated within 
the Vale of White Horse District Council area and South Oxfordshire District 
Council area. Business rates growth income from EZ2 can be retained and 
spent in support of the further development of the EZ and other local 
economic priorities.  

 
2.2 For audit and accounting purposes a public sector entity must be identified 

as the Accountable Body for the retention and distribution of the business 
rates growth income. Vale of White Horse District Council has agreed to act 
as the Accountable Body for Science Vale Didcot Growth Accelerator 
Enterprise Zone. 
 

3 Accountable Body arrangements 
 
3.1 The principles of the Accountable Body arrangements in respect of the 

retention of business rate growth income are set out below: 

 
3.1.1 Business rates growth income from the Science Vale Didcot Growth 

Accelerator Enterprise Zone will be retained by the billing authority 
(the Vale), on behalf of OxLEP. 

 
3.1.2 OxLEP, the Vale and OCC will put in place the following local 

arrangements to ensure this revenue is spent in line with local 
economic priorities, as supported by the OxLEP Board: 

 
i)   OxLEP submit ‘claim form’ to the Vale’s Head of Finance confirming 
that funds will be used in line with 3.1.3 and 3.1.5 and use will be 
recommended to OxLEP board. 

ii)  Claim form will be signed off by the Vale Head of Finance following 

Page 322



11 

 

 

which payment shall be made to OCC as the OxLEP Accountable Body.  

iii) All such payments will be reported quarterly to the OxLEP EZ sub-
group. 

iv) An annual report is given by OxLEP to the EZ sub-group on use of 
funding paid (e.g. grants awarded and paid to beneficiaries, project 
progress, outputs and outcomes achieved to be provided). 

3.1.3 More specifically, the retained business rates growth income will be 
used by OxLEP for key economic priorities, prioritising the further 
development of the enterprise zone 

 
3.1.4 Retained business rates growth income will continue to be viewed by 

government as public funds. As such a public authority should act as 
the responsible organisation for audit and accounting purposes; 

 
3.1.5 In line with expectations for the treatment of other public funding, it is 

expected that OxLEP and its Accountable Bodies (Vale as the 
Accountable Body for retention of retained business rates growth 
income and OCC as the Accountable Body for OxLEP.) will oversee 
distribution of retained business rates received from the Vale and will 
take collective responsibility for ensuring that there is transparency in 
the way retained business rate growth income is spent. The billing 
authorities should retain a degree of oversight of transparency 
arrangements for the total fund of retained business rates. 

 
3.2 Forecasting business rates uplift 
 

3.2.1 The Vale will prepare, and periodically update, a forecast of 
expected additional business rates income earned within the 
enterprise zone. The forecasts will be based on anticipated levels of 
development activity in the enterprise zone area, but independent 
sensitivity testing will be carried out from time to time, on these 
forecasts.  Forecasts should be approved by OxLEP as robust. 

 
3.2.2 As development is delivered the amount of available retained 

business rates growth income available to distribute increases. 
Conversely, should development fail to materialise in line with 
projections, distribution at desired levels may not be achievable and 
may even fall should properties be demolished prior to new 
development or occupancy levels change. 

 
3.3 Retaining and accounting for additional business rates 

 
3.3.1 The Vale and South as billing authorities are responsible for collecting 

the business rates growth income generated in the enterprise zone 
area.  South as set out above have agreed to pay over the retained 
business rates for the specific sites in its district to Vale as 
Accountable Body As Accountable Body, the Vale will act on behalf of 
OxLEP in retaining the growth income and disbursing the funds as per 
the agreed OxLEP priorities. 

 
3.4 Disbursement of funds 
 

3.4.1 The retained business rates growth income generated in the 

Page 323



12 

 

 

enterprise zone will be used by OxLEP to support its economic 
priorities, prioritising the further development of the enterprise zone. 

 
3.4.2 The Parties to this agreement recognize that they have the above 

arrangements set out at 3.1.2 above to manage payments to OxLEP 
and that OxLEP and OCC have arrangements in place for the 
disbursement of funds. This process will recognise that recipients of 
these funds may use them for the repayment of loan arrangements.  
Except for interest on fund balances, the funds will stop accruing 
after 31st March 2041 for EZ2.  However, such borrowing 
arrangements may continue beyond this date and sums drawn down 
in line with the respective repayment agreements. Recipients under 
OxLEP Board approved funding agreements are free to determine 
over what period they wish to borrow, as these funding agreements 
will stipulate that the recipients carry the repayment risk of that 
borrowing. 

 
3.4.3 Under these arrangements, the Vale will undertake the following 

tasks: 
 

i. In conjunction with OCC as OxLEP’s overall Accountable Body, 
when determining expenditure commitments will agree a prudent 
proportion of retained funds that will not be distributed in order to 
provide a safety margin or contingency - which is needed due to 
the uncertainty surrounding future income levels.  
 

ii. Consideration will also be given to the funding of OxLEP’s 
borrowing and operating costs - should the OxLEP Board agree 
that these should be funded from the retained business rate growth 
income.  

 
iii. Note that OCC as OxLEP’s overall Accountable Body will prepare 

agree and enter into payment/funding agreements, including any 
cost recovery, on behalf of OxLEP for organisations undertaking 
projects that OxLEP has agreed can be funded from retained 
business rates growth income. 

 
3.4.4 The Vale as accountable body will not bear risks relating to 

undertaking any funded project. The organisation undertaking the 
project will be responsible for the following: 

 
i. Undertaking any necessary borrowing. 
ii. Cost control for the project. 
iii. Owning the financial risk and acting as guarantor should 

borrowing costs exceed those projected. 
 

3.4.5 If a project has cost overruns, the organisation undertaking the 
development will report to OxLEP on the circumstances, should they 
wish to seek additional funding they will be obliged to follow the terms 
of their funding agreement in that regard. It is for the OxLEP Board to 
decide on this matter and the Vale will act on OxLEP’s instructions. 

 
3.4.6 If retained business rate funds are paid out in respect of a project that 

ultimately does not deliver the outcomes as determined by OxLEP, 
OCC as OxLEP’s overall Accountable Body will make all reasonable 
endeavours to recover those funds on behalf of OxLEP. 

 

Page 324



13 

 

 

3.5 Monitoring and reporting 
 

3.5.1 The Vale will report the following to OxLEP and OxLEP’s Accountable 
Body on a quarterly basis: 

 
i. The amount of retained business rates growth income received 

against latest forecasts. 

 
ii. Commitments made against retained business rates and 

contingency amounts available. 

 
3.5.2 OxLEP will monitor progress of projects funded from retained 

business rates against the relevant project plans  
  

Page 325



14 

 

 

Schedule Three 
 

Scheme of Roles & Responsibilities 
 
1 General 
 
1.1 OxLEP shall: 
 

1.1.1 undertake all decisions in respect of the policy necessary for 
allocating business rates growth income funding, the payment of 
funding and monitoring the delivery of projects; 

1.1.2 ensure that all such decisions are fully documented and recorded in 
writing; 

1.1.3 agree robust and transparent assessment criteria against which 
funding will be allocated; 

1.1.4 agree the robust and objective assessment methodology based on 
the assessment criteria to support the prioritisation of projects and to 
facilitate independent assessment in accordance with the appropriate 
use of public funds; 

1.1.5 ensure that projects are approved only after an appraisal has been 
carried out; 

1.1.6 invite applications for funding; 

1.1.7 agree applications for funding following assessment on behalf of 
OxLEP; 

1.1.8 commit to allocate no more than the sum identified by the 
Accountable Body as being available for investment. 

 
1.2 Vale and South, as billing authorities, shall 
 

1.2.1 Collect and account for all business rates generated in the enterprise 
zone area. 

1.3 Vale, as Accountable Body, shall 
 

1.3.1 prepare and bi-annually update forecasts of the amount of growth in 
business rates in the enterprise zone area that will be available for 
retention; 

1.3.2 on a timely basis, prepare such data as required by government for 
completion by OxLEP of regular returns on Enterprise Zone 
performance, outputs and outcomes; 

1.3.3 advise OxLEP of sums available for investment, which will be the 
amount of business rates growth income retained less approved 
commitments and a sum held for contingency purposes; 

1.3.4 retain and hold the business rates growth income generated in the 
enterprise zone and all interest or income earned on it for and on 
behalf of OxLEP and ensure that the income is not moved or spent, 

Page 326



15 

 

 

without specific instruction from OxLEP; 

1.3.5 administer the retained business rates growth income under its own 
accounting policies and financial procedures to ensure that funds are 
applied and accounted for appropriately. This will be carried out under 
the direction of the Section 151 Officer; 

1.3.6 provide support and assistance to OxLEP to ensure both legal and 
financial probity in relation to the receipt of retained business rates 
growth income; 

1.3.7 advise OxLEP on the procedures necessary to ensure formal 
compliance with any requirements for administering the retention of 
business rates growth income; 

1.3.8 provide proper and effective governance for the allocation of retained 
business rates growth income; 

1.4 OCC as overall Accountable Body for OxLEP shall: 

1.4.1 enter into appropriate contracts or agreements on behalf of OxLEP 
for projects to be funded from retained business rates growth income, 
once the projects have been approved by OxLEP; 

1.4.2 undertake any necessary action to seek recovery of retained 
business rates funding where projects do not deliver outcomes 
determined by OxLEP; 

1.4.3 ensure that the funding is passed on to the project delivery 
organisation, in line with the conditions of the funding agreement(s) 
and in accordance with agreed project payment profiles, providing 
there is sufficient retained business rates growth income available. 

1.5 For the avoidance of doubt, any reference in this schedule to financial 
information being provided to OxLEP should also be provided to 
Oxfordshire County Council, as OxLEP’s Accountable Body. 
 

2 Financial/Audit 

 
2.1 OxLEP shall 
 

2.1.1 co-operate with and assist the Vale acting in its role as Accountable 
Body in undertaking the day to day responsibility for financial matters; 

2.1.2 direct the Vale to make funding available to persons and 
organisations who it has resolved shall receive these; 

2.1.3 co-operate with and assist Vale in regular audit examinations of all 
operating systems; 

2.1.4 act upon all recommendations contained within the Vale’s internal 
audit reports where the Vale’s chief financial officer so requires; 

2.1.5 shall not reverse funding instructions once the Vale as Accountable 
Body has entered into binding legal agreements to advance funding. 

  

Page 327



16 

 

 

2.2 Vale as Accountable Body shall 
 

2.2.1 establish and maintain a financial system to account for all monies 
received and paid to OCC on OxLEP’s behalf; 

2.2.2 pay over to OCC, subject to evidence of due diligence, having been 
carried out by OxLEP funding for projects identified by OxLEP; 

OCC as accountable body for OxLEP shall  

2.2.3 receive income and make payments for and on behalf of OxLEP; 

2.2.4 maintain proper records, in accordance with its Constitution, of all 
monies received and disbursed for OxLEP and make such records 
available for inspection by both internal and external regulators; 

2.2.5 prepare and supply a record of retained business rates growth income 
and the expenditure funded from those receipts, on an annual basis to 
OxLEP, and provide quarterly updates to OxLEP; 

2.2.6 prepare and supply, as necessary, completed statements of income, 
expenditure and disbursements to other organisations as required by 
law. 

3 Recovery of retained business rates growth income used to fund 
projects 

 
3.1 The conditions where funds will be recovered will be laid out in each project 

funding agreement. OCC will take the step to recover funds only from those 
parties with whom it has a direct agreement. If the project concerned 
employs a third party such as a subcontractor, it would be up to the funding 
recipient to take any action they require to recover their losses from such 
third parties. 

 
3.2 The general phasing of fund recovery will be as follows: 
 

 Stage 1: Notice sent containing the reason for concern, outlining the 
potential fund recovery situation and giving time where appropriate for 
corrective action; 

 Stage 2: If no corrective action is taken or is deemed insufficient to 
avoid fund recovery a further notice will be sent asking for the return of 
funds with a specified return deadline.  In cases of particular difficulty, 
OCC, in consultation with the OxLEP Board, may accommodate a 
funding return payment plan, specifying payment instalments over an 
agreed period of time.  This payment plan approach must be agreed in 
writing and cannot be assumed; 

 Stage 3: If funds are not returned within the set deadline the OCC may 
then instigate debt recovery procedures, which may result in legal 
action being taken. 

 
3.3 OCC will undertake these steps only if unavoidable, to protect the public 

purse and to ensure that public funding is being used appropriately. 
  

Page 328



17 

 

 

Annex A – Science Vale Didcot Growth Accelerator (EZ2)  
 

Didcot or Science Vale Growth Accelerator Enterprise 
zone sites 

 

 

Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Diversity and inclusion strategy
	Appendix 1 - Draft Diversity and Inclusion Strategy - updated after survey feedback
	Appendix 2 - Diversity and Inclusion Consultation Report 2022
	Appendix 3 - Diversity and Inclusion Strategy Survey Data

	8 Council tax base 2023/24
	9 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 ceasing production and implications for the Joint Local Plan and Local Development Scheme
	Appendix 1 - Joint Local Plan Local Development Scheme December 2022

	10 Corporate Plan and Climate Action Plan performance reports - quarter 2, 2022/23
	Background
	Strategic context
	Quarter two performance highlights
	Theme 1:  Providing the homes people need 
	Theme 2:  Tackling the climate emergency
	Theme 3:  Building healthy communities
	Theme 4:  Building stable finances
	Theme 5:  Working in partnership
	Theme 6:  Working in an open and inclusive way
	Theme 1: Providing the homes people need - performance updates against reporting measures  
	Theme 2: Tackling the climate emergency - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 3: Building healthy communities - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 4: Building stable finances - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 5: Working in partnership - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 6: Woking in an open and inclusive way - performance updates against reporting measures 

	Climate Action Plan Performance Report Q2, 2022/23
	Introduction
	Quarter context
	Quarter two performance highlights
	Theme 1  Our ways of working
	Theme 2  Our service delivery
	Theme 3  Our people
	Theme 4  Our land
	Theme 5  Our buildings
	Theme 6  Our communities
	Theme 7  Our partners
	Theme 1: Our ways of working - Performance updates against reporting measures
	Theme 2: Our service delivery - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 3: Our people - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 4: Our land - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 5: Our buildings - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 6: Our communities - performance updates against reporting measures 
	Theme 7: Our partners - performance updates against reporting measures 



	11 Food Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Oxfordshire Food Strategy 2022
	Appendix 2 - Corporate Plan Extract
	Appendix 3 - Oxfordshire Food Strategy Appendix
	Appendix 4 - Vale Council Motion
	Minutes
	7 Public participation


	12 Didcot Growth Accelerator Enterprise Zone - Memorandum of Understanding
	Appendix 1 - Didcot Growth Accelerator Memorandum of Understanding Draft
	Appendix 2 - Original Didcot Growth Accelerator Memorandum of Understanding 2016


